
 

 Page 1 of 3  

AGENDA 
FRIDAY, JANUARY 25, 2013 

METCALF BUILDING, ROOM 111 
1520 EAST SIXTH AVENUE, HELENA, MONTANA 

********************************************************** 
 

NOTE: Individual agenda items are not assigned specific times. For public notice purposes, the meeting will begin no earlier than the 
time specified; however, the Board might not address the specific agenda items in the order they are scheduled. The Board will make 
reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities who wish to participate in this meeting. Please contact the Board Secretary 
by telephone at (406) 444-6701 or by e-mail at jwittenberg@mt.gov no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting to advise her of the 
nature of the accommodation you need.   
 
9:00 A.M. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES 

1. December 7, 2012, Board meeting minutes. 

II. BRIEFING ITEMS 
A. CONTESTED CASE UPDATE 

1. Enforcement cases assigned to the Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of violations of the Montana Septage Disposal and Licensure Laws 
by James Vaughn, d/b/a Any Time Septic & Porta-Potty, Lake County, BER 
2011-06 SDL. On November 26, 2012, the hearing examiner, having determined that 
the pending motion for summary judgment be resolved in the department’s favor, 
issued Order Vacating Hearing and Prehearing Conference Dates and will schedule 
new dates concerning penalties following issuance of the recommended order 
concerning summary judgment.   

b. In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply laws by the city of Ronan 
Public Water Supply System, PWSID #MT0000318, Ronan, Lake County, BER 
2012-04 PWS. A hearing is scheduled for January 31, 2013. A Motion to Stay 
Hearing was filed on January 7, 2013. 

c. In the matter of violations of the Montana Solid Waste Management Act by 
Valley County Refuse District #1 at the Valley County Landfill, Glasgow, BER 
2012-06 SW. On November 1, 2012, the Board received DEQ Motion for Summary 
Judgment and Brief in Support of Motion, and on December 17, 2012, it received 
Valley County Refuse District #1’s Brief in Opposition to DEQ’s Motion for Summary 
Judgment. A contested case hearing is set for January 23, 2013. On December 28, 
2012, the Board received DEQ Reply Brief for Motion [for] Summary Judgment. 

d. In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by Trailer Terrace 
Mobile Park, LLC, Dennis Deschamps and Dennis Rasmussen at the Trailer 
Terrace, PWSID No. MT0000025, Great Falls, Cascade County, BER 2012-11 PWS. 
On December 11, 2012, the hearing examiner issued Order Granting Extension giving the 
parties through March 8, 2013, to settle the matter or file a proposed schedule. 



BER Agenda Page 2 of 3 January 25, 2013 

e. In the matter of violations of the Montana Solid Waste Management Act by 
Asphalt Plus, LLC, a corporation, and Michael C. and Melinda M. Oedekoven, 
as individuals, at 425 Johnson lane, Billings, Yellowstone County, BER 2012-13 
SW. On December 5, 2012, attorney for DEQ filed Unopposed Motion for Extension 
of Time, and on December 11, the hearing examiner issued Order Granting Extension 
of Time giving the parties through February 22, 2013, to settle the matter or file a 
proposed scheduling order. 

2. Other Cases Assigned to a Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of the request for hearing by Hawthorne Springs Property Owners 
Association; H Lazy Heart, LLC; Patchy, Inc.; and other residents regarding 
Opencut Mining Permit No. 2258, issued to Farwest Rock Products, Missoula 
County, BER 2012-09 OC. A contested case hearing is scheduled for April 16, 2013. 

3. Contested Cases not assigned to a Hearing Examiner 

a. In the matter of the request for hearing by William E. Smith, on behalf of Mike 
Adkins, regarding Park County’s denial to validate Adkins Class III Waste Tire 
Monofill License No. 517, BER 2012-05 SW. At its July 27, 2012, meeting, the 
Board voted to hear all matters in this case. On September 11, 2012, the Board granted 
a motion to stay proceedings until disposition of the Petition for Judicial Review filed 
in the Sixth Judicial District. 

b. In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for hearing by Western Energy 
Company (WECO) regarding its MPDES Permit No. MT0023965 issued for 
WECO’s Rosebud Mine in Colstrip, BER 2012-12 WQ. On November 28, 2012, 
the Board received Western Energy Company and DEQ’s Proposed Scheduling Order, 
and on December 10, the hearing examiner issued First Prehearing Order setting a 
hearing for July 19, 2013. On December 19, the Board received Motion to Intervene 
from counsel for Montana Environmental Information Center and Sierra Club. On 
December 24, attorney for the Appellant filed Agreed Motion for Extension to File 
Response Briefs and Reply Briefs Regarding Intervention and Agreed Motion to 
Vacate First Scheduling Order. On January 2, 2013, the hearing examiner issued 
Order Granting Extension to File Briefs on Motion to Intervene and Order Vacating 
First Scheduling Order. 

III. ACTION ITEMS 
A. REPEAL, AMENDMENT, OR ADOPTION OF FINAL RULES 

1. In the matter of final adoption of the proposed amendments to Title 17, Chapter 38, Sub-
Chapter 1, Public Water and Sewer Plans, Cross Connections, and Drilling Water Wells, 
by adding a new rule to address the repair of significant deficiencies and add a new line 
item and fee to the plan review fee tables, as noticed in MAR, 17-340A. 

B. NEW CONTESTED CASES 

1. In the matter of the request for hearing by Montana Environmental Information 
Center and Sierra Club regarding DEQ’s issuance of Montana Air Quality Permit 
No. OP0513-08 for the Colstrip Steam Electric Station, Colstrip, BER 2013-01 AQ. 
The Board received the request on January 3, 2013. The Board may appoint a permanent 
hearings examiner or decide to hear the matter. 



BER Agenda Page 3 of 3 January 25, 2013 

2. In the matter of the request for hearing by Montana Environmental Information 
Center and Sierra Club regarding DEQ’s issuance of Montana Air Quality Permit 
No. OP2953-07 for the JE Corette Steam Electric Station, Billings, BER 2013-02 AQ. 
The Board received the request on January 3, 2013. The Board may appoint a permanent 
hearings examiner or decide to hear the matter. 

C. OTHER ACTION ON CONTESTED CASES 

1. In the matter of violations of the Opencut Mining Act by Brad Blakeman at the 
Camas Prairie Gravel Pit, Sanders County, BER 2012-01 OC. A contested case 
proceeding took place before the full Board on September 28, 2012, and the Board found 
in favor of the department. At its December 7 meeting, the Board voted to have the parties 
confer and develop a reclamation plan for Mr. Blakeman to implement and the department 
to approve and monitor. The plan is to be brought before the Board for a final decision 
regarding penalty. 

2. In the matter of violations of the Montana Septage Disposal and Licensure Laws by 
James Vaughn, d/b/a Any Time Septic & Porta-Potty, Lake County, BER 2011-06 
SDL. On November 26, 2012, the hearing examiner, having determined that the pending 
motion for summary judgment be resolved in the department’s favor, issued Order 
Vacating Hearing and Prehearing Conference Dates, and Recommended Order for 
Partial Summary Judgment in January 2013. An order accepting the recommended order 
for partial summary judgment will be presented for signature. A new hearing date will be 
scheduled to take up the issue of penalties.  

3. In the matter of the request for hearing by Earth Justice, Montana Environmental 
Information Center, Sierra Club, and National Wildlife Federation regarding the 
Administrative Order on Consent issued to PPL Montana, LLC, BER 2012-10 MFS. On 
September 18, 2012, the Board received Election of PPL Montana, LLC for Proceeding to 
Occur in District Court Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. §75-20-223(1). 

IV. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
Under this item, members of the public may comment on any public matter within the jurisdiction 
of the Board that is not otherwise on the agenda of the meeting. Individual contested case 
proceedings are not public matters on which the public may comment. 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 



 
MEETING MINUTES 
DECEMBER 7, 2012 

 
Call to Order  

The Board of Environmental Review’s regularly scheduled meeting was called to order by 
Chairman Russell at 9:00 a.m., on Friday, December 7, 2012, in Room 111 of the Metcalf 
Building, 1520 East Sixth Avenue, Helena, Montana. 

Attendance 

Board Members Present: Chairman Joseph Russell, Marvin Miller, Larry Anderson, Larry Mires, 
and Robin Shropshire 

Board Members Present via Telephone: Joe Whalen 

Board Members Absent: Heidi Kaiser 

Board Attorney Present: Katherine Orr, Agency Legal Services Bureau 

Board Secretary Present: Joyce Wittenberg 

Court Reporter Present: Laurie Crutcher, Crutcher Court Reporting 

Department Personnel Present: John North, James Madden, David Dennis, Kirsten Bowers, 
Norman Mullen, and Carol Schmidt – Legal; Steve Kilbreath – Director’s Office; Judy 
Hanson – Permitting & Compliance Division; Jon Dilliard, Barbara Kingery, and Eugene 
Pizzini – Public Water Supply & Subdivisions Bureau; David Klemp, Debra Wolfe, 
Charles Homer, Bob Habeck, Whitney Jurenic, and Julie Merkel – Air Resources 
Management Bureau; Ed Coleman – Industrial & Energy Minerals Bureau; Paul Skubinna 
and Tom Reid – Water Protection Bureau; John Arrigo and Dan Kenney – Enforcement 
Division; George Mathieus – Planning, Prevention & Assistance Division; Eric Urban, Eric 
Regensburger and Mark Bostrom – Water Quality Planning Bureau; Todd Teegarden – 
Technical & Financial Assistance Bureau 

Interested Persons Present: Anne Hedges – Montana Environmental Information Center 

 



 

BER Minutes Page 2 of 7 December 7, 2012 

I.A.1 Review and approve September 27, 2012, Board meeting minutes. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to approve the minutes as written. Mr. Mires 
so MOVED. Mr. Miller SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a 
unanimous vote. 

     Roll call was taken to confirm attendance. 

I.B Set 2013 Meeting Schedule 

     The Board set the 2013 meeting schedule as proposed: January 25, March 22, May 
17, July 19, October 4, and December 6. Board members were advised to contact the 
Board Secretary if any issues with the schedule should arise. 

II.A.1.a In the matter of violations of the Montana Septage Disposal and Licensure Laws by 
James Vaughn, d/b/a Any Time Septic & Porta Potty, BER 2011-06 SDL. 

     Ms. Orr said that a prehearing conference took place in November and the parties 
provided oral argument on the pending motion for summary judgment; that she had 
notified the parties that she was granting partial summary judgment; and that the 
matter would be before the Board in January. She noted that the issue of penalties is a 
fact determination and will have to go to hearing. 

II.A.1.b In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by the city of Ronan 
Public Water Supply System, BER 2012-04 PWS. (No discussion took place 
regarding this matter.) 

II.A.1.c In the matter of violation of the Montana Solid Waste Management Act by Valley 
County Refuse District #1 at the Valley County Landfill, BER 2012-06 SW. (No 
discussion took place regarding this matter.) 

II.A.2.a In the matter of the request for hearing by Hawthorne Springs Property Owners 
Association; H Lazy Heart, LLC; Patchy, Inc.; and other residents regarding Opencut 
Mining Permit No. 2258, issued to Farwest Rock Products, BER 2012-09 OC. (No 
discussion took place regarding this matter.) 

II.A.3.a In the matter of the request for hearing by William E. Smith, on behalf of Mike 
Adkins, regarding Park County’s denial to validate Adkins Class III Waste Tire 
Monofill License No. 517, BER 2012-05 SW. 

     Ms. Orr reminded the Board that this matter has been suspended pending the 
decision by the Sixth Judicial District on the petition for judicial review. 

II.A.3.b In the matter of the request for hearing by Earth Justice, Montana Environmental 
Information Center, Sierra Club, and National Wildlife Federation regarding the 
Administrative Order on Consent issued to PPL Montana, LLC, BER 2012-10 MFS. 

     Ms. Orr said there had been a document filed to remove this to District Court as a 
matter of an automatic right, but that no motion had been filed to do so. She indicated 
that she will be welcoming the parties to do so, and that a dismissal may be coming in 
January. 



 

BER Minutes Page 3 of 7 December 7, 2012 

II.B.1 DEQ Air Quality Permit Fees Briefing 

     Mr. Habeck said the department does not intend to request the Board initiate 
rulemaking to change the air quality fees, so the current fees will remain in place.  

III.A.1 In the matter of DEQ’s request to initiate rulemaking to amend ARM 17.30, 
subchapter 13 and to adopt New Rule I pertaining to the Montana Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (MPDES) permit program to maintain compliance with federal 
regulations governing concentrated animal feeding operations (CAFOs). 

     Mr. Reid said the primary reason for the proposed changes is to update and 
maintain consistency with federal regulations and to adopt state standards as required 
by federal regulations. He described major parts of the rulemaking and said the 
department worked with agency and industry stakeholders, that copies were provided 
to EPA and comments were received, and that the rule adopts by reference material 
from NRCS and MSU Extension Services. 

     Mr. Reid responded to questions from the Board. 

     Chairman Russell asked if any member of the public was present and would like to 
comment on the rulemaking. There was no response. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking. Ms. Miller so 
MOVED. Ms. Shropshire SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a 
unanimous vote. 

III.A.2 In the matter of DEQ’s request to initiate rulemaking to revise Circular DEQ-4, 
Montana Standards for Subsurface Wastewater Treatment Systems. 

     Ms. Kingery described the changes and provided background information regarding 
DEQ-4. She said it was updated substantially in 2004 and another chapter was added in 
2009. She identified the many groups that the department worked with in developing 
the version before the Board at present. 

     Ms. Shropshire confirmed she had spent some time with Ms. Kingery going over 
some of her own comments and that she was pleased with the document. 

     Chairman Russell commented regarding some formatting inconsistencies. 

     Chairman Russell asked if any member of the public was present and would like to 
comment on the rulemaking. There was no response. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to initiate the rulemaking and appoint Ms. Orr 
as the presiding officer. Ms. Shropshire so MOVED. Mr. Miller SECONDED the 
motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 



 

BER Minutes Page 4 of 7 December 7, 2012 

III.B.1 In the matter of DEQ’s request for final adoption of amended rule ARM 17.8.102 Air 
Quality rules incorporation by reference. 

     Ms. Wolfe said a hearing was held on September 7, no comments were received, and 
that the department recommends adoption of the proposed amendments.  

     Chairman Russell asked if any member of the public would like to comment on the 
rulemaking. There was no response. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to adopt the rule as proposed, the Presiding 
Officer’s Report, and the 521 and 311 Analysis. Mr. Anderson so MOVED. Mr. Mires 
SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

III.B.2 In the matter of DEQ’s request for final adoption of New Rule, which incorporates by 
reference department Circular DEQ-13. 

     Mr. Teegarden said a public meeting was held on November 13 regarding the Nutrient 
Trading Policy, and that some minor changes were implemented based on comments 
received. He reminded the Board that the trading policy is strictly voluntary. He said the 
department requests the Board adopt the rule incorporating the policy. 

     Mr. Teegarden responded to questions from the Board. 

     Chairman Russell asked if anyone in the audience wanted to comment regarding 
the rulemaking. No one responded. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to adopt the rule, the 521 and 311 Analysis, 
the department’s responses to comment, and the Presiding Officer’s Report. Mr. 
Whalen so MOVED. Mr. Miller SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED 
with a unanimous vote. 

III.B.3 In the matter of DEQ’s request for final adoption of amendments to ARM 17.30, 
subchapter 13, regarding permit exclusions and application requirements for discharge 
permits issued under the Montana Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (MPDES) 
program. 

     Mr. Reid said the Board voted to initiate the rulemaking on July 27, a hearing was 
held September 5, the public comment period closed September 12, and no comments 
were received. He said the department requests the Board adopt the amendments as 
proposed. 

     Chairman Russell asked if anyone in the audience would like to comment on the 
rulemaking. There was no response. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to adopt the rule as proposed, the Presiding 
Officer’s Report, and the 521 and 311 Analysis. Mr. Miller so MOVED. Mr. 
Anderson SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 



 

BER Minutes Page 5 of 7 December 7, 2012 

III.B.4 In the matter of final action regarding amended rule 17.30.617 to designate a portion 
of the mainstem Gallatin River as an Outstanding Resource Water. 

     Mr. North provided background information for the rulemaking and said it had 
been a continuing matter before the Board since 2001. He said a pilot test proved 
snow making to be a viable alternative for protecting the river and implementing it 
could take two to three years. Mr. North said the department recommends the Board 
take no action, effectively ending the rulemaking, and that all the stakeholders had 
expressed approval for this course of action. He noted that the Board could reinstitute 
rulemaking for adoption of the ORW status at a future date. 

     Mr. North, Mr. Teegarden, and Mr. Regensburger responded to questions from the 
Board. 

     Chairman Russell asked if anyone wanted to make a motion to keep the 
rulemaking alive. No one responded and no action was taken on this matter. 

III.C.1 In the matter of violations of the Montana Strip and Underground Mine Reclamation 
Act by Signal Peak Energy, LLC at the Bull Mountain Mine #1, BER 2012-08 SM. 

     Ms. Orr provided background information for this matter and said a Rule 41(a) 
dismissal has been requested. 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to authorize him to sign the order dismissing 
this matter. Mr. Mires so MOVED. Mr. Miller SECONDED the motion. The motion 
CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

III.C.2 In the matter of violations of the Montana Underground Storage Tank Act by Jeanny 
Hlavka, individually and d/b/a J.R. Enterprise, LLC, at the Fort Peck Station, BER 
2010-08 UST. 

     Ms. Orr said the Board had granted a motion for summary judgment in this matter 
in 2011, but that it was appealed to District Court, which remanded it back to the 
Board for further proceedings. She said the issues have been addressed and she 
recommends the Board sign the order granting summary judgment.  

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to authorize him to sign the order granting 
the second motion for summary judgment. Mr. Anderson so MOVED. Mr. Miller 
SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

III.D.1 In the matter of violations of the Public Water Supply Laws by Trailer Terrace Mobile 
Park, LLC, Dennis Deschamps, and Dennis Rasmussen at the Trailer Terrace, BER 
2012-11 PWS. 

     Ms. Orr provided information regarding the matter.  



 

BER Minutes Page 6 of 7 December 7, 2012 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to appoint Ms. Orr as the permanent hearings 
examiner for this matter. Ms. Shropshire so MOVED. Mr. Mires SECONDED the 
motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

III.D.2 In the matter of the notice of appeal and request for heating by Western Energy 
Company (WECO) regarding its MPDES Permit No. MT0023965 issued for WECO’s 
Rosebud Mine in Colstrip, BER 2012-12 WQ. 

     Ms. Orr provided detailed information regarding the matter.  

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to appoint Ms. Orr as the permanent hearings 
examiner for this matter. Mr. Miller so MOVED. Mr. Mires SECONDED the motion. 
Mr. Whalen and Mr. Anderson expressed interest in the Board hearing the matter. The 
motion FAILED 4-2.  

III.D.3 In the matter of violations of the Montana Solid Waste Management Act by Asphalt 
Plus, LLC, a corporation, and Michael C. and Melinda M. Oedekoven, as individuals, 
at 425 Johnson Lane, Billings, BER 2012-13 SW. 

     Ms. Orr briefed the Board on the matter.  

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to appoint Ms. Orr as the permanent hearings 
examiner for this matter. Mr. Mires so MOVED. Mr. Miller SECONDED the motion. 
The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

III.E.1 In the matter of violations of the Opencut Mining Act by Brad Blakeman at the Camas 
Prairie Gravel Pit, BER 2012-01 OC. 

     Ms. Orr reminded that the Board had held a contested case proceeding in 
September and had decided there was liability on the part of the appellant. She said 
the Board had tasked her with determining if the Board could alter the requested 
penalty amount, and that she had determined the Board could.  

     After further discussion, Mr. Anderson MOVED to have the parties confer among 
themselves to develop a reclamation plan for Mr. Blakeman to implement, that the 
department would approve and monitor, then bring the plan to the Board for a final 
decision on the penalty. Mr. Miller SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED 5-1. 

IV. General Public Comment 

     Chairman Russell asked if anyone in the audience would like to address the Board 
on any matters that pertain to the Board. There was no response. 

     Chairman Russell requested a briefing from Mr. Kilbreath at the next Board meeting 
regarding the impacts in eastern Montana relating to the development in the Bakken. 



 

BER Minutes Page 7 of 7 December 7, 2012 

V. Adjournment 

     Chairman Russell called for a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Mires so MOVED. Mr. 
Miller SECONDED the motion. The motion CARRIED with a unanimous vote. 

     The meeting adjourned at 11:28 a.m. 

 

 

Board of Environmental Review December 7, 2012, minutes approved: 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      JOSEPH W. RUSSELL, M.P.H. 
      CHAIRMAN 
      BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
      __________________ 
      DATE 



BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
AGENDA ITEM 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR RULE ADOPTION 
 
AGENDA # III.A.1. 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY - The department requests approval of amendments to the public water 
supply rules to:  
 

1. Amend existing public water supply engineering fee rules to adopt an new line 
item and associated fee for water and wastewater sliplining of existing piping; and 

2. Adopt a New Rule to require the repair of significant deficiencies. 
 

LIST OF AFFECTED RULES - ARM 17.38.106 and New Rule I 
 
AFFECTED PARTIES SUMMARY - Owners or operators of public water or wastewater systems 
replacing existing piping with a sliplining process and those systems that may have a significant 
deficiency, as determined by the department. 
 
SCOPE OF PROPOSED PROCEEDING - The Board is considering final action on adoption of 
amendments to the above-referenced rules as proposed in the Montana Administrative Register. 
 
BACKGROUND – The Legislature requires the department to collect fees commensurate with the 
cost of reviewing plans and specifications.  MCA, 75-6-108(3), states, “The board shall by rule 
prescribe fees to be assessed by the department on persons who submit plans and specifications 
for construction, alteration, or extension of a public water supply system or public sewage 
system.  The fees must be commensurate with the cost to the department for reviewing the plans 
and specifications.”  Past legislative audits identified that the department was not recovering its 
costs for conducting engineering review.  Based on those findings the BER adopted increased 
engineering fees.  During testimony the department stated that if a fee rate was found to be 
excessive it would return to the BER with a request to correct that issue.  The proposed 
engineering review change acts upon that pledge. 
 
The remaining proposed changes are intended to implement new authority authorized in the 2009 
Legislature.  The Legislature authorized the BER to adopt rules requiring the identification and 
repair of significant deficiencies that have the potential to contaminate drinking water. 
 
HEARING INFORMATION - Katherine Orr conducted a public hearing on November 28, 2012, on 
the proposed amendments.  The Presiding Officer's Report and the draft Notice of Amendment 
are attached to this executive summary.  No comments were received. 
 
BOARD OPTIONS - The Board may: 
 

1. Adopt the proposed amendments as set forth in the attached Notice of Public Hearing 
on Proposed Amendment; 

2. Adopt the proposed amendments with revisions that the Board finds are appropriate 



and that are consistent with the scope of the Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed 
Amendment and the record in this proceeding; or 

3. Decide not to adopt the amendments. 
 
DEQ RECOMMENDATION - The department recommends adoption of the proposed amendments 
as set forth in the attached Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment. 
 
ENCLOSURES - 
 

1. Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment 
2. Presiding Officer’s Report 
3. HB521 and 311 Analysis 
4. Draft Notice of Amendment 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-340 21-11/8/12 

-2237-

 BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 
 
In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.38.106 pertaining to fees and the 
adoption of New Rule I pertaining to 
significant deficiency 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

AMENDED NOTICE OF PUBLIC 
HEARING ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENT AND ADOPTION 
 

(PUBLIC WATER AND SEWAGE 
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS) 

 
 TO:  All Concerned Persons 
 
 1.  On October 11, 2012, the Board of Environmental Review published MAR 
Notice No. 17-340 regarding a notice of public hearing on the proposed amendment 
and adoption of the above-stated rules at page 1906, 2012 Montana Administrative 
Register, issue number 19.  The board is publishing this amended notice to set a 
new public hearing date to allow for notice to interested persons as required by 2-4-
302(2)(a), MCA.  On November 28, 2012, at 1:30 p.m., the Board of Environmental 
Review will hold a public hearing in Room 35, Metcalf Building, 1520 East Sixth 
Avenue, Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed amendment and adoption of 
the above-stated rules.  The rules remain as proposed in the original notice of public 
hearing. 
 
 2.  The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, contact Elois 
Johnson, Paralegal, no later than 5:00 p.m., November 19, 2012, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need.  Please contact Elois Johnson at 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-
0901; phone (406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 
 
 3.  Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments, either 
orally or in writing, at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 
E. Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901; faxed to (406) 
444-4386; or e-mailed to ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., December 6, 
2012.  To be guaranteed consideration, mailed comments must be postmarked on or 
before that date. 
 
 4.  Katherine Orr, attorney for the board, or another attorney for the Agency 
Legal Services Bureau, has been designated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 
 
 5.  The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency.  Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-
mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 



 
 
 

 
21-11/8/12 MAR Notice No. 17-340 

-2238-

person wishes to receive notices regarding:  air quality; hazardous waste/waste oil; 
asbestos control; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification; solid 
waste; junk vehicles; infectious waste; public water supply; public sewage systems 
regulation; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation; major facility siting; opencut mine 
reclamation; strip mine reclamation; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans; water 
quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks; MEPA; or general 
procedural rules other than MEPA.  Notices will be sent by e-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request.  Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 E. Sixth 
Ave., P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901, faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board. 
 
 6.  The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.  
 
Reviewed by:    BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
 
 
/s/ James M. Madden     BY:  /s/ Joseph W. Russell    
JAMES M. MADDEN   JOSEPH W. RUSSELL, M.P.H., 
Rule Reviewer    Chairman 
 
 Certified to the Secretary of State, October 29, 2012. 



 
 
 

 
19-10/11/12 MAR Notice No. 17-340 

-1906-

 BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 
 
In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.38.106 pertaining to fees and the 
adoption of New Rule I pertaining to 
significant deficiency 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT AND 

ADOPTION 
 

(PUBLIC WATER AND SEWAGE 
SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS) 

 
 TO:  All Concerned Persons 
 
 1.  On November 13, 2012, at 2:30 p.m., or upon the conclusion of the public 
hearing for MAR Notice No. 17-339, the Board of Environmental Review will hold a 
public hearing in Room 111, Metcalf Building, 1520 East Sixth Avenue, Helena, 
Montana, to consider the proposed amendment and adoption of the above-stated 
rules. 
 
 2.  The board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 
disabilities who wish to participate in this public hearing or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, contact Elois 
Johnson, Paralegal, no later than 5:00 p.m., October 29, 2012, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need.  Please contact Elois Johnson at 
Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-
0901; phone (406) 444-2630; fax (406) 444-4386; or e-mail ejohnson@mt.gov. 
 
 3.  The rule proposed to be amended provides as follows, stricken matter 
interlined, new matter underlined: 
 
 17.38.106  FEES  (1) remains the same. 
 (2)  Department review will not be initiated until fees calculated under (2)(a) 
through (e) and (5) have been received by the department.  If applicable, the final 
approval will not be issued until the calculated fees under (3) and (4) have been paid 
in full.  The total fee for the review of a set of plans and specifications is the sum of 
the fees for the applicable parts or subparts listed in these citations. 
 (a)  The fee schedule for designs requiring review for compliance with 
Department Circular DEQ-1 is set forth in Schedule I, as follows: 
 
 SCHEDULE I 
 Policies 
  ultra violet disinfection ................................................................. $    700 
  point-of-use/point-of-entry treatment ........................................... $    700 
 Section 1.0 Engineering Report ............................................................. $    280 
 Section 3.1 Surface water 
  quality and quantity ..................................................................... $    700 
  structures .................................................................................... $    700 
 Section 3.2 Ground water ...................................................................... $    840 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-340 19-10/11/12 

-1907-

 Section 4.1 Clarification 
  standard clarification ................................................................... $    700 
  solid contact units ........................................................................ $ 1,400 
 Section 4.2 Filtration 
  rapid rate ..................................................................................... $ 1,750 
  pressure filtration ........................................................................ $  1,400 
  diatomaceous earth .................................................................... $  1,400 
  slow sand ................................................................................... $  1,400 
  direct filtration ............................................................................. $  1,400 
  biologically active filtration .......................................................... $  1,400 
  membrane filtration .................................................................... $  1,400 
  micro and ultra filtration .............................................................. $  1,400 
  bag and cartridge filtration ........................................................... $    420 
 Section 4.3 Disinfection ......................................................................... $    700 
 Section 4.4 Softening ............................................................................. $    700 
 Section 4.5 Aeration 
  natural draft .................................................................................. $   280 
  forced draft ................................................................................... $   280 
  spray/pressure ............................................................................. $   280 
  packed tower ................................................................................ $   700 
 Section 4.6 Iron and manganese ............................................................ $   700 
 Section 4.7 Fluoridation .......................................................................... $   700 
 Section 4.8 Stabilization .......................................................................... $   420 
 Section 4.9 Taste and odor control ......................................................... $   560 
 Section 4.10 Microscreening ................................................................... $   280 
 Section 4.11 Ion exchange ..................................................................... $   700 
 Section 4.12 Adsorptive media ............................................................... $   700 
 Chapter 5 Chemical application .............................................................. $   980 
 Chapter 6 Pumping facilities ................................................................... $   980 
 Section 7.1 Plant storage ........................................................................ $   980 
 Section 7.2 Hydropneumatic tanks ......................................................... $   420 
 Section 7.3 Distribution storage .............................................................. $   980 
 Section 7.4 Cisterns ................................................................................ $   420 
 Chapter 8 Distribution system 
  per lot fee ..................................................................................... $     70 
  non-standard specifications ......................................................... $   420 
  transmission distribution (per lineal foot) ...................................... $  0.25 
  rural distribution system (per lineal foot) ...................................... $  0.03 
  sliplining existing mains (per lineal foot) ....................................... $  0.15 
 Chapter 9 Waste disposal ....................................................................... $   700 
 Appendix A 
  new systems ................................................................................ $   280 
  modifications ................................................................................ $   140 
 (b)  The fee schedule for designs requiring review for compliance with 
Department Circular DEQ-2 is set forth in Schedule II, as follows: 
 
 



 
 
 

 
19-10/11/12 MAR Notice No. 17-340 

-1908-

 SCHEDULE II 
 Chapter 10 Engineering reports and facility plans 
  engineering reports (minor) ......................................................... $    280 
  comprehensive facility plan (major) ............................................. $ 1,400 
 Chapter 30 Design of sewers 
  per lot fee .................................................................................... $      70 
  non-standard specifications ........................................................ $    420 
  collection system (per lineal foot) ................................................ $   0.25 
  sliplining existing mains (per lineal foot) ...................................... $   0.15 
 Chapter 40 Sewage pumping station 
  force mains (per lineal foot) ......................................................... $   0.25 
  1000 gpm or less ......................................................................... $    700 
  greater than 1000 gpm ............................................................... $  1,400 
 Chapter 60 Screening grit removal 
  screening devices and comminutors ........................................... $    420 
  grit removal ................................................................................. $    420 
  flow equalization .......................................................................... $    700 
 Chapter 70 Settling ................................................................................ $ 1,120 
 Chapter 80 Sludge handling .................................................................. $ 2,240 
 Chapter 90 Biological treatment ............................................................. $ 3,360 
  nonaerated treatment ponds ....................................................... $ 1,120 
  aerated treatment ponds ............................................................. $ 1,960 
 Chapter 100 Disinfection ........................................................................ $    900 
 Appendices A, B, C, & D (per design) .................................................... $    980 
 (c) through (7) remain the same. 
 
 AUTH:  75-6-108, MCA 
 IMP:  75-6-108, MCA 
 
 REASON:  The proposed amendments to ARM 17.38.106 would create a 
new line item and a corresponding fee rate.  The proposed new line item and fee are 
necessary to collect fees commensurate with the costs associated with conducting 
certain engineering reviews required under 75-6-108, MCA.  Specifically, sliplining 
existing mains are currently included in the transmission distribution or collection 
system categories.  The proposed amendment adds a new fee category for 
sliplining.  Systems that would submit plans under this new definition and fee 
schedule would see a significant reduction in their review fees, from 25 cents/lineal 
foot to fifteen cents/lineal foot.  The new rate will reduce fees for those reviews by 
approximately 40 percent.  The new lower fee rate is necessary in order for the 
review fee to reflect actual review costs to the department, as required under 75-6-
108(3), MCA.  The department does not have sufficient information to estimate the 
number of fee payers nor the lineal feet of distribution or wastewater collection 
systems that may be affected by the reduced fee. 
 
 4.  The proposed new rule provides as follows: 
 
 NEW RULE I  SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY  (1)  For the purposes of this rule, 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-340 19-10/11/12 

-1909-

"significant deficiency" means any defect in design, operation, or maintenance of a 
public water supply system or public sewage system, or a failure or malfunction of 
the system, that the department determines causes, or has the potential to cause, 
the introduction of contamination into a drinking water supply or a source of ice.  The 
term also includes fecal contamination in water used by a public water supply 
system. 
 (2)  If the department determines that a significant deficiency exists with a 
public water supply system or a public sewage system, the department shall provide 
written notice to the system owner.  The system owner shall correct the deficiency in 
accordance with a plan and timeframe approved by the department. 
 (3)  If the department has reason to believe that a significant deficiency may 
exist with a public water supply system or a public sewage system, the department 
may request the system owner to provide additional information to assist the 
department in making a final determination.  The system owner shall provide the 
department with the requested information.  If the system owner fails to supply the 
requested information, the department may make a determination based on 
available information about the potential risk of contamination from the system to 
drinking water or a source of ice, and the department may require the system owner 
to take measures that the department determines are appropriate to prevent 
contamination.   
 
 AUTH: 75-6-103, 75-6-112, MCA 
 IMP:  75-6-103, 75-6-112, MCA 
 
 REASON:  Proposed New Rule I is the second board rulemaking to 
implement statutory changes enacted during the 2009 Legislature.  Sec. 1, Ch. 85, 
L. 2009 (SB 102).  SB 102 directed the board to adopt rules requiring public water 
supply systems and public sewage systems to remedy certain deficiencies.  The 
deficiencies listed in SB 102 include defects in design, operation, or maintenance of 
the system, and system failures or malfunctions, that could contaminate a drinking 
water supply or a source of ice.  SB 102 also listed the presence of fecal 
contamination in the water used by a public water supply system.  The board first 
implemented SB 102 in 2009 by incorporating by reference the federal drinking 
water rule for ground water sources.  The board had earlier incorporated by 
reference federal drinking water rules for surface water sources.  The federal ground 
water and surface water rules contain corrective action requirements for public water 
supply systems. 
 Proposed New Rule I is necessary to clarify the conditions that constitute a 
deficiency that requires corrective action.  Based on SB 102, New Rule I defines 
"significant deficiency" as a defect in the design, operation, or maintenance of a 
public water supply or public sewage system, or a failure or malfunction of the 
system that causes, or has the potential to cause, the introduction of contamination 
into a drinking water supply or a source of ice.  The rule clarifies that these 
significant deficiencies may arise based on the potential to contaminate any drinking 
water supply or source of ice, whether public or private.  Based on SB 102, the 
definition of "significant deficiency" also includes fecal contamination in water used 
by a public water supply system. 



 
 
 

 
19-10/11/12 MAR Notice No. 17-340 

-1910-

 New Rule I clarifies that the requirement to correct significant deficiencies 
applies to both public water supply systems and public sewage systems.  The rule 
requires the owner of the public system to correct identified significant deficiencies in 
accordance with a timeframe and plan approved by the department.  New Rule I 
allows the department to obtain additional information from the system owner related 
to the potential for the system to cause contamination.  If the system owner fails to 
provide the requested information, the rule allows the department to require the 
system owner to take measures to prevent contamination.  New Rule I is necessary 
to implement SB 102 and to provide guidance to public water supply systems and 
public sewage systems about how the department will implement SB 102. 
 
 5.  Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments, either 
orally or in writing, at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 
E. Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901; faxed to (406) 
444-4386; or e-mailed to ejohnson@mt.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., November 16, 
2012.  To be guaranteed consideration, mailed comments must be postmarked on or 
before that date. 
 
 6.  Katherine Orr, attorney for the board, or another attorney for the Agency 
Legal Services Bureau, has been designated to preside over and conduct the 
hearing. 
 
 7.  The board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency.  Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-
mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies that the 
person wishes to receive notices regarding:  air quality; hazardous waste/waste oil; 
asbestos control; water/wastewater treatment plant operator certification; solid 
waste; junk vehicles; infectious waste; public water supply; public sewage systems 
regulation; hard rock (metal) mine reclamation; major facility siting; opencut mine 
reclamation; strip mine reclamation; subdivisions; renewable energy grants/loans; 
wastewater treatment or safe drinking water revolving grants and loans; water 
quality; CECRA; underground/above ground storage tanks; MEPA; or general 
procedural rules other than MEPA.  Notices will be sent by e-mail unless a mailing 
preference is noted in the request.  Such written request may be mailed or delivered 
to Elois Johnson, Paralegal, Department of Environmental Quality, 1520 E. Sixth 
Ave., P.O. Box 200901, Helena, Montana 59620-0901, faxed to the office at (406) 
444-4386, e-mailed to Elois Johnson at ejohnson@mt.gov, or may be made by 
completing a request form at any rules hearing held by the board. 
 
 8.  The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 17-340 19-10/11/12 

-1911-

 
Reviewed by:    BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
 
 
/s/ James M. Madden     BY:  /s/ Joseph W. Russell    
JAMES M. MADDEN   JOSEPH W. RUSSELL, M.P.H., 
Rule Reviewer    Chairman 
 
 Certified to the Secretary of State, October 1, 2012. 



 
 

 1 
 

 2 
 

 3 
 

 4 
 

 5 
 

 6 
 

 7 
 

 8 
 

 9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
 

24 
 

25 
 

26 
 

27 
 

AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING FOR APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR 
PAGE 1 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
REVIEW OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

 
 

In the Matter of the  
Amendment of ARM 17.38.106    Presiding Officer  
pertaining to fees and the adoption of    Report 
New Rule I pertaining to significant 
deficiency 
 

 1. On November 28, 2012, the undersigned presided over and conducted 

the public hearing held in Room 35 of the Metcalf Building, 1520 East Sixth 

Avenue, Helena, Montana, to take public comment on the above-captioned 

proposed amendments to ARM 17. 38.106 and the adoption of New Rule I.  The 

amendments pertain to a new engineering plan review line item (“sliplining” a new 

method for replacing water mains)and fee and addition of New Rule 1 defining 

significant deficiencies. The proposed new line item and associated fee is necessary 

to conform engineering review fees to statutory requirements that the Department of 

Environmental Quality (Department) collect fees commensurate with its costs of 

conducting those reviews. New Rule I clarifies existing regulatory requirements 

related to significant deficiencies in the public water supply or public sewage 

systems that may introduce contamination into a drinking water supply.   

2.        A Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption 

was contained in MAR Notice No. 17-340 and was published on October 11, 2012 

issue number 19 at pages 1906 and 2012. On October 8, 2012, an Amended Notice 

of Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment and Adoption was published in MAR 

Notice No. 17-340, issue number 21, at pages 2237 and 2012. Copies of these 

notices are attached.   

2. The hearing began at 1:30 p.m.  The hearing was recorded by Mr. 

Eugene Pizzini.  

3. There were no members of the public at the hearing. At the hearing, 

the Presiding Officer identified and summarized the MAR notice and read the 



 
 

 1 
 

 2 
 

 3 
 

 4 
 

 5 
 

 6 
 

 7 
 

 8 
 

 9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
 

24 
 

25 
 

26 
 

27 
 

AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING FOR APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR 
PAGE 2 

Notice of Function of Administrative Rule Review Committee as required by Mont. 

Code Ann. § 2-4-302(7)(a).  

 

SUMMARY OF HEARING 

 4. Mr. Eugene Pizzini, Rules Expert for the Public Water Supply Section 

of the Department submitted a written statement that explains the components of the 

amendments and proposed new rule and recommends that the amendments and New 

Rule I be adopted as proposed in the MAR notice. 

   

SUMMARY OF WRITTEN MATERIALS 

 5. No comments were provided at the hearing.   

6. The Department also submitted a memorandum from Department staff 

attorney, Ms. Carol Schmidt, with HB 521 and HB 311 reviews of the proposed 

amendments and a Private Property Assessment Act Checklist.  Ms. Schmidt’s 

memorandum is attached to this report.  

 7. No HB 521 findings are necessary for these amendments and New 

Rule I because there are no comparable federal rules establishing plan review fees.

 9. With respect to HB 311 (the Private Property Assessment Act, Mont. 

Code Ann. §§ 2-10-101 through 105), the Board of Environmental Review (Board) 

is required to assess the taking or damaging implications of a proposed rule 

affecting the use of private real property.  This rulemaking affects the use of private 

real property.  A Private Property Assessment Act Checklist was prepared, which 

shows that the proposed amendments and New Rule I does not have taking or 

damaging implications.  Therefore, no further assessment is required. 

 10. The period to submit comments ended at 5 p.m. on December 6, 2012. 

PRESIDING OFFICER COMMENTS 

 10. The Board has jurisdiction to adopt and amend the proposed 



 
 

 1 
 

 2 
 

 3 
 

 4 
 

 5 
 

 6 
 

 7 
 

 8 
 

 9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
 

24 
 

25 
 

26 
 

27 
 

AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING FOR APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR 
PAGE 3 

amendments and New Rule I under Mont. Code Ann. §§ 75-6-108, 75-6-103 and 

75-6-112.  

 11. House Bill 521 (1995) generally provides that the Board may not 

adopt a rule that is more stringent than comparable federal regulations or guidelines, 

unless the Board makes written findings after public hearing and comment.  The 

proposed amendments and New Rule I are not more stringent than a comparable 

federal regulation or guideline.  Therefore written findings are not necessary. 

 12. House Bill 311 (1995), the Private Property Assessment Act, codified 

as Mont. Code Ann. § 2-10-101 through -105, provides that a state agency must 

complete a review and impact assessment prior to taking an action with taking or 

damaging implications.  The proposed amendments affect real property.  A Private 

Property Assessment Act Checklist was prepared in this matter.  The proposed 

amendments do not have taking or damaging implications.  Therefore, no further 

HB 311 assessment is necessary. 

13. The procedures required by the Montana Administrative Procedure 

Act, including public notice, hearing, and comment, have been followed. 

 14. The Board may adopt the proposed rule amendments and New Rule I, 

or reject them, or adopt the amendments and new rule with revisions not exceeding 

the scope of the public notice.   

 15. Under Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-305(7), for the rulemaking process to 

be valid, the Board must publish a notice of adoption within six months of the date 

the Board published the amended notice of proposed rulemaking in the Montana 

Administrative Register, or by May 8, 2013. 

 Dated this    day of January, 2013. 
 
 
 

       
KATHERINE J. ORR 
Presiding Officer 



 
 

 1 
 

 2 
 

 3 
 

 4 
 

 5 
 

 6 
 

 7 
 

 8 
 

 9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
 

14 
 

15 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 
 

20 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
 

24 
 

25 
 

26 
 

27 
 

AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING FOR APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL ADMINISTRATOR 
PAGE 4 

 
 

 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 

To:	 BoardofEnvironmental Review 

From:	 Carol E. Schmidt
 
DEQ Attorney
 

Re:	 HB 521 Analysis and Takings Checklist 

MAR Notice No. 17-340 

In the matter ofthe amendment ofARM 17.38.106 pertaining to fees and the 
adoption ofNew Rule I pertaining to significant deficiency. 

Date:	 December 6,2012 

HB 521 Analysis 

The Board's authority to adopt the proposed rules is found in the public water supply 
statutes at § 75-6-108, MCA. Pursuant to § 75-6-116, MCA ("HB 521"), the Board may not 
adopt a rule to implement Title 75, Chapter 6, that is more stringent than comparable federal 
regulations or guidelines that address the same circumstances, unless the Board makes certain 
written findings establishing the need for the rule. 

The amendments to ARM 17.38.106 revise the fees charged by the Department for 
review of plans for public water supply and public wastewater treatment systems. No HB 521 
findings are necessary for these amendments because there are no comparable federal rules 
establishing plan review fees. Special findings are also not needed because the amendments 
implement § 75-6-108(3), MCA, which requires the Board to adopt fees that are commensurate 
with the Department's costs of review. The specific rulemaking directive in § 75-6-108(3), 
MCA, which does not require a federal stringency analysis, supplants the general requirement for 
stringency analysis in § 75-6-116, MCA. 

Proposed New Rule I is the second board rulemaking to implement statutory changes 
enacted during the 2009 Legislature. Sec. 1, Ch. 85, L. 2009 (SB 102). SB 102 directed the 
board to adopt rules requiring public water supply systems and public sewage systems to remedy 
certain deficiencies. Proposed New Rule I provides a definition for significant deficiency and 
clarifies the conditions that constitute a deficiency that requires a corrective action and also 



clarifies that the requirement to correct significant deficiencies applies to both public water 
supply systems and public sewage systems. No HB 521 findings are necessary for this new rule 
because there is not a comparable federal definition of significant deficiency. 

Private Property Assessment Act 

Section 2-10-101, MCA, requires that, prior to adopting a proposed rule that has taking or 
damaging implications for private real property, an agency must prepare a taking or damaging 
impact statement. "Action with taking or damaging implications" means: 

[A] proposed state agency administrative rule, policy, or permit condition or 
denial pertaining to land or water management or to some other environmental 
matter that if adopted and enforced would constitute a deprivation of private 
property in violation of the United States or Montana Constitution. 

Section 2-10-103, MeA. 

Section 2-10-104, MCA, requires the Montana Attorney General to develop guidelines, 
including a checklist, to assist agencies in determining whether an agency action has taking or 
damaging implications. A completed Attorney General checklist for the proposed rules is 
attached. Based on the guidelines provided by the Attorney General, the proposed rule 
amendments do not constitute an "action with taking or damaging implications" in violation of 
the United States or Montana Constitutions. 

Attachment: Attorney General HB 311 Checklist 

2 



Board of Environmental Review 
MAR Notice No. 17-340 

In the matter ofthe amendment ofARM 17. 38.106 pertaining to fees and the adoption of 
New Rule Jpertaining to significant deficiency. 

PRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT CHECKLIST 

DOES THE PROPOSED AGENCY ACTION HAVE TAKINGS OR DAMAGINGS IMPLICATIONS 
UNDER THEPRIVATE PROPERTY ASSESSMENT ACT? 

YES NO 
X 1. Does the action pertain to land or water management or environmental regulation 

affecting private real property or water rights? 
X 2. Does the action result in either a permanent or indefinite physical occupation of 

private property? 
X 3. Does the action deny a fundamental attribute of ownership? (ex.: right to exclude 

others, disposal of property) 
X 4. Does the action deprive the owner ofall economically viable uses of the property? 
X 5. Does the action require a property owner to dedicate a portion of property or to grant 

an easement? [If no, go to (6)]. 
Sa. Is there a reasonable, specific connection between the government requirement and 
legitimate state interests? 
5b. Is the government requirement roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed 
use of the property? 

X 6. Does the action have a severe impact on the value of the property? (consider 
economic impact, investment-backed expectations, character of government action) 

X 7. Does the action damage the property by causing some physical disturbance with 
respect to the property in excess of that sustained by the public generally? 

X 7a. Is the impact ofgovernment action direct, peculiar, and significant? 
X 7b. Has government action resulted in the property becoming practically inaccessible, 

waterlogged or flooded? 
X 7c. Has government action lowered property values by more than 30% and necessitated 

the physical taking of adjacent property or property across a public way from the 
property in question? 

X Takings or damaging implications? (Taking or damaging implications exist if YES is 
checked in response to question 1 and also to anyone or more of the following questions: 
2,3,4,6, 7a, 7b, 7c; or if NO is checked in response to questions 5a or 5b; the shaded 
areas) 

If taking or damaging implications exist, the agency must comply with §5 of the Pnvate Property 
Assessment Act, to include the preparation of a taking or damaging impact assessment. Normally, 
preparation-of an impact as essment will require consultation with agency legal staff. 

,i C~. f1~ ~I MI ~ 
Signature 0 eviewer Date 



II ,.11,1 I
 



 
 
 

 
Montana Administrative Register 17-340 

-1-

 BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 
 
In the matter of the amendment of ARM 
17.38.106 pertaining to fees and the 
adoption of New Rule I pertaining to 
significant deficiency 

) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT AND 
ADOPTION 

 
(WATER QUALITY) 

 
TO:  All Concerned Persons 

 
1.  On October 11, 2012, the Board of Environmental Review published MAR 

Notice No. 17-340 regarding a notice of public hearing on the proposed amendment 
and adoption of the above-stated rules at page 1906, 2012 Montana Administrative 
Register, issue number 19.  On November 8, 2012, the Board of Environmental 
Review published MAR Notice No. 17-340 regarding an amended notice of public 
hearing on the proposed amendment and adoption of the above-stated rules at page 
2237, 2012 Montana Administrative Register, issue number 21. 
 
 2.  The board has amended ARM 17.38.106 and adopted New Rule I 
(17.38.104) exactly as proposed. 
 
 3.  No public comments or testimony were received. 
 
Reviewed by:    BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
 
 
         By:         
JOHN F. NORTH JOSEPH W. RUSSELL, M.P.H. 
Rule Reviewer Chairman 
 

Certified to the Secretary of State, _______________, 2013. 
 

 



Montana Deparanent of 

ENVIRONMENTAL QuAUTY	 MEMo 

TO:	 Katherine Orr, Hearing Examiner 
Board of Environmental Review 

FROM:	 Joyce Wittenberg, Board Secretary e-:": 

Board of Environmental Rev 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

DATE:	 January 7, 2013 

SUBJECT:	 Board of Environmental Review Case No. BER 2013-01 AQ 

OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

STATE OF MONTANA 

_...--'...-f 
~

BEFORE THE BOARD 

OF THE 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
THE REQUEST FOR HEARING BY MONTANA 
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION CENTER 
AND SIERRA CLUB REGARDING DEQ'S 
ISSUANCE OF MONTANA AIR QUALITY 
OPERATING PERMIT NO. OP0513-08 FOR 
THE COLSTRIP STEAM ELECTRIC STATION 
IN COLSTRIP, MT. 

Case No. BER 2013-01 AQ 

The BER has received the attached request for hearing. Also attached is DEQ's administrative 
document(s) relating to this request. 

Please serve copies of pleadings and correspondence on me and on the following DEQ 
representatives in this case. 

Norman Mullen David Klemp, Bureau Chief 
Legal Counsel Air Resources Management Bureau 
Department of Environmental Quality Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 Helena, MT 59620-0901 

Attachments 
c: Jenny K. Harbine and Laura D. Beaton, Earthjustice, for Appellants 



Filed witn the 

MONTANA BOARD OF ' Jenny K. Harbine
 
Laura D. Beaton
 

~NVIR9NMENTAL REVIEW. lUI§.....Earthjustice
 
313 East Main Street ~hls l1~daYO~,»L.
 
Bozeman,MT 59715
 
(406) 586-9699 ~~.m.:Fax: (406) 596-9695
 
jharbine@earthjustice.org
 
lbeaton@earthjustice.org
 

Counselfor AppellamsMontanaEnvironmental
 
InformationCenterand Sierra Club
 

BEFORETHE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATEOF MONTANA 

caseNo.l3ff<. 20/3 -O,lAQ. 
IN THE MAITER OF: 
MONTANAAIR QUALITY OPERATING 
PERMITNUMBEROP0513-08 FORTHE REQUEST FOR HEARING 
COLSTRIP STEAMELECTRIC STATION, 
COLSTRIP,MONTANA 

Pursuant to Mont.Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5), MontanaEnvironmental Information Center 

and Sierra Club ("Appellants")hereby request a hearingbeforethe Board ofEnvironmental 

Review. Appellantsand their respectivemembersare adverselyaffected by the Department of 

Environmental Quality's ("DEQ',) December4,2012, decisionto issuean Air QualityOperating 

Permit for the Colstrip Steam ElectricStation in Colstrip,Montana. As provided by section 

Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5), together with this requestfor hearing, Appellantsare filing an 

affidavit setting forth the grounds for this request. 

Respectfully requestedthis 3rd day ofJanuary,2013, 

J~---
On behalfof'Appellams 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
 

I herebycertify that I causedcomplete and accuratecopiesof the foregoing Request for 

Hearingand Affidavitto be servedon the following persons this 3rd day of January, 2013,by 

first class United States mail, postage prepaid, and electronicmail: 

Richard Opper, Director 
MontanaDepartment of Environmental Quality 
1520East Sixth Avenue 
P. O. Box 200901 
Helena, Montana 59620-0901 

Norm Mullen, Attorney 
Montana Department of Environmental Quality 
1520East Sixth Avenue 
P. O. Box 200901 
Helena, Montana 59620-0901 

J~----

2 

.I~ ," I I 'I ii, I I ~ 1'1 ••' 



Jenny K. Harbine 
Laura D. Beaton 
Earthjustice 
313 East Main Street 
Bozeman, MT 59715 
(406) 586-9699 
Fax: (406) 596-9695 
jharbine@earthjustice.org 
lbeaton@earthjustice.org 

Counsel for Appellants Montana Environmental 
Information Center and Sierra Club 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

IN THE MATTER OF:
 
MONTANA AIR QUALITY OPERATING
 
PERMIT NUMBER OP0513-08 FOR THE
 
COLSTRIP STEAM ELECTRIC STATION,
 
COLSTRIP, MONTANA
 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) 

Case No. I3c~ Jot 3 -() I /lQ 

AFFIDAVIT OF MONTANA
 
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
 
CENTER AND SIERRA CLUB
 

----------------) 

Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5), Appellants Montana Environmental 

Information Center and Sierra Club ("Appellants") hereby submit an affidavit setting forth the 

grounds for their request for hearing, which is timely filed with this affidavit. 

On behalf of Appellants, Anne Hedges declares as follows: 

I. Appellants seek review of the Department of Environmental Quality's ("DEQ") 

Air Quality Operating Permit (OP0513-08) for the Colstrip coal-fired power plant ("Colstrip" or 

"Colstrip plant"), dated December 4,2012. See Air Quality Operating Permit OP0513-08 (Dec. 

4, 2012) ("Pennit"), available at http://deq.mt.gov/AirQuality/ARMpennits/OP0513

08_DEC.pdf, excerpts attached as Exhibit I. The Permit is subject to review by the Board of 

Environmental Review pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5). 



INTRODUCTION
 

2. The Colstrip coal-fired power plant, 120 miles east of Billings in southeastern 

Montana, is among the largest coal plants in the United States, with four generating units 

representing a combined capacity of approximately 2, I00 megawatts. Air pollution from 

Colstrip dwarfs the emissions of every other stationary source of pollution in Montana. Each 

year, Colstrip burns more than ten million tons of coal, which releases many pollutants into the 

air, including particulate matter, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, mercury, and other hazardous 

air pollutants. Air pollutants, including sulfur dioxide and fine particulate matter from coal-fired 

power plants such as Colstrip, can have impacts on public health, air visibility, and acid rain. 

3. DEQ recently renewed Colstrip's operating permit, as required by Title V of the 

federal Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.c. §§ 7661-766If, and the Clean Air Act of Montana, Mont. Code 

Ann. § 75-2-217. Title V operating permits must specify all of the requirements to which a 

source is subject, including not just emission limits, but also monitoring and record-keeping 

requirements sufficient to determine whether a source is complying with those limits. See Mont. 

Admin. R. 17.8.1211-.1213. The purpose of the permit is to enable regulators, source operators, 

and the public to easily identify and understand all applicable requirements and to ensure that 

such requirements are enforceable. 

4. DEQ's permit for Colstrip fails at this basic task. Although coal plant emission 

limits that the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") adopted through hazardous air 

pollutant standards and the Montana regional haze plan are "applicable requirements" that must 

be included in operating permits under Title V of the Clean Air Act and the Clean Air Act of 

Montana, DEQ omitted any mentionof them in the Colstrip Permit. When confronted with this 

failure, DEQ's only response was to state that it will reopen the Permit in the future to 

incorporate these clear requirements. However, DEQ's promise to comply with the law in the 

2 

, ~1.1lit4l1 ~ Ii I I 



future does not remedy its failure to comply with the law at the time it issued the permit, and thus 

the Pennit does not allow the public or the source operator to know and understand applicable 

requirements. 

5. DEQ also failed to include monitoring provisions sufficient to demonstrate 

compliance with emission limits. Specifically, the Pennit requires monitoring of particulate 

matter only once per year and thus fails to require monitoring frequent enough to assure 

compliance with the emission limits that are based on hourly emissions. Also, the Permit 

requires monitoring of only a portion of Colstrip's particulate matter emissions-the filterable 

portion-despite some of the Permit's terms placing limits on total particulate emissions. 

6. DEQ's failure to include essential emission limits and monitoring requirements in 

the Colstrip operating permit may preclude effective state or citizen enforcement of these limits, 

potentially allowing greater pollution of the air that Montanans breathe. 

7. This appeal seeks to require DEQ to comply with its obligations under the state's 

operating permit program and the federal Clean Air Act to include all "applicable requirements" 

in the Colstrip Title V operating permit. 

THE AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT PROGRAM 

8. Congress created the federal Clean Air Act to address growing public health and 

welfare concerns raised by the rapid increase of air pollution brought by widespread urbanization 

and industrial development in the latter half of the twentieth century. See 42 U.S.C. § 7401(a). 

A key component of the Clean Air Act is the Title V operating permit program, which requires 

that major stationary sources of air pollution-such as coal-fired power plants-obtain pennits 

that clearly identify all requirements to which the source is subject, including applicable 

emission limits, monitoring and record-keeping requirements, and other operating limits. See id. 

§ 7661c; Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-217. Thus, the Title V operating permit program enables "the 

3
 



source, States, EPA, and the public to better understand the requirements to which the source is 

subject, and whether the source is meeting those requirements." U.S. EPA, Final Rule: 

Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. Reg. 32,250, 32,251 (July 21, 1992). Operating permits are 

generally issued by the state permitting authority-in Montana, DEQ-but EPA has the right to 

reject any permit that does not comply with the federal Clean Air Act. See 42 U.S.C. § 

766Id(b). 

9. An operating permit must include all of a pollution source's "applicable 

requirements." 42 U.S.C. § 7661c(a). "Applicable requirements" include all provisions of 

applicable state or federal implementation plans, any Prevention of Significant Deterioration or 

New Source Review requirements, and any standard or requirement under Clean Air Act sections 

111,112, 114(a)(3), or 504. Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10); 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. Applicable 

requirements include "requirements that have been promulgated or approved [by DEQ or EPA] 

through rulemaking at the time of issuance of the [Title V] permit, but have future-effective 

compliance dates." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10); see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. Thus, the 

operating permit lists all federally enforceable emissions limits applicable to the polluting 

source. 

10. In addition to emission limits, operating permits also must specify monitoring, 

recordkeeping, and reporting requirements that are "sufficient to assure compliance with the 

terms and conditions of the permit." 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(c)(I); Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1212. 

II. Operating pennits serve an essential role by enabling the source and the public to 

understand the requirements to which the source is subject and enabling regulators and the public 

to enforce those requirements. As EPA explained in the preamble to its Title V regulations, 

"regulations are often written to cover broad source categories" leaving it "unclear which, and 

4
 



how, general regulations apply to a source." U.S. EPA, Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. Reg. 

at 32,251. Operating permits bridge this gap by "c1arify[ing] and mak[ing] more readily 

enforceable a source's pollution control requirements," including making clear how general 

regulatory provisions apply to specific sources. Clean Air Act Amendments of 1989, S. Rep. 

101-228, reprinted in 1990 U.S.C.C.A.N. 3385,3730 (Dec. 20, 1989). In short, operating 

permits are supposed to link general regulatory provisions to a specific source to provide a way 

"to establish whether a source is in compliance." U.S. EPA, Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. 

Reg. at 32,251 

THE COLSTRIP OPERATING PERMIT 

12. DEQ issued an operating permit for the Colstrip facility on December 4, 2012

more than two-and-a-halfyears after Colstrip's prior operating permit (OP05 I3-06) expired on 

April 12,2010. After receiving PPL Montana's application for renewal of its Colstrip operating 

permit on March 25, 2010, DEQ began work on revising and renewing the permit. DEQ 

published the first draft permit for the Colstrip plant on May 17, 20 II. DEQ allowed thirty days 

for public comment, and Appellants submitted timely comments on June 15,2011. DEQ issued 

a second draft permit and announced a new public comment period on August 10, 2012. 

Appellants submitted timely comments on this second draft of the permit on September 24,2012. 

13. Despite DEQ's lengthy delay in renewing the Colstrip operating permit, and 

detailed comments from Appellants informing DEQ of deficiencies in the draft permit, DEQ's 

final Colstrip Permit failed to comply with basic requirements of the federal and state operating 

permit programs. The Permit omits recently adopted emission limits that are "applicable 

requirements" under the federal Clean Air Act and the Clean Air Act of Montana and fails to 

require adequate monitoring of particulate matter. 

5
 



14. The omitted requirements include critical environmental safeguards. First, the 

permit excludes hazardous air pollutant limits recently adopted by EPA at levels that it deemed 

necessary to protect human health. As described below in Claim One, the National Emission 

Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants require installation of "Maximum Achievable Control 

Technology" to control emissions of hazardous air pollutants such as mercury, acid gases (or 

sulfur dioxide ("S02") as a surrogate), and metallic hazardous air pollutants (or particulate matter 

("PM") as a surrogate) by April 16, 2015. 

15. Likewise, DEQ failed to include nitrogen oxide ("NOx"), S02, and PM emission 

limits that EPA recently finalized in its regional haze plan for Montana, described below in 

Claim Two. EPA established these new limits to comply with its Clean Air Act obligation to 

adopt measures to remedy impairment of visibility in national parks and wilderness areas, see 42 

U.S.C. § 7491 (a), and specifically to require the nation's oldest and dirtiest large sources of air 

pollution to install state-of-the-art technology to eliminate or reduce their contribution to 

visibility impairment, see id. § 7491 (b)(2)(A). 

16. In addition to DEQ's failure to include significant new emission limits, DEQ 

failed to require sufficient monitoring to demonstrate compliance with existing permit limits on 

PM emissions, as described below in Claim Three. First, the Permit requires only annual "stack 

tests"-which measure PM emissions for only three hours out of an entire year-to monitor PM 

emissions. This infrequent monitoring is insufficient for assuring compliance with continuous 

PM limits applicable to Colstrip. Second, DEQ failed to require monitoring for total PM-both 

filterable and condensable portions-to demonstrate compliance with Colstrip's permit limit on 

total PM. Such compliance is essential to protecting public health, as PM pollution can cause 

respiratory problems, particularly for those with asthma; heart problems; and premature death. 

6
 

". ,'I I I I ' I I I ~ I 'I I" 



See U.S. EPA, Particulate Matter (PM): Health, http://www.epa.gov/pm/health.html(last visited 

Jan. 2, 2013). 

17. DEQ provided a copy of the draft permit to the EPA on October 17, 2012. During 

the forty-five days afforded to EPA to review the Permit, see 42 U.S.C. § 7661d(b)(2), EPA took 

no action on the Permit, and on December 4, 2012, DEQ issued the Permit that is the subject of 

this appeal. 

HARM TO APPELLANTS 

18. Appellant Montana Environmental Information Center ("MEIC") is a member-

supported advocacy and public education organization based in Helena, Montana, that works to 

protect and restore Montana's natural environment. MEIC is a Montana nonprofit corporation, 

founded in 1973 by Montanans concerned with protecting and restoring Montana's natural 

environment. MEIC has worked extensively on addressing the impacts of air pollution in 

Montana. As a government agency watchdog, MEIC routinely reviews agency actions to assure 

that agencies and regulated entities comply with federal laws and regulations. MEIC and its 

membership are intensively involved in monitoring state and federal actions regarding the 

regulation of emissions from coal-fired power plants. MEIC also has a long history of 

advocating for state enforcement of air pollution-control laws at Colstrip, including by 

commenting on the draft operating permit for the plant. In short, MEIC has a deep institutional 

commitment to protecting and restoring air quality in and around Colstrip. 

19. AppelIant Sierra Club is a nationwide conservation organization with more than 

1.3 million members and supporters, approximately 2,000 of whom belong to the Montana 

Chapter. Sierra Club has advocated for regulation and prevention of air pollution from coal-fired 

power plants at both the federal level and in Montana. Sierra Club also advocates for regulation 

of air pollution associated with the Colstrip plant, including by attending public hearings, 

7 



submitting public comments, and engaging in efforts to educate Montana residents about the 

health and ecological dangers of air pollution from coal-fired power plants. 

20. Appellants submitted comments on the draft operating permit on June 15, 20 II, 

and September 24,2012. Appellants' members live, work, hunt, and recreate in and around 

Colstrip. Air pollution originating from the Colstrip coal-fired power plant threatens the health, 

livelihood, and enjoyment of Appellants' members in the Colstrip vicinity and in other areas of 

Montana impacted by emissions from the Colstrip plant. 

FIRST CLAIM
 
(Failure to Assure Compliance with Hazardous Air Pollutant Standards)
 

21. The Colstrip operating permit fails to assure compliance with all applicable 

requirements because it does not include emission limits and related requirements established by 

recently promulgated hazardous air pollutant emission standards contained at 40 C.F.R. Part 63, 

Subpart UUUUU. See 40 C.F.R. § 70.I(b) ("All sources subject to these regulations shall have a 

permit to operate that assures compliance by the source with all applicable requirements."); 

Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1211-.1213 (enumerating requirements for air quality operating permit). 

22. The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAPs") for 

coal-fired power plants were promulgated and became effective on April 16,2012. See 

NESHAPs from Coal- and Oil-Fired Electric Utility Steam Generating Units, 77 Fed. Reg. 

9,304,9,304 (Feb. 16,2012). 

23. Pursuant to these standards, the four Colstrip units must comply with limits on 

emissions of hazardous air pollutants such as mercury, acid gases (or S02 as a surrogate), and 

non-mercury metallic hazardous air pollutants (or PM as a surrogate) by April 16, 2015. 40 

C.F.R. §§ 63.9984, 63.9991. 

8 

III, ,. I I ,I, I I I ~ I ~ , '" 



24. This compliance deadline falls within the five-year period covered by Colstrip's 

new operating permit. As such, the mercury and air toxics standards qualify as "applicable 

requirement[s]" under Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10), and the Permit thus must have 

specifically required that each of the Colstrip generating units come into compliance with the 

standards by April 16, 2015. 

25. Several of the new standards may significantly affect Colstrip. For example, 

updated particulate matter controls will be necessary at all four Colstrip units to meet EPA's PM 

limit for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Specifically, EPA has adopted a PM limit 

of 0.03 IblMMBtu as a surrogate for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Units 1 and 2 

already emit filterable PM at rates close to twice that of the EPA's 0.03 lb/MMBtu total PM limit 

(at 0.047 and 0.058 Ib/MMBtu respectively) and their existing PM limit (0.10 IbIMMBtu) is 

more than three times the new federal limit. Likewise, the existing PM limit for Units 3 and 4 

(0.05 Ib/MMBtu) is greater than the new federal limit. Consequently, Colstrip will be required to 

reduce its PM emissions to meet the more stringent total PM limit of 0.03 Ib/MMBtu under the 

new hazardous air pollutant standards. 

26. Further, the new hazardous air pollutant standards establish an acid gas limit for 

HCl ofO.0021b/MMBtu, or, alternatively, a facility can elect to comply with a surrogate limit on 

S02 of 0.20 Ib/MMBtu. DEQ must identify the acid gas or surrogate limit applicable to Colstrip 

and assure compliance with the new limit by or before the standards' effective date of April 15, 

2015. 

27. DEQ erroneously claims that it has "up to 18 months following promulgation to 

have the permit reopened and revised." Mont. DEQ, Operating Permit Technical Review 

See June 2008 Addendum to PPL Montana's Colstrip BART Report at 2-4 (Table 2-2), 
available at ftp://ftp.epa.gov/r8/regionalhaze/ColstripAddendum.pdf. 

9
 

I 



Document for Colstrip Steam Electric Station, at 58 (Dec. 4, 2012) ("TRD"), available at 

http://deq.mt.gov/AirQuality/ARMpermits/TRD0513-08_DEC.pdf, excerpts attached as Exhibit 

2. The hazardous air pollutant standards were promulgated months before the Permit issued. 

Because the federal standards are "requirements that have been promulgated or approved by 

[DEQ or EPA] through rulemaking at the time of issuance of the air quality operating permit," 

DEQ was required to include in Colstrip's Permit the hazardous air pollutant emission limits and 

associated monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements. Mont. Admin. R. 

17.8.120I(10). The provision allowing reopening and revision of an existing permit when a new 

requirement is promulgated is inapplicable here because the applicable requirements-the 

hazardous air pollutant standards-had already been promulgated before the Permit issued. See 

Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1228(l)(a); see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(f)(l)(i); U.S. EPA, Questions and 

Answers on the Requirements of Operating Permits Program Regulations, at 7-3 (July 7, 1993) 

("Operating Permits Q & A"), available at http://www.epa.gov/region07/air/title5/ 

t5memoslbbrd_qal.pdf, excerpts attached as Exhibit 3 (When an applicable requirement "is 

promulgated while a draft permit is being processed, the permitting authority must revise the 

permit to include the new requirements prior to issuance.") (emphasis added). 

28. The Colstrip Permit fails to include provisions needed to make enforceable the 

requirement that the Colstrip plant comply with the hazardous air pollutant standards, and thus 

the Permit unlawfully fails to "assure compliance" with all applicable requirements. See 42 

U.S.C. § 766Ic(a), (c); 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(c)(l). 

29. DEQ's failure to include applicable hazardous air pollutant limits and associated 

monitoring, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements in the Colstrip Permit is arbitrary, 

10
 

,'IH"~ "'~f "1,.,111 II II" 



capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal Clean Air Act, the Clean Air Act of 

Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's operating permit program. 

SECOND CLAIM
 
(Failure to Assure Compliance with
 

Montana's Regional Haze Federal Implementation Plan)
 

30. Colstrip's operating permit also fails to assure compliance with all applicable 

requirements because it does not include emission limits and related requirements established by 

Montana's regional haze federal implementation plan. See 40 C.F.R. § 70.I(b); Mont. Admin. 

R. 17.8.1211-.13 (enumerating requirements for air quality operating permit). 

31. EPA signed a final rule promulgating Montana's regional haze plan on August 15, 

2012, and published it in the Federal Register on September 18,2012. See Approval and 

Promulgation ofImplementation Plans, 77 Fed. Reg. 57,864 (Sept. 18,2012). EPA's final rule 

was promulgated prior to DEQ's issuance of the Colstrip operating permit. 

32. EPA adopted the regional haze plan to satisfy the federal Clean Air Act's 

requirement that EPA address and prevent visibility impairment at federal Class I air visibility 

areas. 42 U.S.C. § 741O(c). Thus, the plan's conditions are applicable requirements pursuant to 

Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.120I(lO)(b) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. 

33. The Montana regional haze plan established new emission limits for Colstrip 

Units I and 2, specifically: 0.10 Ibs/MMBtu of PM; 0.08 Ibs/MMBtu of S02; and 0.15 

Ibs/MMBtu ofNOx• 40 C.F.R. § 52.1396(c). 

34. The regional haze plan requires compliance with PM limits by November 17, 

2012. Id. § 52.1396(d). 

35. The regional haze plan requires compliance with S02 and NOx limits within 180 

days of October 18,2012, unless installation of additional emission controls is necessary to 

II
 



comply with the plan's emission limitations, in which case compliance is required within five 

years of October 18, 2012. Id. 

36. Although some of these regional haze requirements have future-effective 

compliance dates, the regional haze PM limit is already in effect, and the S02 and NO x deadlines 

are fast approaching. Further, all regional haze requirements will apply to Colstrip within the 

five-year duration of Colstrip's operating permit and therefore must be incorporated into the 

Permit, along with all monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements outlined in the 

regional haze plan. See Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10); see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. 

37. DEQ did not include the applicable requirements of the regional haze plan in 

Colstrip's Permit. 

38. In its Technical Review Document supporting the Colstrip Title V permit, DEQ 

recognizes that the regional haze plan establishes requirements that are applicable to Colstrip 

Units 1 and 2. TRD at 57. DEQ provided two justifications for nonetheless failing to 

incorporate those requirements into the final Permit; however, neither justification supports 

DEQ's omission. 

39. First, DEQ claimed that it was unnecessary to include the PM, S02, and NO x 

limits established by the regional haze plan because DEQ "has up to 18 months following 

promulgation to have the permit reopened and revised." Id. at 57. However, DEQ 

misinterpreted the applicability of the rule that allows eighteen months to reopen and revise a 

permit. DEQ's rules state that "[a]dditional applicable requirements under the [federal Clean Air 

Act] become applicable to a major source holding a permit with a remaining term of three or 

more years. Reopening and revision of the permit shalI be completed not later than 18 months 

after promulgation of the applicable requirement." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1228( I)(a); see also 40 

12
 



C.F.R. § 70.7(f)(I)(i). This provision applies only to pennits that have already been issued at the 

time a new applicable requirement arose. Indeed, EPA has clarified that ifan applicable 

requirement "is promulgated while a draft permit is being processed, the permitting authority 

must revise the permit to include the new requirements prior to issuance." Operating Pennits Q 

& A at 7-3. 

40. Second, DEQ erroneously opined that it was unnecessary to include the regional 

haze plan's PM limits in the Permit because a 0.10 Ib/MMBtu PM limit for Units I and 2 is 

already established in the Permit. TRD at 57. DEQ may not choose to leave any applicable 

requirements out of the operating permit, even if other standards mentioned in the permit are 

identical to the one left out. DEQ is required to include in the pennit "a specific description with 

appropriate references of the origin of, and authority for, each term or condition contained in the 

permit." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1211(1)(b) (emphasis added); see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(a)(I)(i). 

Colstrip's Permit references only Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.340 and 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart D

both New Source Performance Standards-as the sources of the 0.10 Ib/MMBtu limit for PM. 

See Permit at 7 (condition 8.2). The Permit does not reference the applicable regional haze 

requirement that likewise limits PM emissions to 0.10 Ib/MMBtu. However, EPA determined 

that this limit on particulate pollution is necessary to address visibility impairment in national 

parks and wilderness areas. Including regional haze PM limits in the Colstrip operating pennit 

is an important safeguard to fulfill the Clean Air Act's regional haze goals in the event that the 

existing limit is changed or otherwise rendered unenforceable. 

41. DEQ's failure to include the regional haze plan's applicable requirements in the 

Colstrip Permit is arbitrary, capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal Clean 

13
 



Air Act, the Clean Air Act of Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's operating 

permit program. 

THIRD CLAIM
 
(Failure to Require Sufficient Monitoring of Particulate Matter Emissions)
 

42. The Colstrip Permit fails to require monitoring sufficient to assure compliance 

with PM emission limits because (1) annual testing will not assure compliance with the Permit's 

continuous and hourly limits for PM, and (2) the specified testing methods measure only 

filterable PM while the Permit places limits on total PM. 

43. The Permit incorporates the Colstrip plant's PM emissions limits of 0.10 

Ib/MMBtu (three-hour average) for Units I and 2, and 0.05 Ib/MMBtu (three-hour average) and 

379 Ib/hr for Units 3 and 4. See Permit at 7 (condition 8.2), 12 (conditions C.2, C.3). 

Additionally, the Permit establishes a limit for gaseous PM emissions of 0.10 Ib/MMBtu from 

Units 3 and 4. See id. at 12 (condition CA). 

44. The Permit requires PM-emissions monitoring for all four Units of the power 

plant by Method 5 or 5b-a single, annual stack test for filterable PM. See id. at 8 (condition 

B.12), 16 (condition C.26). 

45. Montana's regulations specifically require "periodic monitoring sufficient to yield 

reliable data from the relevant time period that are representative of the source's compliance with 

the air quality operating permit .... Such monitoring requirements shall assure use of terms, test 

methods, units, averaging periods, and other statistical conventions consistent with the applicable 

reguirement." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1212(1)(b) (emphasis added). The frequency of 

monitoring must bear some relationship to the time period for the emissions limits established in 

the permit. See Sierra Club v. U.S. Envtl. Prot. Agency, 536 F.3d 673, 675 (D.C. Cir. 2008). 

14
 



46. A three-hour stack test conducted only once per year is insufficient to demonstrate 

compliance with PM limits expressed in pounds per hour (lb/hr) or a continuous limit based on 

three-hour averages. Because an annual stack test does not bear a relationship to hourly or 

continuous emission limits, it is insufficient to assure compliance with the permit terms. 

47. Further, although the Permit limits emissions of total PM-including both 

filterable and condensable portions-the Permit fails to require monitoring for condensable or 

gaseous PM. Condensable PM can be a significant portion ofa facility's emissions of fine 

particles-those responsible for asthma (especially in children), other respiratory illnesses, heart 

attacks, and premature death, even with only short-term exposure. 

48. There is no question that the permit limits total PM, not the filterable subset of 

total PM. Conditions B.2, C.2, and C.3 of the Permit require that Colstrip not "discharge]'] into 

the atmosphere PM in excess of' certain limits. Permit at 7, 12. Montana's regulations define 

"PM" as total PM, including condensable and gaseous PM. See Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.101(31) 

(defining PM as "all applicable definitions of particulate matter that specify an aerodynamic size 

class"); id. 17.8.101(34) (defining "PM-I0 emissions" to include both filterable and condensable 

emissions with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal ten micrometers). 

49. DEQ itself acknowledges that the Permit refers to "total particulate" but that only 

"filterable PM" is subject to monitoring under the Permit. TRD at 61. The Permit thus allows 

condensable PM, the primary component of the fine particulate that is most harmful to human 

health, to escape Colstrip's stacks without any measurement or reporting. Therefore, the Permit 

fails to include monitoring requirements that are sufficient to assure compliance with the terms 

of the Permit. 

15
 



50. Additionally, Pennit condition CA expressly limits "gaseous emissions 

discharged into the atmosphere from burning coal" to less than 0.10 Ib/MMBtu of PM. Permit at 

12. These gaseous precursors of PM are condensable PM and are not measured by monitoring 

methods that test only for filterable PM. Because the Permit requires monitoring for only 

filterable PM, which does not measure the condensable PM limited by condition CA, the Permit 

fails to include monitoring necessary to assure compliance with the Permit's terms. 

51. DEQ's failure to require monitoring sufficient to assure compliance with 

Colstrip's PM limits is arbitrary, capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal 

Clean Air Act, the Clean Air Act of Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's 

operating permit program. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing legal violations, Appellants request that the Board of 

Environmental Review: 

I. Declare that DEQ violated the state and federal Clean Air Acts by failing to 

include all applicable requirements in the Colstrip Steam Electric Station's Title V operating 

permit and by failing to include monitoring requirements sufficient to assure compliance with the 

applicable requirements; 

2. Set aside the Colstrip Title V operating permit and remand it to DEQ to include 

all applicable requirements; and 

3. Order such other relief as the Board deems just and proper. 

16
 

III "III, 'e'" ~ I , I I, ~1,~~~1i. II "I- ,,.I I l I, I I' ~ III' ... 



Respectfully submitted on this 3rd day of January, 2013, 

~-/e&d~.
 
Anne Hedges P 
On behalfofAppellants Montana Environmental 
Information Center and Sierra Club 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 3rd day ofJanuary, 2013, 

,..._----------~--
DENISE M ROBERTS 

NOTI\RY PUBLIC for the ~~G?~ 
State of Montano Notary Public for the State of Montana

Residing at 
Residing at Helena Helena, Montana
 

My Commission Expires
 My commission expires: 
October 14, 2014 

17
 



Exhibit 1
 



State of Montana 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Helena, Montana 59620 

AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT NUMBER OP0513-08 

Renewal Application Received: March 25, 2010 
Application Deemed Administratively Complete: March 25, 2010 
Application Deemed Technically Complete: March 25, 2010 
AFS Number: 030-087 -0008A 

Draft Issue Date #OP0513-07: May 17,2011 
Draft Issue Date #OP0513-08: August 10,2012 
Proposed Issue Date: October 17,2012 
End of EPA 45-day Review: December 3, 2012 
Date of Decision: December 4, 2012 
Effective Date: January 4,2013 
Expiration Date: January 4,2018 

In accordance with the Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Sections 75-2-217 and 218, and the 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, 

PPL Montana, LLC - Colstrip Steam Electric Station
 
Section 34, Township 2 North, Range 41 East, in Rosebud County, Montana
 

580 Willow Ave., P.O. Box 38
 
Colstrip, MT 59323
 

hereinafter referred to as "PPLM", is authorized to operate a stationary source of air contaminants 
consisting of the emission units described in this permit. Until this permit expires or is modified or 
revoked, PPLM is allowed to discharge air pollutants in accordance with the conditions of this permit. 
All conditions in this permit are federally and state enforceable unless otherwise specified. Requirements 
which are state-only enforceable are identified as such in the permit. A copy of this permit must be kept 
on site at the above named facility. 

Permit Issuance and Appeal Process: In accordance with ARM 17.8.1232, the Department of 
Environmental Quality (Department) provided at least 30 days for public comment on the draft permit. 
With the issuance of Draft Operating Permit #OP0513-08, the Department provided a 30-day public 
comment period from August 10,2012, to September 10,2012. Following receipt ofa request to extend 
the originally allotted 30-day comment period, the Department granted the request and approved a 14-day 
extension. The extension allowed for comments to be received until September 24,2012. All comments 
received by the Department regarding this permit have been summarized in the attached technical review 
document. The Department provided a 45-day review period on the proposed permit to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). No comments were received from the EPA. In accordance 
with Section 75-2-218, MCA, the Department's decision regarding issuance of an operating permit is not 
effective until 30 days have elapsed from the date of the decision. The decision may be appealed to the 
Board of Environmental Review (Board) by filing a request for a hearing within 30 days after the date of 
decision. The filing of a request for hearing does not stay the Department's decision, unless the Board 
orders a stay upon receipt of a petition and a finding that a stay is appropriate under Section 75-2
218(6)(b) MCA. lfno stay is ordered, the Department's decision on the application is final 30 days after 
the decision is made. For more information please contact the Department at (406) 444-3490. 

OP0513-08 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



B. EUOOI and EU002 - Tangential Coal Fired Units 1 & 2 

Condition(s) PollutantlParameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
Method Frequency Requirements 

B.l, B.4, B.IO, COMS Ongoing Quarterly 
B.lI, B.19, Opacity 20%/27% Method 9 As required by Semiannually 
B.20, B.23, the Department 
B.24, B.25, and Section 
B.27, B.28 III.A.l 
B.2, B.12, PM 0.1 Ib/MMBtu Method 5 or 5B ~nual 

B.19, B.23, 
B.24, B.27 
B.28 
B.3, B.4, B.5, S02 1.2 Ib/MMBtu Method 6 or 6C Annual Semiannually 
B.14, B.15, 
B.16, B.19, 

CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 

B.21, B.23, 
B.24, B.27, 
B.28 
B.3,B.4, B.5, NOx 0.71b/MMBtu Method 7 or 7E Annual Semiannually 
B.7, B.13, CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 
B.15, B.16, 
B.19,B.21, 
B.27, B.28 

0.40 Ib/MMBtu 
(annual average) 

40 CFR Parts 
72-78 and 

Appendix H 

As required by 
Appendix H 

B.5, B.6, B.7, Acid Rain Provisions 40 CFR Parts 72-78 40 CFR Parts As required by 
B.15,B.16, and Appendix H 72-78 and Appendix H 
B.21,B.23, Appendix H 
B.26 -B.28 
B.8, B.17, PM CAM Plan ARM 17.8.1506 Provisions from Ongoing 
B.22, B.23, CAM Plan, 
B.27, B.28 Appendix I 
B.9, B.18, Scrubbers Maintain & Operate Log Daily 
B.23, B.27, 
B.28 

Conditions 

R1.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize to be discharged into the atmosphere from Units 1 & 2 any 
visible emissions that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes 
except for one 6-minute period per hour of not greater than 27% opacity (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR Part 60, Subpart D). 

R2.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere PM in excess of 0.10 1b/MMBtu, as 
averaged over 3 hours (minimum) of reference method testing (ARM 17.8.340, and 40 CFR Part 
60, Subpart D). 

B.3.	 Any gaseous emissions discharged into the atmosphere shall not exceed 1.2 1b/MMBtu Sulfur 
Dioxide (S02) and 0.7 1b/MMBtu NOx (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D). 

BA.	 PPLM shall install, operate, calibrate and maintain continuous emission monitoring systems 
(CEMS) for the following: 

a.	 A CEMS for the measurement of S02 shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR60.45); 

b.	 A CEMS for the measurement of NOx shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR60.45); 

OP0513-08 7 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04120 13 



c.	 A CEMS for the measurement of Carbon Dioxide (C02) shall be operated on each stack 
(ARM 17.8.340 and 40 CFR 60.45); 

d.	 A CEMS for the measurement of opacity shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 
40 CFR 60.45); and 

e.	 Continuous monitoring for stack gas temperature, stack gas moisture (where necessary), 
megawatt production, and Btu per hour shall be performed on each unit (40 CFR 52.21). 

B.5.	 PPLM shall comply with all requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix H of this permit including 
the operation and maintenance of the S02 and NOx CEMS (ARM 17.8.1210(3)). 

B.6.	 Emissions shall not be permitted in excess of any allowances that PPLM lawfully holds under 
Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder (ARM l7.8.1210(3)(a)). 

a.	 A permit revision is not required for increases in emissions authorized by allowances 
acquired pursuant to the acid rain program, provided that such increases do not require a 
permit revision under any other applicable requirement (ARM l7.8.1210(3)(b)). 

b.	 PPLM may not use allowances as a defense to noncompliance with any other applicable 
requirement (ARM l7.8.12l0(3)(c)). 

c.	 Any allowances shall be accounted for according to the procedures established in regulations 
promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA (ARM l7.8.l2l0(3)(d)). 

B.7.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR 76.7, PPLM shall not discharge or allow to be discharged, emissions of NOx 

to the atmosphere in excess of 0.40 lb/MMBtu on an annual average basis (40 CFR 76.7(a)). 

B.8.	 PPLM shall provide a reasonable assurance of compliance with emission limitations or standards 
for the anticipated range of operations of the Tangential Coal-Fired Boilers, Units 1 & 2 for PM 
(ARM 17.8.1504). 

B.9.	 PPLM shall maintain and operate the scrubbers to control emissions on Units 1 & 2 (ARM 
17.8.749). 

Compliance Demonstration 

B.lO.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test on the boilers as required by the Department and Section 
lI1.A.l while the boilers are in operation to monitor compliance with the opacity limitation in 
Section m.B.l. The testing shall be performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test 
Protocol and Procedures Manual or another method approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.749 
and ARM 17.8.106). 

B.ll.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the continuous opacity monitor (COM) to monitor compliance 
with the opacity limitation in Section l11.B.l. The operation and maintenance shall be performed 
in accordance with the Opacity CEMS Appendix E of this permit (ARM 17.8.749). 

B.12.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or 5B PM test annually during periods the equipment is in 
operation to monitor compliance with the PM limit in Section m.B.2. The testing shall be 
performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 
17.8.749 and ARM 17.8.106). 

OP0513-08 8 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 

,pl'....lli. II 



Visibility 

Condition(s) PollutantlParameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
Method Frequency Requirements 

C.19,C.20, Acid Rain Provisions 40 CFR Parts 72 40 CFR Parts As required by Quarterly 
C.3S, C.4S, 78 and Appendix 72-78 and Appendix H 
C.46, C.49-C.SI H Appendix H 
C.21, C.37, S02 CEMS Install, Operate Ongoing Quarterly 
C.42, C.4S, NO, and Maintain 
C.47, C.49 CO2 
C.SI Opacity 
C.22, C.36, C.49 Heat Input 6.63 x 10 Coal analysis Monthly 
-C.SI MMBtu/yr and tonnage 

log Monthlv 
C.21,C.37, Stack Parameters Measure stack Monitor stack Ongoing 
C.4S, C.47, C.49 parameters gas temperature, 
-C.Sl moisture, Mwatt 

production and 
Btu/hr 

C.23, C.38, C.48 PM CAM Plan ARM 17.8.1506 Provisions from Ongoing 
-C.SI CAM Plan, 

Appendix I 

Conditions 

C.1.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize to be discharged into the atmosphere from Units 3 & 4 any 
visible emissions that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes 
except for one 6-minute period per hour of not greater than 27% opacity (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR Part 60, Subpart D). 

C.2.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere PM in excess of 0.05 Ib/MMBtu, as 
averaged over 3 hours (minimum) of reference method testing (40 CFR 52.21). 

C.3.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere PM in excess of 3791b/hr (ARM 
17.8.749). 

CA.	 Any gaseous emissions discharged into the atmosphere from burning coal shall not exceed 0.10 
Ib/MMBtu PM, 1.2 Ib/MMBtu S02 and 0.7 Ib/MMBtu NO x (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart D). 

C.5.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere S02 at a rate ofO.18Ib/MMBtu heat 
input, averaged over any calendar day, not to be exceeded more than once during any calendar 
month (40 CFR 52.21). 

C.6.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere S02 at a rate of 761 lb/hr, averaged 
over any rolling 30-day period, calculated each day at midnight, using hourly data calculated each 
hour on the hour (40 CFR 52.21). 

C.7.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere S02 at a rate of 1363 lb/hr, averaged 
over any calendar day, not to be exceeded more than once during any calendar month (40 CFR 
52.21). 

C.8.	 PPLM shall be limited to a maximum of 4140 lb/hr of S02 averaged over a 3-hr rolling period 
from both Units 3 &d 4 stacks combined (ARM 17.8.749). 

OP0513-08 12 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



C.25.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the opacity CEM to monitor compliance with the opacity 
limitation in Section lll.C.I. according to the OpacityCEMS Appendix E (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.26.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or Method 5B PM test, or another method approved by the 
Department, on the boilers annually to monitor compliance with the PM fuel burning limitation in 
Section lll.C.2 and lll.C.3. The testing shall be performed in accordance with the Montana 
Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual and the heat input must be calculated in accordance 
with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, §5. Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.106 and 40 CFR Part 
75 Appendix F). 

C.27.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the venturi scrubbers in accordance with manufacturer 
recommendations to control emissions on Units 3 & 4 in demonstrating compliance with PM 
limitations (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.28.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 6 or 6C test annually, to monitor compliance with the S02 limit in 
Section lll.C.4. Heat input must be calculated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, 
§5. Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.1213 and 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix F). 

C.29.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the S02 CEMS in accordance with the S02 CEMS Appendix F 
of this permit (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.30.	 Compliance with the sulfur in coal limit in Section 1ll.C.9 shall be based on a weekly average of 
individual daily composite coal samples as measured by 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A Method 19 
or another sampling schedule as approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.1213 and BHES 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law signed on November 21, 1975; this requirement is 
"State Only"). 

C.3I.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 7 or 7E test annually, to monitor compliance with the NO. limit in 
Section lll.C.4. Heat input must be calculated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, 
§5. Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.1213 and 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F). 

C.32.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the NO. CEMS in accordance with the NO. CEMS Appendix G 
of this permit (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.33.	 PPLM shall maintain a log of any exceedance of NO. when burning fuel other than coal as 
required by Section Ill.C.12. The Department will compare the calculated emission limit with the 
results from the NO. CEMS (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.34.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with Section lll.C.18 as required by EPA in the consent decree 
entered May 14,2007. As part of these requirements, PPLM will maintain records demonstrating 
compliance with the NO. emission control requirements contained in Section Ul.C.15 & C.16 
(ARM 17.8.1213, ARM 17.8.749, and Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO entered 
5/14/07). 

C.35.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with Section lll.C.19 and 20 as required by Appendix H - Acid 
Rain Appendix (ARM 17.8.1213 and Appendix H). 

C.36.	 Compliance with the heat input limit of Section lll.C.22 shall be monitored based on the total 
tons of coal combusted in each of the boilers multiplied by a representative average Btu content 
for the coal. PPLM shall document, by month, the total fuel combusted in each boiler. By the 
zs" day of each month, PPLM shall calculate the tons of coal combusted for the previous month. 
The monthly information will be used to verify compliance with the rolling 12-month limitation 

OP0513-08 16 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 

, ~H~."I. Ii II II. ", I I 'I, I I I ~ 1'1 I" 



Exhibit 2
 



MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
 
OPERATING PERMIT TECHNICAL REVIEW DOCUMENT
 

Permitting and Compliance Division
 
1520 E. Sixth Avenue
 

P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

PPL Montana, LLC
 
Colstrip Steam Electric Station
 

Section 34, Township 2 North, Range 41 East, Rosebud County, Montana
 
580 Willow Ave., P.O. Box 38
 

Colstrip, MT 59323
 

The following table summarizes the air quality programs testing, monitoring, and reporting requirements 
applicable to this facility. 

Facility Compliance Requirements Yes No Comments 

Source Tests Required X 
Method 5, Method 6, Method 7, 
Method 9 

Ambient Monitoring Required X 

COMS Required X #OP0513-08, Appendix E 

CEMS Required X 
#OP0513-08 - CO2, Appendix F 
S02 and Appendix G - NOx 

Mercury Emissions Monitoring System (MEMS) Required X 

Schedule of Compliance Required X 

Annual Compliance Certification and Semiannual Reporting Required X As Applicable 

Monthly Reporting Required X 

Quarterly Reporting Required X Opacity, NO x, S02' and mercury 

Applicable Air Quality Programs 

ARM Subchapter 7 Montana Air Quality Permits (MAQP) X MAQP #0513-08 

New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) X 
40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, Da, and 
y 

National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPS) X 
No, Except for 40 CFR Part 61, 
SubpartM 

Maximum Achievable Control Technology (M ACn X 
40 CFR Part 63, Subparts DDDDD, 
UUUUU, and ZZZZ 

Major New Source Review (NSR) ~ includes Prevention of Significant 
Deterioration (PSD) and/or Non-attainment Area (NAA) NSR 

X 

Risk Management Plan Required (RMP) X 

Acid Rain Title IV X #OP0513-08, Appendix H 

Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) X #OP0513-08, Appendix I 

State Implementation Plan (SIP) X General SIP applies 

TRD0513-08 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



additional emission controls is necessary to comply with emission limitations under this rule, in which 
case compliance is required within five years of [October 16,2012]." Id. Although these regional haze 
requirements have future-effective compliance dates, they will apply to Colstrip within the 5-year 
duration of Colstrip's Title V permit and therefore must be incorporated, along with all monitoring, 
record-keeping, and reporting requirements outlined in the FIP. See ARM 17.8.1201(10); see also 40 
C.F.R. § 70.2. 

[Earthjustice (MEIC/Sierra Club) 9/24/2012] 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

The Department certainly acknowledges the applicability of the future limitations set forth for PPLM as a 
result of Montana's Regional Haze FIP. 

The limitation listed as Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for particulate matter (PM) is 0.10 
Ib/MMBtu with a compliance timeframe of 30 days after the effective date of the FIP. The final rule is 
effective October 18, 2012 (77 FR 57864, Sep. 18,2012). Compliance with the PM limitations must be 
achieved by November 17, 2012 rather than the November 15,2012 date as indicated by the commenter. 
PPLM is currently operating with PM permit limits of 0.10 MMBtu/hr for Units 1 and 2, which is identical to 
the PM limitation approved in Montana's Regional Haze FIP. No changes to the Title V operating permit 
appear to be necessary. 

As the commenter has reiterated, compliance with the S02 and NOx limitations set forth within the FIP 
must be achieved within 180 days after the effective date of the FIP where installation of additional 
controls is not necessary to comply with the BART limit; otherwise the compliance deadline is five years 
after the effective date of the FIP. PPLM will be required to install additional controls to meet an S021imit 
of 0.08 Ibs/MMBtu and a NOx limit of 0.15 Ibs/MMBtu, with a compliance deadline of October 18, 2017. 

The commenter is reminded that the effective date of the rule is October 18, 2012. As stated in ARM 
17.8.1228, "Additional applicable requirements under the FCAA become applicable to a major source 
holding a permit with a remaining term of three or more years. Reopening and revision of the permit shall 
be completed not later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement." Although the 
requirements contained within Montana's Regional Haze FIP are applicable requirements, the 
Department has up to 18 months following promulgation to have the permit reopened and revised. 
Therefore, inserting limitations required under Montana's Regional Haze FIP within the Title V operating 
permit is unnecessary at this time. 

The Department has included a statement within Section V of the Technical Review Document (TRD) for 
the OP0513-08 listing applicability of the Regional Haze FIP requirements as a future consideration. 

3.	 "The Colstrip Title V permit must include specific provisions to assure compliance with 
Hazardous Air Pollutant Standards." 

COMMENT: 

The draft operating permit likewise fails to assure compliance with 40 C.F.R. 63, Subpart UUUUU
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAPs") from Coal- and Oil-Fired 
Electric Generating Units. DEQ acknowledges that the NESHAPs are an applicable requirement, as the 
technical review document identifies "Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT)" pursuant to 
40 C.F.R. 63, Subpart UUUUU, as an "applicable air quality program[]." TRD0513-08, p.l. However, 
DEQ has failed to specifically identify MACT emission limits in the draft permit. 

The NESHAPs have already been promulgated, with an effective date of April 16,2012.77 Fed. Reg. 
9,304 (Feb. 16,2012). Pursuant to these standards, the Colstrip units must comply with limits on the 
emissions of hazardous air pollutants such as mercury, acid gases (or S02 as a surrogate), and metallic 
hazardous air pollutants (or particulate matter as a surrogate) by April 16, 2015. 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.9984, 

TRD0513-08 57 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/2013 



63.9991. This compliance deadline falls within the five-year period that would be covered by any final 
operating permit issued here. As such, the NESHAPs qualify as an "applicable requirement," ARM 
17.8.120 I(10), and the draft permit must be revised to specifically require that each of the Colstrip 
generating units come into compliance with the NESHAPs by April 15, 2015. 

In addition, the Draft Permit must be revised to include provisions needed to make the requirement to 
comply with the NESHAPs enforceable. For example, utilities have choices under the NESHAPs as to 
whether to satisfy limits for specific hazardous air pollutants or for other pollutants that are purportedly 
surrogates for those hazardous air pollutants. 40 C.F.R. 63, Subpart UUUUU, Tables 2-4. The regulation 
also sets forth a range of options regarding what steps need to be taken to monitor and demonstrate 
compliance with the NESHAPs. Id. By identifying in the permit the specific emission limits and standards 
that the Colstrip units will need to satisfy to comply with the NESHAPs, the Title V permit would "clarify 
and make more readily enforceable a source's pollution control requirements," including making clear 
how general regulatory provisions apply to specific sources. S. Rep. 101-228, 1990 USCAAN 3385, 3730 
(Dec. 20, 1989). Without such provisions, the permit would unlawfully fail to "assure compliance" with 
all applicable requirements. 42 U.S.c. § 766Ic(a),(c); 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(c)(I). 

Updated particulate matter ("PM") controls will be necessary at Colstrip Units 1 through 4 to meet EPA's 
PM limit for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Specifically, EPA adopted a PM limit of 0.03 
Ib/MMBtu as a surrogate for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Colstrip Units 1 and 2 already 
emit filterable PM at rates close to twice that ofthe EPA's proposed 0.03 Ib/MMBtu total PM limit (at 
0.047 and 0.0581b/MMBtu, respectivelyI0) and also are currently subject to a PM limit more than three 
times the MACT limit (0.10 Ib/MMBtu). Likewise, Colstrip Units 3 and 4 are currently subject to a PM 
limit (0.05 Ib/MMBtu) greater than the new MACT limit. Consequently, improved PM controls will be 
necessary to meet a total PM MACT limit of 0.03 Ib/MMBtu. 

Further, the NESHAPs establish an acid gas limit for HCl ofO.0021b/MMBtu or, alternatively, utilities 
can elect to comply with a surrogate limit on S02 of 0.20 Ib/MMBtu. Although Colstrip Units 1 and 2 
may be able to comply with the S02 surrogate MACT limit through pollution-control upgrades necessary 
to achieve the units' regional haze limit ofO.081b/MMBtu, DEQ must assure compliance with the new 
MACT limit by or before the NESHAPs effective date of April 2015. 

DEQ must revise the draft operating permit to incorporate specific NESHAPs emission limits and 
associated monitoring, record-keeping, and reporting requirements applicable to Colstrip Units I through 
4. 

[Earthjustice (MEIC/Sierra Club) 9/24/2012] 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: 

The Department acknowledges the applicability of the future limitations set forth for PPLM as a result of 
40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAPs") 
for Coal and Oil-Fired Electric Generating Units, which was published as final in the Federal Register on 
February 16, 2012, with an effective date of April 16, 2012. 

As required under 40 CFR. 63, Subpart UUUUU, an existing EGU (i.e. PPLM Colstrip) must comply with 
the subpart no later than April 16, 2015, unless an extension is granted per 40 CFR 63.6(i). As stated in 
ARM 17.8.1228, "Additional applicable requirements under the FCAA become applicable to a major 
source holding a permit with a remaining term of three or more years. Reopening and revision of the 
permit shall be completed not later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement." 
Although the requirements contained within 40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU are applicable requirements, 
the Department has up to 18 months following promulgation to have the permit reopened and revised. In 
addition, because of the multiple compliance options available with respect to different pollutants (for 
example, compliance with standards for acid gas hazardous air pollutants can be met using a 
hydrochloric acid or S02 emission limit), adding specific limits at this time would be premature. Therefore, 
inserting limitations required under 40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU within the Title V operating permit is 
unnecessary at this time. 
TRD0513-08 58 Decision: 12/04/2012 

Effective Date: 01/04/2013 

.... 11I, ,f"" ~ " " '~llllih.~.' II 



FR 3121/72: Supplemental Statement in Connection with Final Promulgation: 
wThere has been only limited sampling with the full EPA train such that the occasional anomalies 
cannot be explained fully at this time. Accordingly, we determined that, for the three affected 
source categories, steam generators, incinerators, and cement plants, particulate standards 
should be based on the front half of the EPA sampling train with mass emission limits adjusted as 
follows: 

Originally proposed 
particulate 
standards, full EPA train 

Recommended particulate 
standards 
revised sample method 
(front half 
only) 

Steam Generators 
(IblmmBtu) 

0.20 0.10 

Incinerators 
(qrldscfat 12% CO2) 

0.10 0.08 

Cement Kilns 
(Ibs 1 ton feed) 

0.30 0.30 

Cement Coolers 
(Ibs 1 ton feed) 

0.10 0.10 

Similarly, Units 3 & 4 are subject to Subpart D. The particulate limits for those units were established in 
the original EPA PSD permitting action dated September 11, 1979. The compliance determining method 
for the PM limits was listed as "shall be as provided for in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A, Method 5," 
confirming that the limits were for filterable PM emissions only. The PM limits were established under the 
PSD BACT requirements (with the NSPS requirements under Subpart D being the "floor" for BACT 
consideration). Further, in its response to comments on the September 11, 1979 permit, EPA explained 
its basis for the numeric PM limitation and how it compares to the front-half only limit that was 
promulgated under 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Da, the next iteration in NSPS. If the BACT limit was 
intended to include both filterable and condensable fractions, there would be no basis for comparison with 
the NSPS. 

Thus, since the limit under Subpart D was established with the assumption of "front-half' or filterable PM 
emissions only, the Department has maintained the requirement to use Method 5 "front-half' only testing 
on Units 1 & 2 and 3 & 4. The permit requires compliance with "total particulate" in relation to the when 
and how the limits were established. The above discussion describes the reason why the limitations, as 
well as the method of demonstrating compliance, are based on the "front half' testing requirements. 

CEMS are not required by any EPA or State regulation currently applicable to the source and the 
commenter fails to demonstrate that additional monitoring, including CEMS, is necessary to ensure 
compliance with the emissions limits of the Permit. While Method 5 alone may not derive a continuous 
measurement of compliance with the PM emission limitation, the Department believes an accurate 
representation of PM concentrations is derived through the testing frequency along with the use of other 
methods of PM monitoring and control measures including opacity limitations determined through the use 
of COMS, quality control and quality assurance through the requirements outlined within PPLM's CAM 
plan, as well as scrubber operation and maintenance in accordance with manufacturer/vendor 
recommendations, modified per PPLM's operational experience. PPLM's CAM plan has been revised 
since the first draft issuance of Operating Permit #OP0513-07 to incorporate additional performance 
indicators (i.e. plumb bob pressure drop (~P) and venturi spray flows) to demonstrate quality control and 
verification of proper control of particulate matter. 

In response to the commenter's statement that monitoring is required for "total particulate - both filterable 
and condensable portions," it shall be noted that the original condition (i.e. particulate limits established in 
the original EPA PSD permitting action dated September 11, 1979), as explained above, drives the Title V 
compliance demonstration. The Department recognizes reference to "total particulate" in MAQP #0513
08 is an error, and that filterable PM is the appropriate subject of monitoring. MAQP #0513-08 needs to 
be updated to clarify these testing requirements. 

TRD0513-08 61 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Exhibit 3
 



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON
 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF OPERATING PERMITS
 

PROGRAM REGULATIONS
 

Prepared By: 

The U. S. Environmental Protection Agency 

July 7, 1993 

1110 ". I l ,I' I "~ I ~ ,to 



Yes,	 but the minimum notice periods specified in Part 70 must 
be met. 

7.7	 Renewals 

7.8	 Reopenings 

1.	 Title V permits must include all applicable requirements of 
the Act. When must a newly promulgated NESHAP be incorporated 
into the Title V permit? 

It must be incorporated into the permit at least at renewal 
time, even if the compliance date is in the future. In 
addition, a permit may need to be reopened earlier, depending 
on the compliance date specified in the NESHAP and the amount 
of time left to run on the permit term [see section 502(b) (9) 
of the Act regarding reopening of major source permits with 
three or more years remaining on their terms]. If the NESHAP 
is promulgated while a draft permit is being processed, the 
permitting authority must revise the permit to include the new 
requirements prior to issuance. 

2. If a permit is reopened, is public participation required? 

Yes, public participation is required for all permit 
reopenings. 

3.	 If a permit is reopened, is the entire permit reviewed, or 
only those provisions that caused the permit to be reopened? 

The review need cover only those provisions that caused the 
permit to be reopened or that are affected by it. 

4.	 When a permit has been reopened, when does the new permit take 
effect? 

The permit is effective upon issuance, just as for any permit 
issuance, renewal, or significant modification. The old 
permit terms remain in effect until the reopening process is 
completed (i.e., the revised permit is issued). 

7.9	 Title I Modifications 

7.10	 Permit Denial 

7.11	 Temporary Sources 

7-3 



.M.ootanaDepartnJeot of" 
Steve Bullock. Governor

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY Tracy Stone-Manning. Director 

P. O. D<>x 200901 

January 7, 2013 

James M. Parker 
PPL Montana, LLC 
303 N Broadway, Suite 400 
Billings, MT 59101 

RE: Final Title V Operating Permit #OP0513-08 

Dear Mr. Parker: 

The Department of Environmental Quality has prepared the enclosed Final Operating Permit #OP0513
08, for PPL Montana, LLC, Colstrip Steam Electric Station, located in Section 34, Township 2 North, 
Range 41 East, in Rosebud County, Montana. Please review the cover page of the attached permit for 
information pertaining to the action taking place on Permit #OP0513-08. 

If you have any questions, please contact Skye Hatten,the permit writer, at (406) 444-5287 or by email at 
shatten@mt.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Skye Hatten, P.E. 
Charles Homer Manager, Air Permitting, Environmental Engineer 
Compliance and Registration Air Resources Air Resources Management Bureau 
Management Bureau (4'06) 444-5287 
(406) 444-5279 

CH: SH 
Enclosure 
Cc: OJ Law, US EPA Region VIII 8P-AR (via email) 

Carson Coate, Montana EPA (via email)
 
Stephen J. Christian, PPL Montana, LLC, Alternative Responsible Official (via email)
 
Neil Dennehy, PPL Montana, LLC, Facility Contact Person (via email)
 
Myron Shield, Apsaalooke (Crow) Environmental Department (via USPS)
 
Jay Littlewolf, Tse' tsehestahese (Northern Cheyenne) EPD (via email)
 
Lori Bocchino, Operating Permit Program Manager, Wyoming DEQ (via email)
 
Tom Bachman, NO Department of Health, Division ofAir Quality (via email)
 
Brian Gustafson, Administrator, SO DENR (via email)
 
Jenny Harbine, Earth Justice (via email)
 



Stan Frasier, Helena Hunters & Anglers Association (via email)
 
Harold and Jan Hoem, Montana Elders for a Livable Tomorrow (via email)
 
Multiple Interested Parties that Submitted Similar Electronic Comments (via email)
 

"lo "I I ,I ,.,. I ' I I ~ I ~, ' It' 



STATE OF MONT ANA 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Helena, Montana 59620 

AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT OP0513-08 

Issued to: PPL Montana, LLC 
Colstrip Steam Electric Station 
580 Willow Ave. 
P.O. Box 38 
Colstrip, MT 59323 

Final Date: January 4, 2013 
Expiration Date: January 4,2018 

Effective Date: January 4,2013 
Date of Decision: December 4, 2012 
End of EPA 45-day Review: December 3, 2012 
Proposed Issue Date: October 17,2012 
Draft Issue Date #OP0513-08: August 10,2012 
Draft Issue Date #OP0513-07: May 17,2011 

Application Deemed Technically Complete: March 25, 2010 
Application Deemed Administratively Complete: March 25, 2010 
Renewal Application Received: March 25, 2010 
AFS Number: 030-087-0008A 

Permit Issuance and Appeal Processes: In accordance with ARM 17.8.1232, the Department of 
Environmental Quality (Department) provided at least 30 days for public comment on the draft permit. 
With the issuance of Draft Operating Permit #OP0513-08, the Department provided a 30-day public 
comment period from August 10, 2012, to September 10, 2012. Following receipt of a request to extend 
the originally allotted 30-day comment period, the Department granted the request and approved a 14-day 
extension. The extension allowed for comments to be received until September 24,2012. All comments 
received by the Department regarding this permit have been summarized in the attached technical review 
document. The Department provided a 45-day review period on the proposed permit to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). No comments were received from the EPA. The Department's 
decision was issued on December 4,2012. In accordance with Section 75-2-218, MCA, the Department's 
decision regarding issuance of an operating permit is not effective until 30 days have elapsed from the 
date of the decision. 

In accordance with Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Sections 75-2-217 and 218 and the Administrative 
Rules of Montana (ARM), ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, this 
operating permit is hereby issued by the Department of Environmental Quality (Department) as effective 
and final on January 4,2013. This permit must be kept on-site at the above named facility. 

OP0513-08 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Montana Air Quality Operating Permit
 
Department of Environmental Quality
 

SECTION I. GENERAL INFORMATION
 1 
2 
3 

SECTION II. SUMMARY OF EMISSION UNITS
 
SECTION III. PERMIT CONDITIONS
 
A. FACILITY-WIDE
 3 

B. EUOO I AND EU002 - TANGENTIAL COAL FIRED UNITS I & 2
 7 

C. EU003 AND EU004 - TANGENTIAL COAL FIRED UNITS 3 & 4
 II 

D. EU005 -AUXILIARY PROPANE BOILER
 20 

E. EU006 - BUILDING HEATER BOILER
 22 

F. EU007, EU008, AND EU009- COAL HANDLING SYSTEMS (UNITS I & 2  ENCLOSED 

CONVEYORS, DUST SUPPRESSANT, TELESCOPIC CHUTE), COAL HANDLING SYSTEMS
 

(UNITS 3 & 4 - SILOS, DISTRIBUTION BIN, SURGE PILE TUNNEL, CRUSHING AND
 

SAMPLING HOUSE, AND VACUUM CLEANING SYSTEM) AND COAL PILES 24
 

G. EUO I 0 - EMERGENCY DIESEL GENERATORS 26
 

H. EUOl2 - LIME HANDLING SySTEM 28
 

I. EUO 13 - PLANT ROADS; EUO 14 - PROCESS PONDS 30
 

J. EUOl5 - UNDERGROUND GASOLINE TANK 31
 

K. EUOl7 - TANGENTIAL COAL FIRED UNITS 1-4 MERCURY EMISSIONS 33
 

L. EUOl8 -MERCURY OXIDIZERISORBEN1'HANDLING SYSTEMS (UNITS 1-4) 35
 

SECTION IV. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS 37
 
A. FACILITY-WIDE 37
 

B. EMISSION UNITS 38
 

SECTION V. GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS 39
 
A. COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 39
 

B. CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 39
 

C. PERMIT SHIELD 40
 

D. MONITORING, RECORDKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 41
 

E. PROMPT DEVIATION REPORTING 42
 

F. EMERGENCY PROVISIONS 42
 

G. INSPECTION AND ENTRY 43
 

H. FEE PAYMENT 44
 

I. MINOR PERMIT MODIFICATIONS 44
 

J. CHANGES NOT REQUIRING PERMIl' REVISION .44
 

K. SIGNIFICANT PERMIT MODIFICATIONS 45
 

L. REOPENING FOR CAUSE 46
 

M. PERMIT EXPIRATION AND RENEWAL .46
 

N. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 46
 

O. TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF OWNERSHIP .47
 

P. EMISSIONS TRADING, MARKETABLE PERMITS, ECONOMIC INCENTIVES 47
 

Q. No PROPERTY RIGHTS CONVEyED 47
 

R. TESTING REQUIREMENTS 47
 

S. SOURCE TESTING PROTOCOL 47
 

T. MALFUNCTIONS 47
 

U. CIRCUMVENTION 47
 

V. MOTOR VEHICLES 48
 

W. ANNUAL EMISSIONS INVENTORY 48
 

X. OPEN BURNING 48
 

Y. MONTANA AIR QUALITY PERMITS 48
 

Z. NATIONAL EMISSION STANDARD FOR ASBESTOS , .49
 

OPOS 13-08 ii Decision: 12/04/2012
 
Effective Date: 0 \/04/20 13
 



AA. ASBESTOS 49 
BB. STRATOSPHERIC OZONE PROTECTION  SERVICING OF MOTOR VEHICLE AIR 

CONDITIONERS 49 
Cc. STRA TOSPHERIC OZONE PROTECTION  RECYCLING AND EMISSION REDUCTIONS .49 
DO. EMERGENCY EPISODE PLAN 50 
EE. DEFINITIONS 50 
APPENDIX A INSIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS A-l 
APPENDIX B DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS B-l 
APPENDIX C NOTIFICATION ADDRESSES C-l 
APPENDIX D AIR QUALITY INSPECTOR INFORMATION D-l 
APPENDIX E OPACITY CEMS E-l 
APPEND IX F S02 CEMS F-l 
APPENDIX G NOX CEMS G-l 
APPENDIX H ACID RAIN H-l 
APPENDIX I COMPLIANCE ASSURANCE MONITORING PLAN 1-1 
APPENDIX J MERCURY EMISSIONS MONITORING SYSTEM (MEMS) J-l 

OP0513-08 iii Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Terms not otherwise defined in this permit or in the Definitions and Abbreviations Appendix of this 
permit have the meaning assigned to them in the referenced rules or regulations. 

SECTION I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The following general information is provided pursuant to ARM 17.8.121 O( 1). 

Company Name: PPL Montana, LLC 

Mailing Address: 303 N Broadway, Suite 400 

City: Billings State: MT Zip: 59101 

Plant Name: Colstrip Steam Electric Station 

Plant Location: Section 2, Township 2 North, Range 41 East, Rosebud County, Montana 
Willow Avenue and Warehouse Road, Colstrip, Montana 

Responsible Official: James M. Parker Phone: (406) 237-6932 
Alternative Responsible Official: Stephen J. Christian Phone: (406) 748-5019 

Facility Contact Person: Neil Dennehy Phone: (406) 748-5066 

Primary SIC Code: 4911, Electric Services (NAICS Code: 221112) 

Nature of Business: Coal-fired thermal power generation 

Description of Process: Four tangential coal-fired boilers and associated equipment for generation of 
electricity. 

OP0513-08 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



SECTION II. SUMMARY OF EMISSION UNITS
 

The emission units regu lated by this permit are the following (ARM 17.8.1211):
 

Emission 
Units ID 

Description Pollution Control Device/Practice 

EUOOI Unit # I - Tangential Coal Fired Boiler 
Wet Venturi Scrubber, Low NOx burner 
firing system and digital controls (Alstom 
LNCFS II ® System) 

EUOO2 Unit #2 - Tangential Coal Fired Boiler 
Wet Venturi Scrubber, Low NOx burner 
firing system and digital controls (Alstom 
LNCFS II ® System) 

EUOO3 Unit #3 - Tangential Coal Fired Boiler 
Wet Venturi Scrubber, advanced low NOx 
firing and digital controls for NOx control 
(Alstom LNCFS 1II® System) 

EUOO4 Unit #4 - Tangential Coal Fired Boiler 
Wet Venturi Scrubber, advanced low NOx 
firing and digital controls for NOx control 
(Alstom LNCFS IIl® System) 

EUOO5 Auxiliary Propane Boiler (1 & 2) None 
EUOO6 Building Heating Boiler (3 & 4) None 

EUOO7 Coal Handling System (I & 2) 

Enclosed conveyors 
Dust suppressant 
Enclosed downspout with elevation doors 
Dustless transfer chutes (certain locations) 

EUOO8 
Coal Handling System - (silos, distribution bin, surge 
pile tunnel, crushing and sampling house, and vacuum 
cleaning system) (3 & 4) 

Enclosed conveyors 
Dust suppressant 
Enclosed downspout with elevation doors 
Dustless transfer chutes (certain locations) 

EUOO9 Coal Piles (Wind Erosion) 

Sealant on some storage piles, Dust 
suppression system, Enclosures, Wind fence 
(one coal pile), Water application through 
sprays or water trucks 

EUOIO Emergency Diesel Generators None 
EUOl2 Lime Handling System Pneumatic Unloading 

EUOl3 Plant Roads 
Dust suppressant is applied annually and 
water is applied as needed 

EUOl4 Process Ponds Material is wet 
EU015 Underground Gasoline Tank Permanent submerged fill pipe 
EUOl7 Tangential Coal Fired Units 1-4 Mercury Emissions Mercury oxidizer/sorbent 

EU018 
Mercury OxidizerlSorbent Handling Systems (Units 
1-4) 

Bin Vent Filter 

OP0513-08 2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/2013 



SECTION III. PERMIT CONDITIONS 

The following requirements and conditions are applicable to the facility or to specific emission units 
located at the facility (ARM 17.8.1211, ]2]2,and ]213). 

A. Facility-Wide 

Conditions Rule Citation Rule Description Pollutant/Parameter Limit 
Al ARM 17.8.105 Testing Requirements Testing Requirements ------
A2 ARM 17.8.304(1) Visible Air Contaminants Opacity 40% 
A.3 ARM 17.8.304(2) Visible Air Contaminants Opacity 20% 

A4 ARM 17.8.308(1) 
Particulate Matter, 
Airborne 

Fugitive Opacity 20% 

A.5 ARM 17.8.308(2) 
Particulate Matter, 
Airborne 

Reasonable Precautions ------

A.6 ARM 17.8.308 
Particu Iate Matter. 
Airborne 

Reasonable Precaution. 
Construction 

20% 

A7 ARM 17.8.309 
Particulate Matter, Fuel 
Burning Equipment 

Particulate Matter 
E= 0.882 * HoG 1664 Or 

E= 1.026 * HoG 233 

A8 ARM 17.8.310 
Particulate Matter, 
Industrial Processes 

Particulate Matter 
E= 4.10 * pu 

6 or 
E=55*PO I I_40 

A9 ARM 17.8.322(4) 
Sulfur Oxide Emissions, 
Sulfur in Fuel 

Sulfur in Fuel (liquid or solid 
fuels) 

I Ib/MMBtu fired 

AIO ARM 17.8.322(5) 
Sulfur Oxide Emissions, 
Sulfur in Fuel 

Sulfur in Fuel (gaseous) 50 gr/100 CF 

All ARM 17.8.324(3) 
Hydrocarbon Emissions, 
Petroleum Products 

Gasoline Storage Tanks ------

AI2 ARM 17.8.324 
Hydrocarbon Emissions, 
Petroleum Products 

65,000 Gallon Capacity ------

Al3 ARM 17.8.324 
Hydrocarbon Emissions, 
Petroleum Products 

Oil-effluent Water Separator ------

AI4 ARM 17.8.342 
NESHAPs General 
Provisions 

SSM Plans Submittal 

AI5 

Board of Health and 
Environmental 
Sciences (BHES) 
Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law 
signed on November 
21,1975; this 
requirement is "State 
Only" 

Major Facility Siting Act 
(MFSA) Requirements 

Coal Utilized within Units #3 
and #4 

As specified 

A.16 
CV-07-40-BLG
RFC-CSO 

Consent Decree Various As specified 

A.17 
ARM 17.8.1211(1)(c) 
and 40 CFR Part 98 

Greenhouse Gas Reporting Reporting ------
A.18 ARM 17.8.1212 Reporting Requirements Prompt Deviation Reporting ------
A.19 ARM 17.8.1212 Reporting Requirements Compliance Monitoring ------
A.20 ARM 17.8.1207 Reporting Requirements Annual Certification ------

Conditions 

A. ] .	 Pursuant to ARM] 7.8.105, any person or persons responsible for the emissions of any air 
contaminant into the outdoor atmosphere shall, upon written request of the Department, provide 
the facilities and necessary equipment (including instruments and sensing devices) and shall 
conduct test, emission or ambient, for such periods oftime as may be necessary using methods 
approved by the Department. 

OPOSI3-08 3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/20 I3 



Compliance demonstration frequencies that list "as required by the Department" refer to ARM 
17.8.105. In addition, for such sources, compliance with limits and conditions listing "as required 
by the Department" as the frequency, is verified annually using emission factors and engineering 
calculations by the Department's compliance inspectors during the annual emission inventory 
review; in the case of Method 9 tests, compliance is monitored during the regular inspection by the 
compliance inspector. 

A.2.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.304(1), PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into 
the outdoor atmosphere from any source installed on or before November 23, 1968, that exhibit an 
opacity of 40% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes, unless otherwise specified by rule 
or in this permit. 

A.3.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.304(2), PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into 
the outdoor atmosphere from any source installed after November 23, ]968, that exhibit an opacity 
of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes, unless otherwise specified by rule or in 
this permit. 

A.4.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.308(1), PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling,
 
transportation, or storage of any material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of
 
particulate matter (PM) are taken. Such emissions of airborne particulate matter from any
 
stationary source shall not exhibit an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive
 
minutes, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit.
 

A.5.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.308(2), PPLM shall not cause or authorize the use of any street, road or
 
parking lot without taking reasonable precautions to control emissions of airborne particulate
 
matter, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit.
 

A.6.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.308, PPLM shall not operate a construction site or demolition project 
unless reasonable precautions are taken to control emissions of airborne PM. Such emissions of 
airborne PM from any stationary source shall not exhibit an opacity of20% or greater averaged 
over 6 consecutive minutes, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit. 

A.7.	 Pursuant to ARM] 7.8.309, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
cause or authorize PM caused by the combustion of fuel to be discharged from any stack or 
chimney into the outdoor atmosphere in excess of the maximum allowable emissions of PM for 
existing fuel burning equipment and new fuel burning equipment calculated using the following 
equations: 

For existing fuel burning equipment (installed before November 23, 1968): 
E =0.882 * H-O I 664 

For new fuel burning equipment (installed on or after November 23, ]968):
 
E =1.026 * H-om
 

Where H is the heat input capacity in million British thermal units (MMBtu) per hour and E is the 
maximum allowable particulate emissions rate in pounds per MMBtu. 

A.8.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.310, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
cause or authorize PM to be discharged from any operation, process, or activity into the outdoor 
atmosphere in excess of the maximum hourly allowable emissions of PM calculated using the 
following equations: 

OP0513-08 4 Decision: 12/0412012 
EffectiveDate: 01/0412013 



For process weight rates up to 30 tons per hour: E = 4.10 * p067
 

For process weight rates in excess of 30 tons per hour: E = 55.0 * pOll - 40
 

Where E = rate of emissions in pounds per hour and p = process weight rate in tons per hour. 

A.9.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.322(4}, PPLM shall not bum liquid or solid fuels containing sulfur in 
excess of I pound per MMBtu fired, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit. 

A.l0.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.322(5}, PPLM shall not bum any gaseous fuel containing sulfur 
compounds in excess of 50 grains per 100 cubic feet of gaseous fuel, calculated as hydrogen 
sulfide at standard conditions, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit. 

A.II.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.324(3}, PPLM shall not load or permit the loading of gasoline into any 
stationary tank with a capacity of 250 gallons or more from any tank truck or trai ler, except 
through a permanent submerged fill pipe, unless such tank is equipped with a vapor loss control 
device or is a pressure tank as described in ARM 17.8.324(1}, unless otherwise specified by rule 
or in this permit. 

A.12.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.324, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
place, store or hold in any stationary tank, reservoir or other container of more than 65,000 gallon 
capacity any crude oil, gasoline or petroleum distillate having a vapor pressure of2.5 pounds per 
square inch absolute or greater under actual storage conditions, unless such tank, reservoir or other 
container is a pressure tank maintaining working pressure sufficient at all times to prevent 
hydrocarbon vapor or gas loss to the atmosphere, or is designed and equipped with a vapor loss 
coritrol device, properly installed, in good working order and in operation. 

A.13.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.324, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
use any compartment of any single or multiple-compartment oil-effluent water separator, which 
compartment receives effluent water containing 200 gallons a day or more of any petroleum 
product from any equipment processing, refining, treating, storing or handling kerosene or other 
petroleum product of equal or greater volatility than kerosene, unless such compartment is 
equipped with a vapor loss control device, constructed so as to prevent emission of hydrocarbon 
vapors to the atmosphere, properly installed, in good working order and in operation. 

A.14.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63.6, PPLM shall submit to the Department a copy of any 
startup, shutdown, and malfunction (SSM) plan required under 40 CFR 63.6(e}(3} within 30 days 
of the effective date of this operating permit (if not previously submitted), within 30 days ofthe 
compliance date of any new National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(NESHAPs) or Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standard, and within 30 days 
ofthe revision of any such SSM plan, when applicable. The Department requests submittal of 
such plans in electronic form, when possible. 

A.15.	 ln accordance with the conditional certification of Colstrip Units #3 and #4 made pursuant to 
Section 70-810 (L), Revised Code of Montana (R.C.M) 1947 ofthe Major Facility Siting Act 
(MFSA), PPLM shall utilize only coal from the Rosebud seam within Units #3 and #4 (Board of 
Health and Environmental Sciences (BHES) Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law signed on 
November 21, 1975; this requirement is "State-Only"). 

A.16.	 PPLM shall comply with the following applicable terms of US EPA Consent Decree CV -07-40
BLG-RFC-CSO (entered 5114/07), and its Amendments, for the life of the Consent Decree (ARM 
17.8.1211 ): 

OP0513-08 5 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



a. Section IV: Oxides ofNitrogen (NOx) Emission Reductions and Controls; 

b. Section V: Prohibition on Netting Credits or Offsets from Required Controls; 

c. Section VI: Relationship to PSD Permit; 

d. Section X: Periodic Reporting; 

e. Section XII: Force Majeure (excluding the stipulated penalty components); 

f. Section XIV: Permits; and 

g. Section XV: Information Collection and Retention. 

A.17.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.1211 (1)(c) and 40 CFR Part 98, PPLM shall comply with requirements of 
40 CFR Part 98 - Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Reporting, as applicable (ARM 17.8.121 1(1)(c), 
NOT an applicable requirement under Title V). 

A.18.	 PPLM shall promptly report deviations from permit requirements including those attributable to
 
upset conditions, as upset is defined in the permit. To be considered prompt, deviations shall be
 
reported to the Department using the schedule and content as described in Section V.E (unless
 
otherwise specified in an applicable requirement) (ARM 17.8.1212).
 

A.19.	 On or before February 15 and August 15 of each year, PPLM shall submit to the Department the 
compliance monitoring reports required by Section V.D. These reports must contain all 
information required by Section V.D, as well as the information required by each individual 
emissions unit. For the reports due by February 15 of each year, PPLM may submit a single 
report, provided that it contains all the information required by Section V.B & V.D. Per ARM 
17.8.1207, 

any application form. report, or compliance certification submitted 
pursuant to ARM Title J 7, Chapter 8, Subchapter J2 (including 
semiannual monitoring reports), shall contain certification by a 
responsible official oftruth, accuracy and completeness. This 
certification and any other certification required under ARM Title J7, 
Chapter 8, Subchapter J2, shall state that, "based on information and 
beliefformed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information 
in the document are true, accurate and complete. " 

A.20.	 By February 15 of each year, PPLM shall submit to the Department the compliance certification 
report required by Section V.B. The annual certification report required by Section V.B must 
include a statement of compliance based on the information available that identifies any observed, 
documented or otherwise known instance of noncompliance for each applicable requirement. Per 
ARM 17.8.1207, 

any application form, report, or compliance certification submitted 
pursuant to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter J2 (including annual 
certifications), shall contain certification by a responsible official of 
truth, accuracy and completeness. This certification and any other 
certification required under ARM Title J 7, Chapter 8, Subchapter J2, 
shall state that, "based on information and beliefformed after 
reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the document. 
are true, accurate and complete. " 

OP0513-08 6 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



B. EUOOI and EU002 - Tangential Coal Fired Units 1 & 2 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Com pliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

B. L B.4, B.l0, COMS Ongoing Quarterly 
B.\1. B.19. 
B.20. B.23. 
B.24. B.25. 
B.27. B.28 

Opacity 20'%/27% Method 9 As required by 
the Department 

and Section 
IIJ.A.I 

Semiannually 

B.2. B.12. 
B.19,8.23, 
B.24, B.27 
B.28 

PM O. I Ib/MMBtu Method 5 or 5B Annual 

B.3. 8.4, 8.5, S02 1.2 IblMMBtu Method 6 or 6C Annual Semiannually 
8.14,8.\5, 
8.16,8.19, 
8.21,8.23, 
B.24,8.27, 
B.28 

CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 

B.3,8.4, 8.5. NO, 0.7lblMMBtu Method 7 or 7E Annual Semiannually 
B.7,8.13, CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 
B.15, B.16. 
B.19,8.21, 
B.27, B.28 

0.40 Ib/MMBtu 
(annual average) 

40 CFR Parts 
72-78 and 

Appendix H 

As required by 
Appendix H 

B.5, B.6. 8.7. 
B.15. B.16, 
B.21, B.23, 
B.26 -B.28 

Acid Rain Provisions 40 CFR Parts 72-78 
and Appendix H 

40 CFR Parts 
72-78 and 

Appendix H 

As required by 
Appendix H 

B.8, B.17. 
B.22, B.23. 
B.27, B.28 

PM CAM Plan ARM 17.8.1506 Provisions from 
CAM Plan, 
Appendix I 

Ongoing 

B.9, B.18, 
B.23.8.27. 
8.28 

Scrubbers Maintain & Operate Log Daily 

Conditions 

B.I.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize to be discharged into the atmosphere from Units I & 2 any 
visible emissions that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes 
except for one 6-minute period per hour of not greater than 27% opacity (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR Part 60, Subpart D). 

B.2.	 PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere PM in excess of 0.10 Ib/MMBtu, as 
averaged over 3 hours (minimum) of reference method testing (ARM] 7.8.340, and 40 CFR Part 
60, Subpart D). 

B.3.	 Any gaseous emissions discharged into the atmosphere shall not exceed 1.2 Ib/MMBtu Sulfur 
Dioxide (S02) and 0.7 Ib/MMBtu NO, (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D). 

B.4.	 PPLM shall install, operate, calibrate and maintain continuous emission monitoring systems 
(CEMS) for the following: 

a.	 A CEMS for the measurement of S02 shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

b.	 A CEMS for the measurement of NO, shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

OP0513·08 7 Decision: 12104/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



c.	 A CEMS for the measurement of Carbon Dioxide (C02) shall be operated on each stack 
(ARM 17.8.340 and 40 CFR 60.45); 

d.	 A CEMS for the measurement of opacity shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 
40 CFR 60.45); and 

e.	 Continuous monitoring for stack gas temperature, stack gas moisture (where necessary), 
megawatt production, and Btu per hour shall be performed on each unit (40 CFR 52.21). 

B.S.	 PPLM shall comply with all requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix H of this permit including 
the operation and maintenance of the S02 and NOx CEMS (ARM 17.8.1210(3)). 

B.6.	 Emissions shall not be permitted in excess of any allowances that PPLM lawfully holds under
 
Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder (ARM 17.8.121O(3)(a)).
 

a.	 A permit revision is not required for increases in emissions authorized by allowances 
acquired pursuant to the acid rain program, provided that such increases do not require a 
permit revision under any other applicable requirement (ARM 17.8.121 0(3)(b)). 

b.	 PPLM may not use allowances as a defense to noncompliance with any other applicable 
requirement(ARM 17.8.121 0(3)(c)). 

c.	 Any allowances shall be accounted for according to the procedures established in regulations 
promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(d)). 

B.7.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR 76.7, PPLM shall not discharge or allow to be discharged, emissions of NOx 

to the atmosphere in excess of 0.40 Ib/MMBtu on an annual average basis (40 CFR 76.7(a)). 

B.8.	 PPLM shall provide a reasonable assurance of compliance with emission limitations or standards 
for the anticipated range of operations of the Tangential Coal-Fired Boilers, Units I & 2 for PM 
(ARM 17.8.1504). 

8.9.	 PPLM shall maintain and operate the scrubbers to control emissions on Units I & 2 (ARM 
17.8.749). 

Compliance Demonstration 

B.IO.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test on the boilers as required by the Department and Section 
IIl.A.1 while the boilers are in operation to monitor compliance with the opacity limitation in 
Section III.B.I. The testing shall be performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test 
Protocol and Procedures Manual or another method approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.749 
and ARM 17.8.106). 

B.II.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the continuous opacity monitor (COM) to monitor compliance 
with the opacity limitation in Section III.B.I. The operation and maintenance shall be performed 
in accordance with the Opacity CEMS Appendix E of this permit (ARM 17.8.749). 

8.12.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or 5B PM test annually during periods the equipment is in 
operation to monitor compliance with the PM limit in Section 1I1.8.2. The testing shall be 
performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 
17.8.749 and ARM 17.8.106). 

OP0513-08 8 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



B.I3.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 7 or 7E test annually during periods of boiler operation to monitor 
compliance with the NO x limit in Section I1I.B.3. The testing shall be performed in accordance 
with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM I 7.8.749 and ARM 
17.8.106). 

B.14.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 6 or 6C test annually during periods of boiler operation to monitor 
compliance with the S02 limit in Section I1I.B.3. The testing shall be performed in accordance 
with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.749 and ARM 
17.8.106). 

B.15.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with emission limits in Section I1I.B.3 pursuant to the 
requirements in 40 CFR Part 75, 40 CFR Part 76, S02 CEMS, Appendix F, and the NO x CEMS 
Appendix G of this permit (ARM 17.8.1213). 

B.16.	 PPLM shall monitor compl iance with the Acid Rain Provisions according to 40 CFR Parts 72-78 
and Appendix H of this permit, including monitoring as described in the S02 CEMS Appendix F 
and NO x CEMS Appendix G of this permit (ARM 40 CFR Parts 72-78). 

B.17.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance by following the Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) 
Plan (Appendix I). The CAM Plan, written by Colstrip in accordance with ARM 17.8.1504, is 
included in Appendix 1of the permit (ARM 17.8.1503 and ARM 17.8.1213). 

B.18.	 PPLM shall maintain records of scrubber maintenance and operation to monitor compliance with 
Section III.B.9(ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

B.19.	 All source testing recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test 
Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. Method 9 source test reports 
for opacity need not be submitted unless requested by the Department (ARM 17.8.106). 

B.20.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with the Opacity CEMS Appendix E of 
this permit (ARM 17.8.1212). 

B.21.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 and Appendix H of 
this permit, the S02 CEMS Appendix F, and the NO x CEMS Appendix G ofthis permit (ARM 
17.8.1212 and 40 CFR Parts 72-78). 

B.22.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with 40 CFR Part 64 and the CAM Plan 
Appendix I ofthis permit (ARM 17.8.1212 and ARM 17.8.1513). 

B.23.	 PPLM shall maintain as a permanent business record under its control for at least 5 years, all 
records required for compliance monitoring. Furthermore, the records must be available at the 
plant site for inspection by the Department and EPA, and must be submitted to the Department 
upon request (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

B.24.	 The Method 5, Method 5B, Method 6, Method 6C, Method 7, and Method 7E test reports as 
specified in Section III.B.12, 13, and 14 shall be submitted in accordance with the Montana 
Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

OP0513-08 9 Decision: 12104/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



8.25.	 Reporting for the opacity CEMS shall be performed according to Appendix E of this permit 
(ARM 17.8.1212). 

8.26.	 Reporting for the Acid Rain Provisions shall be performed according to 40 CFR Parts 72-78 and 
Appendix H of this permit (40 CFR Parts 72-78). 

8.27.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.8 must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

8.28.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide a summary of results of any Method 9, Method 5 
or 58, Method 6 or 6C, and Method 7 or 7E tests conducted during the period; the actual test 
reports for Method 9 need only be submitted to the Department by request, as specified by 
Section I1I.8.19(ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP0513-08 10 Decision: 12/04/20 J2 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



C. EU003 and EU004 - Tangential Coal Fired Units 3 & 4 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
M'ethod Frequency Requirements 

CI, C21, C24. Opacity 20%/27% COMS Ongoing Quarterlv 
C2S, C36. Method 9 As required by the Semiannually 
C41, C42, Department and 
CAS, C47 Section m.». I 
CSO 
C2, C3, CA. PM O,OS Ib/MMBtu Method S or Annual 
C26. c.n. 3791b/hr Method SB 
C43, CA4. C49 0, 10 Ib/MMBtu 
-CSI 
CA  CS, C21. S02 1,2 Ib/MMBtu Method 6 or 6C Annual 
C2S, C29, O.ISlbIMMBtu CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 
C37, CA4. (calendar day 
CAS. C47. C49 average) 
-CSI 761 Ib/hr (30 day 

rolling average) 
1363 Ib/hr 

(calendar day 
average) 

4140 Ib/hr (3-hr 
rolling average) 

C9, C30, C39. % sulfur I% sulfur content Weekly average Ongoing Semiannually 
C44, CA9 of coal of composite 
CSI coal samples in 

accordance with 
Method 19 

C4, CI O. CI I. NO, 0.7Ib/MMBtu Method 7 or 7E Annual 
C12, C2I. CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 
C31, C32, S301 Ib/hr 
C33, C37. 
CAO, CA4. 
CAS, C47. 
C49-CSI 

OAO Ib/MMBtu 
(annual average) 

E=0.2x+0.3y=0.7z 

40 CFR Parts 
72-7S and 

Appendix H 
Emissions limit 

As required by 
Appendix H 

When burning fuel Semiannually 
x+y+z calculations other than coal 

C.13, C32. N02 0,7Ib/MMBtu CEMS Ongoing Quarterly 
C37. CAS. (calendar day 
CA7, C49 average) 
CSI 
C.14, C17. NO, (30-day rolling O.ISlb/MMBtu if CEMS Ongoing 
C32. C37. average) unit operating> 
CAS, CA7. 400MW 
C49- CSI 0.30 Ib/MMBtu if 

unit operating 
=<400MW 
1,363 Ib/hr 

NO, (24-hour average) 0.2S Ib/MMBtu if 
unit operating> 

400MW 
0.30 Ib/MMBtu if 

unit operating 
=<400MW 
I,S93lblhr 

CIS,CI6, NO, Control Operate digital Documentation Ongoing Semiannually 
C34, CAl. C49 controls, low-NO, 
-CSI burners. overfire 

air 
CIS, C34. NO, Control Classification, As required by As required by As required by 
C41, C49 BART, visibility. EPA EPA EPA 
CSt and Baseline 

OP0513-08 II Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Visibility 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
Method Frequency Requirements 

C.19, C.20, Acid Rain Provisions 40 CFR Parts 72 40 CFR Parts As required by Quarterly 
C.35, C.45, 78 and Appendix 72-78 and Appendix H 
C.46, C.49-e.51 H Appendix H 
C.21, C.37, S02 CEMS Install, Operate Ongoing Quarterly 
C.42, C.45, NO, and Maintain 
C.47, C.49 CO2 
C.51 Opacity 
C.22, C.36. C.49 Heat Input 6.63 x 107 Coal analysis Monthly 
-C.51 MMBtu/yr and tonnage 

log Monthly 
C.21, C.37, Stack Parameters Measure stack Monitor stack Ongoing 
C.45, C.47, C.49 parameters gas temperature, 
-C.51 moisture, Mwatt 

production and 
Btu/hr 

c.zs, C.38, C.48 PM CAM Plan ARM 17.8.1506 Provisions from Ongoing 
-C.51 CAM Plan, 

Appendix I 

Conditions 

e.1. PPLM shall not cause or authorize to be discharged into the atmosphere from Units 3 & 4 any 
visible emissions that exhibit an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes 
except for one 6-minute period per hour of not greater than 27% opacity (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR Part 60, Subpart D). 

e.2. PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere PM in excess of 0.05 Ib/MMBtu, as 
averaged over 3 hours (minimum) of reference method testing (40 CFR 52.21). 

C.3. PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere PM in excess of 379 Ib/hr (ARM 
17.8.749). 

CA. Any gaseous emissions discharged into the atmosphere from burning coal shall not exceed 0.10 
IblMMBtu PM, 1.2 Ib/MMBtu S02 and 0.7 Ib/MMBtu NO x (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart D). 

e.5. PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere S02 at a rate of 0.18 Ib/MMBtu heat 
input, averaged over any calendar day, not to be exceeded more than once during any calendar 
month (40 CFR 52.21). 

e.6. PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere S02 at a rate of 761 lb/hr, averaged 
over any rolling 30-day period, calculated each day at midnight, using hourly data calculated each 
hour on the hour (40 CFR 52.21). 

C'l . PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere S02 at a rate of 1363 Ib/hr, averaged 
over any calendar day, not to be exceeded more than once during any calendar month (40 CFR 
52.2] ). 

e.8. PPLM shall be limited to a maximum of 4140 Ib/hr of S02 averaged over a 3-hr rolling period 
from both Units 3 &d 4 stacks combined (ARM 17.8.749). 

OP0513-08 12 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



C.9. PPLM shall be limited to a sulfur content in coal of 1% (ARM 17.8.749 and BHES Findings of 
Fact and Conclusions of Law signed on November 21,1975; this requirement is "State Only"). 

PPLM has developed a contingency plan for blending coal to achieve the 1.0% (sulfur as received 
basis) limit. Implementation of the plan will not be required unless the coal exceeds the "worst 
case coal" design criteria, which is a heat content of less than 8162 Btu/lb, and ash content of 
greater than 12.5% and a sulfur content greater than 1%, all on an as-received basis. 

C.IO. Pursuant to 40 CFR 76.7, PPLM shall not discharge or allow discharged emissions ofNO x to the 
atmosphere in excess of 0.40 Ib/MMBtu on an annual average basis (40 CFR 76.7(a)). 

C.II. PPLM shall be limited to 5301 lb/hr ofNO x from each of the tangential coal fired boilers, Units 3 
& 4 (ARM 17.8.749). 

C.12. Any gaseous NO x emissions discharged into the atmosphere when burning fuel other than coal 
shall not exceed (ARM 17.8.749): 

E = 0.2x + O.3y + 0.7z 
x+y+z 

where: E = allowable emissions in Ib/MMBtu heat input 
x = fraction of total heat input derived from gaseous fuels 
y = fraction of total heat input derived from liquid fuels 
z = fraction of total heat input derived from solid fuels. 

C.13. PPLM shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere NOx, expressed as N02, at a rate 
exceeding 0.7 Ib/MMBtu, as averaged over any calendar day (40 CFR 52.21). 

C.14. Beginning January 1,2008, for Unit 3 and January 19,2010, for Unit 4, PPLM shall not exceed 
any of the following NOx emission limits from Units 3 or 4 (ARM 17.8.749, Consent Decree CY
07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO entered 5/14/07 and Stipulation to Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG-RFC
CSO entered 12/22/09): 

a. 30-day rolling average emission rate of: 

I. 0.18 Ib/MMBtu weighted average for each hour that either unit is operating above 400 
gross megawatts (MW); and 

II. 0.30 Ib/MMBtu weighted average for each hour that either unit is operating at or below 
400 gross MW 

b. 1,363 Ib/hr 30-day rolling average emission rate for each unit 

c. 24-hour average emission rate (for each Operating Day) of: 

I. 0.25 Ib/MMBtu weighted average for each hour that either unit is operating above 400 
gross MW; and 

II. 0.30 Ib/MMBtu weighted average for each hour that either unit is operating at or below 
400 gross MW 

d. 1,893 lb/hr 24-hour average emission rate (for each Operating Day) for each unit. 

OP0513-08 13 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effcctive Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



For the purposes of this section, if a unit is operating above 400 MW for part of one hour and at 
or below 400 MW for the remainder of that hour, the applicable emissions limits shall be based 
on the average load for the hour. In addition, the emission rates for this condition are considered 
for an "Operating Day" as defined in the Consent Decree entered 5/14/07 (CY -07-40-BLG-RFC
CSO), except for the purposes of the Montana Air Quality Permits (MAQP), "Operating Day" 
means any calendar day (midnight to midnight) in which any fuel is combusted in the unit. 

C.15.	 PPLM shall operate digital controls, 10w-NOx burners and overfire air on Unit 3 sufficient to
 
meet the emissions limits in Section III.C.14 (ARM 17.8.749 and Consent Decree CY-07-40

BLG-RFC-CSO entered 5/14/07).
 

C.16.	 By January I, 2009, PPLM shall complete the final design and by January 19, 20 I0, PPLM shall 
install and operate digital controls, 10w-NOx burners and overfire air on Unit 4 sufficient to meet 
the Unit 4 emissions limits in Section III.C.14 (ARM 17.8.749, Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG
RFC-CSO entered 5114/07 and Stipulation to Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO entered 
12/22/09). 

C.17.	 The Unit 3 & 4 NOx emission limits specified in Section III.C.14 shall apply at all times,
 
including periods of start-up, shutdown, load fluctuation, maintenance and malfunction,
 
regardless of cause (ARM 17.8.749 and Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO entered
 
5/14/07).
 

C. 18.	 Should the Northern Cheyenne Reservation be redesignated to any PSD classification less 
stringent than Class I, the following conditions in Section III.C.18 shall be of no force and effect. 
However, any control designed and implemented pursuant to Section 1II.C.1 8 shall remain 
operable. 

At such time as EPA promulgates requirements for Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) 
for NOx control under the Clean Air Act, PPLM shall review Colstrip Units 3 & 4 for 
implementation of BART for NOx control. PPLM shall submit this analysis and recommendation 
for appropriate control to EPA for review and approval. This BART determination by EPA shall 
be subject to a formal hearing on the record after due notice to PPLM and the Northern Cheyenne 
Tribe. The determination of what constitutes BART shall be specific to Units 3 & 4 and shall 
take into consideration the costs of compliance, the energy and non-air quality environmental 
impacts of compliance, any existing pollution control technology in use at the source, the 
remaining useful life ofthe source, and the degree of improvement in visibility which may 
reasonably be anticipated to result from the use of such technology. Failure to implement those 
control measures found to constitute BART shall be a violation of this permit. Compliance with 
the requirements ofthe consent decree entered 5/14/07 is deemed to satisfy this above 
requirement (Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO entered 5/14/07, EPA PSD Permit, and 
40 CFR 52.21). 

Ifthere is a perceptible particulate plume on the Northern Cheyenne Tribe Reservation, as 
observed by an impartial observer designated by EPA, PPLM shall review Units 3 & 4 for 
implementation of BART for PM control. PPLM shall submit this analysis and a 
recommendation for appropriate control to EPA for review and approval. This BART 
determination by EPA shall be subject to a formal hearing on the record after due notice to PPLM 
and the Northern Cheyenne Tribe. The determination of what constitutes BART shall be specific 
to Units 3 & 4 and shall take into consideration the costs of compliance, the energy and non-air 
quality environmental impacts of compliance, any existing pollution control technology in use at 
the source, the remaining useful life ofthe source, and the degree of improvement in visibility 
which may reasonably be anticipated to result from the use of such technology. Failure to 
implement those control measures found to constitute BART shall be a violation of this permit 
(EPA PSD Permit and 40 CFR 52.21). 

OP05J3-08 14 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



C.19.	 PPLM shall comply with all requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix H of this permit (ARM 
17.8.1210). 

C.20.	 Emissions shall not be permitted in excess of any allowances that PPLM lawfully holds under 
Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder (ARM 17.8.121 0(3)(a)). 

a.	 A permit revision is not required for increases in emissions authorized by allowances 
acquired pursuant to the acid rain program, provided that such increases do not require a 
permit revision under any other applicable requirement (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(b)). 

b.	 PPLM may not use allowances as a defense to noncompliance with any other applicable 
requirement (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(c)). 

c.	 Any allowances shall be accounted for according to the procedures established in regulations 
promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(d)). 

C.21.	 PPLM shall install, operate, calibrate and maintain CEMS for the following: 

a.	 A CEMS for the measurement of S02 shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

b.	 A CEMS for the measurement of NOx shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

c.	 A CEMS for the measurement of CO2or oxygen shall be operated on each stack (ARM 
17.8.340 and 40 CFR 60.45); 

d.	 A CEMS for the measurement of opacity shall be operated on each stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 
40 CFR 60.45); and 

e.	 Continuous monitoring for stack gas temperature, stack gas moisture (where necessary), 
megawatt production, and Btu per hour shall be performed on each unit (40 CFR 52.21). 

f.	 PPLM shall maintain the data acquisition system such that load data in megawatts is recorded 
no less than once per minute (ARM 17.8.749 and Consent Decree CV-07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO 
entered 5/14/07). 

C.22.	 PPLM shall not exceed the heat input value of 6.63 x 107 MMBtu/yr averaged over any rolling 
12-month period (ARM 17.8.749). 

C.23.	 PPLM shall provide a reasonable assurance of compliance with emission limitations or standards 
for the anticipated range of operations at the Tangential Coal-fired Boilers, Units 3 & 4 for PM 
(ARM 17.8.1504). 

Compliance Demonstration 

C.24.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test or another method approved by the Department to monitor 
compliance with the opacity limitation in Section III.C.I. The testing shall be performed in 
accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.749 and 
ARM 17.8.106). 

OP0513-0R 15 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



C.25.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the opacity CEM to monitor compliance with the opacity
 
limitation in Section III.C.I. according to the Opacity CEMS Appendix E (ARM 17.8.1213).
 

C.26.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or Method 5B PM test, or another method approved by the 
Department, on the boilers annually to monitor compliance with the PM fuel burning limitation in 
Section III.C.2 and III.C.3. The testing shall be performed in accordance with the Montana 
Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual and the heat input must be calculated in accordance 
with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, §5. Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.106 and 40 CFR Part 
75 Appendix F). 

c.n.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the venturi scrubbers in accordance with manufacturer 
recommendations to control emissions on Units 3 & 4 in demonstrating compliance with PM 
limitations (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.28.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 6 or 6C test annually, to monitor compliance with the S02 limit in 
Section III.CA. Heat input must be calculated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, 
§5. Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.1213 and 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix F). 

C.29.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the S02 CEMS in accordance with the S02 CEMS Appendix F 
of this permit (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.30.	 Compliance with the sulfur in coal limit in Section III.C.9 shall be based on a weekly average of 
individual daily composite coal samples as measured by 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A Method 19 
or another sampling schedule as approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.1213 and BHES 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law signed on November 21, 1975; this requirement is 
"State Only"). 

C.3I.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 7 or 7E test annually, to monitor compliance with the NO x limit in 
Section III.CA. Heat input must be calculated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, 
§5. Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.1213 and 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F). 

C.32.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the NOx CEMS in accordance with the NO x CEMS Appendix G 
ofthis permit (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.33.	 PPLM shall maintain a log of any exceedance of NO x when burning fuel other than coal as 
required by Section 1I1.C.12. The Department will compare the calculated emission limit with the 
results from the NO x CEMS (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.34.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with Section IlI.C.18 as required by EPA in the consent decree 
entered May 14, 2007. As part of these requirements, PPLM will maintain records demonstrating 
compliance with the NOx emission control requirements contained in Section III.C.15 & C.16 
(ARM 17.8.1213, ARM 17.8.749, and Consent Decree CY-07-40-BLG-RFC-CSO entered 
5/14/07). 

C.35.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with Section 1I1.C.19and 20 as required by Appendix H - Acid 
Rain Appendix (ARM 17.8.1213 and Appendix H). 

C.36.	 Compliance with the heat input limit of Section III.C.22 shall be monitored based on the total 
tons of coal combusted in each of the boilers multiplied by a representative average Btu content 
for the coal. PPLM shall document, by month, the total fuel combusted in each boiler. By the 
25th day of each month, PPLM shall calculate the tons of coal combusted for the previous month. 
The monthly information will be used to verify compliance with the rolling 12-month limitation 

OP05 I3-08 16 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 

http:III.C.22


in Section IILC.22. The information for each of the previous 12 months shall be submitted to the 
Department along with the annual emission inventory. The coal analysis shall be done as 
required by the NO x CEMS Appendix G, Section 5, 6, and 7 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

C.37.	 All continuous monitors shall be operated, excess emissions reported, and performance tests 
conducted, in accordance with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart D, 40 CFR 60.7, 
60.8, 60.11, 60. 13, and 40 CFR Part 60 Appendix B Performance Specifications # l, #2, and #3 
subject to the following: 

a.	 The requirements of 40 CFR 60.48Da - Compliance Provisions (40 CFR Part 60, Subpart 
Da) shall apply to Units 3 & 4 (40 CFR 52.21); 

b.	 The requirements of 40 CFR 60.49Da - Emissions Monitoring (40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Da) 
shall apply to Units 3 & 4 (40 CFR 52.2 l); 

c.	 The requirements of 40 CFR 60.50Da - Compliance Determination Procedure and Methods 
(40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Da) shall apply to Units 3 & 4 (40 CFR 52.2 l); 

d.	 The requirements of 40 CFR 60.51 Da - Reporting Requirements (40 CFR Part 60, Subpart 
Da) shall apply to Units 3 & 4 (40 CFR 52.2 l); 

e.	 PPLM shall operate the required monitors in accordance with the CEMS quality assurance 
(QA) plan submitted to the EPA in May 1998, unless an updated plan is accepted by the EPA. 
This plan may be revised by PPLM with approval of the Department (40 CFR 52.2 l); 

f.	 Compliance requirements of 40 CFR 60.11(a) shall be amended per Section 1I1.C.2l (40 CFR 
52.21); 

g.	 Each monitor modular part (i.e., opacity, S02, NO x, diluent, and data handling units) of a 
continuous monitoring system shall attain a minimum annual on-line availability time of 85% 
on a minimal quarterly availability of75% for each individual quarter. Should any given 
yearly or quarterly availability time drop below these respective limits, PPLM shall, within 
90 days ofthe end of the first unexcused year or quarter, cause to be delivered to the facility 
factory tested and compatible monitor module(s) which had unacceptable availability times, 
unless PPLM can excuse the unacceptable performance by demonstrating, within ten calendar 
days of the end of such year or quarter, that the reason for the poor availability time has not 
caused another previous occurrence of unacceptable availability in question will be prevented 
in the future by a more effective maintenance/inventory program (40 CFR 52.2 1); 

h.	 Upon two non-overlapping periods of unexcused, unacceptable availability of a module 
(yearly, quarterly or combination), PPLM shall within 30 days ofthe end ofthe year or 
quarter of the second unacceptable availability period, install, calibrate, operate, maintain, 
and report emission data using the second compatible module required by (g) above (40 CFR 
52.2 l); 

I.	 Within 60 days of the year or the quarter causing the second unacceptable availability period 
under Section (h) above, PPLM shall conduct a complete performance evaluation of the 
entire CEMS for that pollutant under 40 CFR 60.13(c) showing acceptability of the entire 
CEMS in question unless the module was the data handling unit alone. Within 75 days ofthe 
end of the year or quarter causing the second unacceptable avai labil ity period, PPLM shall 
furnish the Department with a written report of such evaluations and tests demonstrating 
acceptabi lity of the system (40 CFR 52.2 l); and 

OP0513-08 17 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/0412013 



J.	 In the event ofa conflict between the requirements of the above-referenced federal 
regulations [specifically 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Da] and the requirements of this permit, the 
requirements of this permit shall apply. 

C.38.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance by following the CAM Plan (Appendix I). The CAM Plan,
 
written by PPLM in accordance with ARM 17.8.1504, is included in Appendix I ofthe permit.
 
(ARM 17.8.1503 and ARM 17.8.1213).
 

Recordkeeping 

C.39.	 PPLM shall maintain, on site, a log of the results ofthe daily composite coal samples as required 
by Section III.C.30 and submit them to the Department upon request (ARM 17.8.1212). 

CAO.	 PPLM shall maintain, on site, a log to record the emission limit calculations when burning fuel 
other than coal (ARM 17.8.1212). 

CAL	 PPLM shall complete all recordkeeping for Section I1I.C.18 and III.C.34 as required by EPA 
(ARM 17.8.1212). 

CA2.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with the Opacity CEMS Appendix E of 
this permit (ARM 17.8.1212). 

CA3.	 PPLM shall prepare and maintain records of all inspection, maintenance, and operation activities 
associated with the venturi scrubbers (ARM 17.8.1212). 

CA4.	 All source-testing recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test 
Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. Method 9 source test reports 
for opacity need not be submitted unless requested by the Department (ARM 17.8.106). 

CAS.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 and Acid Rain. 
Appendix H, the S02 CEMS Appendix F, and the NOx CEMS Appendix G of this permit (ARM 
17.8.1212 and 40 CFR Parts 72-78). . 

CA6.	 PPLM shall complete all recordkeeping for Section III.C.19 and 20 as required by the Acid Rain 
Appendix H in this permit (ARM 17.8.1212). 

CA7.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site records for the CEMS and the stack parameter data as required in 
Section III.C.37 (ARM 17.8.1212). 

CA8.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with 40 CFR Part 64 and the CAM Plan 
Appendix I ofthis permit (ARM 17.8.1212 and 40 CFR Part 64). 

CA9.	 PPLM shall maintain, as a permanent business record under its control for at least 5 years, all 
records required for compliance monitoring. Furthermore, the records must be available at the 
plant site for inspection by the Department and EPA, and must be submitted to the Department 
upon request (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

C.50.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP0513-08 18 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/2013 



C.51.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 A summary of the log of daily composite coal samples; 

b.	 A summary of any Method 9, 5, 5B, 6, 6C, 7, or 7E test conducted during the period; the 
actual test report for Method 9 tests need only be submitted to the Department upon 
request, as specified by Section III.C.24; 

c.	 A summary of the stack parameter data and any other reports as required by Section 
III.C.47; and 

d.	 A summary ofthe log required by Section III.C.33. 

C.52.	 PPLM shall submit a written report of excess emission and monitoring system performance as 
required by 40 CFR 60.7(c). For the purposes ofthe report, excess emission shall be defined as 
any 6-minute, 3-hour, 24-hour, or 30-day period as applicable, for which the average emissions of 
the period of concern for opacity, NO x, SOl, as measured by the CEMS, exceed the applicable 
emissions for the periods as follows: 

a.	 6-minute average applies to each 6-minute non-overlapping period starting on the hour; 

b.	 3-hour period applies to any running 3-hour period containing 3 contiguous one-hour periods, 
starting on the hour; 

c.	 24-hour period applies to any calendar day; and 

d.	 30-day period applies to any running period of30 consecutive calendar days. 

C.53.	 PPLM shall submit the following information along with the excess emission reports: 

a.	 The fuel feed rate and associated production figures corresponding to all periods of excess 
emissions (40 CFR 52.21); 

b.	 The proximate analysis ofthe weekly composite sample of the fuel fired in each unit (40 CFR 
52.21); and 

c.	 Date, time and initial calibration values for each required calibration adjustment made on any 
monitor during the quarter, including any time in which the monitor was removed or 
inoperable for any reason (40 CFR 52.21). 

OP0513-08 19 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



D. EU005 - Auxiliary Propane Boiler 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

0.1,0.6,0.10, 
0.13,0.14 

Boiler Operation Notification and 
log book 

When in 
operation 

Semiannually 

0.2,0.7,0.8, 
0.10.0.11, 
0.13.0.14 

Opacity 20% Method 9 As required by 
the Department 

and Section 
IJI.A.I 

Recordkeeping Semiannually 

0.3,0.7,0.8, 
0.10.0.11, 
0.13.0.14 

PM from fuel combustion E=1.026*E'UL3j Method 5 As required by 
the Department 

and Section 
III.A.I 

Recordkeeping Semiannually 

0.4,0.7,0.8, 
0.10,0.11, 
0.13,0.14 

Sulfur in fuel I Ib sulfur/ 
MMBtu 

Recordkeeping Semiannually 

0,5, 0.9. 0.12, 
0.15 

40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 
00000 

40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart 00000 

40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart 00000 

40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart 
00000 

40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart 00000 

Conditions 

D.I.	 PPLM shall notify the Department of both start up and shut down ofthe auxiliary propane heater 
within 5 days of both start up and shut down. During operation, the auxiliary propane boiler shall 
operate in accordance with this Section III.D of this permit (ARM 17.8.1215). 

D.2.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize to be discharged into the atmosphere from the boiler, when in 
operation, visible emissions that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater, unless specified elsewhere 
in this permit (ARM 17.8.304). 

D.3.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize PM caused by the combustion of fuel to be discharged from 
any stack or chimney into the outdoor atmosphere in excess of E = 1.026*H'°233 for existing fuel 
burning equipment, where H = heat input capacity in MMBtu/hr and E = maximum allowable 
emission rate in Ib/MMBtu (ARM 17.8.309). 

D.4.	 PPLM shall not fire in the boiler liquid or solid fuels containing sulfur in excess of 1.0 Ib of 
sulfur/MMBtu (ARM 17.8.322). 

D.5.	 PPLM shall comply with all applicable standards and limitations, and the reporting, 
recordkeeping, and notification requirements contained in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, 
National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Major Industrial Sources: 
Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers and Process Heaters (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 
CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD). 

Compliance Demonstration 

0.6.	 Compliance with the operational and notification requirement in Section III.D.I may be satisfied 
by notifying the Department within 5 days of start up and shut down ofthe auxiliary propane 
boiler and PPLM shall prepare a log to record the time and dates when the auxiliary propane boiler 
is operated (ARM 17.8.1213). 

OP0513-08 20 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



0.7.	 PPLM shall burn propane in the emission unit while in operation to monitor compliance with the 
emission limits in Section 111.0.2, 3, and 4 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

0.8.	 As required by the Department and Section Ill.A.I, PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or a Method 
9 test in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 
17.8.1213 and ARM 17.8.106). 

0.9.	 Compliance monitoring shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 00000, 
as applicable (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 00000). 

Recordkeeping 

0.10.	 PPLM shall maintain on site an operations and maintenance log, which includes the type of fuel 
fired in the boiler each day it is in operation and the information stated in Section m.D.6. The log 
shall include the date and time ofthe maintenance and the type of maintenance that was performed 
(ARM 17.8.1212). 

0.11.	 Method 5 and Method 9 test reports must be maintained on-site and must be submitted to the 
Department upon request and in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and 
Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.1212). 

0.12.	 Recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 00000, as 
applicable (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 00000). 

Reporting 

0.13.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

0.14.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 Summary of any instance in which fuel other than propane was used in the boiler, including 
date, time and duration, and a summary operating times; and 

b.	 Summary of any required test that was conducted during the reporting period as required by 
Section 111.0.11. 

0.15.	 Reporting shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 00000, as applicable 
(ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63, Subpart 00000). 

OP0513-08 21 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/0412013 



E. EU006 - Building Heater Boiler 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
Method Frequencv Requirements 

E.1, E.6, E.!!, , Building heater boiler Operation Notification When operating Semiannually 
E.16, E.!7 
E.2, E.7, E.!2, PM from fuel combustion E = 1.026 * E-U"JJ Method 5 As required by 
E.15, E.16, the Department 
E.!7 and Section 

11I.A. I 
E.3, E.8, E.12, Opacity 20% Method 9 As required by 
E.!5, E.!6, the Department 
E.17 and Section 

III.A.! 
EA, E.9, E.!3, Sulfur in fuel !Ib sulfur/MMBtu Type of fuel Ongoing. 
E.!4, E.!6, fired 
E.!7 
E.5, E.lO, E.!4, 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 40 CFR Part 63, 40 CFR Part 63, 40 CFR Part 63, 40 CFR Part 63, 
E.18 DDDDD Subpart DDDDD Subpart Subpart Subpart DDDDD 

DDDDD DDDDD 

Conditions 

E.I.	 Colstrip shall notify the Department of both start up and shut down ofthe building heater boiler 
within 5 days of both start up and shut down. During operation, the building heater boiler shall 
operate in accordance with this Section III.E of this permit (ARM 17.8.1215). 

E.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize PM caused by the combustion of fuel to be discharged from 
any stack or chimney into the outdoor atmosphere in excess of E = 1.026 * H-om for existing fuel 
burning equipment, where H = heat input capacity in MMBtu/hr and E = maximum allowable 
emission rate in Ib/MMBtu (ARM 17.8.309). 

E.3.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2». 

EA.	 PPLM shall not bum liquid or solid fuel containing sulfur in excess of I Ib of sulfur/MMBtu fired 
(ARM 17.8.322). 

E.5.	 PPLM shall comply with all applicable standards and limitations, and the reporting, 
recordkeeping, and notification requirements contained in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, 
National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Major Industrial Sources: 
Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Boilers and Process Heaters (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 
CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD). 

Compliance Demonstration 

E.6.	 Compliance with the operational and notification requirement may be satisfied by notifying the 
Department within 5 days of start up and shut down of the building heater boiler. PPLM shall use 
the computer point log to record the time and dates when the building heater boiler is operated 
(ARM 17.8.1213). 

E.7.	 As required by the Department and Section Ill.A. J, PPLM shall perform a Method 5 test in 
accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8. I06). 

OP0513-08 22 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



E.8.	 As required by the Department and Section III.A.I, PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test on the 
building heater boiler in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.1213 and ARM 17.8.106). 

E.9.	 PPLM shall bum oil with a sulfur content that does not exceed I Ib of sulfur/MMBtu to monitor 
compliance with the limit in Section 1Il.EA (ARM 17.8.1213). 

E.IO.	 Compliance monitoring shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, 
as applicable (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD). 

Recordkeeping 

E.ll.	 PPLM shall maintain on site the computer point log as required by Section 111.E.6 (ARM 
17.8.1212). 

E.12.	 Method 5 and Method 9 test reports must be maintained on-site and must be submitted to the 
Department upon request and in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and 
Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.1212). 

E.13.	 PPLM shall maintain on site copies ofthe supplier's fuel analysis for each fuel delivery. The 
analysis may be based on an average fuel produced over a period oftime (ARM 17.8.1212). 

E.14.	 Recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, as 
applicable (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 00000). 

Reporting 

E.15.	 Any compliance source test reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

E.16.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

E.17.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide a (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 Summary of hours and dates of operation of the boiler as required by Sections 111.E.6 and 11; 

b.	 Summary of the average sulfur content of the fuel consumed; and 

c.	 Summary of any required test that was conducted during the reporting period as required by 
Section III.E.IO. 

E.18	 Reporting shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD, as applicable 
(ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart DDDDD). 

OP0513-08 23 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



F. EU007, EU008, and EU009- Coal Handling Systems (Units 1 & 2 - Enclosed conveyors, dust 
suppressant, telescopic chute), Coal Handling Systems (Units 3 & 4 - silos, distribution bin, surge 
pile tunnel, crushing and sampling house, and vacuum cleaning system) and Coal Piles 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter - Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

F.I, F.2, F.5, Opacity 20% Visual Weekly Semiannually 
F.6, F.7. F.9, Survey/Method 
F.IO, F.12. 9 
F.13 
F.3, F.6, F.9, PM E = 55 * pu -40 Visual Weekly 
F.IO. F.12, Survey/Method 
F.13 9 
FA, F.8, F.II, Uncovered coal storage Sealed Operation of Ongoing 
F.12, F.13 piles controls 

Conditions 

F.l. PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions from the Coal Handling Systems and Coal Piles to 
be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged 
over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.304(2». 

F.2. PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling transportation, or storage of any 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of PM are taken. Such emissions of 
airborne particulate from any stationary source shall not exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater 
averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.308(1 ». 

F.3. The particulate emissions from process weight shall not exceed the value calculated by E = 55.0 * 
pOll _ 40, where E = Emissions in pounds per hour and P = process weight rate in tons per hour 
(ARM 17.8.310). 

FA. Uncovered coal storage piles, which are not routinely in use, must be sealed to prevent airborne 
emissions (ARM 17.8.749). 

Compliance Demonstration 

F.5.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Coal Handling System. 
Once per calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually survey the Coal Handling 
System for any visible emissions. Ifvisible emissions are observed during the visual survey, 
PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one 
hour of any observation of visible emissions. If visible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity 
based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or 
minimize the source of emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately 
conduct a subsequent visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions 
remain) to monitor compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record the results 
of the survey (including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) and any corrective 
action taken in a log. Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a 
violation determined using Method 9(ARM 17.8.1213). 

F.6.	 For Units 3 & 4, PPLM shall use a dust suppression system using chemical or water sprays in 
Lowering Well "A", Lowering Well "8", the coal at transfer points in area "C" transfer house, 
and the vibratory feeders associated with Conveyor 80A as necessary to monitor compliance with 
Section III.F.2 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

OP0513-08 24 Decision: 12/04/2012 
EffectiveDale:01/04/2013 



F.7.	 For Units I & 2, PPLM shall use enclosed conveyors and fabric filter control to contain dust from 
handling and crushing materials. A telescopic chute shall be used to contain dust from materials 
falling from Lowering Wells #6, and #7. Dust suppressant shall be used as necessary to reduce 
particulate emission from coal (ARM 17.8.1213). 

F.8.	 PPLM shall maintain an onsite log of all actions taken to monitor compliance with Section 
IILF.4. The log should include the action taken along with the date and time the action occurred 
(ARM] 7.8.1213). 

Record keeping 

F.9.	 A II source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

F. JO. PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

F.I I.	 Recordkeeping of the Jog required in Section III.F.8 shall be maintained on site (ARM 
17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

F.12.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.S must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

F. J3.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide a (ARM J7.8. J2 J2): 

a.	 Summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance with the visual survey 
requirements; and 

b.	 Summary of the log relating to the actions taken on the uncovered coal piles. 

OP0513-08 25 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 1/04/2013 



G. EUOIO - Emergency Diesel Generators 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
Method Freouencv Requirements 

G.I, G.5, G.7, Opacity 20% Visual Weekly Semiannually 
G.9, G.IO, Survey/Method 9 
G.!3, G.14, 
G.15 
G.2, G.6, G.9, Particulate from fuel E ~ 1.026 * H-o 

23J Method 5 As required by Semiannually 
G.II,G.!2, combustion the Department 
G.13. G.14, and Section 
G.15 lIlA I 
G.3,G.7., G.9., Hours of Operation Operations Operating Log Monthly Semiannually 
G.!I, G.!4, Limited to Specific 
G.!5 Situations 
GA. G.8. G.12, 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 40 CFR Part 63. 40 CFR Part 63, 40 CFR Part 63, 40 CFR Part 63, 
G.14, G.16 ZZZZ Subpart ZZZZ Subpart ZZZZ Subpart ZZZZ Subpart ZZZZ 

Conditions 

G.I. PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2)). 

G.2. PPLM shall not cause or authorize PM caused by the combustion of fuel to be discharged from 
any stack or chimney into the outdoor atmosphere in excess of E = 1.026 * H-0 233 for existing fuel 
burning equipment, where H = heat input capacity in MMBtu/hr and E maximum allowable 
emission rate in IbslMMBtu (ARM 17.8.309). 

G.3. PPLM shall limit the use ofthe emergency diesel generators to times of need for emergency 
power generation (ARM 17.8.756). 

GA. PPLM shall comply with all applicable standards and limitations, and the reporting, 
recordkeeping, and notification requirements contained in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, 
National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating 
Internal Combustion Engines, for any applicable diesel engine (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 
63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

Compliance Demonstration 

G.5.	 Only in times of generator operations, PPLM shall conduct a.weekly visual survey (during 
daylight hours) of visible emissions on the emergency diesel generators. Ifvisible emissions are 
observed during the visual survey, PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 
source test must begin within one hour of any observation of visible emissions. Ifvisible 
emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall 
immediately take corrective action to contain or minimize the source of emissions. If corrective 
actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately conduct a subsequent visual survey (and 
subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions remain) to monitor compliance. The person 
conducting the visual survey shall record the results ofthe survey (including the results of any 
Method 9 source test performed) and any corrective action taken in a log. Conducting a visual 
survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 
17.8.1213). 

G.6.	 As required by the Department and Section III.A.1, PPLM shall perform a Method 5 in 
accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

OP0513-08	 26 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



G.7.	 Compliance with the limits in Section IIl.G.3 shall be demonstrated by logging the date, time, 
hours of operation, reason for use, and operator's initials whenever the emergency diesel 
generators are utilized for.emergency power generation (ARM 17.8.1213). 

G.8.	 Compliance monitoring shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, as 
applicable (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

Record keeping 

G.9.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

G.IO.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.II.	 PPLM shall maintain on site a log as described in Section III.G.7. PPLM shall include in that log 
the fuel type used whenever the emergency generators are used for emergency power generation. 
In addition, PPLM shall log the monthly sum of the total hours of operation of the emergency 
generators for the previous rolling 12-month time period (ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.12.	 Recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, as 
applicable (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

Reporting 

G.13.	 All source test reports must be submitted to the Department in accordance with the Montana 
Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

G.14.	 The annual compl iance certification report required by Section V.8 must contain a certification 
statement for the above appl icable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.15.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 A summary of all visual observations monitoring compl iance with the visual survey 
requirement(s); 

b.	 A summary of any Method 5 tests that were conducted; and 

c.	 A summary of emergency generator use including a summary of hours used and reason for 
use. 

G.16.	 Reporting shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, as applicable 
(ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

OP0513-08 27 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



H. EU012 - Lime Handling System 

Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration ReportingPollutantlParameterCondition(s) 
Method Frequency Req uirements 

Semiannually20% Operation ofcontrols OngoingH.I, H.4, H.6, Reasonable 
PrecautionsH.9, H.lO 

WeeklyH.2, H.5, H.7, Opacity 20% Visual 
H.9, H.IO Survey/Method 9 

E = 55 * p" II - 40H.3, H.5, H.8, PM Visual Weekly 
Survey/Method 9 H.9, H.IO 

Conditions 

H.I .	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling, transportation, or storage of any
 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of airborne PM are taken (ARM
 
17.8.308(1 )).
 

H.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2)). 

H.3.	 The particulate emissions from process weight shall not exceed the value calculated by E = 55.0 * 
pOll _ 40, where E is the rate of emissions in pounds per hour and P is the process weight rate in 
tons per hour (ARM 17.8.310). 

Compliance Demonstration 

HA.	 PPLM shall operate the pneumatic system when unloading lime to monitor compliance with the
 
reasonable precautions requirement (ARM 17.8.1213).
 

H.5.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Lime Handling System. 
Once per calendarweek, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually survey the Lime Handling 
System for any visible emissions. If visible emissions are observed during the visual survey, 
PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one 
hour of any observation of visible emissions. If visible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity 
based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or 
minimize the source of emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately 
conduct a subsequent visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions 
remain) to monitor compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record the results 
of the survey (including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) and any corrective 
action taken in a log, Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a 
violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

H.6.	 PPLM shall maintain a log ofthe operation of the pneumatic system as required in Section 
1lI.HA. The log shall include date and time of operation ofthe pneumatic conveyor coinciding 
with the unloading of lime (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OPOS13-08 28 Decision: 12/04/20 J2 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



H.7.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

H.8.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

H.9.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.S must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

H.IO.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 A summary ofthe log of operation of the pneumatic system as required in Section III.H.6; 
and 

b.	 A summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance with the visual survey 
requirement(s). 

OP0513-08 29 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



I. EU013 - Plant Roads; EU014 - Process Ponds 

Condition(s) PollutantlParameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration Reporting 
Method Frequencv Requirements 

1.1.1.3-1.7 Reasonable Precautions 20% Visual Weekly Semiannually 
Surveys/Method 9 

1.2- 1.7 Opacity 20% Visual Surveys/ Weekly 
Method 9 

Conditions 

1.1.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling, transportation, or storage of any
 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of airborne PM are taken (ARM
 
17.8.308).
 

1.2.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions from the plant roads to be discharged into the
 
outdoor atmosphere that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive
 
minutes (ARM 17.8.304(2».
 

Compliance Demonstration 

1.3.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the plant roads and process 
ponds. Once per calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually survey the plant 
roads and process ponds for any visible emissions. If visible emissions are observed during the 
visual survey, PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin 
within one hour of any observation of visible emissions. If visible emissions meet or exceed 15% 
opacity based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to 
contain or minimize the source of emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall 
immediately conduct a subsequent visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible 
emissions remain) to monitor compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record 
the results of the survey (including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) and any 
corrective action taken in a log. Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM ofthe 
liability for a violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

104.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

1.5.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

1.6.	 The annual compliance certification report required and logged as specified by Section V.S must 
contain a certification statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

1.7.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide a summary of all visual observations monitoring 
compliance with the visual survey requirement(s) (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP0513-08 30 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



J. EU015 - Underground Gasoline Tank 

Condition(s) Pollutant/Parameter Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

J.I. J.3. J.5. 
J.7. .1.8. .1.9 

Opacity 20% Method 9 As required by 
the Department 

and Section 

Semiannually 

III.A.I 
.1.2. J.4. J.6• .1.8, 
.1.9 

Underground gasoline tank 250 gallons or > 
gasoline in tank 

Submerged fill 
pipe 

Ongoing/when 
loading 

Conditions 

J.I.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2)). 

J.2.	 PPLM shall not load or permit the loading of gasoline into any stationary tank with a capacity of 
250 gallons or more from any tank truck or trailer, except through a permanent submerged fi II 
pipe, unless such tank is equipped with a vapor loss control device or is a pressure tank (ARM 
17.8.324(3)). 

Compliance Demonstration 

J.3.	 As required by the Department and Section III.A.l, PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test to 
monitor compliance with the permit limit in Section IIU.I. The testing shall be performed in 
accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, or another method 
approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.749). 

J.4.	 PPLM has an installed tank with a permanently submerged fill pipe and shall continue to operate 
the submerged fill pipe during loading (ARM 17.8.749). 

Record keeping 

J.5.	 All compliance source-testing recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. Method 9 source test 
reports for opacity need not be submitted unless requested by the Department (ARM 17.8.106). 

J.6.	 PPLM shall maintain a log to monitor continuous use of the submerged fill pipe by maintaining a . 
log oftank loading. The log shall include the date and time of loading, and state that a permanent 
submerged fill pipe was used or that the tank is equipped with a vapor loss control device or is a 
pressure tank (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Reporting 

J.7.	 Method 9 test reports as specified in Section IIU.5 shall be submitted in accordance with the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

J.8.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.S must contain a certification 
statement for the above appl icable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP0513-08 31 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



J.9. The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a. A summary of any instances that the submerged f II pipe (or vapor Joss control) was not used 
during tank loading, including date, time, and duration of loading; and 

b. A summary of any Method 9 test conducted during the period. 

OP0513-08 32 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



K. EU017 - Tangential Coal Fired Units 1-4 Mercury Emissions 

Condition(s) 
PollutanU 
Parameter 

Permit Limit Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

K.l, K.2, K.3, 
KA, K.5, K.6, 
K.7, K.8, K.9 

Mercury 
Emissions 

0.9 Ib/TBtu and 
InstaIlationl 
Operation of 

Mercury Control 
System 

MEMS Ongoing Quarterly 

Conditions 

K.I.	 Beginning January 1,2010, facility-wide emissions of mercury (Hg) shall not exceed 0.9 pounds 
per trillion British thermal units (lb/TBtu), calculated as a rolling 12-month average. The facility
wide emissions shall be calculated according to the following equation (ARM 17.8.771, this 
requirement is "State Only"): 

Facility-wide Hg emissions = (1/4) x (Unitllb/TBtu + Unit21b/TBlu + Unit3 Ib/TBtu + Unit4lb/TBtu) 

Where:	 Unitllb/TBtu = rolling 12-month mercury emissions from Unit 1 as an average ofthe 
last 12 individual calendar monthly averages. 

Unit21bITBtu = rolling 12-month mercury emissions from Unit 2 as an average ofthe 
last 12 individual calendar monthly averages. 

Unit31b/TBlu = rolling 12-month mercury emissions from Unit 3 as an average ofthe 
last 12 individual calendar monthly averages. 

Unit41b/TBlu = rolling 12-month mercury emissions from Unit 4 as an average of the 
last 12 individual calendar monthly averages. 

K.2.	 On each Unit 1-4, PPLM shall install a mercury control system that oxidizes and sorbs emissions 
of mercury. PPLM shall implement the operation and maintenance of mercury control systems 
on or before January 1,2010 (ARM 17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

Compliance Demonstration 

K.3.	 PPLM shall comply with all applicable standards and limitations, and the applicable operating, 
reporting, recordkeeping, and notification requirements contained in 40 CFR Part 75 (ARM 
17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

K.4.	 Enforcement of Section III.K.l., where applicable, shall be determined by utilizing data taken 
from Mercury Emission Monitoring Systems (MEMS), installed on each Unit 1-4. The MEMS 
shall be comprised of equipment as required in 40 CFR 75.81 (a) and defined in 40 CFR 72.2. 
The above does not relieve PPLM from meeting any applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 75. 
Testing requirements shall be as specified in 40 CFR Part 75, and shall conform to the 
requirements ofthe Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and 
ARM 17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

K.5.	 The MEMS shall be installed, certified, and operating on each Unit 1-4 stack outlet on or before 
January 1,2010. MEMS shall comply with the applicable provisions of 40 CFR Part 75. The 
monitors shall also conform with requirements included in Appendix J (ARM 17.8.771, this 
requirement is "State Only"). 

OP0513-08	 33 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Recordkeeping 

K.6.	 PPLM shall conduct recordkeeping pursuant to Appendix J (ARM 12.8.1212, this requirement is 
"State Only"). 

Reporting 

K.7.	 PPLM shall report to the Department within 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter, as 
described in Appendix J (ARM 17.8.749, this requirement is "State Only"): 

a.	 For each Unit 1-4, the monthly average Ib/TBtu mercury emission rate, for each month of the 
quarter; 

b.	 For each Unit 1-4, the 12-month rolling average Ib/TBtu mercury emission rate, for each 
month of the reporting quarter; 

c.	 The 12-month facility-wide rolling average Ib/TBtu mercury emission rate, calculated 
according to Section BI.L.l, for each month of the reporting quarter; and 

d.	 For each Unit 1-4, the number of operating hours that the MEMS were unavailable or not 
operating within quality assurance limits (monitor downtime). 

K.8.	 The first quarterly report must be received by the Department by April 30, 2010, but shall not 
include 12-month rolling averages. The first quarterly report to include 12-month rolling 
averages must be received by the Department by January 30, 2011 (ARM 17.8.749). 

K.9.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP05J3-08 34 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



L. EU018 - Mercury Oxidizer/Sorbent Handling Systems (Units 1-4) 

Condition(s) 
Pollutant! 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

L.I, L.3, LA, 
L.5, L.6, L.7, L.8 

Opacity 20% 
Visual 

Survey/ Weekly 
Method 9 

Semiannual
L.2, L.3, LA, 
L.5, L.6, L.7, L.8 

Oxidizer/Sorbent 
Handling System 

Operate/ 
maintain bin 

vent 

Conditions 

L.I.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2». 

L.2.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the mercury oxidizer/sorbent handling systems, including the 
bin vent filter systems, to provide the maximum air pollution control for that which the systems 
were designed (ARM 17.8.749). 

Compliance Demonstration 

L.3.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Mercury 
Oxidizer/Sorbent Handling System. Once per calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall 
visually survey the Mercury Oxidizer/Sorbent Handling System for any visible emissions. If 
visible emissions are observed during the visual survey, PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source 
test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one hour of any observation ofvisible 
emissions. If visible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity based on the Method 9 source test, 
PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or minimize the source of emissions. If 
corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately conduct a subsequent visual survey 
(and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions remain) to monitor compliance. The 
person conducting the visual survey shall record the results of the survey (including the results of 
any Method 9 source test performed) and any corrective action taken in a log. Conducting a 
visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a violation determined using Method 9 
(ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

LA.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

L.5.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

L.6.	 All method reports shall be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and 
Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8. I06 and ARM 17.8.] 212). 

OP05 13-08 35 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



L.7.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

L.S.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide a summary of all visual observations monitoring 
compliance with the visual survey requirement(s) (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP0513-08 36 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



SECTION IV. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS
 

Air Quality Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) and Federal Regulations identified as not applicable 
to the facility or to a specific emissions unit at the time of the permit issuance are listed below (ARM 
17.8.1214). The following list does not preclude the need to comply with any new requirements that may 
become applicable during the permit term. 

A. Facility-Wide 

The following table contains non-applicable requirements, which are administrated by the Air Resources 
Management Bureau of the Department of Environmental Quality. 

Rule Citation Reason 

40 eFR Part 60 Subparts C, Ca, Cb These requirements are not applicable because the facility 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts Da, Db, De is not an affected source as defined in these regulations. 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts E-J 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts K, Ka, Kb 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts L-Z 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts AA-EE 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts GG-HH 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts KK-NN 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts PP-XX 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts AAA-BBB 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts DDD 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts FFF-LLL 
40 eFR Part 60 Subparts NNN-VVV 
40 eFR Part 61 Subparts B-F 

. 40 eFR Part 61 Subparts H-L 
40 eFR Part 61 Subparts N-T 
40 eFR Part 61 Subparts V-W 
40 eFR Part 61 Subpart Y 
40 eFR Part 61 Subpart BB 
40 eFR Part 61 Subpart FF 
40 eFR Part 63 Subparts F-I 
40 eFR Part 63 Subparts L-O 
40 eFR Part 63 Subpart Q 
40 eFR Part 63 Subpart R 
40 eFR Part 63 Subpart T 
40 eFR Part 63 Subpart W 
40 eFR Part 63 Subpart X 
40 eFR Part 63 Subpart EE 

40 eFR Part 82 Subpart A The facility does not conduct the activities addressed by 
40 eFR Part 82 Subpart e these regu lations. 
40 eFR Part 82 Subpart D 
40 eFR Part 82 Subpart E 
40 eFR Part 82 Subpart G 

OP0513-08 37 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 1/04/2013 



B. Emission Units 

Emission Rule Citation Reason 
Units State Federal 

EU005, 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart This emitting unit is not in the source category or the 
EU006, D equipment is not used at the facility 
EU007, 40 CFR Part 82 Subpart 
EU008, B 
EU009, 40 CFR Parts 72-73 
EUOl3 40 CFR Parts 75-78 
EUOOI, 40 CFR Part 73 Subpart 
EU002, G 
EU003, 40 CFR Part 82 Subpart 
EU004 B 

OP0513-08 38 Decision: 12/04/2012 
EffectiveDate: 0 I/04/20 13 



SECTION V. GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS
 

A.	 Compliance Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1210(2)(a)-(c)&(e), §1206(6)(c)&(b) 

1.	 The permittee must comply with all conditions of the permit. Any noncompliance with the 
terms or conditions of the permit constitutes a violation of the Montana Clean Air Act, and may 
result in enforcement action, permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or 
denial of a permit renewal application under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12. 

2.	 The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or 
termination, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay 
any permit condition. 

3.	 It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been 
necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the 
conditions of the permit. If appropriate, this factor may be considered as a mitigating factor in 
assessing a penalty for noncompliance with an applicable requirement if the source 
demonstrates that both the health, safety or environmental impacts of halting or reducing 
operations would be more serious than the impacts of continuing operations, and that such 
health, safety or environmental impacts were unforeseeable and could not have otherwise been 
avoided. 

4.	 The permittee shall furnish to the Department, within a reasonable time set by the Department 
(not to be less than 15 days), any information that the Department may request in writing to 
determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating the 
permit, or to determine compliance with the permit. Upon request, the permittee shall also 
furnish to the Department copies of those records that are required to be kept pursuant to the 
terms of the permit. This subsection does not impair or otherwise limit the right of the 
permittee to assert the confidentiality of the information requested by the Department, as 
provided in 75-2-105, MCA. 

5.	 Any schedule of compliance for applicable requirements with which the source is not in 
compl iance with at the time of permit issuance shall be supplemental to, and shall not sanction 
noncompliance with, the applicable requirements on which it was based. 

6.	 For applicable requirements that will become effective during the permit term, the source shall 
meet such requirements on a timely basis unless a more detailed plan or schedule is required by 
the applicable requirement or the Department. 

B.	 Certification Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1207 and §1213(7)(a)&(c)-(d) 

I.	 Any application form, report, or compliance certification submitted pursuant to ARM Title 17, 
Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, shall contain certification by a responsible official of truth, accuracy 
and completeness. This certification and any other certification required under ARM Title 17, 
Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, shall state that, based on information and beliefformed after 
reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, accurate and 
complete. 

OP0513-08 39 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



2.	 Compliance certifications shall be submitted by February 15 of each year, or more frequently if 
otherwise specified in an applicable requirement or elsewhere in the permit. Each certification 
must include the required information for the previous calendar year (i.e., January 1 
December 31). 

3.	 Compliance certifications shall include the following: 

a.	 The identification of each term or condition of the permit that is the basis of the . 
certification; 

b.	 The identification of the method(s) or other means used by the owner or operator for 
determining the status of compliance with each term or condition during the certification 
period, and whether such methods or other means provide continuous or intermittent data, 
as well as the additional information required by ARM 17.8.1213(7)(c)(ii); 

c.	 The status of compliance with the terms and conditions of the permit for the period covered 
by the certification, including whether compliance during the period was continuous or 
intermittent (based on the method or means designated in ARM 17.8.1213(7)(c)(ii), as 
described above); and 

d.	 Such other facts as the Department may require to determine the compliance status of the 
source. 

4.	 All compliance certifications must be submitted to the EPA, as well as to the Department, at the 
addresses listed in the Notification Addresses Appendix of this permit. 

C.	 Permit Shield 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 1214( I)-(4) 

I.	 The applicable requirements and non-federally enforceable requirements are included and 
specifically identified in this permit and the permit includes a precise summary of the 
requirements not applicable to the source. Compliance with the conditions of the permit shall 
be deemed compliance with any applicable requirements and any non-federally enforceable 
requirements as ofthe date of permit issuance. 

2.	 The permit shield described in 1 above shall remain in effect during the appeal of any permit 
action (renewal, revision, reopening, or revocation and reissuance) to the Board of 
Environmental Review (Board), until such time as the Board renders its final decision. 

3.	 Nothing in this permit alters or affects the following: 

a.	 The provisions of 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7603 ofthe FCAA, including the authority of the 
administrator under that section; 

b.	 The liability of an owner or operator of a source for any violation of applicable 
requirements prior to or at the time of permit issuance; 

c.	 The applicable requirements of the Acid Rain Program, consistent with 42 U.S.c. Sec. 
765Ig(a) of the FCAA; 

d.	 The ability of the administrator to obtain information from a source pursuant to 42 U.s.c. 
Sec. 7414 of the FCAA; 

OP0513-08 40 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0110412013 



e.	 The ability ofthe Department to obtain information from a source pursuant to the Montana 
Clean Air Act, Title 75, Chapter 2, MCA; 

f.	 The emergency powers of the Department under the Montana Clean Air Act, Title 75, 
Chapter 2, MCA; and 

g.	 The ability ofthe Department to establish or revise requirements for the use of Reasonably 
Available Control Technology (RACT) as defined in ARM Title 17, Chapter 8. However, 
if the inclusion of a RACT into the permit pursuant to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, 
Subchapter 12, is appealed to the Board, the permit shield, as it applies to the source's 
existing pennit, shall remain in effect until such time as the Board has rendered its final 
decision. 

4.	 Nothing in this permit alters or affects the ability of the Department to take enforcement action 
for a violation of an applicable requirement or permit term demonstrated pursuant to ARM 
17.8.106, Source Testing Protocol. 

5.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.132, for the purpose of submitting a compliance certification, nothing in 
these rules shall preclude the use, including the exclusive use, of any credible evidence or 
information relevant to whether a source would have been in compliance. However, when 
compliance or noncompliance is demonstrated by a test or procedure provided by permit or 
other applicable requirements, the source shall then be presumed to be in compliance or 
noncompliance, unless that presumption is overcome by other relevant credible evidence. 

6.	 The permit shield will not extend to minor permit modifications or changes not requiring a 
permit revision (see Sections I & J). 

7.	 The permit shield will extend to significant permit modifications and transfer or assignment of 
ownership (see Sections K & N). 

D.	 Monitoring, Recordkeeping, and Reporting Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Pennit Program §1212(2)&(3) 

J.	 Unless otherwise provided in this penn it, the permittee shall maintain compliance monitoring 
records that include the following information: 

a.	 The date, place as defined in the pennit, and time of sampl ing or measurement; 

b.	 The date(s) analyses were performed; 

c.	 The company or entity that performed the analyses; 

d.	 The analytical techniques or methods used; 

e.	 The results of such analyses; and 

f.	 The operating conditions at the time of sampling or measurement. 

2.	 The permittee shall retain records of all required monitoring data and support information for a 
period of at least 5 years after the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report, or 
application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records and all 

OP0513-08 41 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



original strip-chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all 
reports required by the permit. All monitoring data, support information, and required reports 
and summaries may be maintained in computerized form at the plant site if the information is 
made available to Department personnel upon request, which may be for either hard copies or 
computerized format. Strip-charts must be maintained in their original form at the plant site 
and shall be made available to Department personnel upon request. 

3.	 The permittee shall submit to the Department, at the addresses located in the Notification 
Addresses Appendix of this permit, reports of any required monitoring by February 15 and 
August 15 of each year, or more frequently if otherwise specified in an applicable requirement 
or elsewhere in the permit. The monitoring report submitted on February 15 of each year must 
include the required monitoring information for the period of July I through December 3 J of 
the previous year. The monitoring report submitted on August IS of each year must include the 
required monitoring information for the period of January I through June 30 of the current year. 
All instances of deviations from the permit requirements must be clearly identified in such 
reports. All required reports must be certified by a responsible official, consistent with ARM 
17.8.1207. 

E.	 Prompt Deviation Reporting
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 1212(3)(c)
 

The permittee shall promptly report deviations from permit requirements, including those attributable 
to upset conditions as defined in the permit, the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective 
actions or preventive measures taken. To be considered prompt, deviations shall be reported to the 
Department within the following timeframes (unless otherwise specified in an applicable 
requirement): 

I.	 For deviations which may result in emissions potentially in violation of permit limitations: 

a.	 An initial phone notification (or faxed or electronic notification) describing the incident 
within 24 hours (or the next business day) of discovery; and, 

b.	 A follow-up written, faxed, or electronic report within 30 days of discovery of the deviation 
that describes the probable cause ofthe reported deviation and any corrective actions or 
preventative measures taken. 

2.	 For deviations attributable to malfunctions, deviations shall be reported to the Department in 
accordance with the malfunction reporting requirements under ARM 17.8.110; and 

3.	 For all other deviations, deviations shall be reported to the Department via a written, faxed, or 
electronic report within 90 days of discovery (as determined through routine internal review by 
the permittee). 

Prompt deviation reports do not need to be resubmitted with regular semiannual (or other routine) 
reports, but may be referenced by the date of submittal. 

F.	 Emergency Provisions 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 1201(13) and § 1214(5), (6)&(8) 

I.	 An "emergency" means any situation arising from sudden and reasonably unforeseeable events 
beyond the control ofthe source, including acts of God, which situation requires immediate 
corrective action to restore normal operation and causes the source to exceed a technology
based emission limitation under this permit due to the unavoidable increases in emissions 

OP0513-08	 42 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



attributable to the emergency. An emergency shall not include noncompliance to the extent 
caused by improperly designed equipment, lack of reasonable preventive maintenance, careless 

or improper operation, or operator error. 

2.	 An emergency constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with a 
technology-based emission limitation if the permittee demonstrates through properly signed, 
contemporaneous logs, or other relevant evidence, that: 

a.	 An emergency occurred and the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the emergency; 

b.	 The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated; 

c.	 During the period ofthe emergency the permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize 
levels of emissions that exceeded the emission standards or other requirements in the 
permit; and 

d.	 The permittee submitted notice of the emergency to the Department within 2 working days 
ofthe time when emission limitations were exceeded due to the emergency. This notice 
fulfills the requirements of ARM 17.8.1212(3)(c). This notice must contain a description 
of the emergency, any steps taken to mitigate emissions, and corrective actions taken. 

3.	 These emergency provisions are in addition to any emergency, malfunction or upset provision 
contained in any applicable requirement. 

G.	 Inspection and Entry 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1213(3)&(4) 

1.	 Upon presentation of credentials and other requirements as may be required by law, the 
permittee shall allow the Department, the administrator, or an authorized representative 
(including an authorized contractor acting as a representative of the Department or the 
administrator) to perform the following: 

a.	 Enter the premises where a source required to obtain a permit is located or emissions
related activity is conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions ofthe 
permit; 

b.	 Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the 
conditions of the permit; 

c.	 Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, emission units, equipment (including monitoring 
and air pollution control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under 
the permit; and 

d.	 As authorized by the Montana Clean Air Act and rules promulgated thereunder, sample or 
monitor, at reasonable times, any substances or parameters at any location for the purpose 
of assuring compliance with the permit or applicable requirements. 

2.	 The permittee shall inform the inspector of all workplace safety rules or requirements at the 
time of inspection. This section shall not limit in any manner the Department's statutory right 
of entry and inspection as provided for in 75-2-403, MCA. 

OP0513-08 43 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



H.	 Fee Payment 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 121O(2)(f) and ARM 17.8, Subchapter 5, Air 
Quality Permit Application, Operation, and Open Burning Fees &505(3)-(5) (STATE ONLY) 

I.	 The permittee must pay application and operating fees, pursuant to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, 
Subchapter 5. 

2.	 Annually, the Department shall provide the permittee with written notice ofthe amount of the 
fee and the basis for the fee assessment. The air quality operation fee is due 30 days after 
receipt of the notice, unless the fee assessment is appealed pursuant to ARM 17.8.511. If any 
portion of the fee is not appealed, that portion of the fee that is not appealed is due 30 days after 
receipt of the notice. Any remain ing fee, which may be due after the completion of an appeal, 
is due immediately upon issuance of the Board's decision or upon completion of any judicial 
review of the Board's decision. 

3.	 If the permittee fails to pay the required fee (or any required portion of an appealed fee) within 
90 days after the due date of the fee, the Department may impose an additional assessment of 
15% of the fee (or any required portion of an appealed fee) or $100, whichever is greater, plus 
interest on the fee (or any required portion of an appealed fee), computed at the interest rate 
established under 15-3 I-5 10(3), MCA. 

I.	 Minor Permit Modifications 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1226(3)&(11) 

I.	 An application for a minor permit modification need only address in detail those portions of the 
permit application that require revision, updating, supplementation, or deletion, and may 
reference any required information that has been previously submitted. 

2.	 The permit shield under ARM 17.8. I214 will not extend to any minor modifications processed 
pursuant to ARM 17.8.1226. 

J.	 Changes Not Requiring Permit Revision 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program &1224(1)-(3), (5)&(6) 

I.	 The permittee is authorized to make changes within the facility as described below, provided 
the following conditions are met: 

a.	 The proposed changes do not require the permittee to obtain a Montana Air Quality Permit 
under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 7; 

b.	 The proposed changes are not modifications under Title I of the FCAA, or as defined in 
ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapters 8, 9, or 10; 

c.	 The emissions resulting from the proposed changes do not exceed the emissions allowable 
under this permit, whether expressed as a rate of emissions or in total emissions; 

d.	 The proposed changes do not alter permit terms that are necessary to enforce applicable 
emission limitations on emission units covered by the permit; and 

e.	 The facility provides the administrator and the Department with written notification at least 
7 days prior to making the proposed changes. 

OP0513-08 44 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



2.	 The permittee and the Department shall attach each notice provided pursuant to I.e above to 
their respective copies of this permit. 

3.	 Pursuant to the conditions above, the permittee is authorized to make 42 USC Sec. 
7661a(b)(1 0) changes, as defined in ARM 17.8.120 I(30), without a permit revision. For each 
such change, the written notification required under I.e above shall include a description ofthe 
change within the source, the date on which the change will occur, any change in emissions, 
and any permit term or condition that is no longer applicable as a result of the change. 

4.	 The permittee may make a change not specifically addressed or prohibited by the permit terms 
and conditions without requiring a permit revision, provided the following conditions are met: 

a.	 Each proposed change does not weaken the enforceability of any existing penn it 
conditions; 

b.	 The Department has not objected to such change; 

c.	 Each proposed change meets all applicable requirements and does not violate any existing 
permit term or condition; and 

d.	 The permittee provides contemporaneous written notice to the Department and the 
administrator of each change that is above the level for insignificant emission units as 
defined in ARM 17.8.120 I(22) and 17.8.1206(3), and the written notice describes each 
such change, including the date of the change, any change in emissions, pollutants emitted, 
and any applicable requirement that would apply as a result ofthe change. 

5.	 The permit shield authorized by ARM 17.8.1214 shall not apply to changes made pursuant to 
ARM 17.8.1224(3) and (5), but is applicable to terms and conditions that allow for increases 
and decreases in emissions pursuant to ARM 17.8.1224(4). 

K.	 Significant Permit Modifications 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program &1227(1), (3)&(4) 

I.	 The modification procedures set forth in 2 below must be used for any application requesting a 
significant modification ofthis permit. Significant modifications include the following: 

a.	 Any permit modification that does not qualify as either a minor modification or as an 
administrative permit amendment; 

b.	 Every significant change in existing pennit monitoring terms or conditions; 

c.	 Every relaxation of permit reporting or recordkeeping terms or cond itions that limit the 
Department's ability to determine compliance with any applicable rule, consistent with the 
requirements of the rule; or 

d.	 Any other change determined by the Department to be significant. 

2.	 Significant modifications shall meet all requirements of ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, including 
those for applications, public participation, and review by affected states and the administrator, 
as they apply to permit issuance and renewal, except that an application for a significant permit 
modification need only address in detail those portions ofthe permit application that require 
revision, updating, supplementation or deletion. 

3.	 The permit shield provided for in ARM 17.8.1214 shall extend to significant modifications. 

OP0513-08 45 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 0 1/04/2013 



L.	 Reopening for Cause
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 1228( I)&(2)
 

This permit may be reopened and revised under the following circumstances: 

I.	 Additional applicable requirements under the FCAA become applicable to the facility when the 
permit has a remaining term of 3 or more years. Reopening and revision of the permit shall be 
completed not later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement. No 
reopening is required under ARM 17.8.1228( I)(a) if the effective date of the applicable 
requirement is later than the date on which the permit is due to expire, unless the original 
permit or any of its terms or conditions have been extended pursuant to ARM J7.8.1220(12) or 
17.8.1221(2); 

2.	 Additional requirements (including excess emission requirements) become applicable to an 
affected source under the Acid Rain Program. Upon approval by the administrator, excess 
emission offset plans shall be deemed incorporated into the permit; 

3.	 The Department or the administrator determines that the permit contains a material mistake or 
that inaccurate statements were made in establishing the emission standards or other terms or 
conditions of the permit; and 

4.	 The administrator or the Department determines that the permit must be revised or revoked and 
reissued to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements. 

M.	 Permit Expiration and Renewal 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 121O(2)(g), § 1220(11)&(12), and § 1205(2)(d) 

I.	 This permit is issued for a fixed term of 5 years. 

2.	 Renewal ofthis permit is subject to the same procedural requirements that apply to permit 
issuance, including those for application, content, public participation, and affected state and 
administrator review. 

3.	 Expiration of this permit terminates the permittee's right to operate unless a timely and 
administratively complete renewal application has been submitted to the Department consistent 
with ARM 17.8.1221 and 17.8.1205(2)(d). If a timely and administratively complete 
application has been submitted, all terms and conditions of the permit, including the application 
shield, remain in effect after the permit expires until the permit renewal has been issued or 
denied. 

4.	 For renewal, the permittee shall submit a complete air quality operating permit application to 
the Department not later than 6 months prior to the expiration of this permit, unless otherwise 
specified. If necessary to ensure that the terms of the existing permit will not lapse before 
renewal, the Department may specify, in writing to the permittee, a longer time period for 
submission of the renewal application. Such written notification must be provided at least 1 
year before the renewal application due date established in the existing permit. 

N.	 Severability Clause 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §121O(2)(i)&(I) 

1.	 The administrative appeal or subsequent judicial review of the issuance by the Department of 
an initial permit under this subchapter shall not impair in any manner the underlying 
applicability of all applicable requirements, and such requirements continue to apply as if a 
final permit decision had not been reached by the Department. 

OP0513-08	 46 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



2.	 If any provision of a permit is found to be invalid, all valid parts that are severable from the 
invalid part remain in effect. If a provision of a permit is invalid in one or more of its 
applications, the provision remains in effect in all valid applications that are severable from the 
invalid applications. 

O.	 Transfer or Assignment of Ownership 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1225(2)&(4) 

1.	 If an administrative permit amendment involves a change in ownership or operational control, 
the applicant must include in its request to the Department a written agreement containing a 
specific date for the transfer of permit responsibility, coverage and liability between the current 
and new permittee. 

2.	 The permit shield provided for in ARMI7.8.1214 shall not extend to administrative permit 
amendments. 

P.	 Emissions Trading, Marketable Permits, Economic Incentives 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program § 1226(2) 

Notwithstanding ARM 17.8.1226( 1) and (7), minor air quality operating permit modification 
procedures may be used for permit modifications involving the use of economic incentives, 
marketable permits, emissions trading, and other similar approaches, to the extent that such minor 
permit modification procedures are explicitly provided for in the Montana State Implementation Plan 
(SIP) or in applicable requirements promulgated by the administrator. 

Q.	 No Property Rights Conveyed 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1210(2)(d) 

This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. 

R.	 Testing Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions § 105 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.105. 

S.	 Source Testing Protocol 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions § 106 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.106. 

T,	 Malfunctions 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions § 11 0 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.110. 

U.	 Circumvention 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions § 111 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.111. 

OP0513-08 47 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



V.	 Motor Vehicles
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 3, Emission Standards §325
 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.325. 

W. Annual Emissions Inventory
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 5, Air Ouality Permit Application, Operation and Open Burning Fees §505
 
CSTATE ONLY)
 

The permittee shall supply the Department with annual production and other information for all 
emission units necessary to calculate actual or estimated actual amount of air pollutants emitted 
during each calendar year. Information shall be gathered on a calendar-year basis and submitted to 
the Department by the date required in the emission inventory request, unless otherwise specified in 
this permit. Information shall be in the units required by the Department. 

X.	 Open Burning
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 6, Open Burning §604, 605 and 606
 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.604,605 and 606. 

Y.	 Montana Air Quality Permits 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 7, Permit, Construction and Operation of Air Contaminant Sources &745, and 
764 (ARM 17.8.745(1) and 764(1)(b) are STATE ENFORCEABLE ONLY until approval by the 
EPA as part of the SIP) 

I.	 Except as specified, no person shall construct, install, modify or use any air contaminant source 
or stack associated with any source without first obtaining a permit from the Department or 
Board. A permit is not required for the sources or stacks listed in ARM 17.8.745(I)(a)-(k). 

2.	 The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.743, 744, 745, 748, and 764. 

3.	 ARM 17.8.745( I) defines de minimis changes as construction or changed conditions of 
operation at a facility holding a Montana Air Quality Permit (MAQP) issued under Chapter 8 
that does not increase the facility's potential to emit by more than 5 tons per year (TPY) of any 
pollutant, except (STATE ENFORCEABLE ONLY until approved by the EPA as part of the 
SIP): 

a.	 Any construction or changed condition that would violate any condition in the facility's 
existing MAQP or any applicable rule contained in Chapter 8 is prohibited, except as 
provided in ARM 17.8.745(2); 

b.	 Any construction or changed conditions of operation that would qualify as a major 
modification under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapters 8, 9 or 10 of Chapter 8; 

c.	 Any construction or changed condition of operation that would affect the plume rise or 
dispersion characteristic of emissions that wouId cause or contribute to a violation of an 
ambient air quality standard or ambient air increment as defined in ARM 17.8.804; 

d.	 Any construction or improvement project with a Potential to Emit (PTE) more than 5 TPY 
may not be artificially split into smaller projects to avoid Montana Air Quality Permitting; 
and 

OP0513-08 48 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



e.	 Emission reductions obtained through offsetting within a facility are not included when 
determining the potential emission increase from construction or changed conditions of 
operation, unless such reductions are made federally enforceable. 

4.	 Any facility making a de minimis change pursuant to ARM 17.8.745( I) shall notify the 
Department if the change would include a change in control equipment, stack height, stack 
diameter, stack gas temperature, source location or fuel specifications, or would result in an 
increase in source capacity above its permitted operation or the addition of a new emission unit. 
The notice must be submitted, in writing, 10days prior to start up or use of the proposed de 
minimis change, or as soon as reasonably practicable in the event of an unanticipated 
circumstance causing the de minimis change, and must include the information requested in 
ARM 17.8.745( I ) (STATE ENFORCEABLE ONLY until approval by the EPA as part of the 
SIP). 

Z.	 National Emission Standard for Asbestos 
40 CFR, Part 61, Subpart M 

The permittee shall not conduct any asbestos abatement activities except in accordance with 40 
CFR Part 61, Subpart M (National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Asbestos). 

AA.	 Asbestos 
ARM 17.74, Subchapter 3, General Provisions, and Subchapter 4, Fees 

The permittee shall comply with ARM Title 17, chapter 74, subchapter 301. and ARM Title 17, 
Chapter 74, subchapter 4. (State-only) 

BB.	 Stratospheric Ozone Protection - Servicing of Motor Vehicle Air Conditioners 
40 CFR, Part 82, Subpart B 

If the permittee performs a service on motor vehicles and this service involves ozone-depleting 
substance/refrigerant in the motor vehicle air conditioner (MVAC), the permittee is subject to all 
the applicable requirements as specified in 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart B. 

Cc.	 Stratospheric Ozone Protection - Recycling and Emission Reductions 
40 CFR, Part 82, Subpart F 

The permittee shall comply with the standards for recycling and emission reductions in 40 CFR 
Part 82, Subpart F, except as provided for MVACs in Subpart B of that part. 

I.	 Persons opening appliances for maintenance, service, repair, or disposal must comply with 
the required practices pursuant to 40 CFR 82.156. 

2.	 Equipment used during the maintenance, service, repair or disposal of appliances must 
comply with the standards for recycling and recovery equipment pursuant to 40 CFR 82.158. 

3.	 Persons performing maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appl iances must be certified 
by an approved technical certification program pursuant to 40 CFR 82.161. 

4.	 Persons disposing of small appliances, MVACs and MVAC-like (as defined at §82.152) 
appliances must comply with recordkeeping requirements pursuant to 40 CFR 82.166. 

OP0513-08 49 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



5. Persons owning commercial or industrial process refrigeration equipment must comply with 
the leak repair requirements pursuant to 40 CFR 82.156. 

6.	 Owners/operators of appliances normally containing 50 or more pounds of refrigerant must 
keep records of refrigerant purchased and added to such appliances pursuant to 40 CFR 
82.166. 

DD. Emergency Episode Plan 

The permittee shall comply with the requirements contained in Chapter 9.7 of the State of 
Montana Air Quality Control Implementation Plan. 

Each major source emitting 100 TPY located in a Priority I Air Quality Control Region, shall 
submit to the Department a legally enforceable Emergency Episode Action Plan (EEAP) that 
details how the source will curtail emissions during an air pollutant emergency episode. The 
industrial EEAP shall be in accordance with the Department's EEAP and shall be submitted 
according to a timetable developed by the Department, following Priority I reclassification. 

EE. Definitions 

Terms not otherwise defined in this permit or in the Definitions and Abbreviations Appendix of 
this permit, shall have the meaning assigned to them in the referenced regulations. 

OP0513-08 50 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/0412013 



APPENDICES
 

OP0513-08 51 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 1/04/2013 



Appendix A INSIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS 

Disclaimer: The information in this appendix is not State or Federally enforceable, but is presented to 
assist PPLM, the permitting authority, inspectors, and the public. 

Pursuant to ARM 17.8.120 I (22)(a), an insignificant emission unit means any activity or emissions unit 
located within a source that: (i) has a PTE less than 5 TPY of any regulated pollutant; (ii) has a PTE less 
than 500 pounds per year of lead; (iii) has a PTE less than 500 pounds per year of Hazardous Air 
Pollutants (HAP) listed pursuant to 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412 (b) of the FCAA; and (iv) is not regulated by an 
applicable requirement, other than a generally applicable requirement that applies to all emission units 
subject to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, subchapter 12. 

List of Insignificant Activities: 

The f,0 IIowing ta bleof insrgrui ·fiicant sources an d/or actrvrties were provi·dedb>y PPLM 
Emissions Unit ID Description 

IEUOI Hydrazine Bulk Storage Tank Vent 
lEU02 LPG Vaporizer 
lEU03 Unit # I Cooling Tower 
lEU04 Unit #2 Cooling tower 
lEU05 Unit #3 Cooling Tower 
IEU06 Unit #4 Cooling Tower 
IElJ07 Waste Site 
IElJ08 Boiler Chemical Cleaning Process 
IElJ09 LPG System Safety Valves and Vents 
IEUIO 
IEUII 
IEUI2 

Process Tank Vents 
Process Ponds 
Boiler Chemical Cleaning Process 

IEUI3 
IEUI4 

Diesel Tanks 
Scrubber Relining Process 

OP0513-08 A-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 0 I/04/20 13 



Appendix B DEFINITIONS and ABBREVIATIONS 

"Act" means the federal Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.c. §§ 7401-767]. 

"Administrative permit amendment" means an air quality operating permit revision that: 

(a)	 Corrects typographical errors; 

(b)	 Identifies a change in the name, address or phone number of any person identified in the air 
quality operating permit, or identifies a similar minor administrative change at the source; 

(c) Requires more frequent monitoring or reporting by PPLM; 

(d) Requires changes in monitoring or reporting requirements that the Department deems to be 
no less stringent than current monitoring or reporting requirements; 

(e)	 Allows for a change in ownership or operational control ofa source ifthe Department has 
determined that no other change in the air quality operating permit is necessary, consistent 
with ARM 17.8.1225; or 

(f)	 Incorporates any other type of change that the Department has determined to be similar to 
those revisions set forth in (a)-(e), above. 

"Applicable requirement" means all ofthe following as they apply to emission units in a source 
requiring an air quality operating permit (including requirements that have been promulgated or approved 
by the Department or the administrator through rule making at the time of issuance of the air quality 
operating permit, but have future-effective compliance dates, provided that such requirements apply to 
sources covered under the operating permit): 

(a) Any standard, rule, or other requirement, including any requirement contained in a consent 
decree or judicial or administrative order entered into or issued by the Department, that is 
contained in the Montana state implementation plan approved or promulgated by the 
administrator through rule making under Title I ofthe FCAA; 

(b) Any federally enforceable term, condition or other requirement of any Montana Air Quality 
Permit issued by the Department under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, subchapters 7, 8,9 and 10, 
or pursuant to regulations approved or promulgated through rule making under Title I ofthe 
FCAA, including Parts C and D; 

(c) Any standard or other requirement under 42	 U.S.c. Sec. 741] of the FCAA, including Sec. 
7411(d); 

(d) Any standard or other requirement under 42	 U.S.c. Sec. 7412 of the FCAA, including any 
requirement concerning accident prevention under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 74 I2(r)(7), but excluding 
the contents of any risk management plan required under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(r); 

(e) Any standard or other requirement of the acid rain program under Title IV of the FCAA or 
regulations promulgated thereunder; 

(f)	 Any requirements established pursuant to 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7661 c(b) or 42 U.S.c. Sec. 
7414(a)(3) of the FCAA; 

OP0513-08 B-1 Decision: 1210412012 
Effective Dale: 0110412013 



(g) Any standard or other requirement governing solid waste incineration, under 42 V.S.c. Sec. 
7429 of the FCAA; 

(h) Any standard or other requirement for consumer and commercial products, under 42 V.S.c. 
Sec. 751Ib(e) ofthe FCAA; 

(i)	 Any standard or other requirement for tank vessels, under 42 V.S.c. Sec. 7511 b(f) of the 
FCAA; 

(j)	 Any standard or other requirement of the regulations promulgated to protect stratospheric 
ozone under Title VI of the FCAA, unless the administrator determines that such 
requirements need not be contained in an air quality operating permit; 

(k) Any national ambient air quality standard or increment or visibility requirement under Part C 
of Title I of the FCAA, but only as it would apply to temporary sources permitted pursuant to 
42 V.S.c. Sec. 766Ic(e) of the FCAA; or 

(I)	 Any federally enforceable term or condition of any air quality open burning permit issued by 
the Department under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, subchapter 6. 

"Department" means the Montana Department of Environmental Quality. 

"Emissions unit" means any part or activity of a stationary source that emits or has the potential to emit 
any regulated air pollutant or any pollutant listed under 42 V.S.c. Sec. 7412(b) of the FCAA. This term 
is not meant to alter or affect the definition of the term "unit" for purposes ofTitle IV of the FCAA. 

"FCAA" means the Federal Clean Air Act, as amended. 

"Federally enforceable" means alii imitations and conditions which are enforceable by the 
administrator, including those requirements developed pursuant to 40 CFR Parts 60 and 61, requirements 
within the Montana State Implementation Plan, and any permit requirement established pursuant to 40 
CFR 52.21 or under regulations approved pursuant to 40 CFR Part 51, Subpart I, including operating 
permits issued under an EPA approved program that is incorporated into the Montana State 
Implementation Plan and expressly requires adherence to any permit issued under such program. 

"Fugitive emissions" means those emissions that could not reasonably pass through a stack, chimney, 
vent, or other functionally equivalent opening. 

"General air quality operating permit" or "general permit" means an air quality operating permit that 
meets the requirements of ARM 17.8.1222, covers multiple sources in a source category, and is issued in 
Iieu of individual permits being issued to each source. 

"Hazardous air pollutant" means any air pollutant listed as a hazardous air pollutant pursuant to 42 
V.S.c. Sec. 74l2(b) of the FCAA. 

"Non-federally enforceable requirement" means the following as they apply to emission units in a 
source requiring an air quality operating permit: 

(a) Any standard, rule, or other requirement, including any requirement contained in a consent 
decree, or judicial or administrative order entered into or issued by the Department, that is not 
contained in the Montana State Implementation Plan approved or promulgated by the 
administrator through rule making under Title I of the FCAA; 

OP0513-08 B-2 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



(b) Any term, condition or other requirement contained in any Montana Air Quality Permit 
issued by the Department under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, subchapters 7, 8,9 or 10 that is not 
federally enforceable; 

(c)	 Does not include any Montana ambient air quality standard contained in ARM Title 17, 
chapter 8, subchapter 2. 

"Operating Day" means any calendar day (midnight to midnight) in which any fuel is combusted in the 
unit. 

"Permittee" means the owner or operator of any source subject to the permitting requirements of this 
subchapter, as provided in ARM 17.8.1204, that holds a valid air quality operating pennit or has 
submitted a timely and complete penn it application for issuance, renewal, amendment, or modification 
pursuant to this subchapter. 

"Regulated air pollutant" means the following: 

(a) Nitrogen oxides or any volatile organic compounds; 

(b) Any pollutant for which a national ambient air quality standard has been promulgated; 

(c) Any pollutantthat is subject to any standard promulgated under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7411 of the 
FCAA; 

(d) Any Class I or II substance subject to a standard promulgated under or established by Title VI 
of the FCAA; or 

(e) Any pollutant subject to a standard or other requirement established or promulgated under 42 
U.S.c. Sec. 7412 ofthe FCAA, including but not limited to the following: 

(i)	 Any pollutant subject to requirements under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(j) of the FCAA. If the 
administrator fails to promulgate a standard by the date established in 42 U.S.C. Sec. 
7412(e) ofthe FCAA, any pollutant for which a subject source would be major shall be 
considered to be regulated on the date 18 months after the applicable date established in 
42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(e) ofthe FCAA; 

(ii) Any pollutant for which the requirements of 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(g)(2) of the FCAA have 
been met but only with respect to the individual source subject to a 42 U.S.C. Sec. 
7412(g)(2) requirement. 

"Responsible official" means one of the following: 

(a)	 For a corporation: a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in 
charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or 
decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly authorized representative of such 
person ifthe representative is responsible for the overall operation of one or more 
manufacturing, production, or operating facilities applying for or subject to a pennit and 
either: 

(i)	 The facilities employ more than 250 persons or have gross annual sales or expenditures 
exceeding $25 million (in second quarter 1980 dollars); or 

OP0513-08 B-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
EffectiveDate:01/04/2013 



(ii) The delegation of authority to such representative is approved in advance by the
 
Department.
 

(b) For a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or the proprietor, respectively. 

(c)	 For a municipality, state, federal, or other public agency: either a principal executive officer 
or ranking elected official. For the purposes of this part, a principal executive officer of a 
federal agency includes the chief executive officer having responsibility for the overall 
operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency (e.g., a regional administrator of the 
environmental protection agency). 

(d) For affected sources: the designated representative in so far as actions, standards, 
requirements, or prohibitions under Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated 
thereunder are concerned, and the designated representative for any other purposes under this 
subchapter. 

OP0513-08 8-4 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Etfective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Abbreviations: 

ARM 
ASTM 
BACT 
BDT 
Btu 
CFR 
CO 
DEQ 
dscf 
dscfm 
EEAP 
EPA 
EPA Method 
EU 
FCAA 
gr 
HAP 
Hg 
lEU 
MAQP 
Mbdft 
MEMS 
Method 5 
Method 9 
MMbdft 
MMBtu 
NOx 
N02 

O2 
Pb 
PM 
PMI0 
pSI 

scf 
SIC 
S02 
SOx 
TPY 
TBtu 
U.S.c. 
VE 
VOC 

Administrative Rules of Montana 
American Society of Testing Materials 
Best Available Control Technology 
bone dry tons 
British thermal unit 
Code of Federal Regulations 
carbon monoxide 
Department of Environmental Quality 
dry standard cubic foot 
dry standard cubic foot per minute 
Emergency Episode Action Plan 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Test methods contained in 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A 
emissions unit 
Federal Clean Air Act 
grains 
hazardous air pollutant 
mercury 
insignificant emissions unit 
Montana Air Quality Permit 
thousand board feet 
Mercury Emission Monitoring System 
40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A, Method 5 
40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A, Method 9 
million board feet 
million British thermal units 
oxides of nitrogen 
nitrogen dioxide 
oxygen 
lead 
particulate matter 
particulate matter less than 10microns in size 
pounds per square inch 
standard cubic feet 
Source Industrial Classification 
sulfur dioxide 
oxides of sulfur 
tons per year 
trillion British Thermal Units 
United States Code 
visible emissions 
volatile organic compound 

OP0513-08 8-5 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix C NOTIFICATION ADDRESSES 

Compliance Notifications: 

Montana Department of Environmental Quality
 
Permitting and Compliance Division
 
Air Resources Management Bureau
 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-090]
 

United States EPA
 
Air Program Coordinator
 
Region VIII, Montana Office
 
lOW. ]5th 

, Suite 3200
 
Helena, MT 59626
 

Permit Modifications: 

Montana Department of Environmental Quality
 
Permitting and Compliance Division
 
Air Resources Management Bureau
 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-090]
 

Office of Partnerships and Regulatory Assistance
 
Air and Radiation Program
 
US EPA Region VIII 8P-AR
 
1595 Wynkoop Street
 
Denver, CO 80202 -] ]29
 

OP0513-08 C-l Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix D AIR QUALITY INSPECTOR INFORMATION 

Disclaimer:	 The information in this appendix is not State or Federally enforceable, but is presented to 
assist PPLM, permitting authority, inspectors, and the public. 

1.	 Direction to Plant: The facility is located in Colstrip, Montana and is accessed by traveling south on 
Highway 39 from 1-90 and turning east into the City of Colstrip on Willow Avenue. 

2.	 Safety Equipment Required: The following safety guidelines were submitted by PPLM: 

General Safety Guidelines for PPLM Units 1,2,3, & 4 

The following are excerpts from the PPLM Employee Safety Handbook. These rules apply to all visitors 
as well. In all instances, visitors will be escorted by a Company employee. 

Safety Glasses and Hard Hats: Approved eye protection and company issued hard hats are 
required while on PPLM Project Division property, except in the following areas; 

•	 Control Rooms 
•	 Rest Rooms 
•	 Lunch Rooms 
•	 Offices 
•	 To and from the parking lots and buildings 
•	 Other areas as posted 

Proper Clothing: Clothing and shoes, which are suitable for the particular type of work and 
existing weather conditions, shall be worn. The following should be kept in mind: 

•	 Thin cotton, rayon, or other synthetic materials are highly flammable and will 
readily ignite. 

•	 Long-sleeved shirts with sleeves rolled down and buttoned provide primary 
protection from many types of injuries, particularly from burns, electrical 
contact, irritants, splinters, and scratches. 

•	 Cuffed trousers and short-topped shoes catch and hold hot or corrosive materials, 
endangering the wearer. 

•	 Special protective clothing and equipment is furnished when required. 

•	 Loose clothing and gloves must not be worn when working around moving 
machinery. Long sleeves must be rolled down and buttoned tight. 

•	 For all functions involving the use of chemicals outside of the Chern Lab and 
EED lab, the use of goggles, face shields, chemical/resistant gloves, and 
chemical suits are required. 

•	 It is mandatory that an acid suit shall be worn during all functions involving acids 
or caustics. 

•	 Rubber gloves, Tyvek (white suits), or similar suits, rubber boots and vision 
protection shall be worn during all operations involving lime. 

OP05J3-08 0-1 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Protective Footwear: Shoes of good quality construction, with leather or equivalent material to 
provide protection from abrasion and punctures, are required. 

Signs: Special instruction signs are for the safety of employees, visitors, and equipment. These 
instructions shall be observed at all times: 

•	 Caution Signs (Black and Yellow) - Indicate a possible hazard against which 
proper precaution should be taken. Caution signs warn against potential hazards 
or caution against an unsafe practice. 

•	 Danger Signs (Red, Black, and White) - Indicate immediate danger, and special 
precautions are necessary. 

•	 Safety Instruction Signs (Green and White) - Provide general instructions and for 
suggestive information. 

•	 Radiation Warning Signs (Reddish Purple and Yellow) - Warn ofa radiation 
hazard only. Special precautions and equipment are necessary. 

•	 Direction Signs (Black and White) - Ensure the safe and efficient flow of 
vehicles and pedestrian traffic. 

•	 Vision, Hearing and Respiratory Protection Signs, where posted, shall be 
observed. 

Horseplay - Scuffling or practical jokes are dangerous and are strictly forbidden. 

Smoking Policy - Smoking or open flames shall not be permitted in areas where explosive 
atmospheres might be present, including but not limited to, oil storage rooms, hydrogen areas, 
coal handling systems, LPG handling and storage facility, and any other area posted as a "NO 
SMOKING" area. Absence of "NO SMOKING" signs shall not excuse smoking in dangerous 
places. 

Seat Belts - Where seat belts are provided in vehicles and equipment, they shall be used at all 
times while the vehicle or equipment is being operated. 

Drugs and Alcohol- The use of intoxicating beverages on Company premises is strictly 
forbidden. The use of any drug on Company property, except those prescribed by a competent 
medical authority, is strictly forbidden by Company Policy. 

3.	 Facility Plot Plan: The facility plot plans were submitted as part of the applications for Operating 
Permit #OP0513-00 and Operating Permit #OP 1187-00. 

OP0513-08 D-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix E Opacity CEMS 

Nothing in this appendix is intended to alter the requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix. 

I.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, PPLM shall calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous monitoring 
systems. 

Except for system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments required 
pursuant to 40 CFR 60.13(d), 40 CFR Part 75 and the accuracy audits required below, all continuous 
monitoring systems shall be in continuous operation. 

PPLM shall conduct annual accuracy audits using a calibration jig and NBS-traceable neutral density 
filters on the continuous monitoring system. 

2.	 PPLM shall maintain records for a minimum of 5 years of the log sheets, computerized data, analysis, 
and calculations used to prepare the required reports. 

3.	 Compliance with this appendix shall be deemed compliance with the requirements contained in the 
EPA PSD permit Appendix III issued September II, 1979. 

4.	 Compliance with this appendix shall be deemed compliance with the requirements contained in 
MAQP #0513-08, Section 1I.C.I.e., Section II.C.2., Section II.E.I., and Section II.E.2. 

5.	 PPLM shall submit reports to the Department containing the information required by 40 CFR 60.7 
and as required below. The Department is requiring all opacity CEMS reports to be submitted 
quarterly. 

a.	 PPLM shall maintain records of the occurrence and duration of any startup, shutdown, or 
malfunction in the operation of an affected facility; any malfunction of the air pollution 
control equipment; or any periods during which the continuous monitoring system is 
inoperative. 

b.	 PPLM shall submit an excess emissions and monitoring systems performance report and/or a 
summary report form (see paragraph (c) below) to the Department. Written reports of 
reportable excess emissions greater than 20% opacity shall include the following information: 

I.	 The magnitude of excess emissions, any conversion factor(s) used, and the date and 
time of commencement and completion of each time period of excess emissions; and 
the process operating time during the reporting period. 

11.	 Specific identification of each period of excess emissions that occurs during startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions of the affected facility; and the nature and cause of any 
malfunction (if known), the corrective action taken or preventative measures adopted. 

Ill.	 The date and time identifying each period during which the continuous monitoring 
system was inoperative except for zero and span checks and the nature of the system 
repairs or adjustments. 

IV.	 When no excess emissions have occurred or the continuous monitoring system(s) 
have not been inoperative, repaired, or adjusted, such information shall be stated in 
the report. 

OP0513-08 £-1 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



c.	 The summary report form shall contain the information and be in the format shown in Figure 
I. The summary report form shall be submitted: 

I.	 Ifthe total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is less than 1% of the 
total operating time for the reporting period and CEMS downtime for the reporting 
period is less than 5% of the total operating time for the reporting period, only the 
summary report form shall be submitted and the excess emission report described in 
Section (b) above need not be submitted unless requested. 

II.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is I% or greater of 
the total operating time for the reporting period or the total CEMS downtime for the 
reporting period is 5% or greater of the total operating time for the reporting period, 
the summary report form and the excess emission report described in Section (b) 
above shall both be submitted. 

Figure I--Summary Report-- Excess Emission and Monitoring 
System Performance 

Pollutant:
 
Reporting period dates: From __ to _
 
Emission Limitation:
 
Monitor Manufacturer and Model No.:
 
Date of Latest CEMS Certification or Audit:
 
Process Unit(s) Description:
 
Total source operating time in reporting period:
 

Emission Data Summary 
I.	 Duration of excess emission in reporting period due to: 

a.	 Startup/shutdown. 
b.	 Control equipment problems. 
c.	 Process problems. 
d.	 Other known causes. 
e.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total duration of excess emissions. 

3.	 Total duration of excess emissions x (100) = % excess emissions 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

CEMS Performance Summary 
I.	 CEMS downtime in reporting period due to: 

a.	 Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
b.	 Non-Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
c.	 Quality assurance calibrations. 
d.	 Other known causes. 
e.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total CEMS Downtime when the boiler is operating (nearest quarter hour). 

3.	 Total CEMS downtime when the boiler is operating x 100 = % downtime 
Total boiler operating time 

4.	 Total boiler operating time (nearest quarter hour). 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30th day after the end of each quarter. 

OP05J3-08 E-2 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix F S02 CEMS 

Nothing in this appendix is intended to alter the requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix. 

I.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, PPLM shall calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous monitoring 
systems. 

The monitoring systems shall be capable of determining emissions in the units of the applicable 
standards. 

Except for system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments required 
pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, all continuous monitoring systems shall be in continuous operation. 

2.	 Compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 shall be deemed compliance with the requirements contained in 40 
CFR 60.13(a) through (c), (e) through (g), and (i) through (j) and with 40 CFR 60.45(c). 

3.	 Compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 and this appendix shall be deemed compliance with the 
requirements contained in the EPA PSD permit Appendix III issued September 11,1979. 

4.	 Compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 and this appendix shall be deemed compliance with the 
requirements contained in MAQP #0513-08, Section II.C.l.e., Section II.C.2., Section II.E.l., and 
Section II.E.2. 

5.	 PPLM shall maintain, for a minimum of 5 years, records of the log sheets, computerized data, 
analysis, and calculations used to prepare the required reports. 

6.	 PPLM shall submit reports to the Department containing the information required by 40 CFR 60.7 
and as required below. The Department is requiring all S02 CEMS reports to be submitted quarterly. 

a.	 PPLM shall maintain records of the occurrence and duration of any startup, shutdown, or 
malfunction in the operation of an affected facility; any malfunction of the air pollution 
control equipment; or any periods during which the continuous monitoring system is 
inoperative. 

b.	 PPLM shall submit an excess emissions and monitoring systems performance report and/or a 
summary report form (see Paragraph (c) below) to the Department. Written reports of excess 
emissions shall be reported in the units of the standard exceeded and shall include the 
following information: 

I.	 The magnitude of excess emissions, any conversion factor(s) used, and the date and 
time of commencement and completion of each time period of excess emissions; and 
the process operating time during the reporting period. 

II.	 Specific identification of each period of excess emissions that occurs during startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions of the affected facility; and the nature and cause of any 
malfunction (if known), the corrective action taken or preventative measures adopted. 

III.	 The date and time identifying each period during which the continuous monitoring 
system was inoperative except for zero and span checks and the nature of the system 
repairs or adjustments. 

IV.	 When no excess emissions have occurred or the continuous monitoring system(s) 
have not been inoperative, repaired, or adjusted, such information shall be stated in 
the report. 

OP0513-08 F-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



c.	 The summary report form shall contain the information and be in the format shown in Figure 
I. The summary report form shall be submitted:	 . 

I.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is less than 1% of the 
total operating time for the reporting period and CEMS downtime for the reporting 
period is less than 5% of the total operating time for the reporting period, only the 
summary report form shall be submitted and the excess emission report described in 
Section (b) above need not be submitted unless requested. 

II.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is 1% or greater of 
the total operating time for the reporting period or the total CEMS downtime for the 
reporting period is 5% or greater of the total operating time for the reporting period, 
the summary report form and the excess emission report described in Section (b) 
above shall both be submitted. 

Figure I--Summary Report--Gaseous Excess Emission and Monitoring 
System Performance 

Pollutant:
 
Reporting period dates: From __ to _
 
Emission Limitation:
 
Monitor Manufacturer and Model No.:
 
Date of Latest CEMS Certification or Audit:
 
Process Unites) Description:
 
Total source operating time in reporting period:
 

Emission Data Summary 
1.	 Duration of excess emission in reporting period due to: 

a.	 Startup/shutdown. 
b.	 Control equipment problems. 
c.	 Process problems. 
d.	 Other known causes. 
e.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total duration of excess emissions. 

3.	 Total duration of excess emissions x (100) = % excess emissions 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

CEMS Performance Summary 
I.	 CEMS downtime in reporting period due to: 

a.	 Monitor. equipment malfunctions. 
b.	 Non-Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
c.	 Quality assurance calibrations. 
d.	 Other known causes. 
e.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total CEMS Downtime when the boiler is operating (nearest quarter hour). 

3.	 Total CEMS downtime when the boiler is operating x 100 = % downtime 
Total boiler operating time 

4.	 Total boiler operating time (nearest quarter hour). 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30th day after the end of each quarter. 

OP0513-08 F-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
EffectiveDate: 0110412013 



7.	 PPLM shall submit quarterly reports to the Department containing the following information for each 
month of the quarter: 

a.	 Tons of emissions calculated as the sum of Eh=K x C, x Qh where Eh= emission rate (lb/hr), 
K = ] .66 x ]0·7 (lb/sct)/ppm (S02), C, = Measured Pollutant Concentration (ppmwet) , and Qh 
= Measured Stack Gas Flow Rate (SCFHwet) ; and 

b.	 A summary report including the information identified in 40 CFR 75.64 (a)(2) in writing that 
includes: 

Tons (rounded to the nearest tenth) of S02 emitted during the quarter and cumulative S02 
emissions for calendar year. 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30th day after the end of the calendar quarter. 

8.	 PPLM shall submit copies of all RAT As performed to the Department in accordance with ARM 
17.8.106, Source Testing Protocol. 

9.	 PPLM shall submit copies of each monitoring plan revision that results in the need to recertify the 
CEMS. 

OP0513-08 F-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix G NOx CEMS 

Nothing in this appendix is intended to alter the requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix. 

I.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, PPLM shall calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous monitoring
 
systems.
 

The monitoring systems shall be capable of determining emissions in the units ofthe applicable 
standards. 

Except for system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments required 
pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, all continuous monitoring systems shall be in continuous operation. 

2.	 Compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 shall be deemed compliance with the requirements contained in 40 
CFR 60.13(a) through (c), (e) through (g), and (i) through (j) and 40 CFR 60.45(c). 

3.	 Compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 and this appendix shall be deemed compliance with the 
requirements contained in the EPA PSD permit Appendix III issued September 11, 1979. 

4.	 Compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 and this appendix shall be deemed compliance with the 
requirements contained in MAQP #0513-08, Section 1I.C.I.e., Section II.C.2., Section ILE.l., and 
Section II.E.2. 

5.	 PPLM shall conduct a "Standard Practice for Ultimate Analysis of Coal and Coke", ASTM D3176-89 
(Reapproved 2002), at a minimum of once per year for each fuel used. 

6.	 PPLM shall determine the gross calorific value (GCV) of the fuels using ASTM D20 15-91, "Standard 
Test Method for Gross Calorific Value of Coal and Coke by the Adiabatic Bomb Calorimeter" or 
other method as identified in 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix F, 3.3.6.2, at a minimum of once per year for 
each fuel used. 

7.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly fuel analysis using ASTM D4239-85 or other method approved by the 
Department. 

8.	 PPLM shall maintain records for a minimum of 5 years ofthe log sheets, computerized data, analysis, 
and calculations used to prepare the required reports. 

9.	 PPLM shall submit reports to the Department containing the information required by 40 CFR 60.7 
and as required below. The Department is requiring all NO x CEMS reports to be submitted quarterly. 

a.	 PPLM shall maintain records of the occurrence and duration of any startup, shutdown, or 
malfunction in the operation of an affected facility; any malfunction of the air pollution 
control equipment; or any periods during which the continuous monitoring system is 
inoperative. 

b.	 PPLM shall submit an excess emissions and monitoring systems performance report and/or a 
summary report form (see paragraph (c) below) to the Department. Written reports of excess 
emissions shall be reported in the units ofthe standard exceeded and shall include the 
following information: 

OP0513-08 G-J Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



I.	 The magnitude of excess emissions, any conversion factor(s) used, and the date and 
time of commencement and completion of each time period of excess emissions; and 
the process operating time during the reporting period. 

II.	 Specific identification of each period of excess emissions that occurs during startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions of the affected facility; and the nature and cause of any 
malfunction (if known), the corrective action taken or preventative measures adopted. 

Ill.	 The date and time identifying each period during which the continuous monitoring 
system was inoperative except for zero and span checks and the nature of the system 
repairs or adjustments. 

IV.	 When no excess emissions have occurred or the continuous monitoring system(s) 
have not been inoperative, repaired, or adjusted, such information shall be stated in 
the report. 

c.	 The summary report form shall contain the information and be in the format shown in Figure 
I. The summary report form shall be submitted 

I.	 If the total duration of excess emissions forthe reporting period is less than I% ofthe 
total operating time for the reporting period and CEMS downtime for the reporting 
period is less than 5% of the total operating time for the reporting period, only the 
summary report form shall be submitted and the excess emission report described in 
Section (b) above need not be submitted unless requested. 

II.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is I% or greater of 
the total operating time for the reporting period or the total CEMS downtime for the 
reporting period is 5% or greater of the total operating time for the reporting period, 
the summary report form and the excess emission report described in Section (b) 
above shall both be submitted. 

OP0513-08 G-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date. 01/04/2013 



Figure l--Summary Report--Gaseous Excess Emission and Monitoring 
System Performance 

Pollutant: 
Reporting period dates: From __ to _ 
Emission Limitation: 
Monitor Manufacturer and Model No.: 
Date of Latest CEMS Certification or Audit: 
Process Unit(s) Description: 
Total source operating time in reporting period: 

Emission Data Summary 
1. Duration of excess emission in reporting period due to: 

a. Startup/shutdown. 
b. Control equipment problems. 
c. Process problems. 
d. Other known causes. 
e. Unknown causes. 

2. Total duration of excess emissions. 

3. Total duration of excess emissions x (l00) = % excess emissions 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

CEMS Performance Summary 
1. CEMS downtime in reporting period due to: 

a. Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
b. Non-Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
c. Quality assurance calibrations. 
d. Other known causes. 
e. Unknown causes. 

2. Total CEMS Downtime when the boiler is operating (nearest quarter hour). 

3. Total CEMS downtime when the boiler is operating x 100 = % downtime 
Total boiler operating time 

4. Total boiler operating time (nearest quarter hour). 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30th day after the end of each quarter. 

10. PPLM shall submit quarterly reports to the Department containing the following information for each 
month of the quarter: 

a.	 Monthly average coal analysis; 

b.	 Coal consumption; 

c.	 Other fuels combusted and the amount; 

d.	 Tons of emissions calculated as the sum of Eh=K x C, x Qh where E, = emission rate (1b/hr), 
K = 1.19 x 10-7 (lb/sct)/ppm (NOx), C, = Measured Pollutant Concentration (ppmwet), and Qh 
= Measured Stack Gas Flow Rate (SCFHwe,); and 

OP0513-08 G-3 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



e. A summary report including the information identified in 40 CFR 75.64 (a)(3) through (5) in 
writing which includes: 

I.	 Average NOx emission rate (lb/mmBtu, rounded to the nearest hundredth) during the 
quarter and cumulative NOx emission rate for calendar year. 

II.	 Tons of CO 2 emitted during quarter and cumulative CO 2 for calendar year. 

III. Total heat input (mmBtu) for quarter and cumulative heat input for calendar year. 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30th day after the end ofthe calendar quarter. 

11. PPLM shall submit copies of all RATAs performed to the Department in accordance with ARM 
17.8.106, Source Testing Protocol. 

12. PPLM shall submit copies of each monitoring plan revision that results in the need to a recertify the 
CEMS. 

01'0513-08 G-4 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix H Acid Rain 

(" 

1 
I 

& EPA 

United States 
Environmental Protection Agency 
Acid Rain Program 

Phase II Permit Application 
For more information, see instructions and refer to 40 CFR 72.30 and 72.31 

This submission is: [KI New o Revised 

OMB No. 2060-0258 
Expires '-3'-96 

Page 1 

STEP 1 
Identify the source by 
plant name, State, and 
ORIS code from NADB 

Colstrip Units #1 and 
Plant Name 

#2 

Compliance 
Plan 

b c e 

STEP 2 Boiler ID# Unit Will Repowering New Units New UnitsEnter the boiler 10# Hold Allow· Planfrom NADB for each ances inaffected unit, and Accordanceindicate whether a with 40 CFRrepowering plan is 72.9(c)(1) Commence Monitor
being submitted for Operation Dale Certification
the unit by entering Deadline
"yes" or 'no" at
 
column c. For new
 
units, enter the re
quested information 
in columns d and e 

{ 

,-...-........
 
{ Yes . 1':0000001 '---- ---.( Yes : ()nnn02 :\0-

Ves
 

Ves
 I 
Ves
 

Ves
 

I Yes I 
Ves I 
Ves
 

Ves
 I 
Ves I 
Ves I 

STEP 3 o For each unit that will be repowered, the Repowering Extension Plan form IS Included and the 
Check the box if the Repowenng Technology Petition form has been submitted or vl.'ill be submitted b'l 
response in column c June 1. 1997. 
of Step 2 is "Yes"
 
for any unit
 

( 
( 

EPA Form 7610-16 (rev. 12·94; previous versions obsolete) 

OP0513-08 H-l Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 

I 



Phase /I Permit - Page 2 
Colstrip Units #1 and nz 

STEP 4 
Read the stand ard 
requirements and
certification. enter 
the name of the 
designated repre
sentative. and sign 
and date 

( 

l. 

Plant Name {from Steo 1) 

Standard Requirements 

Permit Requirements. 

(lIThe designated representative of each affected source and each affected unit at the source shall: 
li) Submit a complete ACid Rain permit application (including a compliance plan) under 40 CFR part 72 
in accordance with the deadlines specified in 40 CFR 72.30; and 
(ii) Submit in a timely manner any supplemental information that the permining authority determines is 
necessary in order to review an Acid Rain permit application and issue or deny an Acid Rain permit; 

(2)	 The owners and operators of each affected source and each affected unit at the Source shall: 
til Operate the unit in compliance with a complete Acid Rain permit application or a superseding Acid 
Rain permit issued by the permitting authority; and 
(ii) Have an Acid Rain Permit. 

Monitorino Requirements. 

(1) The owners and operators and. to the extent applicable. designated representative of each affected 
source and each affected unit at the source shall comply with the monitoring requirements as provided in 
40 CFR parts 74, 75, and 76. 
(2) The emissions measurements recorded and reported in accordance with 40 CFR part 75 shall be used 
to determine compliance by the unit with the Acid Rain emissions limitations and emissions reduction 
requirements for sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides under the Acid Rain Program. 
131 The requirements of 40 CFR parts 74 and 75 shall not aHect the responsibility of the owners and 
operators to monitor emissions of other pollutants or other emissions characteristics at the unit under 
other applicable requirements of the Act and other provisions of the operating permit for the source. 

Sulfur Dioxide Reouirements. 

(1)	 The owners and operators of each source and each affected unit at the source shall: 
O} Hold allowances. as of the allowance transfer deadline, in the unit's compliance subaccount (after 
deductions under 40 CFR 73.341cll not less than the total annual emissions of sulfur dioxide for the 
previous calendar year from the unit: and 
(iiI Comply with the applicable Acid Rain emissions limitations for sulfur dioxide. 

(2) Each ton of sulfur dioxide emitted in excess of the Acid Rain emissions limitations for sulfur dioxide
 
shall constitute a separate violation of the Act.
 
13) An affected unit shall be subject to the requirements under parsqraph (1) of the sulfur dioxide
 
requiremems as follows:
 

(il Starting January 1, 2000, an affected unit under 40 CFR 72.6IaH21: or 
(ii) Starting on the later of January 1, 2000 or the deadline for monitor certification under 40 CFA part 
75. an affected unil under 40 CFR 72.6(aH31. 

(4) Allowances shalt be held in, deducted from, or transferred among Allowance Tracking System 
accounts in accordance with the Acid Rain Program. 
(5) An allowanc~ shall not be deducted in order to comply with the requirements under paragraph (1Hi) 
ot the sulfur dioxide requirements prior to the calendar year for which the allowance W;]s allocated. 
(6) An allowance allocated by the Administrator under the Acid Rain Program is a limited authorization to 
emit sulfur dioxide in accordance with the Acid Rain Program. No provision of the Acid Ruin Program. the 
Acid Rain permit application, the Acid Ram permit, or the written exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 and 72.8 
and no provision or law shall be construed to limit the authority of the United States to terminate or limit 
such authorization. 
(7) An allowance allocated by the Adminisrrator under the Acid Rain Program does not constitute a
 
property right.
 

Nitrogen Oxides Reauirements. The owners and operators of the source and each affected unit at the
 
source shall comply With the applicable Acid Rain emissions limitation for nitrogen oxides.
 

Excess Emissions Reouirements. 

(1) The desiqnated representative of an affected unit that has excess emissions in any calendar year shall 
submit a proposed ottset plan. as required under 40 CFR part 77. 
(2) The owners and operators of an affected unit that has excess emissions in any calendar year shall: 

(i) Pay without demand the penalty required, and pay upon demand the interest on that penalty, as 
required by 40 CF'l part 77; and 
Hi) Comply with the terms of an approved offset plan, as required by 40 CFR part 77. 

Recordkeepinq and Reoortino Recuirements. 

(11 Unless otherwise provided. the owners and operators of the source and each affected unit at the 
source shall keep on site at the source each of the following documents for a period of 5 years from the 
date the document IS created. This pericd may be extended for cause, at any time prior to the end of 5 
years, in writing bv the Administrator or permitting authority: 

(i) The certificate of representation tor the designated representative for the source and each affected 
unit at the source and all documents that demonstrate the truth of the statements in (he certificate of 
representation, in accordance with 40 CFR 72.24; provided that the certificate and documents shall 
be retained on sit:: at the source beyond such s-vear period until SUch documents are superseded 
because of the submission of a new certificate of representation changing the designated 
representative: 
(ii) All emissions monitoring information, in accordance with 40 CFR parr 75; 
(iii) Copies of all reports, compliance certifications. and other submissions and aU records made or 
required under the Acid Rain Program; and. 

EPA Form 761 O~ 16 (rev. 12·94; previous versions obsolete) 

OP0513-08 H-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 0 I/04/20 13 



Phase II Permit· Page 3 
Colstrip Units #1 and #2 

Plant Name Ilrom Step 1) 

Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements rCont.} 

[iv] Copies of all documents used to complete an Acid Rain permit application and any other 
submission under the Acid Rain Program or to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the 
Acid Rain Program. 

(2) The designated representative of an affected source and each affected unit at the source shall submit 
the reports and compliance certificationsrequired under the Acid Rain Program. including those under 40 
CFR part 72 subpart I and 40 CFR part 75. 

Liability. 

111 Any person who knowingly violates any requirement or prohibition of the Acid Rain Program, a 
complete Acid Rain permit application, an Acid Aain permit, or a written exemption under 4() CFA 72.7 or 
72.8. including any requirement for the payment of any penalty owed to the United States, shall be 
subject to enforcement pursuant to section 113(c) of the Act. 
(2) Any person who knowingly makes a false. material statement in any record. submission, or report 
under the Acid Rain Program shall be subject to criminal enforcement pursuant to section 113(cl of the 
Act and 18 U.S.C. 1001. 
(3) No permit revision shall excuse any violation of the requirements of the Acid Rain Program that 
occurs prior to the date that the revision takes effect. 
(4) Each affected source and each affected unit shall meet me requirements of the Acid Rain Program. 
15) Atly provision of the Acid Aain Program that applies to an affected source (including a provision 
applicable to the designated representative of an affected source) shall also apply to the owners and 
operators of such source andof the affected units at the source. 
16) Any provision of the Acid Rain Program that applies to an aHected unit (including a provision 
applicable to the designated representative of an affected unit) shall also apply to the owners and 
operators of such unit. Except as provided under 40 CFA 72.44 (Phase II repowering extension plans) 
and 40 CFA 76.11 INO, averaging plans), and except with regard to the requirements applicable to units 
with a common stack under 40 CFR part 75 (including 40 CFR 75.16,75.17, and 75.18), the owners 
and operators and the designated representative of one affected unit shall not be liable for any violation 
by any other affected unit of which they are not owners or operators or the designated representative 
and that is located at a source of which they are not owners or operators or the designated 
representative. 
171 Each violation of a provision of 40 CFA parts 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, and 7B by an affected source or 
affected unit, or by an owner or operator or designated representative of such source or unit, shall be a 
separate violation of the Act. 

Effect on Other Authorities. No provision of the Acid Rain Program, an Acid Rain permit application, an 
ACid Rain permit, or a written exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 or 72.8 shall be construed as: 

(1) Except as expressly provided in title IV of l:he Act, exempting or excluding the owners and operators 
and. to the:extent applicable, the designated representative of an affected source or affected unit from 
compliance with any other provision of the Act, including the provisions of title I of the Act relating to 
applicable National Ambient Ai' Quality Standards or State Implementation Plans; 
12) Limiting the number of allowances a unit can hold; provided, that the number of allowances held by 
the unit shall not affect the source's obligation to comply with any other provisions of the Act; 
{3) Requiring a change of any kind in any State law regulating electric utilitY rates and charges, affecting 
any State law regarding such State regulation. aTlimil:ing such State regulation, including any prudence 
review requirements under such State law; 
14) Modifying the Federal Power Act or af:ecting the authority of the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission under the Federal Power Act; or. 
15} Interfering With or impairing any program for competitive bidding for power supply in a State in which 
such program is established. 

Certification 

I am authorized to make this submission on behalf of the owners and operators of the affected SOurce or 
affected units for which the submission is made. I certify under penalty of law that I have personally 
examined. and am familiar with, the statements and information submitted in this document and all its 
attachments. Based on my inquiry of those individuals with primary responsibility for obtaining the 
information, I certify that the statements and information are to the best of my knowledge and belief true, 
accurate. and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false statements 
and information or omitting required statements and information, including the possibility of fine or 
imprisonment. 

Carlton D. Grimm 
Name 

)7"'['........,,;. Let, l'/f'j·
 

I Date 

STEP 5 (optional) 
Enter the source AIRS 
and FINDS identification 
numbers , if known \ "" 

FINDS 

EPA Form 7610·\6 (rev. 1.2·94: previous versions obsolete) 

OP0513-08 H-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



United States 
Environmental Protection Agency OMB No. 2060-0258 

&EPA
 

STEP 1 
Identify the source by 
plant name. State. and 
ORIS code from NADB 

STEP 2 
Enter the boiler ID# 
from NADB for each 
affected unit, and 
indicate whether a 
repowering plan is 
being submitted for 
the unit by entering
"yes" or . no" at 
column c. For new 
units, enter the re
quested information 
in columns d and e 

( 

( 

STEP 3 
Check the box if the 
response in column c 
of Step 2 i.s "Yes" 
for any urut 

Acid Rain Program Expires 1'31-96 

Phase II Permit Application Page 1 

For more information. see instructions and refer to 40 CFR 72.30 and 72.31 

This submission is: ~ New D Revised 

Colstrip Unit5 U3 and U4 
Plant Name 

Compliance 
Plan 

b d 

Boifer ID# Unit Will 
Hold Allow

ances in 
Accordance 
with 40 CFA 

72.9Iclll) 

Aepowering 
Plan 

New Units 

Cornrnonce 
Operation Date 

New Units 

Monitor 
Certification 

Deadline 

000003 5' No 

000004 ·9 \:0 

I Yes 

I 
I 
l 

I 
I 
I 

Yes 

Ves 

Yes 

Ves 

Ves 

I 

I Ves 

I Ves 

I 
I 

Ves 

Ves 

o For each unit that will be repowered, the Aepowering Extension Plan form is included and the 
Aepowering Technology Petition form has been submitted or will be submitted by 
June 1. 1997. 

EPA Form 7610-1 6 (rev. 12-94; previous versions obsolete! 

OP0513-08 H-4 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



l 
_ STEP 4 

." .·-"Read the standard 
requirements and 

.	 certification. enter 
(..	 the name of the 

designated repre
sentative. and sign
and date 

( 

\ 

Phase II Permit· Page 2 
Colstrip Units #3 and 04 

Plant Name (from Ste 11 

Standard Requirements 

Permit Requirements. 

(l) The designated representative of each affected source and each affected unit at the source shall: 
Ii) Submit a complete Acid Aain permit application (including a compliance pion} under 40 CFil part 72 
in accordance with the deadlines specified in 40 CFA 72.30; and 
Iii} Submit in a timely manner any supplemental information that the permitting authority determines is 
necessary in order to review an Acid Rain permit application and issue or deny an Acid Rain permit; 

(2) The owners and operators of each affected source and Bach affected unit at the source shall: 
(i) Operata the unit in compliance with iJ complete Acid Rain permit application or a superseding Acid 
Rain permit issued by the permitting authority; and 
Iii) Have an Acid Rain Permit·. 

Monitoring Requirements. 

{ll The owners and operators and. to the extent applicable. designated representative of each affected 
source and each affected unit at the source shall comply with the monitoring requirements as provided in 
40 CFR parts 74. 75. and 76. 
(21 The emissions measuremenrs recorded and reported in accordance with 40 CFR part 75 shalJ be used 
to determine compliance by the unit with the Acid Rain emissions limitations and emissions reduction 
requirements for sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides under the Acid Rain Program. 
(31 The requirements of 40 CFR parts 74 and 75 shall not alfect the responsibility of the owners and 
operators to monitor emissions of ether pollutants or other emissions characteristics at the unit under 
other applicable requirements of the Act and other provisions of the operating permit for the source. 

Sulfur Dioxide Reguiremenrs. 

(1)	 The owners and operators of each source and each affected unit at the source shall; 
IiI Hold allowances. as of the allowance transfer deadline. in the unit's compliance subaccount (after 
deductions under 40 CFR 73.341cll not less than the total annual emissions of sulfur dioxide for the 
previous calender year from tha'unit: and 
(Ii) Comply with the applicable Acid Rain emissions limitations for sulfur dioxide. 

(21 Each ton of sulfur dioxide emitted in excess of the Acid Rain emissions limitations for sulfur dioxide
 
shall constitute a separate violation of the Act.
 
(31 An affected unit shall be SUbject to the requirements under paragraph 111 of the sulfur dioxide
 
requirements as follows:
 

Iil Starting January 1. 2000. an affected unit under 40 CFR 72,6IaI12); or 
(ii) Starting on the later of January 1, 2000 or the deadline for monitor certification under 40 CFR part 
75. an alfected unit under 40 CFR 72.6121131. 

(4) Allowances shall be held in, deducted from. or transferred among Allowance Tracking System
 
accounts in accordance with the Acid Rain Program.
 
15) An allowance shall not be deducted in ordar to comply with the requirements under paragraph 11}(il
 
of the sulfur dioxide requirements prior to the calendar year for which the aHowance was allocated,
 
(6) An allowance allocated by the Administrator under the Acid Aain Program is a limited authorization to
 
emit sulfur dioxide in accordance with the Acid Rain Program. No provision of the Acid Rain Program, the
 
Acid Rain permit application, the Acid Rain permit. or the written exemption under 40 CF? 72.7 end 72.8
 
and no provision of law shall be construed to limit the authority of the United States to terminate or limit
 
such authorization.
 
(7} An allowance allocated by the Administr ator under the Acid Rain Program does not constitute a
 
property right.
 

Nitrogen Oxides Reouirements. The owners and operators of the source and each affected unit at the
 
source shall comply with the applicable Acid Rain emissions limitation for nitrogen oxides.
 

Excess Emissions Reauirements. 

111 The designated representative of an attected unit that has excess emissions in any calendar year shall 
submit a proposed offset plan. as required under 40 CFA part 77. 
(2)	 The owners and operators of an affected unit that has excess emissions in any calendar year shall:
 

1iI Pay without demand the penalty required. and pay upon demand the interest on that penalty, as
 
required by 40 CFR part 77; and
 
liiI Comply with the terms of an approved offset plan, as required b'l 40 CFA part 77.
 

Recordkeepinq and Reoorting Requirements. 

(1 J Unless otherwise provided, the owners and operators of the source and each affected una at the
 
source shall keep on site at the source each of the following documents for a period of 5 years from the
 
date the document is created. This period may be extended for cause, at any time prior to the end of 5
 
years. in writing by the Administrator or permitting authority: •
 

(i) The certificate of representation for the designated representative for the source and each affected
 
unit at the source and all documents that demonstrate the truth of the stutsrnents in the certificate of
 
representation, in accordance with 40 CFR 72.24: provided that the certificate and documents shall
 
be retained on site at the source beyond such 5-year period until such documents are superseded
 
because of the submission of a new certificate of representation changing the designated
 
representative;
 
(ii) All emissions monitoring information. in accordance with 40 CFR part 75:
 
[iii) Copies of all reports. compliance certifications. and other submissions and ;111 records made or
 
required under the Acid Rain Program: and.
 

EPA Form 7610·16 lrev. 12-94; previous versions obsolete) 

OP0513-08 H-5 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Phase II Permit - Page 3 Colstrip Units #3 and #4 
Plant Name Ifrom Ste 1) 

Recordkeeoing and Reoortino Requirements fcon!.l 

Iivl Copies of all documents used to complete an Acid Rain permit application and any other 
submission under the Acid Rain Program or to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the 
Acid Rain Program. 

12~ The designated representative of an aifected SOurce and each affected unit at the Source shall submit 
the reports and compliance cettificatlons required under the Acid Rain Proqram. including those under 40 
CFR part 7Z subpart I and 40 CFR part 75. 

Liability. 

(1) Any person who knowingly violates any requirement or prohibition of the Acid Rain Program, a 
complete Acid Rain permit application. an Acid Rain permit. or a wntten exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 or 
72.8, including any requirement for the payment of any penattv owed [0 rhe United States, shall be 
subject to enforcement pursuant to section 1 13(c) of the Act. 
12) Any person who knowingly makes a false. material statement in any record. submission, or report 
under the Acid Rain Program shalt be subject to criminal enforcement pursuant to section 11 3{c} of the 
Act and 18 V.S.C. 100l. 
13) No permit revision shall excuse any violation of the requiremenrs of the Acid Rain Program that 
occurs prior to the date that the revision takes effect. 
(4) Each affected source and each affe';ted unit shall meet the requirements of the Acid Rain Program. 
(5) Any provision of the Acid Rain Program that applies to an affected source (inchJding a provision 
applicable to the designated representative of an affected source} shall also apnlv to the owners and 
operators of such source and of the affected units at the source. 
(6} Any provision of the Acid Rain Program that applies to an affected unit lincluding a provision 
applicable to the designated representative of an affected unit! shall also applv to the owners and 
operators of such unit. Except as provided under 40 CFR 72.44 (Phase II rcnowering extension plans! 
and 40 CFR 76.11 (NOwaveraging plans), and except with regard ,0 the requirements applicable to units 
with a common stack under 40 CFR part 75 (including 40 CFR 75.16, 75.17. and 75.181. the owners 
and operators and the designated representative of one affected unit shall not be liable for any violation 
by any other affected unit of which they are not owners or operators or the designated representative 
and that is located at a source of which they are not owners or operators or the designated 
representative. 
(7) Each violation of a provision of 40 CFR parts 72, 73. 74. 75. 76. 77. and 78 by an affected source or 
affected unit, or by an owner or operator or designated representative of such source or unit, shall be a 
separate violation of the Act. 

Effect on Other Authorities. No provision of the Acid Rain Program. an Acid Rain permit application, an 
Acid Rain permit. or a written exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 or 72.S shall OP. construed as: 

(11 Except as expressly provided in title IV of the Act. exempting 0: excluding the owners and operators 
and. to the extent applicable. the desi9nat~d representative of an affacled source or affected unit from 
compliance with any other provision of th~ Act, includinq the pro v .s.ons of title I of the Act relating to 
applicable National Ambient Air Quality Standards or State lrnplemsntenon Plans; 
(2) Limiting the number of allowances a unit can hold: pro·tided, tr st the number of allowances held by
 
the unit shall not aifec, the source's obligation to comply with any other provisions of the Act;
 
(3) Requiring a change of any kind in any State Iaw regulating e!e::f1c utilitY rates and charges. affecting
 
any State taw regarding such State reg~la!ion. or limiting such Sta;e regdatlon. inclUding any prudence
 
review requirements under such State law:
 
(4) Modifying the Federal Power Act or affecting the authority of '\:;e FederLlI Energy Regulatory
 
Commission under the Federal Power Act; or,
 
15) Interfering with or impairinQ any program for competitive biddi~g ~or power supply in a State in which
 
such program is established.
 

Certification 

I am authorized to make this submission on behalf of the owners o:~d cperarcrs of the affected source or 
affected units for which the submission IS made. I cer nfv undar p"";:rlalty of law that I have personally 
examined. and am familiar with. the statements and intormericn sucnurted in nus document and all irs 
attachments. Based on my inquiry of those individuals with prtma-v responsibility for obtaining the 
information. I certify that the statements and information are to tr e b<!S1: or my knowledge and belief true, 
accurate. and complete. I am aware that there are siqmfican; penelues for SUbmitting false statements 
and information or ornirtinq required statements and information. mch..lC)lng (he possibility of fine or 
imprisonment. 

Carlton D, Grimm 
Name 

,;,.,.- ..,'- L>!(.o.;.. t•• ~ .. _ ....... I'_~_._.·-....._ '2 ·( ';~"·"i",;2L.lrrJ
 
Signature Datel

STEP 5 {optional} 
Enter the source AIRS 
and FINDS identification 
numbers, if known I"~

FINDS 

EPA Form 7610·16 (rev. 12·94; previous versions obsolete; 

OP0513-08 H-6 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



Appendix I Compliance Assurance Monitoring Plan 

1. Background: 

a. Emissions Unit Identification 

PPL Montana, LLC 
Colstrip Steam Electric Station (CSES) 
Rosebud County 
Colstrip, Montana 
ORSIPL # 6076 

CSES Unit I Tan ential Coal-Fired Boiler MTD00071 0236 
CSES Unit 2 Tan ential Coal-Fired Boiler MTD000710236 
CSES Unit 3 Tan ential Coal-Fired Boiler MTD00071 0236 
CSES Unit 4 Tan ential Coal-Fired Boiler MTD000710236 

b. Applicable Regulations, Emission Limits, and Monitoring Requirements 

40 CFR Part 60, Subparts A 20% (6-min. COMS O.IOlb/MMBtu 3-run RM5 
&D Av ) Test 

2 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts A 20% (6-min. COMS O.IOlb/MMBtu 3-run RM5 
&D Av ) Test 

3 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts A 20% (6-min. COMS 0.05 Ib/MMBtu 3-run RM5 
& D, 40 CFR 52.21, ARM Avg) & 379lbIHr Test 

17.8.710 
4 40 CFR Part 60, Subparts A 20% (6-min. COMS 0.05 Ib/MMBtu 3-run RM5 

& D, 40 CFR 52.21, ARM Avg) '& 379lbIHr Test 
17.8.710 

c. Control Technology Description 

Colstrip Units 1 & 2 

The scrubbers at Colstrip Units I & 2 are three-vessel venturi and spray absorber 
systems. During normal full load operations all three scrubber vessels are in service, 
each one treating about 1/3 of the flue gas. 

The flue gas enters the scrubber vessel and is accelerated by the converging surfaces of 
the plumb bob and venturi bowl. The flue gas and slurry meet in the venturi throat where 
turbulence atomizes the slurry. Acceleration of the flue gas causes particulate to collide 
with and be absorbed by slurry droplets. 

The majority of fly ash particulate and most of the S02 are removed in the venturi 
section. The throat area of the venturi is adjusted by moving the plumb bob up or down 
to obtain the desired pressure drop across the plumb bob of each scrubber. The fl ue gas 

OP0513-08 I-I Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



velocity caused by this pressure drop ensures optimum fly ash removal. The slurry and 
collected fly ash are separated from the flue gas as it turns up to enter the absorption 
spray area. 

The flue gas enters the absorption spray area in the annular space between the 
downcomer and the shell of the scrubber vessel. The flue gas is contacted with recycle 
slurry for additional removal of S02. Above the absorption section is a wash tray which 
uses recirculation water to contact the flue gas and remove entrained recycle slurry from 
the flue gas. 

The flue gas then flows through the mist eliminator where entrained water droplets are 
removed. 

After being treated, the flue gas exits the scrubber vessels. The treated gas is raised in 
temperature as it passes through a steam reheater and then discharged to the stack through 
the induced draft fan. 

Colstrip Units 3 & 4 

There are eight wet venturi scrubber vessels on each unit. Six to seven vessels are used 
during normal full load operations. A typical Units 3 & 4 scrubber vessel is illustrated in 
IC-2. 

The flue gas enters the scrubber vessel and is accelerated by the converging surfaces of 
the plumb bob and venturi bowl. The flue gas and slurry meet in the venturi throat where 
turbulence atomizes the slurry. Acceleration of the flue gas causes particulate to collide 
with and be absorbed by slurry droplets. 

The majority of fly ash particulate and most of the SO] are removed in the venturi 
section. The throat area ofthe venturi is adjusted by moving the plumb bob up or down 
to obtain the desired pressure drop across the plumb bob of each scrubber. The flue gas 
velocity caused by this pressure drop ensures optimum fly ash removal. The slurry and 
collected fly ash are separated from the flue gas as it turns up to enter the absorption 
spray area. 

The flue gas enters the absorption spray area in the annular space between the 
downcomer and the shell of the scrubber vessel. The flue gas is contacted with recycle 
slurry for additional removal of S02. Above the absorption section is a wash tray which 
uses recirculation water to contact the flue gas and remove entrained recycle slurry from 
the flue gas. 

The flue gas then flows through the mist eliminator where entrained water droplets are 
removed. 

After being treated, the flue gas exits the scrubber vessels. The treated gas is raised in 
temperature as it passes through a steam reheater and then discharged to the stack through 
the induced draft fan. 

OP0513-08 1-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



2. Particulate CAM Plan Approach and Performance Indicators 

Monitorinz Approach for PM for Units 1-4 

Monitoring Indicator Performance Indicator Range Monitoring Method 

Opacity Daily Average <20% COM/Continuous 

Plumb Bob ~P 
Plumb Bob ~P > 17 inches water 

column 
Plant Control Room Operator 

Monitor/Continuous 

Venturi Spray System 
Periods of scrubber operation 

without the venturi sprays < I hour 
Plant Control Room Operator 

Monitor/Continuous 

Opacity 

Opacity is a key performance indicator for assuring compliance with the PM limit. Opacity is measured 
in the stack on a continuous basis by an opacity monitor installed on the stack. This monitor is a double
pass, two detector in-situ analyzer that utilizes an electronically modulated intensity-controlled solid state 
LED to ensure stable operation. Basic system components include the transmissometer, the retroreflector 
and control unit in the stack; and remote readout that accompanies the B&W-Enertec Data Acquisition 
and Handling System (DAHS) in the plant control room. Percent opacity data is recorded as minute 
averages in the DAHS. Six-minute, hourly, and daily opacity averages are calculated utilizing the base 
minute data. As stated in the PPLM CEMS QA Plan, daily COMs calibration drift checks are conducted 
and quarterly opacity accuracy audits are conducted. PM emissions will be considered to be in 
compliance with the applicable limits when the opacity is :S 20% as measured on a daily average. As a 
note, one six-minute period per hour of up to 27% opacity is allowed. Data regarding opacity monitoring 
is reported on a quarterly basis unless required otherwise during any excursion as required by Section 
V.E. of the permit. The Daily Average Opacity indicator is based on; 

I.	 Annual performance tests have indicated that the PM standard is met when opacity is :S 20%. 
These Reference Method 5 performance tests consist of three runs conducted in a day. 

2.	 Opacity has never exceeded 20% during a Colstrip Units 1-4 PM compliance test that 
demonstrated compliance with the particulate standard; therefore, it is appropriate to use a 
20% daily opacity indicator as assurance that the units are in compliance with the applicable 
PM emission limits. Annual PM compliance testing has been conducted on Colstrip Units 1-4 
since their initial commercial operations. The average results of these tests since the last revision 
to the CAM plan are presented in the following table. 

PPL Montana Colstrip Units 1-4
 
Stack Particulate Emissions Tests
 

EPA Method 5B
 

OS/27/04 0.026 95.2 NA 

04/15/05 0.042 139.9 14.0 

05/11/06 0.042 129.5 16.2 

05/02/07 0.049 157.6 15.3 

05/01/08 0.035 117.8 16.1 

04/22/09 0.034 110.9 17.8 

07/07/10 0.031 100.3 16.0 

10/19/11 0.027 91.6 17.3 

OP0513-08 1-3 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 0 I10412013 



2 

3 

4 

06/14/04 0.058 208.3 NA 
04/20/05 0.045 147.0 15.9 

OS/24/06 0.042 139.6 16.6 
04/25/07 0.060 189.3 18.0 

08/27/08 0.025 77.7 17.1 

04/29/09 0.033 111.2 18.0 

06/02/10 0.026 82.6 16.3 

10/27/11 0.037 118.5 18.0 

09/15/04 0.035 276.9 NA 
04/07/05 0.033 255.0 17.4 

07/06/06 0.034 262.1 16.5 

07/19/07 0.024 186.0 15.3 

05/14/08 0.020 149.8 13.1 

05/06/09 0.018 133.5 15.6 

05/05/10 0.022 168.3 16.2 

03/17/11 0.020 155.2 14.1 

06/30/04 0.044 306.8 NA 
02/16/05 0.034 254.4 16.6 

11/10/05 0.032 245.8 17.3 

04/05/06 0.029 210.6 14.3 

10/11/06 0.030 224.7 16.2 

04/18/07 0.032 243.8 12.4 

04/22/08 0.035 254.8 16.9 

11/24/09 0.022 169.9 17.5 

05/12/10 0.019 140.1 14.6 

04/07/11 0.031 237.5 17.7 

Scrubber Plumb Bob Pressure Drop (AP) 

A review of historical plumb bob ~P indicates that operation ofthe scrubbers with plumb bob ~P greater 
than 17 inches water column helps ensure compliance with the particulate standard. The control room 
operators monitor scrubber plumb bob ~P on a regular basis to ensure proper operation and will take 
corrective action as needed to make sure the scrubber is operating at the proper plumb bob ~P conditions. 
A daily average of the operating scrubber plumb bob ~P's below 17 inches water column will be reported 
in the quarterly report as a CAM plan excursion. 

Scrubber Venturi Sprays 

The venturi spray system is designed so that when the pumps are operating, the proper spray flow is 
provided to the venturi section of the scrubbers. The control room operators monitor venturi spray 
operation on a regular basis to ensure proper scrubber operation. A venturi spray pump shutdown will 
alarm in the control room which helps the operator take corrective action immediately to make sure the 
scrubber is operating as designed. Periods of scrubber operation without the venturi sprays are expected 
to be infrequent and for short periods of time. Periods of individual scrubber operation without venturi 
sprays for more than I hour will be reported in the quarterly report as a CAM plan excursion. 

OP0513-08 1-4 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix J Mercury Emissions Monitoring System (MEMS) 
(These requirements are "State Only") 

MEMS 

a.	 For each Unit 1-4, PPLM shall install, calibrate, certify, maintain, and operate an MEMS to 
monitor and record the rate of mercury emissions discharged into the atmosphere from all 
mercury emitting generating units (units) as defined in the Administrative Rules of Montana 
17.8.740. 

(I)	 The MEMS shall be comprised of equipment as required in 40 CFR 75.81(a) and defined in 
40 CFR 72.2. 

(2) The MEMS shall conform to all applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 75. 

(3) The MEMS data will be used to demonstrate compliance with the emission limitations 
contained in Section Ill.L, J • 

b. PPLM shall prepare, maintain and submit a written MEMS Monitoring Plan to the Department. 

(J)	 The monitoring plan shall contain sufficient information on the MEMS and the use of data 
derived from these systems to demonstrate that all the gaseous mercury stack emissions from 
each unit are monitored and reported. 

(2) Whenever PPLM makes a replacement, modification, or change in a MEMS or alternative 
monitoring system under 40 CFR Part 75 subpart E, including a change in the automated data 
acquisition and handling system (DAHS) or in the flue gas handling system, that affects 
information reported in the monitoring plan (e.g. a change to a serial number for a component 
of a monitoring system), then the owner or operator shall update the monitoring plan. 

(3) If any monitoring plan information requires an update pursuant to Section b.(2), submission 
of the written monitoring plan update shall be completed prior to or concurrent with the 
submittal of the quarterly report required in c. below for the quarter in which the update is 
required. 

(4) The initial submission of the Monitoring Plan to the Department shall include a copy ofa 
written Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Plan as detailed in 40 CFR Part 75 
Appendix B, Section 1. Subsequently, the QAlQC Plan need only be submitted to the 
Department when it is substantially revised. Substantial revisions can include items such as 
changes in QA/QC processes resulting from rule changes, modifications in the frequency or 
timing of QA/QC procedures, or the addition/deletion of equipment or procedures. 

(5) The Monitoring Plan shall include, at a minimum, the following information: 

(a) Facility summary including: 

(i)	 A description of each mercury-emitting generating unit at the facility. 

(ii) Maximum and average loads (in megawatts (MW)) with fuels combusted and fuel 
flow rates at the maximum and average loads for each unit. 

(iii)A description of each unit's air pollution control equipment and a description of the 
physical characteristics of each unit's stack. 

OP0513-08 1-1 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



(b) Mercury emission control summary including a description of control strategies, 
equipment, and design process rates. 

(c)	 MEMS description, including: 

(i)	 Identification and description of each monitoring component in the MEMS including 
manufacturer and model identifications; monitoring method descriptions; and normal 
operating scale and units descriptions. Descriptions of stack flow, diluent gas, and 
moisture monitors (if used) in the system must be described in addition to the 
mercury monitor or monitors. 

(ii) A description of the normal operating process for each monitor including a 
description of all QA/QC checks. 

(iii) A description of the methods that will be employed to verify and maintain the 
accuracy and precision of the MEMS calibration equipment. 

(iv) Identification and description of the DAHS, including major hardware and software 
components, conversion formulas, constants, factors, averaging processes, and 
missing data substitution procedures. 

(v)	 A description of all initial certification and ongoing recertification tests and 
frequencies; as well as all accuracy auditing tests and frequencies. 

(d)	 The Maximum Potential Concentration (MPC), Maximum Expected Concentration 
(MEC), span value, and range value as applicable and as defined in 40 CFR Part 75 
Appendix A, 2.1.7. 

(e) Examples of all data reports required in c. below. 

c.	 PPLM shall submit written, Quarterly Mercury Monitoring Reports. The reports shall be 
received by the Department within 30 days following the end of each calendar quarter, and shall 
include, at a minimum, the following: 

(I)	 Mercury emissions. The reports shall include: 

(a)	 For each Unit 1-4, the monthly average lb/TBtu mercury emission rate for each month of 
the quarter; 

(b) For each Unit 1-4, the 12-month rolling average Ib/TBtu emission rate for each month of 
the reporting quarter. The rolling 12-month basis is an average ofthe last 12 individual 
calendar monthly averages, with each monthly average calculated at the end of each 
calendar month; and 

(c)	 For each Unit 1-4, the total heat input to the boiler (in TBtu) for each 12-month rolling 
period of the quarter. 

(d) The 12-month facility-wide rolling average Ib/TBtu mercury emission rate, calculated 
according to Section BI.L. 1, for each month of the quarter. 

OP0513-08 J-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



(2) Mercury excess emissions. The report shall describe the magnitude of excess mercury 
emissions experienced during the quarter, including: 

(a)	 The date and time of commencement and completion of each period of excess emissions. 
Periods of excess emissions shall be defined as those emissions calculated on a rolling 
12-month basis which are greater than the limitation established in Section BI.L.I. 

(b) The nature and cause of each period of excess emissions and the corrective action taken 
or preventative measures adopted in response. 

(c)	 If no periods of excess mercury emissions were experienced during the quarter, the report 
shall state that information. 

(3) MEMS performance. The report shall describe: 

(a)	 The number of operating hours that the MEMS was unavailable or not operating within 
quality assurance limits (monitor downtime) during the reporting quarter, broken down 
by the following categories: 

•	 Monitor equipment malfunctions; 

Non-Monitor equipment malfunctions; 

Quality assurance calibration; 

•	 Other known causes; and 

Unknown causes. 

(b) The percentage of unit operating time that the MEMS was unavailable or not operating 
within quality assurance limits (monitor downtime) during the reporting quarter. The 
percentage of monitor downtime in each calendar quarter shall be calculated according to 
the following formula: 

. 0/ (MEMSDownHo urs ] 100MEMS'Downtimev/e = x where 
OpHours 

MEMSDowntime% Percentage of unit operating hours classified as MEMS 
monitor downtime during the reporting quarter. 

MEMSDownHours Total number of hours of MEMS monitor downtime 
during the reporting quarter. 

OpHours Total number of hours the unit operated during the 
reporting quarter. 

(c)	 For any reporting quarter in which monitor downtime exceeds 10%, a description of each 
time period during which the MEMS was inoperative or operating in a manner defined in 
40 CFR Part 75 as "out of control." Each description must include the date, start and end 
times, total downtime (in hours), the reason for the system downtime, and any necessary 
corrective actions that were taken. In addition, the report shall describe the values used 
for any periods when missing data substitution was necessary as detailed in 40 CFR 
75.30. 

OP0513-08 1-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 0 I/04/20 13 



(4) The quarterly report shall include the results of any QA/QC audits, checks, or tests conducted 
to satisfy the requirements of 40 CFR Part 75 Appendices A, B or K. 

(5)	 Compliance certification. Each quarterly report shall contain a certification statement signed 
by the facility's responsible official based on reasonable inquiry of those persons with 
primary responsibility for ensuring that all ofthe unit's emissions are correctly and fully 
monitored. The certification shall indicate: 

(a)	 Whether the monitoring data submitted were recorded in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of 40 CFR Part 75 including the QAlQC procedures and specifications of 
that part and its appendices, and any such requirements, procedures and specifications of 
an applicable excepted or approved alternative monitoring method as represented in the 
approved Monitoring Plan. 

(b) That for all hours where data are substituted in accordance with 40 CFR 75.38, the add
on mercury emission controls were operating within the range of parameters listed in the 
quality-assurance plan for the unit, and that the substitute values do not systematically 
underestimate mercury emissions. 

(6)	 The format of each component of the quarterly report may be negotiated with the 
Department's representative to accommodate the capabilities and formats of the facility's 
DAHS. 

(7)	 Each quarterly report must be received by the Department within 30 days following the end 
of each calendar reporting period (January-March, April-June, July-September, and October
December). 

(8) The electronic data reporting detailed in 40 CFR Part 75 shall not be required unless Montana 
is able to receive and process data in an electronic format. 

d.	 PPLM shall maintain a file of all measurements and performance testing results from the MEMS; 
all MEMS performance evaluations; all MEMS or monitoring device calibration checks and 
audits; and records of all adjustments and maintenance performed on these systems or devices 
recorded in a permanent form suitable for inspection. The file shall be retained on site for at least 
5 years following the date of such measurements and reports. PPLM shall make these records 
available for inspection by the Department and shall supply these records to the Department upon 
request. 

OP0513-08 J-4 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



5

10

15

20

25

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

II 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA
 

IN THE MATTER OF: CASE NO. BER 2013-01 AQ 
THE REQUEST FOR HEARING BY 
MONTANA ENVIRONMENTAL 
INFORMATION CENTER AND SIERRA 
CLUB REGARDING DEQ'S ISSUANCE 
OF MONTANA AIR QUALITY 
OPERATING PERMIT NO. OP0513-08 
FOR THE COLSTRIP STEAM 
ELECTRIC STATION IN COLSTRIP, MT 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER
 

Ms. Jenny K. Harbin, Counsel for Montana Environmental Information 

Center and Sierra Club (hereinafter Appellants), filed a Request for Hearing 

appealing the decision of the Montana Department of Environmental Quality 

(Department) of December 4, 2013, issuing Montana Air Quality Operating Permit 

No. OP0513-08 for the Colstrip Steam Electric Station in Colstrip, Montana. The 

following guidelines and rules are provided to assist the parties in an orderly 

resolution of this contested case: 

1. REFERENCES: This matter is governed, as far as authority to 

proceed, by the Montana Administrative Procedure Act, Mont. Code Ann. Tit. 2, 

Ch. 4, Pt. 6, and Mont. Admin. R. 17.4.101, by which the Board of Environmental 

Review (Board) has adopted the Attorney General's Model Rules for contested 

cases, Mont. Admin. R. 1.3.211 through 1.3.225; and Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218. 

2. FILING: Except for discovery requests and responses (which are not 

routinely filed), original documents shall be sent for filing with the Board, 

addressed as follows: 

Ms. Joyce Wittenberg 
Secretary, Board of Environmental Review 
Department of Environmental Quality 
1520 East Sixth Avenue 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER 
PAGE 1 



5

10

15

20

25

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

One £Ql!Y of each document that is filed should be sent to the Hearing 

Examiner addressed as follows: 

KA THERINE J. ORR
 
Hearing Examiner
 
Agency Legal Services Bureau
 
1712 Ninth Avenue
 
P.O. Box 201440
 
Helena, MT 59620-1440
 

Although discovery documents are not normally filed, when a motion or brief 

is filed making reference to discovery documents, the party filing the motion or 

brief should also attach the relevant discovery documents. 

3. SERVICE: Copies of all documents filed with the Board and 

provided to the Hearing Examiner, including correspondence, must be served upon 

the opposing party. A certificate of service should be provided. 

4. EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS: The Montana Administrative 

Procedure Act in Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-613, and the Attorney General's Model 

Rule 18 in Mont. Admin. R. 1.3.222, prohibit ex parte communications with a 

hearing examiner concerning any issue of fact or law in a contested case. In 

addition to observing this rule, please contact the opposing party before you 

communicate with the Hearing Examiner even on purely procedural matters such as 

the need for a continuance. 

5. SCHEDULING: The undersigned requests that the parties consult 

with each other and propose to the undersigned a schedule upon which they agree by 

January 31, 2013. The schedule should include the following dates: 

(a) for joinder/intervention of additional parties; 

(b) for disclosure by each party to the other parties of: (1) the 

name and address of each individual likely to have discoverable information that the 

disclosing party may use to support its claims or defenses, and (2) a copy of, or a 

description by category and location of, all documents and tangible things that are in 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER 
PAGE 2 



5

10

15

20

25

2
 

3
 

4
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

I I
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

26
 

27
 

the possession, custody, or control of the party and that the disclosing party may use 

to support its claims or defenses; 

(c) for completion of discovery (if any party wishes to conduct 

discovery); 

(d) for exchange of lists of witnesses and copies of documents that 

each party intends to offer at the hearing; 

(e) for submitting any motions and briefs in support; 

(f) for a prehearing conference to hear argument on any motions 

and resolve other prehearing matters; and, 

(g) for the contested case hearing, as well as the place of hearing. 

6. A copy of this First Prehearing Order is being provided to the permit 

applicant, PPL Montana, LLC. No separate motion to intervene is required if the 

permit applicant complies with this Order and proposes a schedule for further 

proceedings after consultation with the other parties. The permit applicant shall be 

considered to have intervened in these contested case proceedings by timely 

submitting a proposed. ~dule. 

DATED this /() day of January, 2013. 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER
 
PAGE 3
 



5

10

15

20

25

2
 

3
 

4
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

11
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

26
 

27
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I caused a true and accurate copy of the foregoing First 

Prehearing Order to be mailed to: 

Ms. Joyce Wittenberg 
Secretary, Board of Environmental Review 
Department of Environmental Quality 
1520 East Sixth Avenue 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 
(original) 

Mr. Norm Mullen 
Legal Counsel 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 20090 I
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

Mr. David Klemp, Bureau Chief 
Air Resources Management Bureau 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

Ms. Jenny K. Harbine
 
Ms. Laura D. Beaton
 
Earthjustice
 
313 East Main Street
 
Bozeman, MT 59715
 

Mr. James M. Parker
 
PPL Montana, LLC
 
303 N. Broadway, Suite 400
 
Billings, MT 59101
 

DATED~ (&) dt>/1 ~---------

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER 

PAGE4 



f ---~-.. 
Montana Departn>ent of 

~ ENVIRONMENTAL QuALITY	 MEMo 

TO:	 Katherine Orr, Hearing Examiner . -----:=-__

Board of Environmental Review ~--"''''''\ 

FROM:	 Joyce Wittenberg, Board S~~._A~~~ 
Board of Environmental Revier 
P.O. Box 200901 '.. 

<, /
Helena, MT 59620-0901 

DATE: January 7,2013 

SUBJECT: Board of Environmental Review Case No. BER 2013-02 AQ 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
THE REQUEST FOR HEARING BY MONTANA 
ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION CENTER 
AND SIERRA CLUB REGARDING DEQ'S Case No. BER 2013-02 AQ 
ISSUANCE OF MONTANA AIR QUALITY 
OPERATING PERMIT NO. OP2953-07 FOR 
THE JE CORETTE STEAM ELECTRIC 
STATION IN BILLINGS, MT. 

The BER has received the attached request for hearing. Also attached is DEQ's administrative 
document(s) relating to this request. 

Please serve copies of pleadings and correspondence on me and on the following DEQ 
representatives in this case. 

Norman Mullen David Klemp, Bureau Chief 
Legal Counsel Air Resources Management Bureau 
Department of Environmental Quality Department ofEnvironmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901 P.O. Box 200901 
Helena, MT 59620-0901 Helena, MT 59620-0901 

Attachments 
c: Jenny K. Harbine and Laura D. Beaton, Earthjustice, for Appellants 



Filed wut: the 

Jenny K. Harbine MONTANA BOARD OF
 
Laura D. Beaton
 
Earthjustice ENVI~MENTAL REVIEW~
 
313 East Main Street
 »« .3" dayo~,~3Bozeman,MT 59715 
(406) 586-9699
 
Fax: (406) 596-9695 ~~.m.~
 
jharbine@earthjusticc.org
 
lbeaton@earthjusticc.org
 

Counselfor Appellants Montana Environmental
 
Information Center and Sierra Club
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATEOF MONTANA 

IN THE MATTEROF: 
MONTANA AIR QUALITY OPERATING 
PERMITNUMBER0P2953-07 FORTHE JE REQUEST FOR HEARING 
CORETTESTEAMELECTRIC STATION, 
BILLINGS, MONTANA 

Pursuant to Mont.Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5), MontanaEnvironmental Information Center 

and SierraClub ("Appellants") herebyrequesta hearing beforethe Board of Environmental 

Review. Appellants and their respective members are adverselyaffectedby the Department of 

Environmental Quality's ("DEQ'') December4, 2012,decision to issuean Air QualityOperating 

Permit for the JE CoretteSteamElectric Station in Billings, Montana. As provided by Mont. 

Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5), togetherwith this requestforhearing, Appellants are filing an 

affidavit setting forth the groundsforthis request. 

Respectfully requested this 3rd day ofJanuary, 2013, 

J~ 
On behalfof'Appellants 



,-

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
 

I hereby certify that I caused complete and accurate copies of the foregoing Request for 

Hearing and Affidavit to be served on the following persons this 3rd day of January, 2013, by 

first class United States mail, postage-prepaid, and electronic mail: 

Richard Opper, Director 
Montana Department of Environmental Quality 
1520 East Sixth Avenue 
P. O. Box 200901 
Helena, Montana 59620-0901 

Norm Mullen, Attorney 
Montana Department of Environmental Quality 
1520 East Sixth Avenue 
P. O. Box 200901 
Helena, Montana 59620-0901 

~-----

3
 

"1;1 I ,·1,1 . 'l I .'
 



Jenny K. Harbine 
Laura D. Beaton 
Earthjustice 
313 East Main Street 
Bozeman, MT 59715 
(406) 586-9699 
Fax: (406) 596-9695 
jharbine@earthjustice.org 
lbeaton@earthjustice.org 

Counsel for Appellants Montana Environmental 
Information Center and Sierra Club 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

) 
) Case No. f;tIZ ;)/.)13 -0.;)- A-Q 
) 

IN THE MATTER OF: ~ 
MONTANA AIR QUALITY OPERATING ) AFFIDAVIT OF MONTANA 
PERMIT NUMBER OP2953-07 FOR THE JE ) ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 
CORETTE STEAM ELECTRIC STATION, ) CENTER AND SIERRA CLUB 
BILLINGS, MONTANA ~ 

) 
) 

----------------) 

Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5), Appellants Montana Environmental 

Information Center and Sierra Club ("Appellants") hereby submit an affidavit setting forth the 

grounds for their request for hearing, which is timely filed with this affidavit. 

On behalf of Appellants, Anne Hedges declares as follows: 

I. Appellants seek review of the Department of Environmental Quality's ("DEQ") 

Air Quality Operating Permit (OP2953-07) for the JE Corette coal-fired power plant ("Corette" 

or "Corette plant"), dated December 4, 2012. See Air Quality Operating Permit OP2953-07 

(Dec. 4, 2012) ("Permit"), available at http://deq.mt.gov/AirQuality/ARMpermits/OP2953

07_DEC.pdf, excerpts attached as Exhibit I. The Permit is subject to review by the Board of 

Environmental Review pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218(5). 



INTRODUCTION
 

2. The Corette plant, located on the banks of the Yellowstone River in Billings, 

Montana, is a coal-fired power plant with a capacity of approximately 153 megawatts. The 

burning of coal at the plant releases many harmful air pollutants into the urbanized Billings area, 

including particulate matter, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, mercury, and other hazardous air 

pollutants. These air pollutants can harm public health, impair visibility, and cause acid rain. 

3. PPL Montana recently announced its intent to place the Corette plant on "reserve" 

status-also called "mothballing"-in April, 2015, to avoid upgrading the facility to comply 

with new federal standards designed to protect the public from exposure to air toxics. Despite 

this announcement, PPL Montana has not committed to closing the plant, and thus, the plant's 

operating permit must include all applicable requirements that will apply to the facility during 

the Permit's five-year duration. 

4. DEQ recently renewed Corette's operating permit, as required by Title V of the 

federal Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661-7661 f, and the Clean Air Act of Montana, Mont. Code 

Ann. § 75-2-217. Title V operating permits must specify all of the requirements to which a 

source is subject, including not just emission limits, but also monitoring and recordkeeping 

requirements sufficient to determine whether a source is complying with those limits. See Mont. 

Admin. R. 17.8.1211-1213. The purpose of the permit is to enable regulators, source operators, 

and the public to easily identify and understand all applicable requirements and to ensure that 

such requirements are enforceable. 

5. DEQ's permit for Corette fails at this basic task. Although coal plant emission 

limits that the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") adopted through the hazardous air 

pollutant standards and the Montana regional haze plan are "applicable requirements" that must 

be included in operating permits under Title V of the Clean Air Act and the Clean Air Act of 

2 

I" +til I I ~ II , I' 1,1 "III I "II j I 



Montana, DEQ omitted any mention of them in the Corette Permit. When confronted with this 

failure, DEQ's only response was to state that it will reopen the Permit in the future to 

incorporate these clear requirements. However, DEQ's promise to comply with the law in the 

future does not remedy its failure to comply with the law at the time it issued the Permit, and 

thus the Permit does not allow the public or the source operator to know and understand 

applicable requirements. 

6. Further, the Permit fails to clearly identify the applicable sulfur dioxide ("S02") 

emissions limits for Corette. Instead, the Permit merely provides a reference to another 

document, which is not attached to the Permit and which establishes a variable S02 limit based 

on an equation, rather than a clear and fixed emission limit. Worse, the equation requires values 

that are known only to PPL Montana, Corette's operator, making it impossible for the public, or 

even DEQ, to know Corette's S02 emission limit at any given time. This approach defeats the 

operating permit's purposes of clarifying the source's requirements and enabling enforcement. 

7. DEQ also failed to include monitoring provisions sufficient to demonstrate 

compliance with particulate matter ("PM") emission limits. Specifically, the Permit requires 

monitoring of PM for only three hours, twice per year, and thus fails to require monitoring 

frequent enough to assure compliance with hourly limits on PM emissions. 

8. DEQ's failure to include essential emission limits and monitoring requirements in 

the Corette operating permit may preclude effective state or citizen enforcement of these limits, 

potentially allowing greater pollution of the air that Montanans breathe. 

9. This appeal seeks to require DEQ to comply with its obligations under the state's 

operating permit program and the federal Clean Air Act to include all "applicable requirements" 

in the Corette Title V operating permit. 

3 



THE AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT PROGRAM
 

10. Congress created the federal Clean Air Act to address growing public health and 

welfare concerns raised by the rapid increase of air pollution brought by widespread urbanization 

and industrial development in the latter half of the twentieth century. See 42 U.S.C. § 740 I(a). 

A key component of the Clean Air Act is the Title V operating permit program, which requires 

that major stationary sources of air pollution-such as coal-fired power plants-obtain permits 

that clearly identify all requirements to which the source is subject, including applicable 

emission limits, monitoring and record-keeping requirements, and other operating limits. See id. 

§ 7661 c; Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-217. Thus, the Title V operating permit program enables "the 

source, States, EPA, and the public to better understand the requirements to which the source is 

subject, and whether the source is meeting those requirements." U.S. EPA, Final Rule: 

Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. Reg. 32,250, 32,251 (July 21, 1992). Operating permits are 

generally issued by the state permitting authority-in Montana, DEQ-but EPA has the right to 

reject to any permit that does not comply with the federal Clean Air Act. See 42 U.S.C. § 

7661 d(b). 

II. An operating permit must include all of a pollution source's "applicable 

requirements." 42 U.S.C. § 7661 c(a). "Applicable requirements" include all provisions of 

applicable state or federal implementation plans, any Prevention of Significant Deterioration or 

New Source Review requirements, and any standard or requirement under Clean Air Act sections 

111,112, 114(a)(3), or 504. Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10); 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. Applicable 

requirements include "requirements that have been promulgated or approved [by DEQ or EPA] 

through rulemaking at the time of issuance of the air quality operating permit, but have future

effective compliance dates." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10); see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. Thus, 

4
 

11.11 I '1,1· j I I ... 



the operating permit lists all federally enforceable emissions limits applicable to polluting 

source. 

12. In addition to emission limits, operating pennits also must specify monitoring, 

recordkeeping, and reporting requirements that are "sufficient to assure compliance with the 

tenns and conditions of the permit." 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(c)(l); Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1212. 

13. Operating pennits serve an essential role by enabling the source and the public to 

understand the requirements to which the source is subject and enabling regulators and the public 

to enforce those requirements. As EPA explained in the preamble to its Title V regulations, 

"regulations are often written to cover broad source categories" leaving it "unclear which, and 

how, general regulations apply to a source." U.S. EPA, Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. Reg. 

at 32,251. Operating permits bridge this gap by "clarify[ing] and mak[ing] more readily 

enforceable a source's pollution control requirements," including making clear how general 

regulatory provisions apply to specific sources. Clean Air Act Amendments of 1989, S. Rep. 

101-228, reprinted in 1990 U.S.C.C.A.N. 3385,3730 (Dec. 20, 1989). In short, operating 

permits are supposed to link general regulatory provisions to a specific source to provide a way 

"to establish whether a source is in compliance." U.S. EPA, Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. 

Reg. at 32,251. 

THE CORETTE OPERATING PERMIT 

14. DEQ issued an operating permit for the Corette facility on December 4, 2012

more than two-and-a-halfyears after Corette's prior operating permit (OP2953-05) expired on 

August 25, 20 IO. 

15. After receiving PPL Montana's application for renewal of its Corette operating 

permit on April 16, 20 I0, DEQ began work on revising and renewing the permit, DEQ 

published the first draft permit for the Corette plant on May 16, 20 II. DEQ allowed thirty days 

5
 



for public comment, and Appellants submitted timely comments on June 16, 2011. DEQ issued 

a second draft permit and announced a new public comment period on August 10, 2012. 

Appellants submitted timely comments on this second draft of the permit on September 24,2012. 

16. Despite DEQ's lengthy delay in renewing the Corette operating permit, and 

detailed comments from Appellants informing DEQ of deficiencies in the draft permit, DEQ's 

final Corette Permit failed to comply with basic requirements of the federal and state operating 

permit programs. The Permit omits recently adopted emission limits that are "applicable 

requirements" under the federal Clean Air Act and the Clean Air Act of Montana and fails to 

require adequate monitoring of particulate matter. 

17. The omitted requirements include critical environmental safeguards. First, the 

Permit excludes hazardous air pollutant limits recently adopted by EPA at levels that it deemed 

necessary to protect human health. As described below in Claim One, the National Emission 

Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants require installation of "Maximum Achievable Control 

Technology" to control emissions of hazardous air pollutants such as mercury, acid gases (or 

S02 as a surrogate), and metallic hazardous air pollutants (or PM as a surrogate) by April 16, 

2015. 

18. Likewise, DEQ failed to include nitrogen oxide ("NOx"), S02, and PM emission 

limits that EPA recently finalized in its regional haze plan for Montana, described below in 

Claim Two. EPA established these new limits to comply with its Clean Air Act obligation to 

adopt measures to remedy impairment ofvisibility in national parks and wilderness areas, see 42 

U.S.c. § 7491(a), and specifically to require the nation's oldest and dirtiest large sources of air 

pollution to install state-of-the-art technology to eliminate or reduce their contribution to 

visibility impairment, see id. § 7491(b)(2)(A). 

6 

1"'IlIlII' I", I ,II . I ,I I 



19. DEQ also failed to clearly identify S02 emission limits. Instead, the Permit cross-

references a separate document, which is not attached to the Permit, that describes S02 limits as 

an equation based on the plant's "buoyancy flux" at any given time. Because the public and 

regulators have no way of knowing what Corette's buoyancy flux is at any given moment (or 

even what "buoyancy flux" is), it is impossible for them to understand Corette's S02 emission 

limit, let alone ascertain whether Corette is in compliance with this limit, as described below in 

Claim Three. By any measure, this approach does not satisfy the operating permit program's 

purpose of clarifying the requirements to which a source is subject. The Permit's opaque S02 

limit is particularly troubling given the historically unhealthful ambient levels of S02 in 

Yellowstone County, where Corette is located. See Mont. DEQ, Citizens' Guide to Air Quality 

in Montana, http://deq.mt.gov/airmonitoring/citguide/understanding.mcpx (last visited Jan. 3, 

2013); see also U.S. EPA, Currently Designated Nonattainment Areas for All Criteria Pollutants, 

http://www.epa.gov/oaqpsOOI/greenbklancI.html(lastvisitedJan.3.2013).This history 

emphasizes the need for clear and enforceable S02 emission limits in Corette's operating permit. 

20. Finally, DEQ failed to require sufficient monitoring to demonstrate compliance 

with existing permit limits on PM emissions, as described below in Claim Four. The Permit 

requires only semiannual "stack tests"-which measure PM emissions for only three hours-to 

monitor PM emissions. This infrequent monitoring is insufficient for assuring compliance with 

continuous PM limits applicable to Corette. Such compliance is essential to protecting public 

health, as PM pollution can cause respiratory problems, particularly for those with asthma; heart 

problems; and premature death. See U.S. EPA, Particulate Matter (PM): Health, 

http://www.epa.gov/pm/health.html(last visited Jan. 2, 2013). 

7
 



21. DEQ provided a copy of the draft permit to the EPA on October 17,2012. During 

the forty-five days afforded to EPA to review the Permit, see 42 U.S.c. § 766Id(b)(2), EPA took 

no action on the Permit, and on December 4, 2012, DEQ issued the Permit that is the subject of 

this appeal. 

HARM TO APPELLANTS 

22. Appellant Montana Environmental Information Center ("MEIC") is a member-

supported advocacy and public education organization based in Helena, Montana, that works to 

protect and restore Montana's natural environment. MEIC is a Montana nonprofit corporation, 

founded in 1973 by Montanans concerned with protecting and restoring Montana's natural 

environment. MEIC has worked extensively on addressing the impacts of air pollution in 

Montana. As a government agency watchdog, MEIC routinely reviews agency actions to assure 

that agencies and regulated entities comply with federal laws and regulations. MEIC and its 

membership are intensively involved in monitoring state and federal actions regarding the 

regulation of emissions from coal-fired power plants. MEIC also has a long history of 

advocating for state enforcement of air pollution-control laws at Corette, including by 

commenting on the draft operating permit for the plant. In short, MEIC has a deep institutional 

commitment to protecting and restoring air quality in and around the Corette plant. 

23. Appellant Sierra Club is a nationwide conservation organization with more than 

1.3 million members and supporters, approximately 2,000 of whom belong to the Montana 

Chapter. Sierra Club has advocated for regulation and prevention of air pollution from coal-fired 

power plants at both the federal level and in Montana. Sierra Club also advocates for regulation 

of air pollution associated with the Corette plant, including by attending public hearings, 

submitting public comments, and engaging in efforts to educate Montana residents about the 

health and ecological dangers of air pollution from coal-fired power plants. 

8 

,1,1 I .t , I .. 



24. Appellants submitted comments on the draft operating permit on June 16, 20 II, 

and September 24,2012. Appellants' members live and work in areas reached by air pollution 

from the Corette plant. Air pollution originating from the Corette coal-fired power plant 

threatens the health, livelihood, and enjoyment of Appellants' members in the Billings area and 

in other areas of Montana impacted by emissions from the Corette plant. 

FIRST CLAIM
 
(Failure to Assure Compliance with Hazardous Air Pollutant Standards)
 

25. Corette's operating permit fails to assure compliance with all applicable 

requirements because it does not include emission limits and related requirements established by 

recently promulgated hazardous air pollutant emission standards contained at 40 C.F.R. Part 63, 

Subpart UUUUU. See 40 C.F.R. § 70.I(b) ("All sources subject to these regulations shall have a 

permit to operate that assures compliance by the source with all applicable requirements."); 

ARM 17.8.1211-.1213 (enumerating requirements for air quality operating permit). 

26. The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAPs") for 

coal-fired power plants were promulgated and became effective on April 16,2012. See 

NESHAPs from Coal- and Oil-Fired Electric Utility Steam Generating Units, 77 Fed. Reg. 

9,304,9,304 (Feb. 16,2012). 

27. Pursuant to these standards, Corette must comply with limits on emissions of 

hazardous air pollutants such as mercury, acid gases (or SOz as a surrogate), and non-mercury 

metallic hazardous air pollutants (or PM as a surrogate) by April 16,2015. 40 C.F.R. §§ 

63.9984,63.9991. 

28. This compliance deadline falls within the five-year period covered by Corette's 

new operating permit. As such, the mercury and air toxics standards qualify as "applicable 

9 



requirement[s]" under Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10), and the Permit thus must have 

specifically required that Corette come into compliance with the standards by April 16,2015. 

29. Several of the new hazardous air pollutant standards may significantly affect 

Corette. For example, updated particulate matter controls will be necessary at Corette to meet 

EPA's PM limit for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Specifically, EPA has adopted 

a PM limit of 0.03 Ib/MMBtu as a surrogate for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. 

Corette's current PM limit is expressed as an equation, 0.882*H-o. 1664 
, where H is the heat input 

capacity in MMBtu per hour. Permit at 16 (condition G.2). Assuming a representative heat 

input capacity of 1,940 MMBtulhr, this current limit translates to approximately 0.25 Ib/MMBtu, 

nearly nine times greater than the new surrogate PM limit of 0.03 IblMMBtu under the new 

hazardous air pollutant standards. Corette must meet this significantly more stringent limit in 

2015. 

30. Further, the new mercury and air toxics standards establish an acid gas limit for 

HCI of 0.002 IbIMMBtu, or, alternatively, a facility can elect to comply with a surrogate limit on 

S02 of 0.20 Ib/MMBtu. DEQ must identify the acid gas or surrogate limit applicable to Corette 

and assure compliance with the new limit by or before the standards' effective date of April IS, 

2015. 

31. DEQ erroneously claims that it has "up to 18 months following promulgation to 

have the permit reopened and revised." Mont. DEQ, Operating Permit Technical Review 

Document for the Corette Steam Electric Station, at 45 (Dec. 4, 2012) ("TRD"), available at 

http://deq.mt.gov/AirQuality/ARMpermits/TRD2953-07_DEC.pdf, excerpts attached as Exhibit 

2. The hazardous air pollutant standards were promulgated months before the Permit issued. 

Because the federal standards are "requirements that have been promulgated or approved by 

10
 



[DEQ or EPA] through rulemaking at the time of issuance of the air quality operating permit," 

DEQ was required to include in Corette's Permit the mercury and air toxics emission limits and 

associated monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements. The provision allowing 

reopening and revision of an existing permit when a new requirement is promulgated is 

inapplicable here because the applicable requirements-the hazardous air pollutant standards-

had already been promulgated before the permit issued. See Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1228(l)(a); 

see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(f)(1 )(i); U.S. EPA, Questions and Answers on the Requirements of 

Operating Permits Program Regulations at 7-3 (July 7, 1993) ("Operating Permit Q & A"), 

available at http://www.epa.gov/region07/air/title5/t5memoslbbrd_qal.pdf, excerpts attached as 

Exhibit 3 (When an applicable requirement "is promulgated while a draft permit is being 

processed, the permitting authority must revise the permit to include the new requirements prior 

to issuance.") (emphasis added). 

32. The Corette Permit failed to include provisions needed to make enforceable the 

requirement that the Corette plant comply with the hazardous air pollutant standards, and thus 

the Permit unlawfully fails to "assure compliance" with all applicable requirements. See 42 

U.S.C. § 766Ic(a), (c); 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(c)(I). 

33. DEQ's failure to include applicable hazardous air pollutant limits and associated 

monitoring, reporting, and recordkeeping requirements in the Corette Permit is arbitrary, 

capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal Clean Air Act, the Clean Air Act of 

Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's operating permitting program. 

SECOND CLAIM
 
(Failure to Assure Compliance with Montana's
 
Regional Haze Federal Implementation Plan)
 

II 



34. Corette's operating permit also fails to assure compliance with all applicable 

requirements because it does not include emission limits and related requirements established by 

Montana's regional haze federal implementation plan. See 40 C.F.R. § 70.I(b); Mont. Admin. 

R. 17.8.1211-.1213 (enumerating requirements for air quality operating permit). 

35. EPA signed a final rule promulgating Montana's regional haze plan on August 15, 

2012, and published it in the Federal Register on September 18, 2012. See Approval and 

Promulgation ofImplementation Plans, 77 Fed. Reg. 57,864 (Sept. 18, 2012). EPA's final rule 

was promulgated prior to DEQ's issuance of the Corette operating permit. 

36. EPA adopted the regional haze plan to satisfy the federal Clean Air Act's 

requirement that EPA address and prevent visibility impairment at federal Class I air visibility 

areas. 42 U.s.C. § 741O(c). Thus, the plan's conditions are applicable requirements pursuant to 

Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201(10)(b) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. 

37. The Montana regional haze plan established new emission limits for Corette, 

specifically: 0.26Ibs/MMBtu of PM; 0.57Ibs/MMBtu ofSOz; and 0.35 Ibs/MMBtu ofNOx• 40 

C.F.R. § 52. 1396(c). 

38. The regional haze plan requires compliance with PM limits by November 17, 

2012. Id. § 52. 1396(d). 

39. The regional haze plan requires compliance with SOz and NOx limits within 180 

days of October 18, 2012, unless installation of additional emission controls is necessary to 

comply with the plan's emission limitations, in which case compliance is required within five 

years of October 18, 2012. Id. 

40. Although some of these regional haze requirements have future-effective 

compliance dates, the regional haze PM limit is already in effect, and the SOz and NO x deadlines 

12
 



are fast approaching. Further, all regional haze requirements will apply to Corette within the 

five-year duration of Corette's Permit and therefore must be incorporated into the Permit, along 

with all monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements outlined in the regional haze 

plan. See Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1201 (10); see also 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. 

41. DEQ did not include the applicable requirements of the regional haze plan in 

Corette's operating permit. 

42. In its Technical Review Document supporting the Corette Permit, DEQ 

recognized that the regional haze plan establishes requirements that are applicable to the Corette 

plant. TRD at 44. DEQ provided two justifications for nonetheless failing to incorporate those 

requirements into the final Permit; however, neither justification supports DEQ's omission. 

43. First, DEQ claimed that it was unnecessary to include the PM, S02, and NOx 

limits established by the regional haze plan because DEQ "has 18 months after promulgation to 

complete a reopening of the permit." TRD at 44. However, DEQ misapplies the cited 

regulation, which states that "[a]dditional applicable requirements under the [federal Clean Air 

Act] become applicable to a major source holding a permit with a remaining term of three or 

more years. Reopening and revision of the permit shall be completed not later than 18 months 

after promulgation of the applicable requirement." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1228( I)(a); see also 40 

C.F.R. § 70.7(f)(1)(i). This provision applies only to permits that have already been issued at the 

time a new applicable requirement arose. Indeed, EPA has clarified that ifan applicable 

requirement "is promulgated while a draft permit is being processed, the permitting authority 

must revise the permit to include the new requirements prior to issuance." Operating Permit Q & 

A at 7-3. 

13
 



44. Second, DEQ erroneously opined that it was unnecessary to include the plan's 

PM limits in the Permit because the Corette plant's actual PM emissions were lower than the 

regional haze plan's applicable limits. TRD at 44. Likewise, DEQ claimed that because "EPA 

has indicated that no additional controls will be necessary at [Corette] to meet an S02 limit of 

0.57 Ibs/MMBtu and a NOx limit of 0.35 Ibs/MMBtu," the plant will be in compliance with the 

terms of the regional haze plan. Id. However, where Corette is not limited under the operating 

permit to its current emissions, there is no legal constraint to prevent those emissions from 

increasing. Furthermore, DEQ may not choose to leave any applicable requirements out of the 

operating permit, even if the plant is already operating with lower actual emissions than the limit 

established by the applicable requirement. DEQ is required to include in the permit "a specific 

description with appropriate references of the origin of, and authority for, each term or condition 

contained in the permit." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1211(I )(b) (emphasis added); see also 40 C.F.R. 

§ 70.6(a)( I)(i). Corette's Permit nowhere references the applicable regional haze requirement. 

45. DEQ's failure to include the regional haze plan's applicable requirements in the 

Corette Permit is arbitrary, capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal Clean 

Air Act, the Clean Air Act of Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's operating 

permit program. 

THIRD CLAIM
 
(Failure to Include in the Permit Clear S02 Emission Limits)
 

46. DEQ also failed to clearly identify in Corette's operating permit S02 emission 

limits that would enable the source, regulating agencies, and the public to understand the 

requirements to which the plant is subject and whether the plant is meeting those requirements. 

47. Condition G.7 of Corette's operating permit states that Corette "shall not emit 

S02 ... in excess of the sum of all of the three-hour emission limitations pursuant to the S02 SIP 

14
 



Appendix, Stipulation, Exhibit A, Section 3(A)(l)(a)." Perrnit at 16 (condition G.7). The Permit 

does not identify a limit on S02 emissions; it merely references the SIP Appendix. The SIP 

Appendix is not attached to the Permit, Instead, DEQ references an EPA website and instructs 

that interested parties may view the SIP Appendix on the Internet or may contact DEQ for a 

copy. Permit at I-I. Such incorporation by reference is improper, as the operating permit must 

clearly identify all applicable requirements. 

48. Furthermore, even the referenced SIP Appendix does not clearly identify the 

applicable S02 emission limit, which is expressed as an equation that depends upon the 

"buoyancy flux" of the plant's exhaust gas, which is variable. Because the public (or even DEQ) 

has no means to identify the buoyancy flux of Corette's exhaust, this limit cannot possibly 

"enable the ... States, EPA, and the public to understand better the requirements to which the 

source is subject, and whether the source is meeting those requirements." U.S. EPA, Final Rule: 

Operating Permit Program, 57 Fed. Reg. at 32,251. 

49. Thus, DEQ's failure to clearly establish Corette's S02 emission limits in the 

Permit is arbitrary, capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal Clean Air Act, 

the Clean Air Act of Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's operating permit 

program. 

FOURTH CLAIM
 
(Failure to Require Sufficient Monitoring of Particulate Matter Emissions)
 

50. The Corette Permit fails to require monitoring sufficient to assure compliance 

with PM emission limits because semiannual testing will not assure compliance with the 

Permit's limits for PM. 

15
 



51. The Permit incorporates the Corette plant's current PM emissions limit, expressed 

as an equation, ofO.882*Ro.1664, which is approximately 0.25 Ib/MMBtu, with no specified 

averaging time. See Permit at 16 (condition G.2). 

52. The Permit requires PM-emissions monitoring to occur twice per year by Method 

5 or 5b in conjunction with Method 202, which respectively measure filterable and condensable 

PM, thereby providing a measure of the source's total PM emissions. See id. at 17 (condition 

G.16). 

53. Montana's regulations specifically require "periodic monitoring sufficient to yield 

reliable data from the relevant time period that are representative of the source's compliance with 

the air quality operating permit .... Such monitoring requirements shall assure use of terms, test 

methods, units, averaging periods, and other statistical conventions consistent with the applicable 

requirement." Mont. Admin. R. 17.8.1212(1 )(b) (emphasis added). The frequency of 

monitoring must bear some relationship to the time period for the emission limits established in 

the permit. See Sierra Club v. U.S. Envtl. Prot. Agency, 536 F.3d 673, 675 (D.C. Cir. 2008). 

54. A three-hour stack test conducted only twice per year is insufficient to 

demonstrate compliance with the Permit's continuous PM limit. Because a semiannual stack test 

does not bear a relationship to a continuous emission limit, it is insufficient to assure compliance 

with the Permit's terms for the 8,754 hours of the year when PM emissions are not being 

monitored. 

55. DEQ's failure to require monitoring of PM sufficient to assure compliance with 

Corette's PM limits is arbitrary, capricious, and violates DEQ's obligations under the federal 

Clean Air Act, the Clean Air Act of Montana, and DEQ regulations implementing Montana's 

operating permit program. 

16 

, I 111~'" I', I,,,' I I I I ,1,1 I· I 



REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

Based on the foregoing legal violations, Appellants request that the Board of 

Environmental Review: 

1. Declare that DEQ violated the state and federal Clean Air Acts by failing to 

include all applicable requirements in the Corette Steam Electric Station's Title V operating 

permit and by failing to include monitoring requirements sufficient to assure compliance with the 

applicable requirements; 

2. Set aside the Corette Title V operating permit and remand it to DEQ to include all 

applicable requirements; and 

3. Order such other relief as the Board deems just and proper.
 

Respectfully submitted on this 3rd day of January, 2013,
 

Anne Hedges l 

On behalfofAppellants Montana Environmental 
Information Center and Sierra Club 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 3rd day ofJanuary, 2013, 

.._-_._--_._---------_. 
DENISE M ROBERTSf ~~~ 

I\IOTARY PUBLIC for tho I Notary Public for the State of MontanaState at Montano . 
r<esiding at Residing at Helena 

Helena, Montana My commission expires: 
My Commission Expires 

October 14, 2014 

17
 



Exhibit 1
 



State of Montana 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Helena, Montana 59620 

AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT NUMBER OP2953-07 

Renewal Application Received: April 16, 20 I0 
Application Deemed Administratively Complete: May 17, 20 I0 
Application Deemed Technically Complete: June 15,2010 
AFS Number: 030-111-0015A 

Draft Issue Date #OP2953-06: May 16,2011 
Draft Issue Date #OP2953-07: August 10,2012 
Proposed Issue Date: October 17, 2012 
End of EPA 45-day Review: December 3, 2012 
Date of Decision: December 4,2012 
Effective Date: January 4,2013 
Expiration Date: January 4, 2018 

In accordance with the Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Sections 75-2-217 and 218, and the 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, 
ARM 17.8.1201, et seq., 

PPL Montana, LLC - JE Corette Steam Electric Station
 
Section 2, Township 1 South, Range 26 East, Yellowstone County, Montana
 

301 Charlene Street
 
Billings, MT 59107
 

hereinafter referred to as "PPLM", is authorized to operate a stationary source of air contaminants 
consisting of the emission units described in this permit. Until this permit expires, is modified, or 
revoked, PPLM is allowed to discharge air pollutants in accordance with the conditions of this permit. 
All conditions in this permit are federally and state enforceable unless otherwise specified. Requirements 
that are only state enforceable are identified in the permit. A copy of this permit must be kept on site at 
the above-named facility. 

Permit Issuance and Appeal Processes: In accordance with ARM 17.8.1232, the Department of 
Environmental Quality (Department) provided at least 30 days for public comment on the draft permit. 
With the issuance of Draft Operating Permit #OP2953-07, the Department provided a 30-day public 
comment period from August 10,2012, to September 10,2012. Following receipt ofa request to extend 
the originally allotted 30-day comment period, the Department granted the request and approved a 14-day 
extension. The extension allowed for comments to be received until September 24, 2012. All comments 
received by the Department regarding this permit have been summarized in the attached technical review 
document. The Department provided a 45-day review period on the proposed permit to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). No comments were received from the EPA. In accordance 
with Section 75-2-218, MCA, the Department's decision regarding issuance of an operating permit is not 
effective until 30 days have elapsed from the date of the decision. The decision may be appealed to the 
Board of Environmental Review (Board) by filing a request for a hearing within 30 days after the date of 
decision. The filing of a request for hearing does not stay the Department's decision, unless the Board 
orders a stay upon receipt of a petition and a finding that a stay is appropriate under Section 75-2
218(6)(b), MCA. Ifno stay is ordered, the Department's decision on the application is final 30 days after 
the decision is made. For more information please contact the Department at (406) 444-3490. 

OP2953-07 Decision: 12/04/2012 
EffectiveDate: 01/0412013 

, I Illilll,1 II, I I I I I "NI"IH,j·i' ._,lIIli '11~j III I If._),~, I-l" II ·1,1 ' I I I'til 



Conditions 

G.I.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any sources installed on or before November 23, 1968, that exhibit an opacity of 40% or greater 
averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.304 and ARM 17.8.749). 

G.2.	 Emissions shall not exceed the value calculated using E = 0.882 * KO. 1664 
, where H is the heat 

input capacity in MMBtu per hour and E is the maximum allowable particulate emissions rate in 
Ibs per MMBtu (ARM 17.8.309). 

G.3.	 PPLM shall not burn liquid or solid fuels containing sulfur in excess of llb/MMBtu fired (ARM 
17.8.322(4». 

GA.	 PPLM shall not burn any gaseous fuel containing sulfur compounds in excess of 50 grains per 
100 cubic feet of gaseous fuel, calculated as hydrogen sulfide at standard conditions (ARM 
17.8.322(5». 

G.5.	 PPLM shall not emit S02 in excess of the 9,999,000 Ib/calendar year (Billings/Laurel S02 
Control Plan, approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 2002). 

G.6.	 PPLM shall not, except as provided in the S02 SIP Appendix, Stipulation, Exhibit A, Section 
2(A)(7), have a Buoyancy Flux ofless than 144.6 m4/sec3 or in excess of448.57 m4/sec3 at any 
time (Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 2002). 

G.7.	 PPLM shall not emit S02 from the J.E. Corette boiler in excess of the sum of all of the three-hour 
emission limitations pursuant to the S02 SIP Appendix, Stipulation, Exhibit A, Section 3(A)( I)(a) 
(Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan, approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 2002). 

G.8.	 PPLM shall conduct annual emission testing to determine the sulfur dioxide emission rate in 
pounds per hour (Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan, approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 
2002). 

G.9.	 PPLM shall comply with all requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix H of this permit including 
the operation and maintenance of the S02 and NOx Continuous Emissions Monitoring System 
(CEMS) (ARM 17.8.1210(3». 

G.IO.	 Emissions shall not be permitted in excess of any allowances that PPLM lawfully holds under 
Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(a». 

a.	 A permit revision is not required for increases in emissions authorized by allowances 
acquired pursuant to the acid rain program, provided that such increases do not require a 
permit revision under any other applicable requirement (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(b». 

b.	 The permittee may not use allowances as a defense to noncompliance with any other 
applicable requirement (ARM I7.8.1210(3)(c». 

c.	 Any allowances shall be accounted for according to the procedures established in regulations 
promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA (ARM 17.8.I21O(3)(d». 

G.ll.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR §76.7(a)(l), PPLM shall not discharge, or allow to be discharged, emissions 
of NOx to the atmosphere in excess ofOAlb/MMBtu on an annual average basis. 

OP2953-07 16 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 /3 



G.12.	 PPLM shall provide a reasonable assurance of compliance with emission limitations or standards 
for PM for the anticipated range of operations of the Tangential Coal-Fired Boiler (ARM 
17.8.1504). 

G.l3.	 Beginning January 1,2010, emissions of mercury from the boiler shall not exceed 0.9 pounds 
mercury per trillion British thermal units (lb/I'Btu), calculated as a rolling 12-month average 
(ARM 17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

G.14.	 PPLM shall install a mercury control system that oxidizes and sorbs emissions of mercury. 
PPLM shall implement the operation and maintenance of the mercury control system on or before 
January I, 20 I0 (ARM 17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

Compliance Demonstration 

G.15.	 As required by the Department and Section 111.A. I, PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test or 
another method approved by the Department to monitor compliance with the opacity limitation. 
Method 9 source tests must be performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol 
and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.1213, ARM 17.8.106). 

G.16.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or 5B particulate matter test in conjunction with a Method 202 
condensable particulate matter test semiannually during periods the equipment is in operation to 
monitor compliance with the particulate matter limit in Sections 1I1.G.2. The testing shall be 
performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual. Heat 
input shall be calculated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, Subsection 5 
Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.1213 and ARM 17.8.106). 

G.17.	 PPLM shall, when a malfunction of the electrostatic precipitator occurs which results in the 
failure of a bank or a portion of a bank, reduce the load to 150GMW and schedule particulate 
emission compliance source testing within 40 hours. Those tests would take place at four 
different loads (140, 145, 150, and 155GMW). PPLM would then operate at the highest load 
where all three runs in a test series demonstrate compliance with ARM 17.8.309 (previously 
ARM 16.8.1402). If all tests indicate emissions above the standard, PPLM would reduce load to 
135 GMW and schedule another series of particulate emission compliance source testing within 
40 hours. It is recognized that as a result of the testing to determine compliance described above, 
PPLM will be altering the load of the Corette Plant, which will affect the rate of particulate 
emissions, and that emissions in excess of the standard in ARM 17.8.309 (previously ARM 
16.801402) are possible. Such testing to determine compliance is necessary for PPLM to derive 
an operational strategy to respond to the malfunction of the electrostatic precipitator (See ~ 6.B. 
of Consent Decree in State of Montana v. Montana Power Co., Cause No. DV 91-696, Montana 
13th Judicial District Court for Yellowstone County, Dec. 23,1991). 

G.18.	 Compliance with the sulfur in coal limit in Section 111.G.3 shall be based on available composite 
coal samples as measured by 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A Method 19, for every train load of coal 
received or another sampling schedule as approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.1213). 

G.19.	 PPLM shall operate, calibrate and maintain CEMS for the following (ARM 17.8.1213): 

a.	 A CEMS for the measurement of S02 shall be operated on the stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

b.	 A CEMS for the measurement of NOx shall be operated on the stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

OP2953-07 17 Decision: 12/04/20 I2 
Effective Date: 0 J/04/20 13 



Appendix I SOz SIP 

Although the hard copy of Appendix 1has been removed from the permit, the contents of Appendix 1, 
S02 Control Plan remain as applicable requirements as stated in the Title V Operating Permit OP2953-07. 
To receive a copy of this appendix, please see the following website: 

Internet link to the final copy of the SIP located on EPA's web page:
 
PPLM Corette SIP (See Yellowstone County)
 

The following is intended to help guide the reader to the SIP documents on this web page. 
STEP 1 - Click the link and scroll down to the bottom of the page where you will see "Yellowstone 
County" 
STEP 2 - Click the "Yellowstone County tab" 
STEP 3 - Click the "Sulfur Dioxide - Board Orders, Stipulations, Exhibits and Attachments" tab 
STEP 4 - Click the "Montana Power June 12, 1998 Board Order and Stipulation In the Matter of the 
Application ... " tab 
STEP 5 - Scroll to the bottom of the page and you will see tabs one for the Stipulation and one for the 
Board Order to connect you to either of these documents 

Next go back and complete STEP 3 
STEP 6 - Click the "Montana Power June 12, 1998 Exhibit A... " tab 
STEP 7 - Scroll to the bottom of the page and you will see a tab for the Exhibit A document 

or contact the Department:
 

Montana Department of Environmental Quality
 
Permitting and Compliance Division
 
Air Resources Management Bureau
 

1520 E. Sixth Ave.
 
P.O. Box 200901
 

Helena, Montana 59620-0901
 
Bureau Phone: (406) 444-3490
 

OP2953-07 I-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/0412013 



Exhibit 2
 



MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
 
OPERATING PERMIT TECHNICAL REVIEW DOCUMENT
 

Permitting and Compliance Division
 
1520 E. Sixth Avenue
 

P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, Montana 59620-0901
 

PPL Montana, LLC
 
JE Corette Steam Electric Station
 

Section 2, Township 1 South, Range 26 East, Yellowstone County, Montana
 
301 Charlene St.
 

Billings, MT 59107
 

The following table summarizes the air quality programs testing, monitoring, and reporting requirements 
applicable to this facility. 

Facility Compliance Requirements Yes No Comments 

Source Tests Required X Method 5, Method 6, Method 9 

Ambient Monitoring Required X 

COMS Required X OP2953-07 Appendix E 

CEMS Required X 
OP2953-07 Appendix F and 
Appendix G 

Mercury Emissions Monitoring System (MEMS) Required X 

Schedule of Compliance Required X 

Annual Compliance Certification and Semiannual Reporting Required X As Applicable 

Monthly Reporting Required X 

Quarterly Reporting Required X 

Applicable Air Quality Programs 

ARM Subchapter 7 Montana Air Quality Pennit (MAQP) X MAQP #2953-00 

New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) X 

National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPS) X 
No, Except for 40 CFR 61, 
Subpart M 

National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary 
Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines 

X 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ 

Maximum Achievable Control Technology (M ACT) X 

Major New Source Review (NSR)  includes Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
(PSD) and/or Non-attainment Area (NAA) NSR 

X 
Facility is a major stationary 
source, but has not gone 
through NSR permitting 

Risk Management Plan Required (RMP) X 

Acid Rain Title IV X OP2953-07, Appendix H 

Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) X OP2953-07, Appendix K 

State Implementation Plan (SIP) X 
General SIP and S02 SIP, 
Appendix I 

TRD2953-07 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 

11 .... ,1 II I., I I I "I~,lq'lt1I,H •• 1 1,1114 III 



apply to Corette within the 5-year duration of Corette's Title V permit and therefore must be 
incorporated, along with all monitoring, record-keeping, and reporting requirements outlined in the FIP. 
SeeARM 17.8.1201(10); seealso 40 C.F.R. § 70.2. 
[Earthjustice (MEIC/Sierra Club) 9/24/2012] 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: The Department certainly acknowledges the applicability of the future 
limitations set forth for PPLM as a result of Montana's Regional Haze FIP. 

The limitation listed as Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for PM is 0.26 Ib/MMBtu with a 
compliance timeframe of 30 days after the effective date of the FIP. The final rule is effective October 18, 
2012 (77 FR 57864, Sep. 18,2012). Compliance with the PM limitations must be achieved by November 
17,2012 rather than the November 15, 2012 date indicated by the commenter. In the latest particulate 
emission test, PPLM's actual PM emissions were 0.167Ib/MMBtu. No changes to the Operating Permit 
appear to be necessary. 

As the commenter has reiterated, compliance with the S02 and NOx limitations set forth within the 
Montana's Regional Haze FIP must be achieved within 180 days after the effective date of the Montana's 
Regional Haze FIP where installation of additional controls is not necessary to comply with the BART 
limit; otherwise the compliance deadline is five years after the effective date of the FIP. EPA has 
indicated that no additional controls will be necessary at PPLM to meet an S02 limit of 0.57 Ibs/MMBtu 
and a NOx limit of 0.35 Ibs/MMBtu, thus the compliance date will be within 180 days after the effective 
date. 

The commenter is reminded that the effective date of the rule is October 18, 2012. As stated in ARM 
17.8.1228, "Additional applicable requirements under the FCAA become applicable to a major source 
holding a permit with a remaining term of three or more years. Reopening and revision of the permit shall 
be completed not later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement." Although the 
requirements contained within Montana's Regional Haze FIP are applicable requirements, the 
Department has 18 months after promulgation to complete a reopening of the permit. Inserting limitations 
required under Montana's Regional Haze FIP within the Title V operating permit is unnecessary at this 
time. 

The Department has included a statement within Section V of the TRD of this proposed permit for 
OP2953-071isting applicability of the Regional Haze FIP requirements as a future consideration. 

3. "The revised draft Title V permit fails to include all applicable requirements. The Corette Title 
V permit must include specific provisions to assure compliance with Hazardous Air Pollutant 
Standards." 

COMMENT: 
The draft operating permit likewise fails to assurecompliance with 40 C.F.R. 63, Subpart UUUUU 
National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants ("NESHAPs") from Coal- and Oil-Fired 
Electric Generating Units. DEQ acknowledges that the NESHAPs are an applicable requirement, as the 
technical review document identifies "Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT)" pursuant to 
40 C.F.R. 63, Subpart UUUUU, as an "applicable air quality program." TRD0513-08, p.l. However, 
DEQ has failed to specifically identify MACT emission limits in the draft permit. 
The NESHAPs have already been promulgated, with an effective date of April 16, 2012.77 Fed. Reg. 
9,304 (Feb. 16,2012). Pursuant to these standards, the Colstrip units must comply with limits on the 
emissions of hazardous air pollutants such as mercury, acid gases (or S02 as a surrogate), and metallic 
hazardous air pollutants (or particulate matter as a surrogate) by April 16, 2015. 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.9984, 
63.9991. This compliance deadline falls within the five-year period that would be covered by any final 
operating permit issued here. As such, the NESHAPs qualify as an "applicable requirement," ARM 
17.8.1201(10), and the draft permit must be revised to specifically require that each of the Corette 
generating units come into compliance with the NESHAPs by April 15, 2015. 

TRD2953-Q7 44 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



In addition, the Draft Permit must be revised to include provisions needed to make the requirement to 
comply with the NESHAPs enforceable. For example, utilities have choices under the NESHAPs as to 
whether to satisfy limits for specific hazardous air pollutants or for other pollutants that are purportedly 
surrogates for those hazardous air pollutants. By identifying in the permit the specific emission limits and 
standards that Corette will need to satisfy to comply with the NESHAPs, the Title V permit would 
"clarify and make more readily enforceable a source's pollution control requirements," including making 
clear how general regulatory provisions apply to specific sources. S. Rep. 101-228, 1990 USCAAN 
3385, 3730 (Dec. 20, 1989). Without such provisions, the permit would unlawfully fail to "assure 
compliance" with all applicable requirements. 42 U.S.C. § 7661c(a),(c); 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(c)(l). 

Updated particulate matter ("PM") controls will be necessary at Corette to meet EPA's PM limit for non
mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Specifically, EPA has adopted a filterable PM limit of 0.03 
Ib/MMBtu as a surrogate for non-mercury metal hazardous air pollutants. Further, the NESHAPs 
establish an acid gas limit for HCl of 0.002 Ib/MMBtu or, alternatively, utilities can elect to comply with 
a surrogate limit on SOz of 0.20 Ib/MMBtu. DEQ must revise the draft operating permit to incorporate 
specific NESHAPs emission limits and associated monitoring, record-keeping, and reporting 
requirements. 
[Earthjustice (MEIC/Sierra Club) 9/24/2012] 

DEPARTMENT RESPONSE: The Department acknowledges the applicability of the future limitations set 
forth for PPLM as a result of 40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU - National Emission Standards for Hazardous 
Air Pollutants ("NESHAPs") for Coal and Oil-Fired Electric Generating Units, which was published as final 
in the Federal Register on February 16, 2012, with an effective date of April 16, 2012. The Department is 
assuming the commenter intended to reference the TRD2953-07 in which the Department acknowledges 
the applicability of this regulation. 

As required under 40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU, an existing EGU (i.e. PPLM Corette) must comply with 
the subpart no later than April 16,2015, unless an extension is granted per 40 CFR 63.6(i). As stated in 
ARM 17.8.1228, "Additional applicable requirements under the FCAA become applicable to a major 
source holding a permit with a remaining term of three or more years. Reopening and revision of the 
permit shall be completed not later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement.". 
Although the requirements contained within 40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU are applicable requirements, 
PPLM has up to 18 months following promulgation to have the permit reopened and revised. In addition, 
and as mentioned by the commenter, because of the multiple compliance options available with respect 
to different pollutants (for example, compliance with standards for acid gas hazardous air pollutants can 
be met using a hydrochloric acid or S02 emission limit), adding specific limits at this time would be 
premature. Therefore, inserting limitations required under 40 CFR 63, Subpart UUUUU within the Title V 
operating permit is unnecessary at this time. 

4. "The permit must clarify applicable S02 emissions limits and monitoring requirements." 

COMMENT: 
The draft permit still fails to clearly identify S02 emissions limits that "enable the source, States, EPA, 
and the public to understand better the requirements to which the source is subject, and whether the 
source is meeting those requirements." 57 Fed. Reg. 32,250, 32,251 (July 21, 1992). As observed in 
MEIC and Sierra Club's June 11,2012 comments, the draft permit references applicable S021imits 
contained in the "SOz SIP Appendix, Stipulation, Exhibit A, Section 3(A)(l )(a)," but fails to identify 
those requirements in the draft permit. Likewise, the draft permit references monitoring requirements 
from the "SOz SIP Appendix 1" to the draft permit, but does not restate those monitoring requirements in 
the permit conditions. See Draft Permit, Conditions G.23 & G.24. Compounding the lack of clarity in the 
permit, the referenced SOz SIP is not even attached to the permit in the referenced appendix, but instead, 
is retrievable from an EPA website (if the user can successfully navigate the website to locate the 
appropriate document among the dozens listed). 

TRD2953-07 45 Decision: 12104/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/20 I3 

, I >II" I I I'_hl, 1·1 .. III 



Exhibit 3
 



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON
 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF OPERATING PERMITS
 

PROGRAM REGULATIONS
 

Prepared By:
 

The U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
 

July 7, 1993
 

, I II"WIII(I I', I II d I·" I 'H
 



Yes,	 but the minimum notice periods specified in Part 70 must 
be met. 

7.7	 Renewals 

7.8	 Reopenings 

1.	 Title V permits must include all applicable requirements of 
the Act. When must a newly promulgated NESBAP be incorporated 
into the Title V permit? 

It must be incorporated into the permit at least at renewal 
time, even if the compliance date is in the future. In 
addition, a permit may need to be reopened earlier, depending 
on the compliance date specified in the NESHAP and the amount 
of time left to run on the permit term [see section 502(b) (9) 
of the Act regarding reopening of major source permits with 
three or more years remaining on their terms]. If the NESHAP 
is promulgated while a draft permit is being processed, the 
permitting authority must revise the permit to include the new 
requirements prior to issuance. 

2. If a permit is reopened, is public participation required? 

Yes, public participation is required for all permit 
reopenings. 

3.	 If a permit is reopened, is the entire permit reviewed, or 
only those provisions that caused the permit to be reopened? 

The review need cover only those provisions that caused the 
permit to be reopened or that are affected by it. 

4.	 When a permit has been reopened, when does the new permit take 
effect? 

The permit is effective upon issuance, just as for any permit 
issuance, renewal, or significant modification. The old 
permit terms remain in effect until the reopening process is 
completed (i.e., the revised permit is issued). 

7.9	 Title I Modifications 

7.10	 Permit Denial 

7.11	 Temporary Sources 

7-3 



Steve BuDoc k, Gove:mor 

Montana. Departlnent of 

NVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

January 7, 2013 

James M. Parker 
PPL Montana, LLC 
303 N Broadway, Suite 400 
Billings, MT 59101 

RE: Final Title V Operating Permit #OP2953-07 

Dear Mr. Parker: 

The Department of Environmental Quality has prepared the enclosed Final Operating Permit #OP2953
07, for PPL Montana, LLC, JE Corette Steam Electric Station located in Section 2, Township 1 South, 
Range 26 East, Yellowstone County, Montana. Please review the cover page of the attached permit for 
information pertaining to the action taking place on Permit #OP2953-07. 

If you have any questions, please contact Vickie Walsh, the permit writer, at (406) 444-9741 or by email 
at viwalsh@mt.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Vickie Walsh Charles Homer Manager, Air Permitting, 
Environmental Engineer Compliance and Registration Air Resources 
Air Resources Management Bureau Management Bureau 
(406) 444-9741(406) 444-5279 

CH:VW 
Enclosure 
cc:	 DJ Law, US EPA Region VIII 8P-AR (via email) 

Carson Coate, USEPA Region 8 - Montana Operations (via email) 
Stephen J. Christian, PPLM Montana, LLC, Alternative Responsible Official (via email) 
Tom Olson, PPLM Montana, LLC, Facility Contact Person (via email) 
Jay Littlewolf, Tse' tsehestahese (Northern Cheyenne) Environmental Protection Department (via email) 
Myron Shield, Apsaalooke Environmental Department 
Lori Bocchino, Operating Permit Program Manager, Wyoming DEQ (via email) 
Tom Bachman, ND Department of Health, Division of Air Quality (via email) 
Brian Gustafson, Administrator, SD DENR (via email) 
Jenny Harbine, Earth Justice (via email) 



State of Montana 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Helena, Montana 59620 

AIR QUALITY OPERATING PERMIT NUMBER OP2953-07 

Issued to: PPL Montana, LLC 
JE Corette Steam Electric Station 
301 Charlene Street 
Billings, MT 59107 

Final Date: January 4,2013 
Expiration Date: January 4,2018 

Effective Date: January 4,2013 
Date of Decision: December 4, 2012 
End of EPA 45-day Review: December 3, 2012 
Proposed Issue Date: October 17,2012 
Draft Issue Date #OP2953-07: August 10,2012 
Draft Issue Date #OP2953-06: May 16,2011 

Application Deemed Technically Complete: June 15,2010 
Application Deemed Administratively Complete: May 17,2010 
Renewal Application Received: April 16, 2010 
AFS Number: 030- I 11-0015A 

Permit Issuance and Appeal Processes: In accordance with ARM 17.8.1232, the Department of 
Environmental Quality (Department) provided at least 30 days for public comment on the draft permit. 
With the issuance of Draft Operating Permit #OP2953-07, the Department provided a 30-day public 
comment period from August 10,2012, to September 10,2012. Following receipt of a request to extend 
the originally allotted 30-day comment period, the Department granted the request and approved a 14-day 
extension. The extension allowed for comments to be received until September 24, 2012. All comments 
received by the Department regarding this permit have been summarized in the attached technical review 
document. The Department provided a 45-day review period on the proposed permit to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). No comments were received from the EPA. The Department's 
decision was issued on December 4,2012. In accordance with Section 75-2-218, MCA, the Department's 
decision regarding issuance of an operating permit is not effective until 30 days have elapsed from the 
date ofthe decision. 

In accordance with Montana Code Annotated (MCA) Sections 75-2-217 and 218 and the Administrative 
Rules of Montana (ARM), ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, this 
operating permit is hereby issued by the Department of Environmental Qual ity (Department) as effective 
and final on January 4,2013. This permit must be kept on-site at the above named facility. 

OP2953-07 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 J104/20J 3 



Montana Air Quality Operating Permit
 
Department of Environmental Quality
 

SECTION I. GENERAL INFORMATION 1
 

SECTION II. SUMMARY OF EMISSION UNITS 2
 

SECTION III. PERMIT CONDITIONS 3
 

A. FACILITy-WIDE 3
 

B. Elfl - FLY ASH HANDLING SYSTEM 7
 

C. EU2 - AUXILIARY BOILER 9
 

D. EU3 - COAL HANDLING SYSTEM 10
 

E. EU4 - COAL STORAGE PILES - ACTIVE AND RESERVE (WIND EROSION) 12
 

F. EU5 -GASOLINE STORAGE TANK 14
 

G. EU7 - J.E. CORElTE BOILER 15
 
H. EU8-PLANTRoADS 21
 

I. EU9 - EMERGENCY DIESEL GENERATORS 23
 

J. EU II - MERCURY OXIDIZERISORBENT HANDLING SySTEM 25
 

SECTION IV. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS ; 27
 

A. FACILITY-WIDE 27
 

B. EMISSION UNITS 29
 

SECTION V GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS 32
 

A. COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 32
 

B. CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 32
 

C. PERMIT SHIELD 33
 

D. MONITORING, RECORDKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 34
 

E. PROMPT DEVIATION REpORTING 35
 

F. EMERGENCY PROVISIONS 35
 

G. INSPECTION AND ENTRY 36
 

H. FEE PAYMENT 36
 

I. MINOR PERMIT MODIFICATIONS 37
 

J. CHANGES NOT REQUIRING PERMIT REVISION 37
 

K. SIGNIFICANT PERMIT MODIFICATIONS 38
 

L. REOPENING FOR CAUSE 38
 

M. PERMIT EXPIRATION AND RENEWAL 39
 

N. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 39
 

O. TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF OWNERSHIP 40
 

P. EMISSIONS TRADING, MARKETABLE PERMITS, ECONOMIC INCENTIVES 40
 

Q. No PROPERTY RIGHTS CONVEyED 40
 

R. TESTING REQUIREMENTS 40
 

S. SOURCE TESTING PROTOCOL 40
 

T. MALFUNCTIONS 40
 

U. CIRCUMVENTION 40
 

V. MOTOR VEHICLES 40
 

W. ANNUAL EMISSIONS INVENTORY 41
 

X. OPEN BURNING 41
 

Y. MONTANA AIR QUALITY PERMITS (MAQP) 41
 

Z. NATIONAL EMISSION STANDARD FOR ASBESTOS 42
 

AA. ASBESTOS 42
 

BB. STRATOSPHERIC OZONE PROTECTION - SERVICING OF MOTOR VEHICLE AIR CONDITIONERS 42
 

Cc. STRATOSPHERIC OZONE PROTECTION - RECYCLING AND EMISSIONS REDUCTIONS 42
 

OP2953-07 II Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 0 I10412013 



DO. EMERGENCY EPISODE PLAN 42 
EE. DEFINITIONS 43 

APPENDIX A INSIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS A-l 

APPENDIX B DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS B-l 

APPENDIX C NOTIFICATION ADDRESSES C-l 

APPENDIX D AIR QUALITY INSPECTOR INFORMATION D-l 

APPENDIX E OPACITY CEMS .: E-l 

APPENDIX F S02 CEMS F-l 

. APPENDIX G NOX CEMS G-l 

APPENDIX H ACID RAIN H-l 

APPENDIX I S02 SIP 1-1 

APPENDIX J OPERATION MODIFICATION PLAN-REVISION 5 J-l 

APPENDIX K COMPLIANCE ASSURANCE MONITORING (CAM) PLAN K-l 

APPENDIX L MERCURY EMISSIONS MONITORING SYSTEM (MEMS) L-l 

OP2953-07 III Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Terms not otherwise defined in this penn it or in the Definitions and Abbreviations Appendix ofthis 
permit have the meaning assigned to them in the referenced regulations. 

SECTION I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The following general information is provided pursuant to ARM 17.8.121 O( I). 

Company Name: PPL Montana, LLC (PPLM) 

Mailing Address: 303 N Broadway, Suite 400 

City: Billings State: MT Zip: 59101 

Plant Name: .IE Corette Steam Electric Station 

Plant Location: Section 2, Township ISouth, Range 26 East, Yellowstone County, Montana 
301 Charlene Street, Billings, Montana 

Plant Mailing Address: 303 N Broadway, Suite 400, Billings. MT 59101 

Responsible Official: James M. Parker Phone: (406) 237-6932 
Alternative Responsible Official: Stephen J. Christian Phone: (406) 748-5019 

Facility Contact Person: Tom Olson Phone: (406) 896-4704 

Facility Technical Contact: Stephen J. Christian Phone: (406) 748-5019 

Primary SIC Code: 4911, Electric Services (NAICS Code: 221112) 

Nature of Business: Coal-fired thermal power generation 

Description of Process: A tangential coal-fired boiler and associated equipment for generation of 
electricity. 

OP2953-07 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



SECTION II. SUMMARY OF EMISSION UNITS 

The emission units regulated by this penn it are the following (ARM] 7.8.] 2] l ): 

Emissions 
Unit ID 

Description Pollution Con trol Device/Practice 

EUI Fly Ash Handling System 
Dust collection equipment: dustless ash 
loading system, or contained railcars and 
trucks 

EU2 Auxiliary Boiler None 

EU3 Coal Handling System 
Dust suppression chemicals (foam);Water on 
Conveyor # 3; covered conveyors, telescopic 
chute; or dust collectors 

EU4 Coal Storage Piles 
Sealant (dead storage piles) and water and 
dust suppressant application (active piles) 

EU5 Gasoline Storage Tank None 

EU7 lE. Corette Boiler 
Electrostatic Precipitator, Oxidizer/Sorbent 
Injection, low sulfur coal 

EU8 Plant Roads 
Washed and cleaned with dust suppressant, 
water application 

EU9 Process Ponds Wet material 

EUIO Diesel Tank None 

EUII Mercury Oxidizer/Sorbent Handling System Bin Vent Filter 

OP2953-07 2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0110412013 



SECTION III. PERMIT CONDITIONS 

The following requirements and conditions are applicable to the facility or to specific emission units 
located at the facility (ARM 17.8.1211, 1212, and 1213). 

A. Facility-Wide 

Conditions Rule Citation Rule Description Pollutant/Parameter Limit 

AI ARM 17.8.105 Testing Requirements Testing Requirements -----

A.2 ARM 17.8.304( I) Visible Air Contaminants Opacity 40% 

A.3 ARM 17.8.304(2) Visible Air Contaminants Opacity 20% 

A.4 ARM J7.8.308( I) Particulate Matter, Airborne Fugitive Opacity 20% 

A.5 ARM 17.8.308(2) Particulate Matter, Airborne Reasonable Precautions ------

A6 ARM 17.8.308 Particulate Matter, Airborne 
Reasonable Precaution, 
Construction 

20% 

A.7 ARM 17.8.309 
Particulate Matter, 
Fuel Burning Equipment 

Particulate Matter 
E= 0.882 *H,OI664 or 

E= 1.026 *H,0233 

A.8 ARM 17.8.310 
Particulate Matter, Industrial 
Processes 

Particulate Matter 
E= 4.10 * pO 67 or 
E= 55 *p0 11_ 40 

A9 ARM 17.8.322(4) 
Sulfur Oxide Emissions, 
Sulfur in Fuel 

Sulfur in Fuel (liquid or solid 
fuels) 

I lb/MMBtu fired 

AIO ARM 17.8.322(5) 
Sulfur Oxide Emissions, 
Sulfur in Fuel 

Sulfur in Fuel (gaseous) 50 gr/IOO CF 

A I I ARM 17.8.324(3) 
Hydrocarbon Emissions, 
Petroleum Products 

Gasoline Storage Tanks ------

AI2 ARM 17.8.324 
Hydrocarbon Emissions, 
Petroleum Products 

65,000 Gallon Capacity ------

AI3 ARM 17.8.324 
Hydrocarbon Emissions, 
Petroleum Products 

Oil-effluent Water Separator ------

AI4 ARM 17.8.342 NESHAPs General Provisions SSM Plan Submittal 

AI5 
ARM 17.8.1211(1)(c) 
and 40 CFR Part 98 

Greenhouse Gas Reporting Reporting ------

A.16 SIP SIP Sulfur Bearing Gases 

AI7 ARM 17.8.1212 Reporting Requirements Prompt Deviation Reporting ------

AI8 ARM 17.8.1212 Reporting Requirements Compliance Monitoring ------

A.19 ARM 17.8.1207 Reporting Requirements Annual Certification ------

Conditions 

A.l.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.105, any person or persons responsible for the emission of any air 
contaminant into the outdoor atmosphere shall, upon written request of the Department, provide 
the facilities and necessary equipment (including instruments and sensing devices) and shall 
conduct tests, emission or ambient, for such periods of time as may be necessary using methods 
approved by the Department. 

Compliance demonstration frequencies that list "as required by the Department" refer to ARM 
17.8.105. In addition, for such sources, compliance with limits and conditions listing "as required 
by the Department" as the frequency, is verified annually using emission factors and engineering 

OP2953-07	 3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



calculations by the Department's compliance inspectors during the annual emission inventory 
review; in the case of Method 9 tests, compliance is monitored during the regular inspection by 
the compliance inspector. 

A.2.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.304( I), PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into 
the outdoor atmosphere from any source installed on or before November 23, 1968, that exhibit 
an opacity of 40% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes unless otherwise specified by 
rule or in this permit. 

A.3.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.304(2), PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into 
the outdoor atmosphere from any source installed after November 23, 1968, that exhibit an 
opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes unless otherwise specified by rule 
or in this permit. 

A.4.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.308(1), PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling, 
transportation, or storage of any material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of 
particulate matter are taken. Such emissions of airborne particulate matter from any stationary 
source shall not exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes unless 
otherwise specified by rule or in this permit. 

A.5.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.308(2), PPLM shall not cause or authorize the use of any street, road or 
parking lot without taking reasonable precautions to control emissions of airborne particulate 
matter unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit. 

A.6.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.308, PPLM shall not operate a construction site or demolition project 
unless reasonable precautions are taken to control emissions of airborne particulate matter. Such 
emissions of airborne particulate matter from any stationary Source shall not exhibit an opacity of 
20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes unless otherwise specified by rule or in this 
permit. 

A. 7. Pursuant to ARM 17.8.309, un less otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
cause or authorize particulate matter caused by the combustion of fuel to be discharged from any 
stack or chimney into the outdoor atmosphere in excess of the maximum allowable emissions of 
particulate matter for existing fuel burning equipment and new fuel burning equipment calculated 
using the following equations: 

For existing fuel burning equipment (installed before November 23, 1968):
 
E =0.882 * KOl664
 

For new fuel burning equipment (installed on or after November 23, 1968):
 
E =1.026 * Ko m
 

Where H is the heat input capacity in million British Thermal Units (MMBtu) per hour and E is 
the maximum allowable particulate emissions rate in pounds per MMBtu. 

A.8.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.310, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
cause or authorize particulate matter to be discharged from any operation, process, or activity into 
the outdoor atmosphere in excess of the maximum hourly allowable emissions of particulate 
matter calculated using the following equations: 

For process weight rates up to 30 tons per hour: E = 4.10*p0 67
 

For process weight rates in excess of30 tons per hour: E = 55.0*po l ' -40
 

Where E = rate of emissions in pounds per hour and P = process weight rate in tons per hour. 

OP2953-07 4 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale 01/04/2013 



A.9.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.322(4), PPLM shall not burn liquid or solid fuels containing sulfur in 
excess of one (I) pound per MMBtu fired, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit. 
This rule shall be interpreted to allow for a daily deviation of 0.1 pound of sulfur per MMBtu 
fired. The rule shall be interpreted to allow the blending of all fuels burned in a plant during a 
given time period in determining the aggregate sulfur content for purposes of the rule, and it shall 
not be construed to require blending or physical mixing of fuels at any given furnace or heater 
within the plant complex (April 1978 Billings/Laurel Plan that included the Board of Health and 
Environmental Sciences Order). 

A.IO.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.322(5), PPLM shall not burn any gaseous fuel containing sulfur
 
compounds in excess of 50 grains per 100 cubic feet of gaseous fuel, calculated as hydrogen
 
sulfide at standard conditions, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit.
 

A.II.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.324(3), PPLM shall not load or permit the loading of gasoline into any 
stationary tank with a capacity of 250 gallons or more from any tank truck or trailer, except 
through a permanent submerged fill pipe, unless such tank is equipped with a vapor loss control 
device or is a pressure tank as described in ARM 17.8.324( I), unless otherwise specified by rule 
or in this permit. 

A.12.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.324, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
place, store or hold in any stationary tank, reservoir or other container of more than 65,000 gallon 
capacity any crude oil, gasoline or petroleum distillate having a vapor pressure 0[2.5 pounds per 
square inch absolute or greater under actual storage conditions, unless such tank, reservoir or 
other container is a pressure tank maintaining working pressure sufficient at all times to prevent 
hydrocarbon vapor or gas loss to the atmosphere, or is designed and equipped with a vapor loss 
control device, properly installed, in good working order and in operation. 

A.13.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.324, unless otherwise specified by rule or in this permit, PPLM shall not 
use any compartment of any single or multiple-compartment oil-effluent water separator, which 
compartment receives effluent water containing 200 gallons a day or more of any petroleum 
product from any equipment processing, refining, treating, storing or handling kerosene or other 
petroleum product of equal or greater volatility than kerosene, unless such compartment is 
equipped with a vapor loss control device, constructed so as to prevent emission of hydrocarbon 
vapors to the atmosphere, properly installed in good working order and in operation. 

A.14.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63.6, PPLM shall submit to the Department a copy of any 
startup, shutdown, and malfunction (SSM) plan required under 40 CFR 63.6(e)(3) within 30 days 
of the effective date of this operating permit (if not previously submitted), within 30 days of the 
compliance date of any new National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(NESHAPs) or Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standard, and within 30 days 
of the revision of any such SSM plan, when applicable. The Department requests submittal of 
such plans in electronic form, when possible. 

A.15.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.1211(1)(c) and 40 CFR Part 98, PPLM shall comply with requirements of 
40 CFR Part 98 - Mandatory Greenhouse Gas Reporting, as applicable (ARM 17.8.1211( I)(c), 
NOT an applicable requirement under Title V). 

A.16.	 PPLM shall utilize appropriate maintenance, repair, and operating practices to control emissions 
of sulfur bearing gases from minor sources such as ducts, stacks, valves, vents, vessels, and 
flanges that are not otherwise covered in the S02 SIP Appendix (Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan 
approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 2002). 

OP2953-07 5 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



A.17.	 PPLM shall promptly report deviations from permit requirements including those attributable to 
upset conditions, as upset is defined in the permit. To be considered prompt, deviations shall be 
reported to the Department using the schedule and content as described in Section V.E (unless 
otherwise specified in an applicable requirement) (ARM 17.8.1212). 

A.18.	 On or before February 15 and August 15 of each year, PPLM shall submit to the Department the 
compliance monitoring reports required by Section V.D. These reports must contain all 
information required by Section V.D, as well as the information required by each individual 
emissions unit. For the reports due by February 15 of each year, PPLM may submit a single 
report, provided that it contains all the information required by Section V.B & V.D. Per ARM 
17.8.1207, 

any application form, report or compliance certification submitted pursuant 
to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12 (including semiannual 
monitoring reports), shall contain certification by a responsible official of 
truth, accuracy and completeness. This certification and any other 
certification required under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, shall 
state that, "based on information and beliefformed after reasonable 
inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, 
accurate and complete. " 

A.19.	 By February 15 of each year, PPLM shall submit to the Department the compliance certification 
required by Section V.B. The annual certification required by Section V.B must include a 
statement of compliance based on the information available which identifies any observed, 
documented or otherwise known instance of noncompliance for each applicable requirement. Per 
ARM 17.8.1207, 

any application form, report, or compliance certification submitted 
pursuant to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12 (including annual 
certifications), shall contain certification by a responsible official oftruth, 
accuracy and completeness. This certification and any other certification 
required under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12, shall state that, 
"based on information and beliefformed after reasonable inquiry, the 
statements and information in the document are true, accurate and 
complete. " 

OP2953-07 6 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



B. EUt - Fly Ash Handling System 

Condition(s) 
Pollutant! 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration Reporting 

RequirementsMethod Frequency 

8. I., B.4., B.8., 
8.9.,8.12., 
8. 13., B.14 

Opacity 20% 

Visual Survey on 
system 

(other than the 
baghouse, bag filter 

or bin vent)/ 
Method 9 

Weekly Semiannual 

8.2., 8.5., B.6., 
8.10.,8.13, 
8.14. 

Opacity 
Reasonable 
Precautions 

Use of enclosed 
trucks or use of 

dustless ash 
loading system 

When ash is 
being unloaded 

Semiannual 

B.3., 8.7., B.II., 
8.13.,8.14. 

Opacity 40% 
Operation of 

Baghouse, Bag 
Filter, or Bin Vent 

When ash 
handling system 

is operating 
Semiannual 

Conditions 

8.1.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2)). 

8.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling, transportation, or storage of any 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of airborne particulate matter are 
taken (ARM 17.8.308). 

B.3.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any baghouse, bag filter, or bin vent associated with the fly ash handling system that exhibit 
opacity of 40% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.304). 

Compliance Demonstration 

B.4.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Fly Ash Handling System 
(other than the baghouse, bag filter or bin vent). Once per calendar week, during daylight hours, 
PPLM shall visually survey the Fly Ash Handling System (other than the baghouse, bag filter or 
bin vent) for any visible emissions. Ifvisible emissions are observed during the visual survey, 
PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one 
hour of any observation ofvisibJe emissions. Ifvisible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity 
based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or 
minimize the source of emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately 
conduct a subsequent visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions 
remain) to monitor compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record the results 
of the survey (including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) in a log, including any 
corrective action taken. Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM ofthe liability for a 
violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

B.S.	 When loading ash into an enclosed truck or enclosed railcar, PPLM shall use an appropriate 
method of conveying (e.g., pneumatic transfer, dustless slide, etc.) the ash to control fugitive dust 
(ARM 17.8.1213). 

OP2953-07 7 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 0 I/04/20 13 



8.6.	 When loading ash to an open truck or open railcar, PPLM shall apply water to the ash prior to 
load-out. A load-out chute with an intact skirt shall be used for loading all open railcars and open 
trucks (ARM 17.8.1213). 

B.7.	 .A fabric filter control shall be used to contain dust from the loading and unloading of each of the 
following tanks: 2,000-ton tank, J,500-ton tank, and 300-ton tank (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

B.8.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM J7.8. J06). 

B.9.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM J7.8.1212). 

8. JO. PPLM shall maintain on site a log of the date and time when enclosed trucks, water, and load-out 
chute skirt were not used while the emissions unit was operating. The log must include the 
reason the method of controlling was not operated and the type of truck or railcar loaded (ARM 
17.8.1212). 

B.11.	 PPLM shall maintain on site a log of the date, time, and duration if bag f Iters were not operated 
while the emissions unit was operating. The log must include the reason the bag filters were not 
in operation (ARM 17.8.12 J2). 

Reporting 

B.12.	 Any compl iance source test reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.1212). 

B.13.	 The annual compl iance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

B.14.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 A summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance with the visual survey 
requirement(s); 

b.	 A summary of the log of date, time, duration, and reason if water and/or the load-out chute 
skirt were not used while emissions units were operating during that semiannual period; and 

c.	 A summary of the log of date, time, duration, and reason ifthe bag filters were not operated 
while emissions units were operating during that semiannual period. 

OP2953-07 8 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



C. EU2 - Auxiliary Boiler 

Condition(s) 
PollutantJ 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration 

Method Frequency 
Reporting 

Requirements 

C.I., CA., 
C.S., C.6., 
C.7 

Opacity 20% 
Pipeline Quality 
Natural Gas 

Ongoing Semiannual 

C.2., CA., 
C.S., C.6.; 
C.7 

PM 
E =0.882 * H-O I664 Pipeline Quality 

Natural Gas 
Ongoing Semiannual 

C.3., CA., 
C.S., C.6., 
C.7 

Sulfur in 
fuel 

50 grains of sulfurll 00 
cubic feet of gaseous fuel 

Pipeline Quality 
Natural Gas 

Ongoing Semiannual 

Conditions 

C.I.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize to be discharged into the atmosphere from the boiler, when in 
operation, visible emissions that exhibit an opacity of20% or greater, unless specified elsewhere 
in this permit (ARM 17.8.304). 

C.2.	 When the boiler is in operation, particulate matter emissions from the boiler shall not exceed 
E =0.882 * ROl664 (ARM 17.8.309). 

C.3.	 PPLM shall not fire in the boiler liquid or solid fuels containing sulfur in excess of 50 grains of 
sulfur/I 00 cubic feet of gaseous fuel (ARM 17.8.322). 

Compliance Demonstration 

CA. PPLM shall burn pipeline quality natural gas in the auxiliary boiler while in operation to monitor 
compliance with the limits in Sections III.C.l, 1I1.C.2,and 1I1.C.3 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

C.5.	 PPLM shall maintain on site copies ofthe supplier's fuel analysis. The analysis may be based on 
an average fuel produced by the supplier over a period of time (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

C.6.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

C.7.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide a summary of fuel analyses and fuel receipts 
showing that pipeline quality natural gas was used in the boiler (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 9 Decision: 12104/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



D. EU3 - Coal Handling System 

Condition 
Pollutant! 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration 

Method Frequency 
Reporting 
Frequency 

0.1., 0.5., 0.8., 
0.9., 0.11., 0.12., 
0.13 

Opacity 20% 
Visual 

Survey/Method 9 
Weekly Semiannual 

0.2., 0.6., D.l 0., 
0.12., D13 Opacity 

Reasonable 
Precautions 

Use of telescopic 
spout Ongoing Semiannual 

0.3.,0.7.,0.10., 
0.12.,0.13. 

Opacity 40% 
Operation of bag 

filters 
Ongoing Semiannual 

0.4., 0.5., 0.8., 
0.9.,0.11.,0.12., 
0.13,. 

PM E=55 * pOll - 40 Visual 
Survey/Method 9 

Weekly Semiannual 

Conditions 

D. I. PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions from the Coal Handling Systems to be discharged 
into the outdoor atmosphere that exhibit an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 
consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.304(2)). 

0.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling transportation, or storage of any 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of particulate matter are taken. Such 
emissions of airborne particulate from any stationary source shall not exhibit an opacity of 20% 
or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.308( I)). 

0.3.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any baghouse, bag filter, or bin vent associated with coal handling system that exhibit opacity of 
40% or of greater (ARM 17.8.304). 

0.4.	 The particulate emissions from process weight shall not exceed the value calculated using E = 

55.0 * pOll - 40, where E = emissions in pounds per hour and P = process weight rate in tons per 
hour (ARM 17.8.310). 

Compliance Demonstration 

0.5.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Coal Handling System. 
Once per calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually survey the Coal Handling 
System for any visible emissions. Ifvisible emissions are observed during the visual survey, 
PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one 
hour of any observation of visible emissions. If visible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity 
based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or 
minimize the source of emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately 
conduct a subsequent visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions 
remain) to monitor compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record the results 
of the survey (including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) in a log, including any 
corrective action taken. Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a 
violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

0.6.	 PPLM shall use a load-out chute with telescopic spout during loading and un loading of coal 
(ARM 17.8.1213). 

0.7.	 A fabric filter control shall be used to contain dust when transferring coal to the silos (ARM 
17.8.1213). 

OP2953-07	 10 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Recordkeeping 

D.8.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

D.9.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM] 7.8.] 2]2). 

D.] O.	 A log shall be kept including the date, time, and duration when a fabric filter control and a 
telescopic spout for unloading and transferring coal were not operated while the emissions units 
were operating. The log must include the reason the method of control was not in operation 
(ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

D.] l .	 Any compliance source test reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM] 7.8.106 and ARM] 7.8.] 212). 

D. ]2.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM] 7.8.] 2] 2). 

D.13.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM] 7.8.]2 ]2): 

a.	 A summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance with the visual survey 
requirement(s); and 

b.	 A summary of the log of date, time, duration, and reason if the filter fabric control and 
telescopic spout were not used while emissions units were operating during that semiannual 
period. 

OP2953-07 11 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



E. EU4 - Coal Storage Piles - Active and Reserve (Wind Erosion) 

Condition(s) 
PollutanU 
Parameter 

Permit 
Limit 

Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Frequency 

E.\., E.2., E.3., EA., 
E 5., E.6., E.7. E.8. 

Opacity 20% 

Visual Survey/ 
Method 9 

Reasonable 
Precautions 

Weekly 

Ongoing 

Semi-Annual 

Annual 

Conditions 

E.l.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize the emissions from the Coal Storage Piles to be discharged into 
the outdoor atmosphere that exhibit an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive 
minutes (ARM 17.8.304(2)). 

E.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling, transportation, or storage of any 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of particulate matter are taken. Such 
emissions of airborne particulate from any stationary source shall not exhibit an opacity of 20% 
or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.308). 

Compliance Demonstration 

E.3.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on Coal Storage Piles. Once per 
calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually survey the Coal Storage Piles for any 
visible emissions. If visible emissions are observed during the visual survey, PPLM must 
conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one hour of any 
observation of visible emissions. If visible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity based on the 
Method 9 source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or minimize the 
source of emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately conduct a 
subsequent visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions remain) to 
monitor compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record the results of the 
survey (including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) in a log, including any 
corrective action taken. Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a 
violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

EA.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

E.5.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

E.6.	 Any compliance source test reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.1212). 

E.7.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.S must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 12 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



E.8. The semiannual report shall provide a summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance 
with the visual survey requirement(s) (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 13 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/0412013 



F. EUS - Gasoline Storage Tank 

Condition(s) 
Pollutant/ 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration 
Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

F.I., F.2., 
F.3., FA., F.5. 

Gasoline 
storage tank 

250 gallons 
or> gasoline 

in tank 

Submerged fill Ongoing/when 
pipe unloading 

Semiannual 

Conditions 

F.l.	 PPLM shall not load or permit the loading of gasoline into any stationary tank with a capacity of 
250 gallons or more from any tank truck or trailer, except through a permanent submerged fill 
pipe, unless such tank is equipped with a vapor loss control device or is a pressure tank (ARM 
17.8.324(3». 

Compliance Demonstration 

F.2.	 PPLM shall use a submerged fill pipe during the loading of gasoline into any stationary tank 
unless the tank is equipped with a vapor loss control device or is a pressure tank as required in 
section III.F.l (ARM 17.8.749 and ARM 17.8.1213). 

Recordkeeping 

F.3.	 PPLM shall maintain on site a log to monitor continuous use ofthe submerged fill pipe by 
maintaining a log oftank loading. The log shall include the date and time of loading (ARM 
17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

FA.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above appl icable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

F.5.	 The semiannual report shall provide a summary ofthe log of the gasoline storage tank loading 
during that semiannual period as specified (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 14 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



G. EU7 - J.E. Corette Boiler 

Condition(s) 
Pollutant/ 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration 

Method Frequency 

CEMS Ongoing 

Reporting 
Requirements 

Quarterly 

G.I., G.1S., G.19., 
G.29.,G.38., GA2., 
GAS., GA6 

Opacity 40% 
Method 9 

As required by 
the 

Department 
and Section 

lILA. 1 

Semiannual 

G.2., G.16., G.17., 
G.29., G.38., 
GAS., GA6 

PM 
E=0.882*H-O 1664 

Method S or 
SB& 

Method 202 
Semiannual Semiannual 

G.3., G.18., G.30., 
G.39., GAS., GA6 

GA., G.21., G.33., 
GAS., GA6 

G.5., G.19., G.31., 
G.34., GAS., GA6 

G.6., G.19., G.23., 
G.31., G.34., GA4., 
GAS., GA6. 

Sulfur in Fuel 

Sulfur in Fuel 

S02 

Buoyancy 
Flux 

lib of sulfur/ 
MMBtu 

SO grains of 
sulfur/1 00 cubic 
feet of gaseous 

fuel 
9,999,000 

lb/calendar year 

144.6 through 
448.S7 m4/sec2 

Short 
Proximate 

Coal Analysis 

Combustion of 
Natural Gas or 

Propane 

CEMS and SIP 

CEMS (flow 
monitoring 
system) and 

SIP 

Ongoing 

Semiannual 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Quarterly 

Semiannual 

Quarterly 

Quarterly 

G.7.,G.19., G.24., 
G.31., G.34., GA4., 
GAS., GA6. 

G.8.,G.20., G.29., 
G.38., GA4., 
GAS., GA6. 
G.9., G.lO., G.19., 
G.3S., GA3., 
GAS., GA6. 
G.11., G.19., G.22., 
G.32., G.3S., GA3., 
GAS., GA6.. 

G.12., G.2S., G.36., 
GAS., GA6. 

G.13., G.14., G.26., 
G.27., G.28., G.37., 
GAO., GAl., GAS., 
GA6. 

S02 

S02 

Acid Rain 
Provisions 

NOx 

PM CAM Plan 

Mercury 

Calculated Limit 
.Three Hour 

Emission 
Limitation 
Calculated 

emission rate in 
lb/hr 

40 CFR 72-78 

OAOlb/MMBtu 
(average annual) 

ARM 17.8.1S06 

0.9 1b/TBtu and 
Installation/ 
Operation of 

Mercury Control 
System 

CEMS and SIP 

Method 6 or 
6c and SIP 

40 CFR 72-78 

CEMS 

Provisions 
from CAM 

Plan, 
Appendix K 

MEMS 

Ongoing 

Annual 

40 CFR 72-78 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Quarterly 

Semiannual 

Semiannual 

Quarterly 

Semiannual 

Quarterly 

OP2953-07 15 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I104/2013 



Conditions 

G.l.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any sources installed on or before November 23, 1968, that exhibit an opacity of 40% or greater 
averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 17.8.304 and ARM 17.8.749). 

G.2.	 Emissions shall not exceed the value calculated using E == 0.882 * H'O 
1664, where H is the heat 

input capacity in MMBtu per hour and E is the maximum allowable particulate emissions rate in 
lbs per MMBtu (ARM 17.8.309). 

G.3.	 PPLM shall not bum liquid or solid fuels containing sulfur in excess of Ilb/MMBtu fired (ARM 
17.8.322(4)). 

G.4.	 PPLM shall not bum any gaseous fuel containing sulfur compounds in excess of 50 grains per 
100 cubic feet of gaseous fuel, calculated as hydrogen sulfide at standard conditions (ARM 
17.8.322(5)). 

G.5.	 PPLM shall not emit S02 in excess ofthe 9,999,000 Ib/calendar year (Billings/Laurel S02 
Control Plan, approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2,2002). 

G.6.	 PPLM shall not, except as provided in the S02 SIP Appendix, Stipulation, Exhibit A, Section 
2(A)(7), have a Buoyancy Flux of less than 144.6 m4/sec3 or in excess of 448.57 m4/sec3 at any 
time (Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 2002). 

G.7.	 PPLM shall not emit S02 from the J.E. Corette boiler in excess of the sum of all of the three-hour 
emission limitations pursuant to the S02 SIP Appendix, Stipulation, Exhibit A, Section 3(A)( I )(a) 
(Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan, approved into the'SIP by EPA on May 2,2002). 

G.8.	 PPLM shall conduct annual emission testing to determine the sulfur dioxide emission rate in 
pounds per hour (Billings/Laurel S02 Control Plan, approved into the SIP by EPA on May 2, 
2002). 

G.9.	 PPLM shall comply with all requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix H ofthis permit including 
the operation and maintenance of the S02 and NO x Continuous Emissions Monitoring System 
(CEMS)(ARM 17.8.1210(3)). 

G.IO.	 Emissions shall not be permitted in excess of any allowances that PPLM lawfully holds under 
Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated thereunder (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(a)). 

a.	 A permit revision is not required for increases in emissions authorized by allowances 
acquired pursuant to the acid rain program, provided that such increases do not require a 
permit revision under any other applicable requirement (ARM 17.8.121 O(3)(b)). 

b.	 The permittee may not use allowances as a defense to noncompliance with any other 
applicable requirement (ARM 17.8.121 O(3)(c)). 

c.	 Any allowances shall be accounted for according to the procedures established in regulations 
promulgated under Title IV of the FCAA (ARM 17.8.1210(3)(d)). 

G.ll.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR §76. 7(a)( I), PPLM shall not discharge, or allow to be discharged, emissions 
ofNO x to the atmosphere in excess of 0.4 Ib/MMBtu on an annual average basis. 

OP2953·07 16 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



G.12.	 PPLM shall provide a reasonable assurance of compliance with emission limitations or standards I 

for PM for the anticipated range of operations of the Tangential Coal-Fired Boiler (ARM 
17.8.1504). 

G.13.	 Beginning January 1,2010, emissions of mercury from the boiler shall not exceed 0.9 pounds 
, mercury per trillion British thermal units (lb/TBtu), calculated as a rolling 12-month average 

(ARM 17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

G.14.	 ! PPLM shall install a mercury control system that oxidizes and sorbs emissions of mercury. 
! PPLM shall implement the operation and maintenance of the mercury control system on or before 
I January 1,2010 (ARM 17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 
! 

Compliance Demonstration 

G.J 5.	 As required by the Department and Section lILA. 1, PPLM shall perform a Method 9 test or 
. another method approved by the Department to monitor compliance with the opacity limitation. 

Method 9 source tests must be performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol 
and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.1213, ARM 17.8.106). 

I 

G.16.	 PPLM shall perform a Method 5 or 5B particulate matter test in conjunction with a Method 202 I 

: condensable particulate matter test semiannually during periods the equipment is in operation to 
monitor compliance with the particulate matter limit in Sections III.G.2. The testing shall be 
performed in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual. Heat 
input shall be calculated in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 Appendix F, Subsection 5 
Procedures for Heat Input (ARM 17.8.1213 and ARM 17.8.106). 

G.17.	 PPLM shall, when a malfunction of the electrostatic precipitator occurs which results in the 
failure of a bank or a portion of a bank, reduce the load to 150GMW and schedule particulate 
emission compliance source testing within 40 hours. Those tests would take place at four 
different loads (140, 145, 150, and 155GMW). PPLM would then operate at the highest load 
where all three runs in a test series demonstrate compliance with ARM 17.8.309 (previously 
ARM 16.8.1402). If all tests indicate emissions above the standard, PPLM would reduce load to 
135 GMW and schedule another series of particulate emission compliance source testing within 
40 hours. It is recognized that as a result of the testing to determine compliance described above, 
PPLM will be altering the load of the Corette Plant, which will affect the rate of particulate 
emissions, and that emissions in excess of the standard in ARM 17.8.309 (previously ARM 
16.801402) are possible. Such testing to determine compliance is necessary for PPLM to derive 
an operational strategy to respond to the malfunction of the electrostatic precipitator (See ~ 6.8. 
of Consent Decree in State of Montana v. Montana Power Co., Cause No. DV 91-696, Montana 
13th Judicial District Court for Yellowstone County, Dec. 23, 1991). 

G.18.	 Compliance with the sulfur in coal limit in Section I1I.G.3 shall be based on available composite 
coal samples as measured by 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A Method 19, for every train load of coal 

lreceived or another sampling schedule as approved by the Department (ARM 17.8.1213). 

G.19.	 IPPLM shall operate, calibrate and maintain CEMS for the following (ARM 17.8.1213): 

a.	 A CEMS for the measurement of S02 shall be operated on the stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

b.	 A CEMS for the measurement ofNO x shall be operated on the stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 40 
CFR 60.45); 

OP2953-0r 17 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



c.	 A CEMS for the measurement of opacity shall be operated on the stack (ARM 17.8.340 and 
40 CFR 60.45); and 

d.	 Continuous monitoring for stack gas temperature, stack gas moisture (where necessary), 
megawatt production, and Btu per hour shall be performed. 

G.20.	 PPLM shall conduct a Method 6, 6c, or another method approved by the Department annually to 
monitor compliance with the condition in Section III.G.8. The tests shall be conducted in 
accordance with the S02 CEMS Appendix F of this permit. 

Pursuant to the S02 SIP Appendix, the annual or semiannual Relative Accuracy Test Audits 
(RA TA) may be substituted for the annual source tests provided that the flow rate RATA and the 
concentration RATA are performed simultaneously and additional calculations are made to 
determine and report the data in pounds per hour of sulfur dioxide (ARM 17.8.1213 and SIP 
Appendix I). 

G.21.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with the emissions' limit in condition III.G.4 by burning pipeline 
quality natural gas or propane (ARM 17.8.1213). 

G.22.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with the emission limitation in Section III.G.ll by following the 
requirements of 40 CFR Part 75, 40 CFR Part 76, and in accordance with the NOx CEMS 
Appendix (ARM 17.8.1213). 

G.23.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with the limitation in Section Ill.G.6 in accordance with the SO] 
SIP Appendix I of this permit through use of the Flow Monitoring System required by 40 CFR 
Part 75 and the S02 SIP Appendix except that the references on page 56.9.3 .12(41) to 40 CFR 
Part 60 Appendix A, Section 6.0 and 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix B, Section 2.3 shall be changed 
to 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix A, Section 6.0 and 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix B, Section 2.3, 
respectively. This includes the use of the temperature probe to determine hourly average stack 
gas temperature and the flow monitor to determine hourly average stack gas exit velocity (ARM 
17.8.1213 and Appendix 1). 

G.24.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance with the limitation in Section III.G.7 pursuant to the S02 SIP 
Appendix I of this permit except that the references on page 56.9.3 .12(41) to 40 CFR Part 60, 
Appendix A, Section 6.0 and 40 CFR 60, Appendix B, Section 2.3 shall be changed to 40 CFR 
Part 75, Appendix A Section 6.0 and 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix B, Section 2.3, respectively 
(ARM 17.8.1213 and Appendix I). 

G.25.	 PPLM shall monitor compliance by following the Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) 
Plan (Appendix K) (ARM 17.8.1503 and ARM 17.8.1213). 

G.26.	 PPLM shall comply with all applicable standards and limitations, and the applicable operating, 
reporting, recordkeeping, and notification requirements contained in 40 CFR Part 75 (ARM 
17.8.771, this requirement is "State Only"). 

G.27.	 Enforcement of Section Ill.G.13., where applicable, shall be determined by utilizing data taken 
from a Mercury Emission Monitoring System (MEMS). The MEMS shall be comprised of 
equipment as required in 40 CFR 75.81 (a) and defined in 40 CFR 72.2. The above does not 
relieve PPLM from meeting any applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 75. Testing 
requirements shall be as specified in 40 CFR Part 75, and shall conform to the requirements of the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.771, this 
requirement is "State Only"). 

OP2953-07 18 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



G.28.	 A MEMS shall be installed, certified, and operating on the boiler stack outlet on or before 
January 1,20 Io. Said monitor shall comply with the applicable provisions of 40 CFR Part 75. 
The monitors shall also conform with requirements included in Appendix L (ARM 17.8.771, this 
requirement is "State Only"). 

Record keeping 

G.29.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.30.	 PPLM shall maintain, on site, a log ofthe results of the composite coal samples as required by
 
Section III.G.18 and submit them to the Department upon request (ARM 17.8.1212).
 

G.31.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with the S02 CEMS Appendix F of this
 
permit (ARM 17.8.1212).
 

G.32.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with 40 CFR Part 75 and the NOx CEMS
 
Appendix G ofthis permit (ARM 17.8.1212).
 

G.33.	 PPLM shall maintain, on site, a log verifying the use of pipeline quality natural gas (ARM 
17.8.1212). 

G.34.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with the S02 SIP Appendix I of this permit 
(ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.35.	 PPLM shall complete all record keeping for Section III.G.9, G.l 0, and III.G.ll as required by the 
Acid Rain Appendix H of this permit (ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.36.	 Records shall be prepared and data kept in accordance with ARM 17.8 Subchapter 15 and the 
CAM plan, Appendix K ofthis permit (ARM 17.8.1212 and ARM 17.8.1513). 

G.37.	 PPLM shall conduct record keeping pursuant to Appendix L (ARM 17.8.771 and ARM 17.8.1212, 
this requirement is "State Only"). 

Reporting 

G.38.	 The testing results shall be submitted to the Department in accordance with the Montana Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.39.	 Quarterly, PPL shall submit a summary of the composite coal samples conducted in accordance 
with Section III.G.18 (ARM 17.8.1212). 

GAO.	 The owner or operator of any mercury-emitting generating unit shall report to the Department 
within 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter, as described in Appendix L (ARM 
17.8.749, this requirement is "State Only"): 

a.	 The monthly average Ib/TBtu mercury emission rate, for each month ofthe quarter; 

b.	 The 12-month rolling average Ib/TBtu emission rate for each month ofthe reporting quarter; 
and 

c.	 Number of operating hours that the MEMS was unavailable or not operating within quality 
assurance limits (monitor downtime). 

OP2953-07 19 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



G.41.	 The first quarterly report must be received by the Department by April 30, 20 10, but shall not 
include 12-month rolling averages. The first quarterly report to include 12-month rolling 
averages must be received by the Department by January 30, 2011 (ARM 17.8.749). 

G.42.	 Excess emissions and monitoring systems performance reports shall be submitted in accordance 
with the Opacity CEMS Appendix E (ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.43.	 Reports shall be submitted in accordance with 40 CFR Parts 72 through 78. PPLM shall also 
submit to the Department the information required in the NOx CEMS Appendix G ofthis permit 
(ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.44.	 PPLM shall submit reports in accordance with the S02 SIP Appendix I of this permit (ARM 
17.8.1212). 

G.45.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.8 must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

G.46.	 The semiannual report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 A summary of results of any Method 9, Method 5 or 58, Method 202, Method 6 or 6A, and 
any additional method tests conducted that semiannual period. The actual test reports for 
Method 9 need only be submitted to the Department, upon request, as specified by Section 
III.G.16; 

b.	 A summary of submittal of excess emissions and monitoring systems performance reports in 
accordance with the Opacity CEMS Appendix E, the SOl Appendix F, and the NO, CEMS 
Appendix G,; 

c.	 A summary of compliance with 40 CFR Part 75 and Acid Rain Appendix H; 

d.	 A summary of the log required by Section III.G.33; and 

e.	 A summary of compliance with CAM provisions, Appendix K of this permit. 

OP2953-07 20 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



H. EU8 - Plant Roads 

Condition(s) 
Pollutant! 
Parameter 

Permit Limit 
Method of 

Compliance 
Frequency of 
Method 

Reporting 
Requirements 

H. I., H.2., H.3., 
Visual 

Surveys 
Weekly Semiannual 

HA., H.5., H.6, 
H.7., H.8. 

Opacity 20% 
Reasonable 
Precautions 

Ongoing Semiannual 

Conditions 

H.l.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions from the Plant Roads to be discharged into the
 
outdoor atmosphere that exhibit an opacity of 20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive
 
minutes (ARM 17.8.304(2».
 

H.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize the production, handling, transportation, or storage of any
 
material unless reasonable precautions to control emissions of airborne particulate matter are
 
taken (ARM 17.8.308(1».
 

Compliance Demonstration 

H.3.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Plant Roads. Once per 
calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually survey the Plant Roads for any visible 
emissions. Ifvisible emissions are observed during the visual survey, PPLM must conduct a . 
Method 9 source test. The Method 9 source test must begin within one hour of any observation 
of visible emissions. Ifvisible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity based on the Method 9 
source test, PPLM shall immediately take corrective action to contain or minimize the source of 
emissions. If corrective actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately conduct a subsequent 
visual survey (and subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions remain) to monitor 
compliance. The person conducting the visual survey shall record the results of the survey 
(including the results of any Method 9 source test performed) in a log, including any corrective 
action taken. Conducting a visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a violation 
determined using Method 9 (ARM 17.8.1213). 

Record keeping 

HA.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

H.5.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials ofthe documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

H.6.	 Any compliance source test reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source 
Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17;8.106 and ARM 17.8.1212). 

H.7.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 21 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



H.8. The semiannual report shall provide a summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance 
with the visual survey requirement(s) (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 22 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



I. EU9 - Emergency Diesel Generators 

Condition(s) PollutantJParameter Permit Limit 
Compliance Demonstration 

Method Frequency 
Reporting 

Requirements 

1.1.,1.5.,1.9., 
1.13., 1.14., 
1.15. 

Opacity 20% 
Visual 

Survey/Method 
9 

Weekly, 
during times 
of generator 

operation 

Semiannual 

As required 
1.2., 1.6., 
1.10.,1.13., 
1.14., 1.15. 

Particulate from fuel 
combustion 

E=I.026*K 
0.233 Method 5 

by the 
Department 
and Section 

Semiannual 

IILA.I 

1.3.,1.7., 
1.11.,1.14., 
I.l5. 

Hours of Operation Operations, 
Limited to 
Specific 

Situations 

Operating Log Monthly Semiannually 

lA, 1.8, 1.12, 
1.14.,1.15., 
1.16. 

40 CFR 63, Subpart 
ZZZZ 

40 CFR 63, 
Subpart 
ZZZZ 

40 CFR 63, 
Subpart ZZZZ 

40 CFR 63, 
Subpart 
ZZZZ 

40 CFR 63, 
Subpart ZZZZ 

Conditions 

1.1.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2». 

1.2.	 PPLM shall not cause or authorize particulate matter caused by the combustion offuel to be
 
discharged from any stack or chimney into the outdoor atmosphere in excess of E = 1.026 * H

om, where H is the heat input capacity in MMBtu per hour and E is the maximum allowable
 
particulate emissions rate in pounds per MMBtu (ARM 17.8.309).
 

1.3.	 PPLM shall limit the use of the emergency diesel generators to times of need for emergency 
power generation (ARM 17.8.756). 

1.4.	 PPLM shall comply with all applicable standards and limitations, and the reporting, 
recordkeeping, and notification requirements contained in 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, National 
Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal 
Combustion Engines, for any applicable diesel engine (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63, Subpart 
ZZZZ). 

Compliance Demonstration 

1.5.	 Only in times of generator operations, PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey (during 
daylight hours) of visible emissions on the emergency diesel generators. Ifvisible emissions are 
observed during the visual survey, PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. The Method 9 
source test must begin within one hour of any observation of visible emissions. Ifvisible 
emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall 
immediately take corrective action to contain or minimize the source of emissions. If corrective 
actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately conduct a subsequent visual survey (and 
subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions remain) to monitor compliance. The person 
conducting the visual survey shall record the results of the survey (including the results of any 
Method 9 source test performed) and any corrective action taken in a log. Conducting a visual 
survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a violation determined using Method 9 (ARM 
17.8.1213). 

OP2953-07 23 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04120 13 



1.6.	 As required by the Department and Section III.A.\, PPLM shall perform a Method 5 in 
accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

1.7.	 Compliance with the limits in Section III.I.3 shall be demonstrated by logging the date, time, 
hours of operation, reason for use, and operator's initials whenever the emergency diesel 
generators are utilized for emergency power generation (ARM 17.8.1213). 

1.8.	 Compliance monitoring shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, as 
appropriate (ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

Recordkeeping 

1.9.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

1.10.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

1.11.	 PPLM shall maintain on site a log as described in Section 111.1. 7. PPLM shall include in that log 
the fuel type used whenever the emergency generators are used for emergency power generation. 
In addition, PPLM shall log the monthly sum of the total hours of operation of the emergency 
generators for the previous rolling \2-month time period (ARM 17.8.\2\2). 

I. J2. Recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, as appropriate 
(ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

Reporting 

1.\3.	 All source test reports must be submitted to the Department in accordance with the Montana 
Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.\ 06). 

1.14.	 The annual compliance certification report required by Section V.B must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

1.15.	 The semiannual monitoring report shall provide (ARM 17.8.1212): 

a.	 A summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance with the visual survey 
requirement(s); 

b.	 A summary of any Method 5 tests that were conducted; and 

c.	 A summary of emergency generator use including a summary of hours used and reason for 
use. 

1.16.	 Reporting shall be performed in accordance with 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ, as appropriate 
(ARM 17.8.342 and 40 CFR 63, Subpart ZZZZ). 

OP2953-07 24 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



J. EUll - Mercury Oxidizer/Sorbent Handling System 

Condition(s) 
Pollutant! 
Parameter 

Permit 
Limit 

Compliance 
Demonstration 

Method Frequency 

Reporting 
Requirements 

J.I., J.3., J.4., J.5., 
J.6., J.7., J.8. 

Opacity 20% 
Visual Survey/ 

Weekly
Method 9 

Semiannual 

J.2., J.3., J.4., J.5., 
J.6., J.7., J.8. 

Oxidizer/Sorbent 
Handling System 

Operate/ 
maintain 
bin vent 

Semiannual 

Conditions 

J.I.	 PPLM may not cause or authorize emissions to be discharged into the outdoor atmosphere from 
any source that exhibits an opacity of20% or greater averaged over 6 consecutive minutes (ARM 
17.8.304(2)). 

J.2.	 PPLM shall operate and maintain the mercury oxidizer/sorbent handling system, including the bin 
vent filter system, to provide the maximum air pollution control for that which the system was 
designed (ARM 17.8.749).· 

Compliance Demonstration 

J.3.	 PPLM shall conduct a weekly visual survey of visible emissions on the Mercury Oxidizer! 
Sorbent Handling System. Once per calendar week, during daylight hours, PPLM shall visually 
survey the Mercury Oxidizer/Sorbent Handling System for any visible emissions. If visible 
emissions are observed during the visual survey, PPLM must conduct a Method 9 source test. 
The Method 9 source test must begin within one hour of any observation of visible emissions. If 
visible emissions meet or exceed 15% opacity based on the Method 9 source test, PPLM shall 
immediately take corrective action to contain or minimize the source of emissions. If corrective 
actions are taken, then PPLM shall immediately conduct a subsequent visual survey (and 
subsequent Method 9 source test if visible emissions remain) to monitor compliance. The person 
conducting the visual survey shall record the results of the survey (including the.results of any 
Method 9 source test performed) in a log, including any corrective action taken. Conducting a 
visual survey does not relieve PPLM of the liability for a violation determined using Method 9 
(ARM 17.8.1213). 

Record keeping 

J.4.	 All source test recordkeeping shall be performed in accordance with the test method used and the 
Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures Manual, and shall be maintained on site. The 
reports must be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and Procedures 
Manual (ARM 17.8.106). 

J.5.	 PPLM shall maintain on-site a log containing all visual observations monitoring compliance with 
the visual survey requirement(s). The log shall include, at a minimum, the required information, 
the date, the time, and the initials of the documenting personnel (ARM 17.8.1212). 

Reporting 

J.6.	 All method reports shall be submitted in accordance with the Montana Source Test Protocol and 
Procedures Manual (ARM 17.8.106 and ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 25 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/2013 

http:17.8.749


J.7.	 The annual compliance certification required by Section V.8 must contain a certification 
statement for the above applicable requirements (ARM 17.8.1212). 

J.8.	 The semiannual report shall provide a summary of all visual observations monitoring compliance 
with the visual survey requirement(s) (ARM 17.8.1212). 

OP2953-07 26 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



SECTION IV. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS
 

Air Quality Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) and Federal Regulations identified as not applicable 
to the facility or to a specific emissions unit at the time of the permit issuance are listed below (ARM 
17.8.1214). The following list does not preclude the need to comply with any new requirements that may 
become applicable during the permit term. 

A. Facility-Wide 

The following table contains non-applicable requirements, which are administrated by the Air 
Resources Management Bureau of the Department of Environmental Quality. 

Rule Citation Reason 
These requirements are not applicable because the 

40 CFR 60, SUBPART B facility is not an affected source as defined in these 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART C regulations. 

40 CFR 60, SUBPART Ca 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Cb 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART 0 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Da 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Db 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Dc 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART E 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Ea 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Eb I 

40 CFR 60, SUBPART F 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART G 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART H 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART I 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART] 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART K 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART L 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART M 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART N 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART 0 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART P 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Q 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART R 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART S 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART T 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART U 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART V 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART W 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART X 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Y 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART Z 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART AA 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART AAA 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART BB 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART CC 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART DO 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART EE 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART GG 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART HH 

OP2953-07 27 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Rule Citation Reason 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART KK 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART LL 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART MM 
40 CFR 60, SUBPARTNN 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART PP 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART QQ 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART RR 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART SS 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART TT 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART UU 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART VV 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART WW 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART XX 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART BBB 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART DOD 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART FFF 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART GGG 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART HHH 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART III 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART JJJ 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART KKK 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART LLL 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART NNN 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART 000 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART PPP 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART QQQ 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART RRR 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART SSS 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART TTT 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART UUU 
40 CFR 60, SUBPART VVV 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART B 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART C 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART 0 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART E 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART F 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART H 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART I 
40CFR61, SUBPART] 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART K 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART L 
40 CFR 61, SUBPARTN 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART a 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART P 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART Q 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART R 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART T 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART V 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART W 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART Y 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART BB 
40 CFR 61, SUBPART FF 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART F 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART G 

OP2953-07 28 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Rule Citation Reason 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART H 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART I 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART L 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART M 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART N 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART 0 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART Q 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART R 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART T 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART W 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART Z 
40 CFR 63, SUBPART EE 
40 CFR 82, SUBPART A The facility does not conduct the activities addressed 

by these regulations. 40 CFR 82, SUBPART C 
40 CFR 82, SUBPART D 
40 CFR 82, SUBPART E 
40 CFR 82, SUBPART G 

B. Emission Units 

EUI - Fly Ash Handling System 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.309 This rule is not applicable because this emissions 

unit is not fuel-burning equipment. 
ARM 17.8.322 This rule is not applicable because the pollutant 

regulated by this rule is not emitted from this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 
activities identified are not conducted as part of this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 72 These regulations are not applicable because the 
emissions unit is not an affected facility under the 
Acid Rain Program. 

40 CFR 73 
40 CFR 75 
40 CFR 76 
40 CFR 77 
40 CFR 78 

EU2 - Auxiliary Boiler 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.310 This rule is not applicable to particulate matter 

emitted from fuel-burning equipment. 
40 CFR 82,SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 

activities identified are not conducted as part of this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 72 These regulations are not applicable because the 
emissions unit is not an affected facility under acid 
rain. 

40 CFR 73 
40 CFR 75 
40 CFR 76 
40 CFR 77 
40 CFR 78 

OP2953-07 29 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



EU3 - Coal Handling System 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.309 This rule is not applicable because this emissions 

unit is not fuel-burning equipment. 
ARM 17.8.322 This regulation is not applicable because the 

pollutant regulated by this rule is not emitted from 
this emissions unit. 

ARM 17.8, Subchapter 7 No MAQP is required to date for the emissions unit. 
Future changes may trigger applicability of the 
requirement. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 
activities identified are not conducted as part of this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 72 These regulations are not applicable because the 
emissions unit is not an affected facility under acid 
rain. 

40 CFR 73 
40 CFR 75 
40 CFR 76 
40 CFR 77 
40 CFR 78 

EU4 - Coal Storage Piles 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.309 This rule is not applicable because this emissions 

unit is not fuel-burning equipment. 
ARM 17.8.322 This regulation is not applicable because the 

pollutant regulated by this rule is not emitted from 
this emissions unit. 

ARM 17.8, Subchapter 7 No MAQP is required to date for the emissions unit. 
Future changes may trigger applicability of the 
requirement. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 
activities identified are not conducted as part of this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART F 

40 CFR 72 These regulations are not applicable because the 
emissions unit is not an affected facility under the 
acid rain program. 

40 CFR 73 
40 CFR 75 
40 CFR 76 
40 CFR 77 
40 CFR 78 

EU5 - Gasoline Storage Tank 
None requested. 

EU7 - J. E. Corette Boiler 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.310 This rule is not applicable to particulate matter 

emitted from fuel-burning equipment 
40 CFR 82, SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 

activities identified are not conducted as part ofthis 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART F 

40 CFR 73, SUBPART G These regulations are not applicable because the 
facility does not conduct the activities addressed by 
this rule. 

OP2953-07 30 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



EU8 - Plant Roads 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.304 This emissions unit is regulated by ARM 17.8.308. 
ARM 17.8.309 This rule is not applicable because this emissions 

unit is not fuel-burning equipment. 
ARM 17.8.322 This rule is not applicable because the pollutant 

regulated by this rule is not emitted from this 
emissions unit. 

ARM 17.8, Subchapter 7 No MAQP required to date for the emissions unit. 
Future changes may trigger applicability of the 
requirement. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 
activities identified are not conducted as part of this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART F 

40 CFR 72 These regulations are not applicable because the 
emissions unit is not an affected facility under the 
acid rain program. 

40 CFR 73 
40 CFR 75 
40 CFR 76 
40 CFR 77 
40 CFR 78 

EU9 - Emergency Diesel Generators 

Rule Citation Reason 
ARM 17.8.310 This rule is not applicable to particulate matter 

emitted from fuel-burning equipment 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 7 No MAQP required to date for the emissions unit. 

Future changes may trigger applicability of the 
requirement. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART B These regulations are not applicable because the 
activities identified are not conducted as part of this 
emissions unit. 

40 CFR 82, SUBPART F 
40 CFR 72 These regulations are not applicable because the 

emissions unit is not an affected facility under acid 
rain. 

40 CFR 73 
40 CFR 75 
40 CFR 76 
40 CFR 77 
40 CFR 78 

OP2953-07 31 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



SECTION V GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS
 

A.	 Compliance Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Pennit Program, §1210 (2)(aHc) & (e), §1206(6)(c)&(b) 

1.	 The permittee must comply with all conditions ofthe permit. Any noncompliance with the terms 
or conditions of the pennit constitutes a violation ofthe Montana Clean Air Act, and may result 
in enforcement action, permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or denial 
of a permit renewal application under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12. 

2.	 The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation, and reissuance, or 
termination, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay 
any permit condition. 

3.	 It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been 
necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the 
cond itions of the penn it. If appropriate, this factor may be considered as a mitigating factor in 
assessing a penalty for noncompliance with an applicable requirement if the source demonstrates 
that both the health, safety, or environmental impacts of halting or reducing operations would be 
more serious than the impacts of continuing operations, and that such health, safety, or 
environmental impacts were unforeseeable and could not have otherwise been avoided. 

4.	 The permittee shall furnish to the Department, within a reasonable time set by the Department 
(not to be less than 15 days), any information that the Department may request in writing to 
determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating the pennit, 
or to determine compliance with the permit. Upon request, the permittee shall also furnish to the 
Department copies ofthose records that are required to be kept pursuant to the terms of the 
permit. This subsection does not impair or otherwise limit the right of the permittee to assert the 
confidentiality ofthe information requested by the Department, as provided in 75-2-105, MCA. 

5.	 Any schedule of compliance for applicable requirements with which the source is not in
 
compliance at the time of permit issuance shall be supplemental to, and shall not sanction
 
noncompliance with the applicable requirements on which it was based.
 

6.	 For applicable requirements that will become effective during the permit tenn, the source shall 
meet such requirements on a timely basis unless a more detailed plan or schedule is required by 
the applicable requirement or the Department. 

B.	 Certification Requirements 
ARM 17.8 Subchapter 12 Operating Permit Program §1207 and §1213(7)(a)&(cHd) 

1.	 Any application form, report, or compliance certification submitted pursuant to ARM Title 17, 
Chapter 8, Subchapter 12 shall contain certification by a responsible official of truth, accuracy, 
and completeness. This certification and any other certification required under ARM Title 17, 
Chapter 8, Subchapter 12 shall state that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable 
inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. 

2.	 Compliance certifications shall be submitted by February 15 of each year, or more frequently if 
otherwise specified in an applicable requirement or elsewhere in the permit, Each certification 
must include the required information for the previous calendar year (i.e., January 1 - December 
31). 

OP2953-07 32 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



3.	 Compliance certifications shall include the following: 

a.	 The identification of each term or condition of the permit that is the basis of the certification; 

b.	 The identification of the method(s) or other means used by the owner or operator for 
determining the status of compliance with each term and condition during the certification 
period, consistent with ARM 17.8.1212; 

c.	 The status of compliance with each term and condition of the permit for the period covered 
by the certification, including whether compliance during the period was continuous or 
intermittent (based on the method or means identified in ARM 17.8.1213(7)(c)(ii), as 
described above); and 

d.	 Such other facts as the Department may require to determine the compliance status of the 
source. 

4.	 All compliance certifications must be submitted to the Environmental Protection Agency, as well 
as to the Department, at the addresses listed in the Notification Addresses Appendix of this 
permit. 

C.	 Permit Shield 
ARM 17.8 Subchapter 12 Operating Permit Program §1214(1)-(4) 

I.	 The applicable requirements and non-federally enforceable requirements are included and 
specifically identified in this permit and the permit includes a precise summary of the 
requirements not applicable to the source. Compliance with the conditions of the permit shall be 
deemed compliance with any applicable requirements and any non-federally enforceable 
requirements as of the date of permit issuance. 

2.	 The permit shield described in I above shall remain in effect during the appeal of any permit 
action (renewal, revision, reopening, or revocation and reissuance) to the Board of Environmental 
Review (Board), until such time as the Board renders its final decision. 

3.	 Nothing in this permit alters or affects the following: 

a.	 The provisions of 42 U.s.c. Sec. §7603 of the FCAA, including the authority of the 
administrator under that section; 

b.	 The liability of an owner or operator of a source for any violation of applicable requirements 
prior to or at the time of permit issuance; 

c.	 The applicable requirements ofthe Acid Rain Program, consistent with 42 U.S.c. Sec. 
765 Ig(a) of the FCAA; 

d.	 The ability of the administrator to obtain information from a source pursuant to 42 U.S.c. 
Sec. 7414 of the FCAA; 

e.	 The ability of the Department to obtain information from a source pursuant to the Montana 
Clean Air Act, Title 75, Chapter 2, MCA; 

f.	 The emergency powers of the Department under the Montana C lean Air Act, Title 75, 
Chapter 2 MCA; and 

OP2953-07 33 Decision: 12/04/20 J2 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



g.	 The abi Iity ofthe Department to establish or revise requirements for the use of Reasonably 
Available Control Technology (RACT) as defined in ARM Title 17, Chapter 8. However, if 
the inclusion of a RACT into the permit pursuant to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 12 
is appealed to the Board, the permit shield as it applies to the source's existing permit shall 
remain in effect until such time as the Board has rendered its final decision. 

4.	 Nothing in this permit alters or affects the ability ofthe Department to take enforcement action 
for a violation of an applicable requirement or permit term or condition demonstrated pursuant to 
ARM 17.8.106, Source Testing Protocol. 

5.	 Pursuant to ARM 17.8.132, for the purpose of submitting a compliance certification, nothing in 
these rules shall preclude the use, including the exclusive use, of any credible evidence or 
information relevant to whether a source would have been in compliance. However, when 
compliance or noncompliance is demonstrated by a test or procedure provided by permit or other 
applicable requirements, the source shall then be presumed to be in compliance or noncompliance 
unless that presumption is overcome by other relevant credible evidence. 

6.	 The permit shield will not extend to minor permit modifications or changes not requiring a permit 
revision (see Sections 1& .I). 

7.	 The permit shield will extend to significant permit modifications and transfer or assignment of 
ownership (see Sections K & 0). 

D.	 Monitoring, Recordkeeping, and Reporting Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § 1212(2) &(3) 

1.	 Unless otherwise provided in this permit, the permittee shall maintain compliance monitoring 
records that include the following information: 

a.	 The date, place as defined in the permit, and time of sampling or measurement; 

b.	 The date(s) analyses were performed; 

c.	 The company or entity that performed the analyses; 

d.	 The analytical techniques or methods used; 

e.	 The results of such analyses; and 

f.	 The operating conditions at the time of sampling or measurement. 

2.	 The permittee shall retain records of all required monitoring data and support information for a 
period of at least 5 years from the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report, or 
application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records and all original 
strip-chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports 
required by the permit. All monitoring data, support information, and required reports and 
summaries may be maintained in computerized form at the plant site if the information is made 
available to Department personnel upon request, which may be for either hard copies or 
computerized format. Strip-charts must be maintained in their original form at the plant site and 
shall be made available to Department personnel upon request. 

OP2953-07 34 Decision 12/04/20J2 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



3.	 The permittee shall submit to the Department, at the addresses located in the Notification 
Addresses Appendix of this permit, reports of any required monitoring by February 15 and 
August 15 of each year, or more frequently if otherwise specified in an applicable requirement or 
elsewhere in the permit. The monitoring report submitted on February 15 of each year must 
include the required monitoring information for the period of July 1 through December 31 of the 
previous year. The monitoring report submitted on August 15 of each year must include the 
required monitoring information for the period of January 1 through June 30 of the current year. 
All instances of deviations from the permit requirements must be clearly identified in such 
reports. All required reports must be certified by a responsible official, consistent with ARM 
17.8.1207. 

E.	 Prompt Deviation Reporting
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1212(3)(c)
 

The permittee shall promptly report deviations from permit requirements, including those attributable 
to upset conditions as defined in the permit, the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective 
actions or preventive measures taken. To be considered prompt, deviations shall be reported to the 
Department within the following timeframes (unless otherwise specified in an applicable 
requirement): 

1.	 For deviations which may result in emissions potentially in violation of permit limitations: 

a.	 An initial phone notification (or faxed or electronic notification) describing the incident 
within 24 hours (or the next business day) of discovery; and, 

b.	 A follow-up written, faxed, or electronic report within 30 days of discovery of the deviation 
that describes the probable cause of the reported deviation and any corrective actions or 
preventative measures taken. 

2.	 For deviations attributable to malfunctions, deviations shall be reported to the Department in 
accordance with the malfunction reporting requirements under ARM 17.8.110; and 

3.	 For all other deviations, deviations shall be reported to the Department via a written, faxed, or 
electronic report within 90 days of discovery (as determined through routine internal review by 
the permittee). 

Prompt deviation reports do not need to be resubmitted with regular semiannual (or other routine) 
reports, but may be referenced by the date of submittal. 

F.	 Emergency Provisions 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § 1201(13) and §1214(5), (6)&(8) 

I.	 An "emergency" means any situation arising from sudden and reasonably unforeseeable events 
beyond the control of the source, including acts of God, which situation requires immediate 
corrective action to restore normal operation, and that causes the source to exceed a technology
based emission limitation under this permit due to unavoidable increases in emissions attributable 
to the emergency. An emergency shall not include noncompliance to the extent caused by 
improperly designed equipment, lack of reasonable preventive maintenance, careless or improper 
operation, or operator error. 

2.	 An emergency constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with a 
technology-based emission limitation if the permittee demonstrates through properly signed, 
contemporaneous logs, or other relevant evidence that: 

OP2953-07 35 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



a.	 An emergency occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) ofthe emergency; 

b.	 The permitted faci Iity was at the time being properly operated; 

c.	 During the period of the emergency, the permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize 
levels of emissions that exceeded the emission standards, or other requirements in the permit; 
and 

d.	 The permittee submitted notice of the emergency to the Department within 2 working days of 
the time when emission limitations were exceeded due to the emergency. This notice fulfills 
the requirements of ARM 17.8.1212(3)(c). This notice must contain a description of the 
emergency, any steps taken to mitigate emissions, and corrective actions taken. 

3.	 These emergency provisions are in addition to any emergency, malfunction or upset provision 
contained in any applicable requirement. 

G.	 Inspection and Entry 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program §1213(3)&(4) 

1.	 Upon presentation of credentials and other requirements as may be required by law, the permittee 
shall allow the Department, the administrator or an authorized representative (including an 
authorized contractor acting as a representative of the Department or the administrator) to 
perform the following: 

a.	 Enter the premises where a source required to obtain a permit is located or emissions-related 
activity is conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; 

b.	 Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the 
conditions of the permit; 

c.	 Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, emission units, equipment (including monitoring 
and air pollution control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the 
permit; and 

d.	 As authorized by the Montana Clean Air Act and rules promulgated thereunder, sample or 
monitor at reasonable times any substances or parameters at any location for the purpose of 
assuring compliance with the permit or applicable requirements. 

2.	 The permittee shall inform the inspector of all applicable workplace safety rules or requirements 
at the time of the inspection. This section shall not limit in any manner the Department's 
statutory right of entry and inspection as provided for in 75-2-403, MCA. 

H.	 Fee Payment 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, §1210(2)(0, and ARM 17.8, Subchapter 5, Air 
Quality Permit Application, Operation and Open Burning Fees §505(3)-(5) (STATE ONLY) 

1.	 The permittee must pay application and operating fees, pursuant to ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, 
Subchapter 5. 

2.	 Annually, the Department shall provide the permittee with written notice of the amount of the fee 
and the basis for the fee assessment. The air quality operation fee is due 30 days after receipt of 
the notice, unless the fee assessment is appealed pursuant to ARM 17.8.511. If any portion of the 

OP2953-07 36 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 01/0412013 



fee is not appealed, that portion of the fee that is not appealed is due 30 days after receipt of the 
notice. Any remaining fee, which may be due after completion of an appeal, is due immediately 
upon issuance of the Board's decision or upon completion of any judicial review of the Board's 
decision. 

3.	 If the permittee fails to pay the required fee (or any required portion of an appealed fee) within 90 
days of the due date of the fee, the Department may impose an additional assessment of 15% of 
the fee (or any required portion of an appealed fee) or $100, whichever is greater, plus interest on 
the fee (or any required portion of an appealed fee) computed at the interest rate established under 
15-31-510(3), MCA. 

I.	 Minor Permit Modifications 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § 1226(3)&( II) 

I.	 An application for a minor permit modification need only address in detail those portions of the 
permit application that require revision, updating, supplementation, or deletion, and may 
reference any required information that has been previously submitted. 

2.	 The permit shield under ARM 17.8.1214 will not extend to any minor modifications processed 
pursuant to ARM 17.8.1226. 

J.	 Changes Not Requiring Permit Revision 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § I224( 1)-(3), (5)&( 6) 

I.	 The permittee is authorized to make changes within the facility as described below, provided the 
following conditions are met: 

a.	 The proposed changes do not require the permittee to obtain a Montana Air Quality Permit 
under ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapter 7; 

b.	 The proposed changes are not modifications under Title I of the FCAA, or as defined in ARM 
Title 17, Chapter 8, Subchapters 8, 9 or 10; 

c.	 The emissions resulting from the proposed changes do not exceed the emissions allowable 
under this permit, whether expressed as a rate of emissions, or in total emissions; 

d.	 The proposed changes do not alter permit terms that are necessary to enforce applicable 
emission limitations on emission units covered by the permit; and 

e.	 The facility provides the administrator and the Department with written notification at least 7 
days prior to making the proposed changes. 

2.	 The permittee and the Department shall attach each notice provided pursuant to I.e. above, to 
their respective copies of this permit. 

3.	 Pursuant to the conditions above, the permittee is authorized to make Sec. 502(b)(1 0) changes, as 
defined in ARM 17.8.1201(30), without a permit revision. For each such change, the written 
notification required under l.e above, shall include a description of the change within the source, 
the date on which the change will occur, any change in emissions, and any permit term or 
condition that is no longer applicable as a result of the change. 

OP2953-07 37 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



4.	 The permittee may make a change not specifically addressed or prohibited by the permit terms 
and conditions without requiring a permit revision, provided the following conditions are met: 

a.	 Each proposed change does not weaken the enforceability of any existing permit conditions; 

b.	 The Department has not objected to such change; 

c.	 Each proposed change meets all applicable requirements and does not violate any existing 
permit term or condition; and 

d.	 The permittee provides contemporaneous written notice to the Department and the 
administrator of each change that is above the level for insignificant emission units as defined 
in ARM 17.8.120 I(22) and 17.8.1206(3), and the written notice describes each such change, 
including the date of the change, any change in emissions, pollutants emitted, and any 
applicable requirement that would apply as a result of the change. 

5.	 The permit shield authorized by ARM 17.8.1214 shall not apply to changes made pursuant to 
ARM 17.8.1224(3) and (5), but is applicable to terms and conditions that allow for increases and 
decreases in emissions pursuant to ARM 17.8.1224(4). 

K.	 Significant Permit Modifications 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, §1227( I), (3)&(4) 

1.	 The modification procedures set forth in 2 below, must be used for any application requesting a 
significant modification of this permit. Significant modifications include the following: 

a.	 Any permit modification that does not qualify as either a minor modification or as an 
administrative permit amendment; 

b.	 Every significant change in existing permit monitoring terms or conditions; 

c.	 Every relaxation of permit reporting or recordkeeping terms or conditions that limits the 
Department's ability to determine compliance with any applicable rule, consistent with the 
requirements of the rule; or 

d.	 Any other change determined by the Department to be significant. 

2.	 Significant modifications shall meet all requirements of ARM Title 17, Chapter 8, including those 
for applications, public participation, and review by affected states and the administrator, as they 
apply to permit issuance and renewal, except that an application for a significant permit 
modification need only address in detail those portions of the permit application that require 
revision, updating, supplementation, or deletion. 

3.	 The permit shield provided for in ARM 17.8.1214 shall extend to significant modifications. 

L.	 Reopening for Cause 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, §1228(1)&(2) 

1.	 This permit may be reopened and revised under the following circumstances: 

a.	 Additional applicable requirements under the FCAA become applicable to the facility when 
the permit has a remaining term of 3 or more years. Reopening and revision of the permit 
shall be completed no later than 18 months after promulgation of the applicable requirement. 

OP2953-07 38 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



No reopening is required under ARM 17.8.1228(1)(a) if the effective date of the applicable 
requirement is later than the date on which the permit is due to expire, unless the original 
permit or any of its terms or conditions have been extended pursuant to ARM 17.8.1220(12) 
or 17.8.1221(2); 

b.	 Additional requirements (including excess emissions requirements) become applicable to an 
affected source under the Acid Rain Program. Upon approval by the administrator, excess 
emissions offset plans shall be deemed to be incorporated into the permit; 

c.	 The Department or the administrator determines that the permit contains a material mistake or 
that inaccurate statements were made in establishing the emission standards or other terms or 
conditions of the permit; or 

d.	 The administrator or the Department determines that the permit must be revised or revoked 
and reissued to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements. 

M.	 Permit Expiration and Renewal
 
ARM 17.8., Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, §1210(2)(g), §1220(11 )&(12), and,
 
§1205(2)(d)
 

1.	 This permit is issued for a fixed term of 5 years. 

2.	 Renewal of this permit is subject to the same procedural requirements that apply to permit 
issuance, including those for application, content, public participation, and affected state and 
administrator review. 

3.	 Expiration of this permit terminates the permittee's right to operate unless a timely and 
administratively complete renewal application has been submitted consistent with ARM 
17.8.1221 and 17.8.1205(2)(d). If a timely and administratively complete application has been 
submitted all terms and conditions of the permit, including the application shield, remain in effect 
after the permit expires until the permit renewal has been issued or denied. 

4.	 For renewal, the permittee shall submit a complete air quality operating permit application to the 
Department not later than 6 months prior to the expiration of this permit, unless otherwise 
specified. If necessary to ensure that the terms ofthe existing permit will not lapse before 
renewal, the Department may specify in writing to the permittee a longer time period for 
submission of the renewal application. Such written notification must be provided at least one 
year before the renewal application due date established in the existing permit. 

N.	 Severability Clause 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, §1210(2)(i)&(I) 

1.	 The administrative appeal or subsequent judicial review of the issuance by the Department of an 
initial permit under this subchapter shall not impair in any manner the underlying applicability of 
all applicable requirements, and such requirements continue to apply as if a final permit decision 
had not been reached by the Department. 

2.	 If any provision of a permit is found to be invalid, all valid parts that are severable from the 
invalid part remain in effect. If a provision of a permit is invalid in 1 or more of its applications, 
the provision remains in effect in all valid applications that are severable from the invalid 
applications. 

OP2953-07 39 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04120 13 



O.	 Transfer or Assignment of Ownership 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § 1225(2)&(4) 

1.	 If an administrative permit amendment involves a change in ownership or operational control, the 
applicant must include in its request to the Department a written agreement containing a specific 
date for the transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between the current and new 
permittee. 

2.	 The permit shield provided for in ARM 17.8.1214 shall not extend to administrative permit 
amendments. 

P.	 Emissions Trading, Marketable Permits, Economic Incentives 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § 1226(2) 

Notwithstanding ARM 17.8.1226( 1) and (7), minor air quality operating permit modification' 
procedures may be used for permit modifications involving the use of economic incentives, 
marketable permits, emissions trading, and other similar approaches, to the extent that such minor 
permit modification procedures are explicitly provided for in the Montana State Implementation Plan 
or in applicable requirements promulgated by the administrator. 

Q.	 No Property Rights Conveyed 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 12, Operating Permit Program, § 1210(2)(d) 

This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. 

R.	 Testing Requirements 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions, § 105 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.105. 

S.	 Source Testing Protocol 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions, § 106 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.106. 

T.	 Malfunctions 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions § 110 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.110. 

U.	 Circumvention 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 1, General Provisions § III 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.111. 

V.	 Motor Vehicles 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 3, Emission Standards, §325 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.325. 

OP2953-07 40 Decision: J 2/04/2012 
Effective Date 0 J/04/20 J3 



,W. Annual Emissions Inventory
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 5, Air Quality Pennit Application, Operation and Open Burning Fees, §505
 
CSTATE ONLY)
 

The permittee shall supply the Department with annual production and other information for all 
emission units necessary to calculate actual or estimated actual amount of air pollutants emitted 
during each calendar year. Information shall be gathered on a calendar-year basis and submitted to 
the Department by the date required in the emission inventory request, unless otherwise specified in 
this permit. Information shall be in the units required by the Department. 

x.	 Open Burning
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 6, Open Burning, &604, 605 and 606
 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.604,605, and 606. 

Y.	 Montana Air Quality Permits (MAQP)
 
ARM 17.8, Subchapter 7, Pennit, Construction and Operation of Air Contaminant Sources §745 and
 
764 (ARM 17.8.745(1) and 764(1)(b) are STATE ENFORCEABLE ONLY until approval by the
 
EPA as part of the SIP)
 

I. Except as specified, no person shall construct, install, modify or use any air contaminant source
 
or stack associated with any source without first obtaining a pennit from the Department or
 
Board. A permit is not required for the sources or stacks listed in ARM 17.8.744(1 )(a)-(k).
 

2.	 The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.8.743, 744, 745, 748, and 764. 

3.	 ARM 17.8.745(1) states that a Montana air quality pennit is not required for de minimis changes 
such as construction or changed conditions of operation at a facility holding a Montana Air 
Quality Pennit (MAQP) issued under Chapter 8 that do not increase the facility's potential to 
emit by more than 5 tons per year of any pollutant, except (STATE ENFORCEABLE ONLY 
until approved by the EPA as part ofthe SIP): 

a.	 Any construction or changed condition that would violate any condition in the facility's 
existing MAQP or any applicable rule contained in Chapter 8 is prohibited, except as 
provided in ARM 17.8.745(2); 

b.	 Any construction or changed conditions of operation that would qualify as a major 
modification under Subchapters 8, 9 or 10 of Chapter 8; 

c.	 Any construction or changed condition of operation that would affect the plume rise or 
dispersion characteristic of emissions that would cause or contribute to a violation of an 
ambient air quality standard or ambient air increment as defined in ARM 17.8.804; 

d.	 Any construction or improvement project with a potential to emit more than 5 tons per year 
may not be artificially split into smaller projects to avoid Montana Air Quality Permitting; or 

e.	 Emission reductions obtained through offsetting within a facility are not included when 
determining the potential emission increase from construction or changed conditions of 
operation, unless such reductions are made federally enforceable. 

4.	 Any facility making a de minimis change pursuant to ARM 17.8.745(1) shall notify the 
Department if the change would include a change in control equipment, stack height, stack 
diameter, stack gas temperature, source location or fuel specifications, or would result in an 
increase in source capacity above its permitted operation or the addition of a new emission unit. 

OP2953-07 41 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



The notice must be submitted, in writing, 10 days prior to start up or use ofthe proposed de 
minimis change, or as soon as reasonably practicable in the event of an unanticipated 
circumstance causing the de minimis change, and must include the information requested in ARM 
17.8.745(l)(STATE ENFORCEABLE ONLY until approval by the EPA as part of the SIP). 

z.	 National Emission Standard for Asbestos 
40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M 

The permittee shall not conduct any asbestos abatement activities except in accordance with 40 
CFR Part 61, Subpart M (National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Asbestos). 

AA. Asbestos 
ARM 17.74, Subchapter 3, General Provisions, and Subchapter 4, Fees 

The permittee shall comply with ARM 17.74.301, et seq. and ARM 17.74.401, et seq. (State only) 

BB. Stratospheric Ozone Protection - Servicing of Motor Vehicle Air Conditioners 
40 CFR Part 82, Subpart B 

If the permittee performs a service on motor vehicles and this service involves ozone-depleting 
substance/refrigerant in the motor vehicle air conditioner (MY AC), the permittee is subject to all the 
applicable requirements as specified in 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart B. 

Cc. Stratospheric Ozone Protection - Recycling and Emissions Reductions 
40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F 

The permittee shall comply with the standards for recycling and emissions reduction in 40 CFR Part 
82, Subpart F, except as provided for MYACs in Subpart B. 

I.	 Persons opening appliances for maintenance, service, repair or disposal must comply with the 
required practices pursuant to §82.156; 

2.	 Equipment used during the maintenance, service, repair or disposal of appliances must comply 
with the standards for recycling and recovery equipment pursuant to §82.158; 

3.	 Persons performing maintenance, service, repair or disposal of appliances must be certified by 
an approved technical certification program pursuant to §82.161; 

4.	 Persons disposing of small appliances, MYACs, and MYAC-like (as defined at §82.152) 
appliances must comply with recordkeeping requirements pursuant to §82.166; 

5.	 Persons owning commercial or industrial process refrigeration equipment must comply with the 
leak repair requirements pursuant to §82.l56; and, 

6.	 Owners/operators of appliances normally containing 50 or more pounds of refrigerant must 
keep records of refrigerant purchased and added to such appliances pursuant to §82.166. 

DD.	 Emergency Episode Plan 

The permittee shall.comply with the requirements contained in Chapter 9.7 of the State of Montana 
Air Quality Control Implementation Plan. 

OP2953-07 42 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Each major source emitting 100 tons per year located in a Priority I Air Quality Control Region 
shall submit to the Department a legally enforceable Emergency Episode Action Plan (EEAP) that 
details how the source will curtail emissions during an air pollutant emergency episode. The 
industrial EEAP shall be in accordance with the Department's EEAP and shall be submitted 
according to a timetable developed by the Department, following Priority I reclassification. 

EE.Definitions 

Terms not otherwise defined in this permit or in the Definitions and Abbreviations Appendix of this 
permit shall have the meaning assigned to them in the referenced regulations. 

OP2953-07 43 Decision: 12/0412012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



APPENDICES
 

OP2953-07 44 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



Appendix A INSIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS 

Disclaimer: The information in this appendix is not State or Federally enforceable but is presented to 
assist the permittee, the permitting authority, inspectors, and the public. 

Pursuant to ARM 17.8.1201(22)(a), an insignificant emissions unit means any activity or emissions unit 
located within a source that: (i) has a potential to emit less than 5 tons per year of any regulated pollutant; 
(ii) has a potential to emit less than 500 pounds per year of lead; (iii) has a potential to emit less than 500 
pounds per year of hazardous air pollutants listed pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 7412 (b) ofthe FCAA; 
and (iv) is not regulated by an applicable requirement, other than a generally applicable requirement that 
applies to all emission units subject to Subchapter 12. 

List of Insignificant Activities: 

The following table of insignificant sources and/or activities was provided by PPLM. 

Emissions Unit ID Description 
IEUI I Process Tank Vents 
IEUI2 Carbon dioxide System Safety Valves & Vents 
IEUIO I,000 Gallon Diesel Tank 

OP2953-07 A-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



Appendix B DEFINITIONS and ABBREVIATIONS 

"Act" means the federal Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.c. §§ 7401-7671. 

"Administrative permit amendment" means an air quality operating permit revision that: 

(a)	 corrects typographical errors; 

(b)	 identifies a change in the name, address or phone number of any person identified in the air 
quality operating permit, or identifies a similar minor administrative change at the source; 

(c) requires more frequent monitoring or reporting by PPLM; 

(d) requires changes in monitoring or reporting requirements that the Department deems to be no 
less stringent than current monitoring or reporting requirements; 

(e)	 allows for a change in ownership or operational control of a source if the Department has 
determined that no other change in the air quality operating permit is necessary, consistent 
with ARM 17.8.1225; or 

(f)	 incorporates any other type of change which the Department has determined to be similar to 
those revisions set forth in (a)-(e), above. 

"Applicable requirement" means all of the following as they apply to emission units in a source 
requiring an air quality operating permit (including requirements that have been promulgated or approved 
by the Department or the administrator through rule making at the time of issuance of the air quality 
operating permit, but have future-effective compliance dates, provided that such requirements apply to 
sources covered under the operating permit): 

(a)	 any standard, rule, or other requirement, including any requirement contained in a consent 
decree or judicial or administrative order entered into or issued by the Department, that is 
contained in the Montana state implementation plan approved or promulgated by the 
administrator through rule making under Title I ofthe FCAA; 

(b) any federally enforceable term, condition or other requirement of any Montana Air Quality 
Permit issued by the Department under Subchapters 7, 8, 9 and 10 of this chapter, or pursuant 
to regulations approved or promulgated through rule making under Title I of the FCAA, 
including parts C and D; 

(c)	 any standard or other requirement under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7411 of the FCAA, including Sec. 
7411(d); 

(d) any standard or other requirement under 42 U.s.c. Sec. 7412 of the FCAA, including any 
requirement concerning accident prevention under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 74 I2(r)(7), but excluding 
the contents of any risk management plan required under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(r); 

(e)	 any standard or other requirement of the acid rain program under Title IV of the FCAA or 
regulations promulgated thereunder; 

(f)	 any requirements established pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Sec. 766Ic(b) or Sec. 7414(a)(3) of the 
FCAA; 

OP2953-07 B-1 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



(g) any standard or other requirement governing solid waste incineration, under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 
7429 of the FCAA; 

(h) any standard or other requirement for consumer and commercial products, under 42 U.S.c. 
Sec. 7511b(e) of the FCAA; 

(i)	 any standard or other requirement for tank vessels, under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7511b(t) of the 
FCAA; 

U)	 any standard or other requirement of the regulations promulgated to protect stratospheric 
ozone under Title VI of the FCAA, unless the administrator determines that such 
requirements need not be contained in an air quality operating permit; 

(k) any national ambient air quality standard or increment or visibility requirement under part C 
of Title I of the FCAA, but only as it would apply to temporary sources permitted pursuant to 
42 U.S.c. Sec. 766Ic(e) of the FCAA; or 

(I)	 any federally enforceable term or condition of any air quality open burning permit issued by 
the Department under Subchapter 6. 

"Department" means the Montana Department of Environmental Quality. 

"Emissions unit" means any part or activity of a stationary source that emits or has the potential to emit 
any regulated air pollutant or any pollutant listed under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(b) of the FCAA. This term 
is not meant to alter or affect the definition ofthe term "unit" for purposes ofTitle IV of the FCAA. 

"FCAA" means the Federal Clean Air Act, as amended. 

"Federally enforceable" means all limitations and conditions which are enforceable by the 
administrator, including those requirements developed pursuant to 40 CFR Parts 60 and 61, requirements 
within the Montana state implementation plan, and any permit requirement established pursuant to 40 
CFR 52.21 or under regulations approved pursuant to 40 CFR 51, Subpart I, including operating permits 
issued under an EPA approved program that is incorporated into the Montana state implementation plan 
and expressly requires adherence to any permit issued under such program. 

"Fugitive emissions" means those emissions which could not reasonably pass through a stack, chimney, 
vent, or other functionally equivalent opening. 

"General air quality operating permit" or "general permit" means an air quality operating permit that 
meets the requirements of ARM 17.8.1222, covers multiple sources in a source category, and is issued in 
lieu of individual permits being issued to each source. 

"Hazardous air pollutant" means any air pollutant listed as a hazardous air pollutant pursuant to 42 
U.S.c. Sec. 7412(b) ofthe FCAA. 

"Non-federally enforceable requirement" means the following as they apply to emission units in a 
source requiring an air quality operating permit: 

(a)	 any standard, rule, or other requirement, including any requirement contained in a consent 
decree, or judicial or administrative order entered into or issued by the Department, that is not 
contained in the Montana state implementation plan approved or promulgated by the 
administrator through rule making under Title I of the FCAA 

OP2953-07 B-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



(b) any term, condition or other requirement contained in any Montana Air Quality Permit issued 
by the Department under Subchapters 7, 8, 9 and 10 of this chapter that is not federally 
enforceable. 

(c)	 does not include any Montana ambient air quality standard contained in Subchapter 2 of this 
chapter. 

"Permittee" means the owner or operator of any source subject to the permitting requirements ofthis 
subchapter, as provided in ARM 17.8.1204, that holds a valid air quality operating permit or has 
submitted a timely and complete permit application for issuance, renewal, amendment, or modification 
pursuant to this subchapter. 

"Regulated air pollutant" means the following: 

(a) nitrogen oxides or any volatile organic compounds; 

(b) any pollutant for which a national ambient air quality standard has been promulgated; 

(c)	 any pollutant that is subject to any standard promulgated under Sec. 7411 of the FCAA; 

(d) any Class I or II substance subject to a standard promulgated under or established by Title VI 
of the FCAA; or 

(e)	 any pollutant subject to a standard or other requirement established or promulgated under 42 
U.S.c. Sec. 7412 of the FCAA, including but not limited to the following; 

(i)	 any pollutant subject to requirements under 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(j) ofthe FCAA. If the 
administrator fails to promulgate a standard by the date established in Sec. 7412(e) of the 
FCAA, any pollutant for which a subject source would be major shall be considered to be 
regulated on the date 18 months after the applicable date established in 42 U.S.c. Sec. 
7412(e) ofthe FCAA; 

(ii)	 any pollutant for which the requirements of 42 U.S.c. Sec. 7412(g)(2) of the FCAA have 
been met but only with respect to the individual source subject to the 42 U.S.c. Sec. 
7412(g)(2) requirement. 

"Responsible official" means one ofthe following: 

(a)	 For a corporation: a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in 
charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or 
decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly authorized representative of such 
person if the representative is responsible for the overall operation of one or more 
manufacturing, production, or operating facilities applying for or subject to a permit and 
either: 

(i)	 the facilities employ more than 250 persons or have gross annual sales or expenditures 
exceeding $25 million (in second quarter 1980 dollars); or 

(ii) the delegation of authority to such representative is approved in advance by the 
Department. 

(b) For a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or the proprietor respectively. 

OP2953-07 B-3 Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



(c)	 For a municipality, state, federal, or other public agency: either a principal executive officer 
or ranking elected official. For the purposes of this part, a principal executive officer of a 
federal agency includes the chief executive officer having responsibility for the overall 
operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency (e.g., a regional administrator of the 
environmental protection agency). 

(d) For affected sources: the designated representative in so far as actions, standards, 
requirements, or prohibitions under Title IV of the FCAA or the regulations promulgated 
thereunder are concerned, and the designated representative for any other purposes under this 
subchapter. 

OP2953-07 8-4 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Abbreviations: 

ARM 
ASTM 
BACT 
BOT 
BTU 
CFR 
CO 
DEQ 
dscf 
dscfm 
EEAP 
EPA 
EPA Method 
EU 
FCAA 
gr 
HAP 
Hg 
lEU 
MAQP 
Mbdft 
MEMS 
Method 5 
Method 9 
MMbdft 
MMBTU 
NOx 
N02 

O2 

Pb 
PM 
PM10 
psi 
scf 
SIC 
S02 
SOx 
TBtu 
tpy 
U.S.c. 
VE 
VOC 

Administrative Rules of Montana 
American Society of Testing Materials 
Best Available Control Technology 
bone dry tons 
British Thermal Unit 
Code of Federal Regulations 
carbon monoxide 
Department of Environmental Quality 
dry standard cubic foot 
dry standard cubic foot per minute 
Emergency Episode Action Plan 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Test methods contained in 40 CFR 60, Appendix A 
emissions unit 
Federal Clean Air Act 
grams 
hazardous air pollutant 
mercury 
insignificant emissions unit 
Montana Air Quality Permit 
thousand board feet 
Mercury Emission Monitoring System 
40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 5 
40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 9 
million board feet 
million British Thermal Units 
oxides of nitrogen 
nitrogen dioxide 
oxygen 
lead 
particulate matter 
particulate matter less than 10 microns in size 
pounds per square inch 
standard cubic feet 
Source Industrial Classification 
sulfur dioxide 
oxides of sulfur 
trillion British Thermal Units 
tons per year 
United States Code 
visible emissions 
volatile organic compound 

OP2953-07 8-5 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Dale: 01/04/2013 



Appendix C NOTIFICATION ADDRESSES 

Compliance Notifications: 

Montana Department of Environmental Quality
 
Permitting and Compliance Division
 
Air Resources Management Bureau
 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

United States EPA
 
Air Program Coordinator
 
Region VIII, Montana Office
 
10 West 15th Street, Suite 3200
 
Helena, MT 59626
 

Permit Modifications: 

Montana Department of Environmental Qual ity
 
Permitting and Compliance Division
 
Air Resources Management Bureau
 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

Office of Partnerships and Regulatory Assistance
 
Air and Radiation Program
 
US EPA Region VIII 8P-AR
 
1595 Wynkoop Street
 
Denver, CO 80202-1129
 

OP2953-07 C-l Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix D AIR QUALITY INSPECTOR INFORMATION 

Disclaimer:	 The information in this appendix is not State or Federally enforceable but is presented to 
assist the permittee, permitting authority, inspectors, and the public. 

1.	 Directions to Plant: 

Exit on 27th Street Interchange from 1-90 in Billings. Travel east paralleling Interstate 90 on the south 
side to Charlene Street and turn right. The plant gate is two blocks away on the right. 

2.	 Safety Equipment Required: 

The following safety guidelines were submitted by, PPL Montana, LLC. 

GENERAL SAFETY GUIDELINES FOR THE J.E. CORETTE PLANT 

The following are the general safety ru les for visitors at the J.E. Corette Plant. In all instances, 
visitors will be escorted by a company employee. 

SAFETY GLASSES AND HARD HATS 

All visitors are required to wear hard hats and safety glasses in the plant area, except when in the 
offices, lunchrooms, or other protected areas. 

PROPER CLOTHING 

Clothing and shoes that are suitable for the particular type of work and existing weather conditions 
shall be worn. Dresses, or other loose clothing, are not recommended. 

PROTECTIVE FOOTWEAR 

Closed-toe (no sandals), low-heeled shoes shall be worn. High-heel shoes with a heel less than I and 
Y2 inches in diameter are not allowed. 

SIGNS 

Special instruction signs are for the safety of employees, visitors, and equipment. These instructions 
shall be observed at all times. 

Caution signs (Black and Yellow) 

Indicate a possible hazard against which proper precaution should be taken. Caution signs 
warn against potential hazards or caution against an unsafe practice.
 

Danger Signs (Red, Black, and White)
 

Indicate immediate danger, and special precautions are necessary. Entry by Authorized
 
Persons Only.
 

Safety Instruction Signs (Green and White)
 

Provide general instructions and for suggestive information.
 

OP2953-07	 D-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Radiation Warning Signs (Reddish Purple and Yellow)
 

Warn of a radiation hazard only. Special precautions and equipment are necessary.
 

Direction Signs (Black and White)
 

Ensure the safe and efficient flow of vehicles and pedestrian traffic.
 

Fire Prevention and Location Signs (Red and White)
 

Inform of the location and give special instructions for fire prevention. All "NO SMOKING"
 
and other fire protection signs shall be observed. 

Vision, Hearing and respiratory protection signs, where posted, shall be observed. 

HORSEPLAY 

Scuffling and practical jokes are dangerous and are strictly forbidden. 

SMOKING POLICY 

Smoking is not allowed inside any plant building. 

SEAT BELTS 

Where seat belts are provided in vehicles and equipment, they shall be used at all times while the 
vehicle or equipment is being operated.
 

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL
 

The use of intoxicating beverages on Company premises is strictly forbidden.
 

The use of any drug on Company property, except those prescribed by competent medical authority,
 
is strictly forbidden by Company Policy. 

3. Facility Plot Plan: 

The facility plot plan was submitted to the Department with the original operating permit application 
submitted for Operating Permit #OP2953-00. The facility plot plan is on file with the Department. 

OP2953-07 0-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



Appendix E OPACITY CEMS 

Nothing in this appendix is intended to alter the requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix. 

I.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, the permittee shall calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous 
monitoring systems. 

Except for system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments required 
pursuant to 40 CFR 60.13(d), 40 CFR Part 75 and the accuracy audits required below, all continuous 
monitoring systems shall be in continuous operation. 

The permittee shall conduct annual accuracy audits using a calibration jig and NBS-traceable neutral 
density filters on the continuous monitoring system. . 

2.	 The permittee shall maintain records for a minimum of five years of the log sheets, computerized 
data, analysis, and calculations used to prepare the required reports. 

3.	 The permittee shall submit reports to the Department containing the information required by 40 CFR 
60.7 and as explained below, except that all reports shall only be required Semiannual for each six
month period. 

a.	 The permittee shall maintain records of the occurrence and duration of any startup, shutdown, or 
malfunction in the operation of an affect facility; any malfunction of the air pollution control 
equipment; or any periods during which the continuous monitoring system is inoperative. 

b.	 The permittee shall submit an excess emissions and monitoring systems performance report 
and/or a summary report form (see paragraph (c) below) to the Department. Written reports of 
reportable excess emissions greater than 40% (6-minute average), 23% (I-hour average), or 17% 
(24-hour average) shall include the following information: 

I.	 The magnitude of excess emissions, any conversion factor(s) used, and the date and time 
of commencement and completion of each time period of excess emissions. The process 
operating time during the reporting period. 

II.	 Specific identification of each period of excess emissions that occurs during startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions ofthe affected facility. The nature and cause of any 
malfunction (if known), the corrective action taken or preventative measures adopted. 

III.	 The date and time identifying each period during which the continuous monitoring 
system was inoperative except for zero and span checks and the nature of the system 
repairs or adjustments. 

iv.	 When no excess emissions have occurred or the continuous monitoring system(s) have 
not been inoperative, repaired, or adjusted, such information shall be stated in the report. 

c.	 The summary report form shall contain the information and be in the format shown in Figure I. 
The summary report form shall be submitted; 

I.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is less than one percent 
(I %) of the total operating time for the reporting period and CEMS down time for the 
reporting period is less than five percent (5%) of the total operating time for the reporting 
period, only the summary report form shall be submitted and the excess emission report 
described in section (b) above need not be submitted unless requested. 

OP2953-07 E-l Decision: 12/04/2012 
Etlective Date: 01/04/2013 



II.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is one percent (I %) or 
greater of the total operating time for the reporting period or the total CEMS downtime 
for the reporting period is five percent (5%) or greater of the total operating time for the 
reporting period, the summary report form and the excess emission report described in 
section (b) above shall both be submitted. 

Figure 1- Summary Report - Excess Emissionand Monitoring System Performance 

Pollutant:
 
Reporting Period Dates: From to _
 
Emission Limitation:
 
Monitor Manufacturer and Model No.:
 
Date of Latest CEMS Certification or Audit:
 
Process Unit(s) Description:
 
Total Source Operating Time in Reporting Period:
 

Emission Data Summary 

1.	 Duration of excess emission in reporting period due to: 

a.	 Startup/shutdown. 
b.	 Control equipment problems. 
c.	 Process problems. 
d.	 Other known causes. 
e.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total duration of excess emissions. 

3.	 Total duration of excess emissions x 100 =% excess emissions 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

CEMS Performance Summary 

3.	 CEMS downtime in reporting period due to: 

a.	 Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
b.	 Non-monitoring equipment malfunctions. 
c.	 Quality assurance calibrations. 
d.	 Other known causes. 
e.	 Unknown causes. 

4.	 Total CEMS Downtime when the boiler is operating (nearest quarter hour). 

5.	 Total CEMS downtime when the boiler is operating x 100 =% downtime 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

6.	 Total boiler operating time (nearest quarter hour). 

The semiannual reports must be postmarked by the 30th day after the end ofeach six-month 
period. 

OP2953-07 E-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



Appendix F S02 CEMS 

Nothing in this appendix is intended to alter the requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix. 

1.	 Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, the permittee shall calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous 
monitoring systems. Heat input shall be determined as required in the 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix F 
and the NOx CEMS Appendix. 

Except for system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments required 
pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, all continuous monitoring systems shall be in continuous operation. 

2.	 The permittee shall maintain records for a minimum of five years of the log sheets, computerized 
data, analysis, and calculations used to prepare the required reports. 

3.	 The permittee shall submit reports to the Department containing the information: 

a.	 The permittee shall maintain records of the occurrence and duration of any startup, shutdown, or 
malfunction in the operation of an affected facility; any malfunction of the air pollution control 
equipment; or any periods during which the continuous monitoring system is inoperative. 

b.	 The permittee shall submit an excess emissions and monitoring systems performance report 
and/or a summary report form (see paragraph (c) below) to the Department. Written reports of 
excess emissions greater than 2 Ibs of S02/mmBtu shall include the following information: 

I.	 The magnitude of excess emissions, any conversion factor(s) used, and the date and time 
of commencement and completion of each time period of excess emissions. The process 
operating time during the reporting period. 

II.	 Any periods oftime when the monitor range is exceeded. This shall include the date and 
time of commencement and completion of each time period the monitor is exceeding the 
range. The process operating time during the reporting period. These periods shall be 
considered periods of excess emissions. 

111.	 Specific identification of each period of excess emissions that occurs during startups, 
shutdowns, and malfunctions of the affected facility. The nature and cause of any 
malfunctions (if known), the corrective action taken or preventative measures adopted. 

IV.	 The date and time identifying each period during which the continuous monitoring 
system was inoperative except for zero and span checks and the nature of the system 
repairs and adjustments. 

v.	 When no excess emissions have occurred or the continuous monitoring system(s) have 
not been inoperative, repaired, or adjusted, such information shall be stated in the report. 

c.	 The summary report form shall contain the information and be in the format shown in Figure J. 
The summary report form shall be submitted: 

I.	 lfthe total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is less than one percent 
(1%) of the total operating time for the reporting period and CEMS downtime for the 
reporting period is less than five percent (5%) ofthe total operating time for the reporting 

.period, only the summary report form shall be submitted and the excess emission report 
described in section (b) above need not be submitted unless requested. 

OP2953-07 F-l Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



II.	 If the total duration of excess emissions for the reporting period is one percent (1%) or 
greater of the total operating time for the reporting period or the total CEMS downtime 
for the reporting period is five percent (5%) or greater of the total operating time for the 
reporting period, the summary report form and the excess emission report described in 
section (b) above shall both be submitted. 

Figure 1 - Summary Report - Gaseous Excess Emission and Monitoring System Performance 

Pollutant:
 
Reporting Period Dates: From to _
 
Emission Limitation:
 
Monitor Manufacturer and Model No.:
 
Date of Latest CEMS Certification or Audit:
 
Process Unit(s) Description:
 
Total Source Operating Time in Reporting Period:
 

Emission Data Summary 

1.	 Duration of excess emission in reporting period due to: 

f.	 Startup/shutdown. 
g.	 Control equipment problems. 
h.	 Process problems. 
i.	 Other known causes. 
j.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total duration of excess emissions. 

3.	 Total duration of excess emissions x 100 = % excess emissions 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

CEMS Performance Summary 

1.	 CEMS downtime in reporting period due to: 

f.	 Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
g.	 Non-monitoring equipment malfunctions. 
h.	 Quality assurance calibrations. 
i.	 Other known causes. 
j.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total CEMS Downtime when the boiler is operating (nearest quarter hour). 

3.	 Total CEMS downtime when the boiler is operating x 100 = % downtime 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

4.	 Total boiler operating time (nearest quarter hour). 

The semiannual reports must be postmarked by the so" day after the end of each six-month 
period. 

OP2953-07 F-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0110412013 



4.	 The permittee shall submit quarterly reports to the Department containing the following information 
for each month of the quarter: 

a.	 Tons of emissions calculated as the sum of E, = K X C Il X Qh, where Ell = emission rate (lb/hr), K 
= 1.66 x 10-7 (Ib/scf)/ppm(S02), C Il = measured pollutant concentration (ppmw et) , and Qh = 

measured stack gas flow rate (SCFHwet) ; and 

b.	 A summary report including the information identified in 40 CFR D75.64(a)(2) in writing, which 
includes: 

Tons (rounded to the nearest tenth) of S02 emitted during the quarter and cumulative S02 
emissions for calendar year. 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30 th day after the end of the calendar quarter. 

5.	 The permittee shall submit copies of all RATAs performed to the Department in accordance with 
ARM 17.8.106, Source Testing Protocol. 

6.	 The permittee shall submit copies of each monitoring plan revision, which results in the need to 
recertify the CEMS. 

OP2953-07 F-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



Appendix G NOx CEMS 

Nothing in this appendix is intended to alter the requirements in the Acid Rain Appendix. 

I.	 Except for system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments required 
pursuant to 40 CFR Part 75, all continuous monitoring systems shall be in continuous operation. 

2.	 The permittee shall conduct a "Standard Practice for Ultimate Analysis of Coal and Coke", ASTM 
05291-92, at a minimum of once per year for each type of coal used. 

3.	 The permittee shall determine the gross calorific value (GCV) of the fuels using ASTM 02015 -91, 
"Standard Test Method for Gross Calorific Value of Coal and Coke by the Adiabatic Bomb 
Calorimeter" or other method as identified in 40 CFR Part 75, Appendix F, 3.3.6.2, at a minimum of 
once per year for each type of coal used. 

4.	 The permittee shall conduct a weekly fuel analysis using ASTM 04239-85 or other method approved 
by the Department. 

5.	 The permittee shall maintain records for a minimum of five years of the log sheets, computerized 
data, analysis, and calculations used to prepare the required reports. 

6.	 The permittee shall submit reports to the Department containing the following information: 

a.	 The permittee shall maintain records ofthe occurrence and duration of any startup, shutdown, or 
malfunction in the operation of an affected facility; any malfunction ofthe air pollution control 
equipment; or any periods during which the continuous monitoring system is inoperative. 

b.	 The permittee shall submit a monitoring system performance report to the Department in the 
format shown in Figure 1. 

OP2953-07 G-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 I3 



Figure I - Summary Report - Gaseous Excess Emission and Monitoring System Performance 

Pollutant:
 
Reporting Period Dates: From to _
 
Emission Limitation:
 
Monitor Manufacturer and Model No.:
 
Date of Latest CEMS Certification or Audit:
 
Process Unit(s) Description:
 
Total Source Operating Time in Reporting Period:
 

Emission Data Summary 

1.	 Duration of excess emission in reporting period due to: 

k.	 Startup/shutdown. 
I.	 Control equipment problems. 
m.	 Process problems. 
n.	 Other known causes. 
o.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total duration of excess emissions. 

3.	 Total duration of excess emissions x 100 = % excess emissions 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

CEMS Performance Summary 

1.	 CEMS downtime in reporting period due to: 

k.	 Monitor equipment malfunctions. 
I.	 Non-monitoring equipment malfunctions. 
m.	 Quality assurance calibrations. 
n.	 Other known causes. 
o.	 Unknown causes. 

2.	 Total CEMS Downtime when the boiler is operating (nearest quarter hour). 

3.	 Total CEMS downtime when the boiler is operating x 100 = % downtime 
Total Boiler Operating Time 

4.	 Total boiler operating time (nearest quarter hour). 

The reports shall only be required Semiannual for each six-month period. The semiannual reports 
must be postmarked by the so" day after the end of each six-month period. 

7.	 The permittee shall submit quarterly reports to the Department containing the following information 
for each month of the quarter: 

a.	 Monthly average coal analysis 

b.	 Coal consumption 

OP2953-07 G-2 Decision 12/04/2012 
EtTective Date: 01/04/2013 



c.	 Other fuels combusted and the amount 

d.	 Tons of emissions calculated as the sum of E, = K X Ch X Qh, where E, = emission rate (lb/hr), K 
= 1.19 x 10-7 (Ib/scf)/ppm (NOx), C, = measured pollutant concentration (ppmwet), and Qh= 
measured stack gas flow rate (SCFHwet); and 

e.	 A summary report including the information identified in 40 CFR D75.64(a)(3) through (5) in 
writing which includes: 

I.	 Average NOx emission rate (Ibs/mmBtu, rounded to the nearest hundredth) during the 
quarter and cumulative NOx emission rate for calendar year. 

II.	 Tons of CO2 emitted during quarter and cumulative CO2 for calendar year. 
III.	 Total heat input (mmBtu) for quarter and cumulative heat input for calendar year. 

The quarterly reports must be postmarked by the 30thday after the end of the calendar quarter. 

8.	 The permittee shall submit copies of all RATAs performed to the Department in accordance with 
ARM 17.8.106, Source Testing Protocol. 

9.	 The permittee shall submit copiers of each monitoring plan revision, which results in the need to 
recertify the CEMS. 

OP2953-07 G-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/2013 



Appendix H ACID RAIN 

United States 
OMB No. 2060-0258 Environmental Protection Agency 

Approval expires 1113012012&EPA Acid Rain Program 

Phase II NOx Compliance Plan 
For more information, _ Instructions lII1drefer 1040 CFR76.9 Page D of I[] 
This submission is: 0 New ~ Revised 

STEPt
 
indicate plant name, State,
 
and ORIS code from NADB,
 
If applicable
 

STEP 2 

(I) Standlrd annUIII lverage emi..ion 
IImltlltlon 01 O.SO IblmmBtu (lor fl!!!!.! 
dry boUom wall·tlred boilersJ 

(b) Stanclard annual ......aga amlaaion 
IImllation of O.411lblmmBlu (lor Phe .. I 
tlIngantlally fired bollara) 

(cJ EPA-approved ..-ty alectlon plan 
uncia<40 CFR 76.8 through 12/31107 
(8Ieo Indicate above amle.ion limit 
lpecIIled In plan) 

(eI)StlIndard Innualaverage emlsolon 
limitation 010.46 II>'rnm8tu(lor flHlH 
I dry botIom WlI~tlred bolla"'J 

(aJ Standerd ann\l81 lveroge emlaalon 
Ilm_ of 0.40 Iblmm8tu (lor Pl:!!u 
! tangentially fired bolleroJ 

(I) 8tanclard annualaVlfage amlulon 
IImltaUon010.68 IblmmBtu (lor call 
burnar bollersl 

(gJ 81Bndard amuII IVerage aml..lon 
limitation 01 0.lI6lb1mm8lu (lor 
cyclone bolla"') 

(hJ 8tandald annualaV1fBg8 amlulon 
Iimltltlon of 0.80 IblmmBtu (lor 
-ucally fired bolleroJ 

0)StlIncIlIrdannual average emlsolon 
limitation of 0.84 Iblmm8lu (lor _ 
boUom boilersJ 

OJNO, Ave",glng Plan (Include NO, 
A_aging lann) 

(k) Common _ pu",uanl to 40 CAl 
75.17(1)(2)(i)(AJ(check the standard 
_1..lon IIm1tet1on box above lor 
most otr1ngen\ HmllMionapplicable to 
..y unit utilizing lIock) 

(iJCommon SlIck punuantlo 40 CFR 
75.17(aJ(2)(1)(8)with NO, Averaging 
(c_ thl NO, A_agIng Plan box 
..d Include NO, Averaging formJ 

EPA FOIlTl 7610-28 (Revised 12-2009) 

Plant Name JE Corette Plant Slate MT 
ORIS Code 

2187 

Identity each affected Group 1 and Group 2 boiler using the boiler lOt from HADB, if applicable. 
Indicate boiler type: "Ce"for cell burner, "CY" for cyclone, "DBW' for dry bottom wall-fired, "T' for 
tangentially fired, "V" for vertically fired, and "WB" for wet bottom. Indicate the compliance oplIon 
selected for each unll. 

~BBBEE
 
D D D D D D 

.-.. 

D D D D D D 

D D D D D D 

D 0 D D 0 D 

EJ D D D D D 

D D D D D D 

D D 0 D D D

D O D D D D 

D D D D D D 
D D D D D D 

D 0 D D D D 

D D D D D D 

OP2953-07 H-l Decision: 12/04/20 \2 
Effective Date: 0 \/04120\3 



STEP 2, cont'd. 

(m) EPA-ePP'Owd common _ 
apportionment method purauentlo 40 
CFR 75.17(1}(2)(l}(C}, (.)(2)(Rl}(6), or 
(b)(2) 

(n, AELllncludo Ph .... AEL 
DIJnonotrotlon Peftod, A .... An 
P8tlClon, or AEl Renowll form II 
lIPP"oprhn) 

(0) PoIllIon for AEL domono1rlllon 
period or _ AEL !Meier",view by
U.s. EPA or__n period 

ongoing 

(P) ~ng .""'nolon pion 
IPflI'Owd or under0'8VI_ 

STEP 3 
Read the standard 
requirements and 
certlftcatlon, enter the 
name of the deIIlgnated 
representative, sign" 

] NO, Compliance· Page 2 

Page D of DL--""" JE Corette PI:" 

B8B8GB
 
D 0 0 D 0 0 

D D D D 0 D 

D 0 D D D D 

D D D D D D 

.......

Standard Requirement. 

~. This source is subject to the standard requirements in 40 CFR 72,9 (consistentwith40 CFR 76,8(e)(1)(i». 
These requirementsare listed in this source'sAcId Rain Permit 

SpllClal Provlslons lor Early Election Units 

N!l!9geO0Xjde§. A l.fI~ !halls governed by an approvedearly &lec1ion plan shall be subject to an emissions limitation 
lor NO, as provided under 40 CFR 76.8(a)(2) eJCC8Pl as provlded under 40 CFR 76.8(e)(3)(1ll). 
~. The owners and operatorsof a l.fIil governed by an approvedearly elecllon plan shall be liable for any 
vIolatlon cf the plan or 40 CFR 76.8 al that l.fIll. The 0'NI'lel'S and operalorS"shallbe liable, beginning January 1, 2000. 
for 1ulfllllngthe obligationsspecified in 40 CFR Part n. 
Tenninatlon. An approvedearly electionplan shaI1be in effect only l.fI~1 the earlkll:01January 1, 2008 or Janumy 1 01 
the calendar year lor which a termination01the plan takes effect. If the deslglated representative01the unit under en 
aPlJCOVlld early electfonplan failstodemoostrale comptianeewith!he applicable emissions limitation IJ1der40 CFR 
76.5 lor any year durlng the plll10dbeginningJanlJllry 1 01the first year the early electfon takes effect and ending 
December 31, 2007, the permittingauthority wiN tennlnate the plan. The terminationwiD take effect beginning January 
1 01the year after the year lor which lhere is a lallure todemone1rate compliance, and tile designated representative 
may not submh a new early election plan. The designated representativeof the unit underan approved 88rly election 
plan may lennlnate lhe plan any year prior to 2008 butmay not submit a newearly election ptan. In order to tannlnate 
the plan, the designated representativemust submita notice under 40 CFR 72.4O(d) by January 1 01the year lor 
which the tennination is to take effect. " an early eledlon plan Is teoninaled any year prior to 2000, the unit shall meet, 
beginning January 1. 2000. the applicableemissions limitation tor NO, lor Phase II units with Gr0l4l1 boilers under 40 
CFR 76.1. 11 an early election plan is tenninated on or after 2000, lhe unit shall meet, beginning on the effective date of 
thetennlnatlon, the applicableemissionslimitation for NO, for Phase II unl1s with Gr0l4l1 bollers l.fIder 40 CFR 76.7. 

Certification 

I am aulhortzed to make this submissionon behati 01 the owners and operalo!s of the affected source or affected un/t!l 
for which the submission is made. I certify under penalty 01law that I have persooallyexamined. and am familiar with, 
the statements and infoonatlon sltlmitled In this dooumentand all its attaclments. Based on my inquiry 01those 
Individuals with prinary responslbiUty tor obtaining the Infonnation, I certify thet the stalements and informationare to 
the best of my knowtedgeand beliel true, accurate.and complate. I am aware that there are significant penalties for 
Submittinglalse statemenls and infonnation or omit1lng required statements and Infonnation. illcludlng the possibility of 
fine or Imprisonment. 

ate May 3,2011 

EPA Form 7610-26 (Revised 12·2009) 

H-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 J104/2013 

OP2953·07 



Appendix I S02 SIP 

Although the hard copy of Appendix I has been removed from the permit, the contents of Appendix I,
 
S02 Control Plan remain as applicable requirements as stated in the Title V Operating Permit OP2953-07.
 
To receive a copy of this appendix, please see the following website:
 

Internet Iink to the final copy of the SIP located on EPA's web page:
 
PPLM Corette SIP (See Yellowstone County)
 

The following is intended to help guide the reader to the SIP documents on this web page. 
STEP 1 - Click the link and scroll down to the bottom of the page where you will see "Yellowstone 
County" 
STEP 2 - Click the "Yellowstone County tab" 
STEP 3 - Click the "Sulfur Dioxide - Board Orders, Stipulations, Exhibits and Attachments" tab 
STEP 4 - Click the "Montana Power June 12, 1998 Board Order and Stipulation In the Matter of the 
Application ... " tab 
STEP 5 - Scroll to the bottom of the page and you will see tabs one for the Stipulation and one for the 
Board Order to connect you to either of these documents 

Next go back and complete STEP 3 
STEP 6 - Click the "Montana Power June 12, 1998 Exhibit A... " tab 
STEP 7 - Scro 11 to the bottom of the page and you will see a tab for the Exh ibit A document 

or contact the Department:
 

Montana Department of Environmental Quality
 
Permitting and Compliance Division
 
Air Resources Management Bureau
 

1520 E. Sixth Ave.
 
P.O. Box 200901
 

Helena, Montana 59620-0901
 
Bureau Phone: (406) 444-3490
 

OP2953-07 I-I Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 1/04/2013 



Appendix J OPERATION MODIFICATION PLAN-Revision 5 

Montana Power Company 
J.E. Corette Plant 

Operation Modification Plan Revision 5 

1.0 Criteria to ensure compliance with the particulate standard 

1.1 The six minute opacity requirements (40%) will remain as specified in ARM 17.8.304. 
The provisions contained in this section are needed to allow startup/shutdown and soot 
blowing activities consistent with normal practices acknowledged by the agency in the 
present rules as necessary for operation. 

1.2 In order to keep particulate matter emission below the standard specified in ARM 
17.8.309 on a continuous basis, the plant will keep daily (24 hour) opacity levels below 
17%. This limit was based on the PM vs. opacity relationship identified in the previous 
revision of the aMP. The daily opacity average will begin each day at midnight and will 
be calculated by averaging all individual hourly opacity averages measured during the 
day. 

1.3	 Additionally, hourly opacity averages will be at or below 23% opacity. Corrective 
actions to ensure compliance with these opacity limits may include several operating 
changes or load decreases as necessary to reduce opacity in a timely manner. Hourly 
opacity averages occurring during plant malfunction or emergency conditions will 
continue to be handled as specified in ARM 17.8.110. 

1.4	 During times when ESP malfunctions result in failure of all portions of a bank, all aMP 
guidelines and standards will be maintained. Load will be lowered to 150 GMW and 
Reference Method testing, followed by load adjustment, will be utilized to ensure 
compliance. 

2.0 The JE Corette plant is expected to operate in the following manner until such time that better 
operating equipment modifications are demonstrated as acceptable to the agency. 

2.1	 Regulatory Criteria: The criteria listed below and summarized under Regulatory Criteria 
in Table I will be used to determine compliance with ARM 17.8.304 and 309. 

2.1.1	 Plant opacity will be monitored and controlled to meet the regulatory criteria 
listed in Section 1.0. 

2.1.2	 Semi-annual particulate matter emission tests will be conducted to demonstrate 
compliance with the standard. 

2.1.3	 Opacity accuracy audits will be conducted quarterly. Complete descriptions of 
these assessments can be found in the PPL Montana Continuous Emissions 
Monitoring Systems (CEMS) Quality Assurance (QA) Plan. 

2.1.4	 An annual opacity monitor comprehensive filed calibration will be performed. 

2.2	 Operational Assessment Parameters: These parameters have been determined to be 
important to the operation ofthe air pollution control equipment (ESP). They are not 
regulatory criteria like the standards, but are the nominal range or value determined to be 
representative of good ESP control operating conditions. 

2.2.1 Flue gas exit temperature will normally be below 290°F on a daily average. 
2.2.2 The total ESP powers will normally be below 150 kVA on a daily average. 

OP2953-07 J-1 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



2.2.3 
2.2.4 

2.2.5 

The coal ash content will normally be below 10 Ibs/MMBtu as delivered by train. 
All information listed above and in Table will be reported quarterly to the 
Agency. 
The operating practices described above and in Table I are guidelines only, 
describing current conditions which help assure particulate compliance. These 
conditions may be changed in the future to make sure the ESP performance is 
maintained and to help assure particulate compliance. 

fOMPT bl ISa e ummary 0 

Regulatory Criteria 
Parameter Criteria 
Opacity 40% six-minute average 

23% hour average 
17% daily average 

Quarterly opacity accuracy audits 
Annual comprehensive field calibration 

Particulate Compliance Test Semi-annual particulate compliance test (RM %) 

Operational Assessment Parameters 
Flue Gas Exit Temperature Less than 290 0 on a daily average 

Total ESP Power Greater than 150 kVA on a daily average 
Coal Ash Content Less than.lO Ib/MMBtu as delivered by train 
Plant Generation Load reduction as necessary to meet daily opacity criteria 

Hourly load reduction as necessary during periods of corrective action 

OP2953-07 J-2 Decision: J2/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/20 J3 



Appendix K Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan 

EU7 - J. E. Corette Boiler CAM Plan for PM 
Monitoring Indicator Performance Indicator Range Monitoring Method 

Opacity Daily Average <14% COM/Continuous 
Flue Gas Exit Temperature Daily Average <290°F Plant Control Room Operator 

Monitor/Continuous 
Total ESP Powers Daily Average> 150kVA Plant Control Room Operator 

Monitor/Continuous 
Coal Ash Content Train Average <10 Ib/MMBtu Plant Control Room Operator 

Monitor/Continuous 

Opacity 

Opacity is a key performance indicator for assuring compliance with the PM limit. Opacity is measured 
in the stack on a continuous basis. Opacity data is collected and stored in the DAHS. Six-minute, hourly 
and daily averages are calculated based on minute data. As stated in the PPLM CEMS QA Plan, daily 
COMs calibration drift checks are conducted and quarterly opacity accuracy audits are conducted. PM 
emissions will be considered to be in compliance with the applicable limits when the opacity is:::: 14% as 
measured on a daily average. Data regarding opacity monitoring is reported on a quarterly basis unless 
required otherwise during any excursion as required by Section V.E. of the permit. The Daily Average 
Opacity indicator is based on; 

I.	 Semi-annual performance tests have indicated that the PM standard is met when opacity is :::: 
14%. See the figure below, PPLM PM emission tests 2009-2011. 

2.	 Corrective actions will be taken as necessary within each day when the day's daily building 
block average is above 14%. This will help ensure the daily average opacity remains at or 
below 14%. 

3.	 In PPLM shall not exhibit opacity from the boiler greater than 23% for a l-hour averaging 
period and greater than 17% for a 24-hour averaging period. (This limit is based on the PM 
vs. opacity relationship. ) The daily opacity average will begin each day at midnight and will 
be calculated by averaging all individual hourly opacity averages measured during the day. 
Corrective actions to ensure compliance with these opacity limits may include several 
operating changes or load decreases as necessary to reduce opacity in a timely manner. 

OP2953-07 K-J Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



JECSES PM Emission Tests 2009 ·2011 

opac% 

Flue Gas Exit Temperature, Total ESP Powers, & Coal Ash Content 

Flue Gas Exit Temperature, Total ESP Powers, & Coal Ash Content are also parameters that will be 
monitored as indicators ofthe proper operation of the ESP. The plant control room operator will monitor 
these performance indicators on a continuous basis and take action to help prevent excursions of the 
performance indicators at the set ranges in the above table. A review of historical operating data indicates 
that the ESP is operating properly when the flue gas exit temperature is below 290°F, total ESP powers 
above 150 kilovolt-ampere (kV A), and coal ash content is less than] 0 Ib/MMbtu. 

Flue Gas Exit Temperature 

The flue gas exit temperature is the temperature of the stream as it enters the ESP. A large 
enclosure is one of the essential elements necessary for the ESP to work. During normal 
operations, the enclosure, including the ash collection hoppers, must remain hot at all times. If 
not, the moisture will condense out and cause the ash particles to stick to the surfaces. The 
moisture will also mix with the SOx (various forms of sulfur oxides) forming acids, and oxygen, 
and metal to form rust. When the flue gas enters the precipitator enclosure, it passes through a 
perforated plate that distributes the gas flow through the precipitator, which makes more efficient 
use of the available space. Because temperature is an important parameter it has been chosen as a 
performance indicator to the ESP operation and will be continually monitored to maintain the 
range at a daily average below 290°F. 

Total ESP Powers 

The simple explanation of an ESP operation is equipment contains essentially two pieces of 
material, one with a significant negative charge or excess of electrons, and the other grounded. 
The voltage between the two pieces could range from thousands to a hundred thousand volts. As 
a particle approaches the negatively charged part (wire in Corette's case), it picks up an electrical 
charge or excess of electrons. Because the basic principle of an ESP operation is based on the 
electric change it leads to the performance indicator in terms of voltage. PPL has chosen to 
monitor on a continuous basis an indicator range for total ESP powers at a daily average above 
l50kVA, 

OP2953-07 x-z Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date 01/04/2013 



Coal Ash Content 

Since the efficiency ofthe ESP depends on its ability to charge particles and help them migrate 
towards the collection plate, the ability of a particle to accept a charge is very important. This is 
referred to as resistivity or resistance to current flow. If the flyash partie Ie will not accept a 
charge (high resistivity), it will not migrate to the collection plate and will not be removed from 
the gas stream. The ability of a particle to accept a charge depends on several things, including 
the sulfur (especially SO), sodium, calcium and magnesium content, and temperature. There are 
also other influencing factors. Sulfur, sodium, and high temperature lower resistivity while 
calcium, magnesium and low temperature raise resistivity. These elements are found in the coal 
being burned, so the resistivity of the flyash depends and varies with the coal supply. In some 
cases it is necessary to add SO) or other compounds to the coal or flue gas to improve precipitator 
performance. These are very common practices. Thus, PPLM has chosen to continuously 
monitor the ash content of the coal, with a performance indicator range of a daily average <10 
Ib/MMBtu coal ash content. 

OP2953-07 K-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/0412013 



Appendix L Mercury Emissions Monitoring System (MEMS) 
(These requirements are "State Only") 

MEMS 

a.	 PPLM shall install, calibrate, certify, maintain, and operate an MEMS to monitor and record the 
rate of mercury emissions discharged into the atmosphere from all mercury emitting generating 
units (units) as defined in the Administrative Rules of Montana 17.8.740. 

(I)	 The MEMS shall be comprised of equipment as required in 40 CFR 75.81(a) and defined in 
40 CFR 72.2. 

(2)	 The MEMS shall conform to all applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 75. 

(3)	 The MEMS data will be used to demonstrate compliance with the emission limitations 
contained in Section lII.H.16. 

b. PPLM shall prepare, maintain and submit a written MEMS Monitoring Plan to the Department. 

(1)	 The monitoring plan shall contain sufficient information on the MEMS and the use of data 
derived from these systems to demonstrate that all the gaseous mercury stack emissions from 
each unit are monitored and reported. 

(2)	 Whenever PPLM makes a replacement, modification, or change in a MEMS or alternative 
monitoring system under 40 CFR 75 subpart E, including a change in the automated data 
acquisition and handling system (DAHS) or in the flue gas handling system, that affects 
information reported in the monitoring plan (e.g. a change to a serial number for a component 
of a monitoring system), then the owner or operator shall update the monitoring plan. 

(3)	 If any monitoring plan information requires an update pursuant to Section b.(2), submission 
of the written monitoring plan update shall be completed prior to or concurrent with the 
submittal ofthe quarterly report required in c. below for the quarter in which the update is 
required. 

(4)	 The initial submission ofthe Monitoring Plan to the Department shall include a copy ofa 
written Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Plan as detailed in 40 CFR 75 Appendix 
B, Section 1. Subsequently, the QA/QC Plan need only be submitted to the Department when 
it is substantially revised. Substantial revisions can include items such as changes in QA/QC 
processes resulting from rule changes, modifications in the frequency or timing ofQA/QC 
procedures, or the addition/deletion of equipment or procedures. 

(5)	 The Monitoring Plan shall include, at a minimum, the following information: 

(a)	 Facility summary including: 

(i)	 A description of each mercury-emitting generating unit at the facility. 

(ii)	 Maximum and average loads (in megawatts (MW» with fuels combusted and fuel 
flow rates at the maximum and average loads for each unit. 

(iii) A description of each unit's air pollution control equipment and a description of the 
physical characteristics of each unit's stack. 

OP2953-07 L-l Decision 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 0 I/04/20 13 



(b) Mercury emission control summary including a description of control strategies, 
equipment, and design process rates. 

(c)	 MEMS description, including: 

(i)	 Identification and description of each monitoring component in the MEMS including 
manufacturer and model identifications; monitoring method descriptions; and normal 
operating scale and units descriptions. Descriptions of stack flow, diluent gas, and 
moisture monitors (if used) in the system must be described in addition to the 
mercury monitor or monitors. 

(ii) A description of the normal operating process for each monitor, including a 
description of all QA/QC checks. 

(iii) A description ofthe methods that will be employed to verify and maintain the 
accuracy and precision of the MEMS calibration equipment. 

(iv) Identification and description of the DAHS, including major hardware and software 
components, conversion formulas, constants, factors, averaging processes, and 
missing data substitution procedures. 

(v) A description of all initial certification and ongoing recertification tests and 
frequencies; as well as all accuracy auditing tests and frequencies. 

(d)	 The Maximum Potential Concentration (MPC), Maximum Expected Concentration 
(MEC), span value, and range value as applicable and as defined in 40 CFR 75 Appendix 
A, 2.1.7. 

(e) Examples of all data reports required in c. below. 

c.	 PPLM shall submit written, Quarterly Mercury Monitoring Reports. The reports shall be 
received by the Department within 30 days following the end of each calendar quarter, and shall 
include, at a minimum, the following: 

(I)	 Mercury emissions. The reports shall include: 

(a)	 The monthly average Ib/TBtu mercury emission rate for each month of the quarter; 

(b)	 The 12-month rolling average Ib/TBtu emission rate for each month ofthe reporting 
quarter. The roll ing 12-month basis is an average of the last 12 individual calendar 
monthly averages, with each monthly average calculated at the end of each calendar 
month; and 

(c)	 The total heat input to the boiler (in TBtu) for each 12-month rolling period ofthe 
quarter. 

(2) Mercury excess emissions.	 The report shall describe the magnitude of excess mercury 
emissions experienced during the quarter, including: 

(a)	 The date and time of commencement and completion of each period of excess emissions. 
Periods of excess emissions shall be defined as those emissions calculated on a rolling 
12-month basis which are greater than the limitation established in Section 1II.H.16. 

OP2953-07 L-2 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01104/2013 



(b)	 The nature and cause of each period of excess emissions and the corrective action taken 
or preventative measures adopted in response. 

(c)	 If no periods of excess mercury emissions were experienced during the quarter, the report 
shall state that information. 

(3)	 MEMS performance. The report shall describe: 

(a)	 The number of operating hours that the MEMS was unavailable or not operating within 
quality assurance limits (monitor downtime) during the reporting quarter, broken down 
by the following categories: 

Monitor equipment malfunctions; 

Non-Monitor equipment malfunctions; 

Quality assurance calibration; 

Other known causes; and 

Unknown causes. 

(b)	 The percentage of unit operating time that the MEMS was unavailable or not operating 
within quality assurance limits (monitor downtime) during the reporting quarter. The 
percentage of monitor downtime in each calendar quarter shall be calculated according to 
the following formula: 

f0'D . 0/ ( MEMSDownHo urs ) 100ME ~ ownttmer/o =	 whereivu». x 
OpHours 

MEMSDowntime% Percentage of unit operating hours classified as MEMS 
monitor downtime during the reporting quarter. 

MEM SDownHours Total number of hours of MEMS monitor downtime 
during the reporting quarter. 

OpHours Total number of hours the un it operated during the 
reporting quarter. 

(c)	 For any reporting quarter in which monitor downtime exceeds 10%, a description of each 
time period during which the MEMS was inoperative or operating in a manner defined in 
40 CFR Part 75 as "out of control." Each description must include the date, start and end 
times, total downtime (in hours), the reason for the system downtime, and any necessary 
corrective actions that were taken. In addition, the report shall describe the values used 
for any periods when missing data substitution was necessary as detailed in 40 CFR 
75.30, et seq. 

(4)	 The quarterly report shall include the results of any QA/QC audits, checks, or tests conducted 
to satisfy the requirements of 40 CFR Part 75 Appendices A, B or K. 

OP2953-07 L-3 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



(5) Compliance certification. Each quarterly report shall contain a certification statement signed 
by the facility's responsible official based on reasonable inquiry of those persons with 
primary responsibility for ensuring that all of the unit's emissions are correctly and fully 
monitored. The certification shall indicate: 

(a)	 Whether the monitoring data submitted were recorded in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of 40 CFR Part 75 including the QAIQC procedures and specifications of 
that part and its appendices, and any such requirements, procedures and specifications of 
an applicable excepted or approved alternative monitoring method as represented in the 
approved Monitoring Plan. 

(b) That for all hours where data are substituted in accordance with 40 CFR 75.38, the add
on mercury emission controls were operating within the range of parameters listed in the 
quality-assurance plan for the unit, and that the substitute values do not systematically 
underestimate mercury emissions. 

(6) The format	 of each component of the quarterly report may be negotiated with the 
Department's representative to accommodate the capabilities and formats of the facility's 
DAHS. 

(7) Each quarterly report must be received by the Department within 30 days following the end 
of each calendar reporting period (January-March, April-June, July-September, and October
December). 

(8) The electronic data reporting detailed in 40 CFR Part 75 shall not be required unless Montana 
is able to receive and process data in an electronic format. 

d.	 PPLM shall maintain a file of all measurements and performance testing results from the MEMS; 
all MEMS performance evaluations; all MEMS or monitoring device calibration checks and 
audits; and records ofall adjustments and maintenance performed on these systems or devices 
recorded in a permanent form suitable for inspection. The file shall be retained on site for at least 
5 years following the date of such measurements and reports. PPLM shall make these records 
available for inspection by the Department and shall supply these records to the Department upon 
request. 

OP2953-07 L-4 Decision: 12/04/2012 
Effective Date: 01/04/2013 



5

10

15

20

25

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA
 

IN THE MATTER OF: CASE NO. BER 2013-02 AQ 
THE REQUEST FOR HEARING BY 
MONTANA ENVIRONMENTAL 
INFORMATION CENTER AND SIERRA 
CLUB REGARDING DEQ'S ISSUANCE 
OF MONTANA AIR QUALITY 
OPERATING PERNIIT NO. OP2953-07 
FOR THE JE CORETTE STEAM 
ELECTRIC STATION IN BILLINGS, MT 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER
 

Ms. Jenny K. Harbin, Counsel for Montana Environmental Information 

Center and Sierra Club (hereinafter Appellants), filed a Request for Hearing 

appealing the decision of the Montana Department of Environmental Quality 

(Department) of December 4, 2013, issuing Montana Air Quality Operating Permit 

No. OP2953-07 for the JE Corette Steam Electric Station in Billings, Montana. The 

following guidelines and rules are provided to assist the parties in an orderly 

resolution of this contested case: 

1. REFERENCES: This matter is governed, as far as authority to 

proceed, by the Montana Administrative Procedure Act, Mont. Code Ann. Tit. 2, 

Ch. 4, Pt. 6, and Mont. Admin. R. 17.4.101, by which the Board of Environmental 

Review (Board) has adopted the Attorney General's Model Rules for contested 

cases, Mont. Admin. R. 1.3.211 through 1.3.225; and Mont. Code Ann. § 75-2-218. 

2. FILING: Except for discovery requests and responses (which are not 

routinely filed), original documents shall be sent for filing with the Board, 

addressed as follows: 

Ms. Joyce Wittenberg
 
Secretary, Board of Environmental Review
 
Department of Environmental Quality
 
1520 East Sixth Avenue
 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER 
PAGE I 



5

10

15

20

25

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 I 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

One £QJ!Y of each document that is filed should be sent to the Hearing 

Examiner addressed as follows: 

KA THERINE 1. ORR
 
Hearing Examiner
 
Agency Legal Services Bureau
 
17 I2 Ninth Avenue
 
P.O. Box 201440
 
Helena, MT 59620- I440
 

Although discovery documents are not normally filed, when a motion or brief 

is filed making reference to discovery documents, the party filing the motion or 

brief should also attach the relevant discovery documents. 

3. SERVICE: Copies of all documents filed with the Board and 

provided to the Hearing Examiner, including correspondence, must be served upon 

the opposing party. A certi ficate of service should be provided. 

4. EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS: The Montana Administrative 

Procedure Act in Mont. Code Ann. § 2-4-6 13, and the Attorney General's Model 

Rule 18 in Mont. Admin. R. 1.3.222, prohibit ex parte communications with a 

hearing examiner concerning any issue of fact or law in a contested case. In 

addition to observing this rule, please contact the opposing party before you 

communicate with the Hearing Examiner even on purely procedural matters such as 

the need for a continuance. 

5. SCHEDULING: The undersigned requests that the parties consult 

with each other and propose to the undersigned a schedule upon which they agree by 

January 31, 2013. The schedule should include the following dates: 

(a) for joinder/intervention of additional parties; 

(b) for disclosure by each party to the other parties of: (1) the 

name and address of each individual likely to have discoverable information that the 

disclosing party may use to support its claims or defenses, and (2) a copy of, or a 

description by category and location of, all documents and tangible things that are in 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER 
PAGE2 



5

10

15

20

25

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

the possession, custody, or control of the party and that the disclosing party may use 

to support its claims or defenses; 

(c) for completion of discovery (if any party wishes to conduct 

discovery); 

(d) for exchange of lists of witnesses and copies of documents that 

each party intends to offer at the hearing; 

(e) for submitting any motions and briefs in support; 

(f) for a prehearing conference to hear argument on any motions 

and resolve other prehearing matters; and, 

(g) for the contested case hearing, as well as the place of hearing. 

6. A copy of this First Prehearing Order is being provided to the permit 

applicant, PPL Montana, LLC. No separate motion to intervene is required if the 

permit applicant complies with this Order and proposes a schedule for further 

proceedings after consultation with the other parties. The permit applicant shall be 

considered to have intervened in these contested case proceedings by timely 

submitting a proposed schedule.:;
DATED this /6 day of Janual)',J.Q~3~
 

.:
 
ERIN J. RR 

earing Examiner 
Agency Legal Services Bureau 
1712 Ninth Avenue 
P.O. Box 201440 
Helena, MT 59620-1440 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER 
PAGE3 



5

10

15

20

25

2
 

3
 

4
 

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

I I
 

12
 

13
 

14
 

16
 

17
 

18
 

19
 

21
 

22
 

23
 

24
 

26
 

27
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I caused a true and accurate copy of the foregoing First 

Prehearing Order to be mailed to: 

Ms. Joyce Wittenberg 
Secretary, Board of Environmental Review 
Department of Environmental Quality 
1520 East Sixth Avenue 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 
(original) 

Mr. Norm Mullen 
Legal Counsel 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

Mr. David Klemp, Bureau Chief 
Air Resources Management Bureau 
Department of Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 200901
 
Helena, MT 59620-0901
 

Ms. Jenny K. Harbine
 
Ms. Laura D. Beaton
 
Earthjustice
 
313 East Main Street
 
Bozeman, MT 59715
 

Mr. James M. Parker
 
PPL Montana, LLC
 
303 N. Broadway, Suite 400
 
Billings, MT 59101
 

DATED: ~"4 L'\ ';;'6(5 ~_____ 

FIRST PREHEARING ORDER
 
PAGE 4
 


	012513Agenda
	IA1
	IIIA1ExecSumm
	IIIA1AmendNotice
	IIIA1NoticePubHear
	IIIA1Presiding
	IIIA1HB521&311
	IIIA1NoticeofAmend
	IIIB1Appeal
	IIIB1FirstPrehear
	IIIB2Appeal
	IIIB2FirstPrehear



